
Scrutiny Standing  
Panel Agenda 

1 

 
 
 
 
Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel 
Tuesday, 14th November, 2006 
 
Place: Committee Room 1, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
  
Time: 7.00 pm 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer: 

Adrian Hendry - Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 01992 564249 Email: ahendry@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors J M Whitehouse (Chairman), J Hart (Vice-Chairman), Mrs R Gadsby, R Church, 
M Colling, Mrs A Cooper, R D'Souza, P House, D Jacobs and R Morgan 
 
 
 
 
 

 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 2. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (COUNCIL MINUTE 39 - 23.7.02)   
 

  (Head of Research and Democratic Services)  To report the appointment of any 
substitute members for the meeting. 
 

 3. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   
 

  (Head of Research and Democratic Services). To declare interests in any items on the 
agenda. 
 
In considering whether to declare a personal or a prejudicial interest under the Code 
of Conduct, Overview & Scrutiny members are asked pay particular attention to 
paragraph 11 of the Code in addition to the more familiar requirements. 
 
This requires the declaration of a personal and prejudicial interest in any matter before 
an OS Committee which relates to a decision of or action by another Committee or 
Sub Committee of the Council, a Joint Committee or Joint Sub Committee in which the 
Council is involved and of which the Councillor is also a member. 
 
Paragraph 11 does not refer to Cabinet decisions or attendance at an OS meeting 
purely for the purpose of answering questions or providing information on such a 
matter. 
 

 4. NOTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING - 15 AUGUST 2006  (Pages 5 - 10) 

 



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Tuesday, 14 November 2006 
 

2 

 
  To consider and agree the notes of the meeting of the Panel held on 15 August 2006. 

 
 

 5. TERMS OF REFERENCE / WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 11 - 14) 
 

  (Chairman/Lead Officer) The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has agreed the Terms 
of Reference of this Panel and associated Work Programme. This is attached. The 
Panel are asked at each meeting to review both documents. 
 

 6. QUARTERLY KPI MONITORING REPORT - 2ND QUARTER.  (Pages 15 - 60) 
 

  (Head of Human Resources and Performance Management)  To consider the 
attached report 
 
 

 7. COMPREHENSIVE PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT - IMPROVEMENT PLAN  
(Pages 61 - 102) 

 
  (Head of Human Resources and Performance Management) To receive a final report 

on the CPA Improvement Plan looking at how the Council will monitor the outstanding 
actions from the CPA. 
 

 8. ESSEX LOCAL AREA AGREEMENT  (Pages 103 - 118) 
 

  (Head of Human Resources and Performance Management) To consider the attached 
report. 
 

 9. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL MONITORING  (Pages 119 - 148) 
 

  (Head of Finance) To consider the attached report. 
 

 10. FEES AND CHARGES - 2007/08  (Pages 149 - 156) 
 

  (Head of Finance) To consider the attached report. 
 

 11. CONSULTATION PLAN 2006/07  (Pages 157 - 174) 
 

  (Head of Human Resources and Performance Management) To consider the attached 
report. 
 

 12. VALUE FOR MONEY ANALYSIS  (Pages 175 - 204) 
 

  (Head of Housing Services) To consider the attached report. 
 

 13. EVALUATION OF RECRUITMENT AND RETENTION STRATEGY  (Pages 205 - 
212) 

 
  (Head of Human Resources and Performance Management) To consider the attached 

report 
 

 14. LOCAL LAND CHARGES  (Pages 213 - 216) 
 



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Tuesday, 14 November 2006 
 

3 

  (Head of Legal, Administration and Estates) At this Panel’s meeting in June 
2006, a further report on the status of the Local Land Charges budget and the 
income generated from standard searches and personal searches was 
requested. This updating report is attached. 
  

 
 

 15. REPORTS TO BE MADE TO THE NEXT MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE   

 
  To consider which reports are ready to be submitted to the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee at its next meeting. 
 

 16. FUTURE MEETINGS   
 

  To consider the forward programme of meeting dates for the Panel. 
 
Next scheduled meetings: 
15 January 2007; and 
12 February 2007. 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
NOTES OF A MEETING OF FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT SCRUTINY 

PANEL  
HELD ON TUESDAY, 15 AUGUST 2006 

IN COMMITTEE ROOM 1, CIVIC OFFICES, HIGH STREET, EPPING 
AT 7.00  - 8.40 PM 

 
Members 
Present: 

J M Whitehouse (Chairman), J Hart (Vice-Chairman), Mrs R Gadsby, 
R Church, P House and R Morgan 

  
Other members 
present: 

Mrs D Collins and J Knapman 

  
Apologies for 
Absence: 

M Colling and Mrs A Cooper 

  
Officers Present R Pavey (Assistant Head of Finance), R Sharp (Principal Accountant), 

J Bissell (Principal Accountant), S Tautz (Senior Performance 
Management Officer), T Tidey (Head of Human Resources and 
Performance Management), Mrs J Twinn (Assistant Head of Finance), 
R Wilson (Assistant Head of Housing Services (Operations)) and S G Hill 
(Senior Democratic Services Officer) 

  
Also in 
attendance: 

  

 
1. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (COUNCIL MINUTE 39 - 23.7.02)  

 
No substitutes were reported. 
 

2. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 
No declarations were made. 
 

3. NOTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING - 1 JUNE 2006  
 
Noted and agreed as a correct record. 
 

4. TERMS OF REFERENCE / WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The current work programme was noted. 
 

5. KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2006/07  
 
The Panel noted that this was the first quarter when the new performance monitoring 
system had been used to provide information on KPI’s. Officers were working with 
the suppliers to improve presentation of the statistics. 
 
On the specific KPI’s the following questions were asked: 
 
KPI 
Number 

Title Comments 

BV 008 Invoices Paid on Time The Panel congratulated the officers on 
continuing improvements in performance 

Agenda Item 4

Page 5



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Tuesday, 15 August 2006 

2 

KPI 
Number 

Title Comments 

BV 009 Percentage Council Tax 
Collected 

The Panel congratulated the officers on 
continuing improvements in performance 

BV012 Working Days Lost to 
Sickness 

Noted that managers were now seeking 
reasons for absence and following a new 
procedure for managing absence. 

BV014 Percentage of Early 
retirements 

Noted this related to one individual case. 

BV063 Energy Efficiency of 
Housing Stock 

Noted that the Council was currently on target 
to meet this indicator. A further assessment 
would take place at the end of the year. 

BV066 Rent Collection The Panel congratulated the officers on 
continuing improvements in performance. 

BV082a (ii) 
and 
BV0082b 

Household Waste 
Management 

Data collection problems noted. Head of 
Environmental Services was asked for further 
information on how data was calculated. 
 
Panel to give further consideration to these 
KPI’s at the next meeting 

BV109 Planning Applications 
considered within target 
timescales 

Noted that the Constitutional Affairs Panel 
were currently undertaking a review of the 
Planning Subcommittees that might improve 
performance even further. 

BV175 Racial Incidents 
Resulting in Further 
Action 

Noted that the process meant that the 
indicator was always met. 

BV183 Use of Bed and 
Breakfast 
Accommodation 

Noted that targets for stays were difficult to 
meet. The Council had now introduced a 
more advanced homeless prevention service 
that it was hoped would make a difference to 
the figures.  

BV184a Non decent local 
authority dwellings 

Noted that the first quarter target should read 
5.9% 

BV199 Local Street and 
Environmental 
cleanliness 

Noted that data for these KPI’s was only 
collected three times per year and first 
quarter figures were not therefore available. 
First third of the year’s results would be 
reported at month 6. 

BV212 Average Time to let 
Local Authority dwellings 

It was hoped that the introduction of the new 
choice based lettings scheme would improve 
performance on this indicator. 

 
 

6. STAFF VACANCIES  
 
The Panel noted that revenue outturn for 2005/06 presented to the Finance and 
Performance Management Cabinet Committee on 19 June 2006 had showed that 
both the General Fund and the Housing Revenue Account were underspent.  
 
One of the main reasons for this underspend was the level of staff vacancies 
experienced during the financial year. The salaries underspend in 2005/06 had been 
£530,000 (2.7%) when compared to the original budget. However had been was an 
improvement on the previous year when the figures were £1,143,000 (5.9%).  

Page 6



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Tuesday, 15 August 2006 

3 

 
Members received information broken down on a service by service basis. 
 
The position as at the end of June 2006 when compared to the budget at month 
three showed a saving of £242,000, of this around a third related to the Housing 
Revenue Account. At that date there were a total of 60 posts vacant. Some of these 
were being covered by temporary and agency staff, however some were vacant and 
have been for some time for a variety of reasons. 
 
As a result of this situation each service area was being asked to review their staff 
establishment paying particular attention to any posts that had been vacant for over a 
year. Service areas had been asked which posts are vacant, for how long, and what 
the future plans for the posts were. The responses from services would be submitted 
to the next meeting. 
 

7. DATA QUALITY AUDIT AND VALUE FOR MONEY STRATEGY  
 
The Panel noted as the first stage of the audit of Best Value performance Indicators 
(BVPIs) for 2005/06, the Audit Commission was undertaking an assessment of the 
overall management arrangements of all local authorities to secure data quality. 
Although part of this assessment related to the quality of performance information, 
the audit related to corporate data quality arrangements, and was therefore a much 
wider issue than the BVPI audit.  
 
The audit was to be based on a self-assessment exercise and through on-site 
validation by the Commission. The audit would result in a scored judgement, as a 
result of a review of the following five themes and areas for audit focus: 
 

Review theme Audit focus 

Governance and 
leadership 

Was there a corporate framework of management and 
accountability for data quality, with a commitment to securing a 
culture of data quality throughout the organisation? 

Policies and 
procedures 

Where there appropriate policies and procedures in place to 
secure the quality of data recorded and reported by the 
organisation? 

Systems and 
processes 

Had the organisation put in place systems and processes that 
secure the quality of data as part of the normal business 
activity of the organisation? 

People and skills Had the organisation put in place arrangements to ensure that 
all staff had the appropriate knowledge, competencies and 
capacity for their roles in relation to data quality? 

Data use Had the body put in place arrangements that are focused on 
ensuring that data supporting performance information is also 
used to manage and improve the delivery of services? 

 
For each theme area, the Commission had specified a number of Key Lines of 
Enquiry (KLOE) as a basis for councils to undertake a voluntary self-assessment of 
their current position with regard to data quality. Although the completion of a self-
assessment was not a mandatory requirement for the purposes of the audit, the 
Commission considered that this exercise would be helpful for both the audit and for 
the Council to understand its current position.  

Page 7



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Tuesday, 15 August 2006 

4 

 
Members received the draft self-assessment for the data Quality audit which set out 
the audit KLOEs in detail. The timescale for the submission of the self-assessment 
element of this work was tight, and was required by the Audit Commission shortly 
after the meeting.  
 
The results of the Data Quality audit would feed into the Council’s next Value for 
Money assessment, and also inform the second round of district council 
Comprehensive Performance Assessment. The results of the audit would also have a 
bearing on the BVPI audit, in that the sample of performance indicators to be subject 
of in-depth review would be determined partly by the risks elicited from the Data 
Quality audit.  
 
The completion of the self-assessment had provided an opportunity to set out an 
overall corporate approach to ensuring data quality, through the development of a 
Data Quality Strategy, a copy of which was considered by members  The strategy set 
out the commitment to ensuring that arrangements for securing the quality of key 
data met the highest standards. 
 
Value For Money Assessment 
 
The Panel noted that, In preparation for the forthcoming Value for Money 
assessment, a need had been identified to bring together the various elements of the 
Council’s current approach to providing value for money services into a single 
comprehensive document.  Members received a draft version of a corporate Value 
for Money Strategy. The draft Strategy set out the authority’s overall approach to 
achieving value for money and appropriate responsibilities at both member and 
officer level. The self-assessment, once completed, would be presented to the 
Finance and Performance Management Cabinet Committee for endorsement at its 
meeting on 25 September 2006, as there was no other scheduled meeting of the 
Scrutiny Panel before the submission deadline. 
 
The Scrutiny Panel endorsed the content of the Council’s draft self-assessment 
submission in respect of the Data Quality assessment and Value For Money 
Strategy. Members thanked officers for the hard worj that had gone into preparing the 
documents. 
 
Agreed: 
 
(1) That the Council’s self-assessment submission in respect of the ‘Data 
Quality’ assessment to be undertaken by the Audit Commission, be endorsed;  

 
(2) That the Panel endorse the Council’s draft Data Quality and Value For 
Money Strategies; and 

 
(3) That the Cabinet be recommended to adopt the draft Data Quality and 
Value For Money Strategies. 
 

8. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL MONITORING 2006/07 (1ST QUARTER)  
 
CSB and DDF 
 
The Panel received the first quarter monitoring schedule covering the period from 1 
April 2006 to 30 June 2006. 
 

Page 8



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Tuesday, 15 August 2006 

5 

The main budget variances were as follows: 
 
The salaries schedule showed an under spend of some £242,000 (5.1% of budget) 
and reflected the fact that staff vacancies were running at a high level. Members 
noted that this issued had been discussed earlier at the meeting. 
 
Income sources such as Local Land Charges and Car Parking showed a small 
overachievement and Building Control and Development Control a small 
underachievement. Members agreed that variances like this were always likely to 
occur and therefore gave little cause for concern at present. 
  
Expenditure relating to the alteration to the Local Plan, which fell under Forward 
Planning showed a marked, underspend. This was District Development Fund (DDF) 
money, which was expected to be spent later in the year. 
 
The Housing Repairs Fund also showed an underspend. Much of this was due to the 
cyclical maintenance contracts, which had not commenced until July.  
 
As at 30 June 2006 no payments had been made to Sports and Leisure Management 
Ltd under the Management Contract. This had been due to new liaison arrangements 
with SLM’s finance department being established and agreed ways of working 
agreed. Since then Aprils claim had been paid and May and June were expected to 
be paid shortly. 
 
The Off Street Car Parking budget showed an overspend. Members noted that this 
was due to maintenance work occurring earlier than originally anticipated. Also Land 
and Property and Refuse Collection income show an adverse variance but in both 
cases was due to income relating to 2005/06 not being received by the end of June 
2006. 
 
Members also noted proposals to keep Portfolio Holders informed of budget 
variances over the coming months. 
 
Capital Monitoring 
 
Members would receive the updated Capital Programme at the Cabinet meeting on 4 
September 2006 that would revise the spending profile of the existing programme 
and introduce new items agreed since the last update in June 2006.  
 
It was noted that, as part of the process of considering next years budget, a financial 
issues paper was being prepared by the Head of Finance, which would be presented 
to the next meeting. 
 
Agreed: 
 
That the Panel the financial monitoring report for the First quarter of 2006/07, 
be noted; and   
 
That financial monitoring continue on a quarterly basis and in the format 
presented to the Panel. 
 

9. REPORTS TO BE MADE TO THE NEXT MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 
No items would be reported from this meeting. 

Page 9



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Tuesday, 15 August 2006 

6 

 
10. FUTURE MEETINGS  

 
Noted that the next meeting would be held on 14 November 2006 at 7.00 p.m. 
 

Page 10



G:\C\WILLETT\G 2005\TERMS OF REFERENCE - STANDING PANEL.doc 

TERMS OF REFERENCE - STANDING PANEL 
 
 
Title:  Finance and Performance Management 
 
 
 
Status:  Standing Panel 
 
 
 
Terms of Reference: 
 
Performance Management 
 
1. To review Best Value Performance Indicator (BVPI) and Local Performance 

Indicator (LPI) outturns for the previous year at the commencement of each 
municipal year, and to determine the following on an annual basis: 

 
(a) The criteria for deciding which BVPIs and LPIs should be formally monitored 

by the Panel throughout the remainder of the year, based upon the ‘traffic light‘ 
system of performance reporting, Comprehensive Performance Assessment 
improvements, and existing council and member priorities; 

 
(b) A ‘basket’ of priority BVPIs and LPIs, performance against which will be 

reported to the Panel throughout the year; 
 

(c) The monitoring frequency of those priority BVPIs and LPIs identified by the 
Panel; 

 
(d) Arrangements for the wider member reporting and monitoring of performance 

against those BVPIs and LPIs that are not contained in the Panel’s ‘basket’ of 
high priority indicators; 

 
2. To consider proposals and make recommendations for corrective action in relation 

to poorly performing BVPIs and LPIs; 
 
Best Value Performance Plan 
 
3. To consider and make recommendations as appropriate on the format and content 

of the Council’s annual Best Value Performance Plan; 
 
Council Plan 
 
4. To undertake a full review of the existing Council Plan and to make 

recommendations to the Cabinet on the overall strategic vision to be adopted, within 
the context of how the authority intends to prioritise resources and develop services 
in the medium term; 

 
Public Consultation 
 
5. To develop arrangements to directly engage the community in commenting on and 

shaping the future direction of services to make them more responsive to local 
needs, including the development of proposals for effective consultation through an 
annual community conference;  

Agenda Item 5

Page 11



G:\C\WILLETT\G 2005\TERMS OF REFERENCE - STANDING PANEL.doc 

 
6. To annually review the consultation exercises undertaken by the council over the 

previous year. 
 
Finance 
 
7. To consider the draft budgets for each portfolio and in so doing to evaluate and rank 

proposals for either enhancing or reducing services. Members will need to ensure 
consistency between wider policy objectives and financial demands. 

 
8. To consider financial monitoring reports on key areas of income and expenditure for 

each portfolio.  
 
 

 

Page 12



W
or

k 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
20

06
/0

7–
 D

ra
ft 

as
 a

t 1
4 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

6 
   

 

Fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t S

ta
nd

in
g 

Pa
ne

l 

Ite
m

 
R

ep
or

t 
D

ea
dl

in
e/

Pr
io

rit
y 

Pr
og

re
ss

/C
om

m
en

ts
 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 

Fu
tu

re
 M

ee
tin

gs
 

(1
) B

es
t V

al
ue

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 D
at

a 
 

Q
ua

rte
rly

  
U

nd
er

w
ay

:  
• 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 B
V

P
P

 b
as

ke
t w

as
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
 o

n 
1 

Ju
ne

 2
00

6.
 T

he
 P

an
el

s 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 o

n 
KP

Is
 

w
en

t t
o 

C
ab

in
et

. 
• 

D
ra

ft 
B

es
t V

al
ue

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 P
la

n 
20

06
/0

7 
w

as
 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 o

n 
25

 A
pr

il 
20

06
. 

• 
O

ng
oi

ng
 K

P
I S

cr
ut

in
y 

(2
)P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 (S

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 b

e 
sc

ru
tin

is
ed

 in
 R

ot
at

io
n)

  
 

 
U

nd
er

w
ay

:  
• 

La
nd

 C
ha

rg
es

 a
nd

 L
eg

al
 a

nd
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 b
e 

sc
ru

tin
is

ed
 a

t n
ex

t m
ee

tin
g.

 
• 

Lo
ca

l L
an

d 
C

ha
rg

es
 w

as
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
at

 th
e 

Ju
ne

 
m

ee
tin

g.
 A

 fu
rth

er
 u

pd
at

in
g 

re
po

rt 
to

 c
om

e 
ba

ck
 to

 
th

e 
P

an
el

 in
 N

ov
em

be
r. 

(3
) Q

ua
rte

rly
 F

in
an

ci
al

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
 

20
06

/0
7 

U
nd

er
w

ay
:  

• 
D

at
e 

fo
r p

er
io

d 
up

 to
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
5 

la
st

 re
vi

ew
ed

 
by

 P
an

el
 o

n 
7 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
00

6.
 

• 
Fi

rs
t q

ua
rte

r t
o 

go
 to

 1
5 

A
ug

us
t m

ee
tin

g.
 –

 d
on

e.
 

• 
S

ec
on

d 
qu

ar
te

r t
o 

go
 to

 1
4 

N
ov

em
be

r m
ee

tin
g.

 
• 

Th
ird

 q
ua

rte
r t

o 
go

 to
 1

2 
Fe

b 
07

 m
ee

tin
g.

 

 1 
Ju

ne
,  

15
 A

ug
us

t, 
 

14
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
6,

  
 15

 J
an

ua
ry

,  
12

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

07
 

 14
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
6 

Page 13



(4
) A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
P

la
n 

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

00
7 

R
ef

er
re

d 
by

 O
S

C
 o

n 
2 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
6 

(5
) R

ev
ie

w
 o

f L
oc

al
 L

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
s 

  
 

U
nd

er
w

ay
: R

ep
or

t w
en

t t
o 

1st
 J

un
e 

m
ee

tin
g,

 a
no

th
er

 
re

po
rt 

w
as

 re
qu

es
te

d 
fo

r 1
4th

 N
ov

em
be

r  
m

ee
tin

g.
 

(6
) L

oc
al

 A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

ts
  

 
 

N
ew

 it
em

 a
dd

ed
 b

y 
O

S
C

 o
n 

16
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

6 

(7
) D

ra
ft 

C
ou

nc
il 

P
la

n 
20

06
-2

01
0 

 
U

nd
er

w
ay

 

 

(8
) B

ud
ge

t P
ap

er
s 

 
To

 b
e 

re
po

rte
d 

at
 th

e 
N

ov
em

be
r, 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

an
d 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 
m

ee
tin

gs
. 

N
ov

. m
ee

tin
g 

to
 c

on
si

de
r g

ro
w

th
/s

av
in

gs
; 

Ja
n.

 m
ee

tin
g 

to
 c

on
si

de
r t

he
 d

et
ai

le
d 

bu
dg

et
; 

Fe
b.

 m
ee

tin
g 

fo
r l

as
t c

om
m

en
ts

 p
rio

r t
o 

fo
rm

al
 ta

x 
se

tti
ng

. 

 

(9
) V

al
ue

 fo
r M

on
ey

 S
tra

te
gy

 
 

R
ep

or
te

d 
to

 P
an

el
 o

n 
15

 A
ug

us
t 0

6 
15

 A
ug

us
t 2

00
6 

(1
0)

 D
at

a 
Q

ua
lit

y 
A

ud
it.

 
S

el
f A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
 

R
ep

or
te

d 
to

 P
an

el
 o

n 
15

 A
ug

us
t 0

6 
15

 A
ug

us
t 2

00
6 

 

Page 14



KPI

Reference
Definition

BV2(b) The quality of an authority’s Race Equality Scheme and the improvements resulting from its

application

BV156 The percentage of authority buildings open to the public in which all public areas are suitable

for, and accessible to, disabled people

BV175 Racial incidents resulting in further action

LPI EH6 The percentage of licence applications processed within the statutory period

KPI

Reference
Definition

KPI

Reference
Definition

BV63 The average SAP rating of local authority owned dwellings

BV66(a) Rent collected by the local authority as a proportion of rents owed on housing revenue account

(HRA) dwellings

BV164 Does the authority follow the commission for Racial Equality's code of practice in rented

housing and the Good practice Standards for social landlords on tackling harassment included

in 'Tackling Racial Harassment' code of practice for social landlords

BV183(a) The average length of stay in bed and breakfast accommodation of households that are

unintentionally homeless and in priority need

BV183(b) Average length of stay (weeks) in hostel accommodation of households that are unintentionally

homeless and in priority need

BV184a The proportion of local authority dwellings which were non-decent at the start of the financial

year

BV184(b) Percentage change in the proportion of non-decent Council dwellings between the start and

end of the year

BV212 Average number of days to re-let Council dwellings

LPI H15(a) The number of affordable homes completed and ready for occupation during the year

LPI H15(b) The amount of affordable housing required as part of Section 106 Agreements signed during

the year for all large residential development sites (in excess of 25 properties or 1 hectare),

KPI

Reference
Definition

BV8 The percentage of invoices for commercial goods and services that were paid by the authority

within 30 days of receipt or within the agreed payment terms

Collector

There are no KPIs for this Portfolio for 2006/07

C. Sobey

C. Sobey

C. Sobey

S. Ford

T. Tidey

Collector

Customer Services, Media, Communications and Information Technology

Housing

Collector

Collector

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2006/07

Community Wellbeing

Finance, Performance Management & Corporate Support Services

T. Tidey

J. Nolan

C. Sobey

C. Sobey

C. Sobey

C. Sobey

A. Hall

A. Hall

C. Sobey

P. Maddock

Page 15



BV9 The percentage of council tax collected by the Authority in the year

BV10 The percentage of non-domestic rates collected

BV11(a) The percentage of the top-paid 5% of the local authority's staff who are women

BV11(b) The percentage of the top 5% of the local authority's staff who are from an ethnic minority

BV11(c) The percentage of the top 5% of the local authority's staff who have a disability

BV12 The number of working days/shifts lost to the local authority due to sickness absence

BV14 The percentage of employees retiring early (excluding ill-health retirements) as a percentage of

the local authority's total work force

BV16(a) The percentage of local authority employees with a disability

BV17(a) The percentage of local authority employees from ethnic minority communities

BV78(a) The average time for processing new claims

BV78(b) The average time for processing notification of changes of circumstance

BV79(a) The percentage of cases for which the calculation of the amount of benefit due was correct on

the basis of the information available for the decision for a sample of cases checked post-

decision

KPI Reference Definition

BV82(a)(i) The percentage of household waste arisingswhich have been sent by the authority for

recycling

BV82(a)(ii) The total tonnage of household waste arisings which have been sent by the authority for

recycling

BV82(b)(i) The percentage of household waste sent by the authority for composting or treatment by

anaerobic digestion

BV82(b)(ii) The total tonnage of household waste sent by the authority for composting or treatment by

anaerobic digestion

BV84 Kilograms of household waste collected per head

BV91(a) Percentage of households served by kerbside collection of recyclables

BV166 Performance against environmental health service checklist

BV199(a) The proportion of relevant land and highways assessed as having combined deposits of litter

and detritus that fall below an acceptable level

BV199(b) The proportion of relevant land and highways at which unacceptable levels of graffiti are visible

BV199(c) The proportion of relevant land and highways at which unacceptable levels of fly-posting are

visible.

BV199(d) The year-on-year reduction in total number of incidents and increase in the total number of

enforcement actions taken to deal with fly-tipping

KPI Reference Definition

BV106 The percentage of new homes built on previously developed land

Environmental Protection

Collector

Planning and Economic Development

Collector

D. Marsh

D. Marsh

J. Nolan

J. Gilbert

R. Pavey

R. Pavey

T. Tidey

T. Tidey

T. Tidey

T. Tidey

T. Tidey

T. Tidey

T. Tidey

J. Twinn

J. Twinn

J. Twinn

D. Marsh

D. Marsh

D. Marsh

S. Bacon

D. Marsh

J. Gilbert

J. Gilbert

J. Gilbert

Page 16



BV109(a) The percentage of major application determined within 13 weeks

BV109(b) The percentage of minor applications determined within 8 weeks

BV109(c) The percentage of 'other' applications determined within 8 weeks

BV204 The number of planning appeal decisions allowed against the authority's decision to refuse

planning applications, as a percentage of the total number of planning appeals against

refusals of planning applications

KPI Reference Definition

BV170(a) The number of visits to/usages of local authority funded or part funded museums and galleries

in the area per 1,000 population

BV170(c) The number of pupils visiting museums and galleries in organised school groups

KPI Reference Definition

LPI CEM1(a) The number of Penalty Charge Notices issued during the year in relation to on-street parking

LPI CEM1(b) The number of Penalty Charge Notices issued during the year in relation to off-street parking

LPI CEM1(c) The number of Penalty Charge Notices issued during the year that were subject of an informal

challenge

LPI CEM1(d) The number of Penalty Charge Notices issued during the year that were subject of a formal

challenge to the Head of Environmental Services

LPI CEM1(e) The number of Penalty Charge Notices issued during the year that were subject of a formal

challenge to the National Parking Adjudication Service

LPI CEM1(f) The percentage of challenges allowed against the issue of a Penalty Charge Notice during the

year.

LPI CEM1(g) The percentage of Penalty Charge Notices issued during the year where collection was

obtained

KPI Reference Definition

Collector

Civil Engineering and Maintenance

Collector

There are no KPIs for this Portfolio for 2006/07

Leisure

Collector

Leader's Portfolio

P. Blamey

P. Blamey

P. Blamey

P. Blamey

P. Blamey

P. Blamey

P. Blamey

B. Land

A. Clear

A. Clear

B. Land

B. Land

B. Land

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



 1

 
Report to Finance and Performance 
Management Scrutiny Panel 
 
Date of Meeting: 14 November 2006 
 
 
 
Portfolio:  Finance, Performance Management and Corporate Support Services 
 
Subject: Comprehensive Performance Assessment – Improvement Plan 
 
Officer contact for further information:  S. Tautz (Ext 4180) 
 
Committee Secretary:  A. Hendry (Ext 4246) 
 
 

 
Recommendations/Decisions Required: 
 
That, subject to the concurrence of the Cabinet: 
 
(a) Those actions contained within the council’s Comprehensive Performance 

Assessment (CPA) Improvement Plan that have been achieved, be formally 
signed-off as having been completed; 

 
(b) That those outstanding service related actions within the CPA Improvement 

Plan be transferred to the Best Value Performance Plan, the relevant Business 
Plan, or identified for action by the appropriate Portfolio Holder(s) for 
completion; and 

 
(c) That, with effect from January 2007, progress towards the achievement of those 

outstanding corporate actions within the CPA Improvement Plan be monitored 
on a quarterly basis by this Scrutiny Panel. 

 
1. (Head of Human Resources and Performance Management) The Comprehensive 
Performance Assessment (CPA) Improvement Plan was developed in response to areas of 
improvement identified by the Audit Commission, following the council’s first CPA in February 
2004. The Improvement Plan identified in excess of forty areas for improvement, and set out 
a range of actions, targets and responsibilities designed to achieve improvement in these 
areas over the short to medium term. 
 
2. Since its original development, the Improvement Plan and progress towards the 
achievement of its constituent actions has been monitored on a regular basis by an 
Improvement Team comprising the Cabinet, the Chairmen of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (and the forerunner committees) Group Leaders, and Management Board. 
However, the Improvement Plan has not been subject to member scrutiny during the current 
municipal year. 
 
3. The majority of target dates within the CPA Improvement Plan have now passed and 
the Plan has therefore recently been subject to review by Management Board and a full 
updating exercise by Heads of Service. A copy of this updated version of the Plan is attached 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 61



 2

as Appendix 1 to this report, which also indicates the current status of each individual action 
and target.  
 
4. This review has demonstrated that the vast majority of the actions and targets 
originally set have now been fully or substantially achieved. Management Board considers 
that, as a working document, the Plan has therefore now largely become redundant, and that 
it should be refocused to provide emphasis on those corporate actions that are either still 
outstanding or for which progress is on-going and likely to take some additional time to 
complete. It is therefore recommended that those actions contained within the Improvement 
Plan that have been achieved be formally signed-off as having been completed and be 
removed from the Plan, and that those outstanding service related actions be transferred to 
the Best Value Performance Plan, the relevant Business Plan, or identified for action by the 
appropriate Portfolio Holder(s) for completion, and be similarly removed. Appendix 1 attached 
also identifies specific recommendations for the transfer of each individual action or target, 
and the Scrutiny Panel is requested to consider each of these proposals. 
 
5. As a result of the proposals set out in paragraph (4) above, there will remain a need 
for member scrutiny of those corporate actions within the Improvement Plan that have still yet 
to be achieved. It is recommended therefore that these outstanding actions should be 
transferred to a streamlined version of the Improvement Plan and that, with effect from 
January 2007 and that, subject to the concurrence of the Cabinet at its next meeting, 
progress towards the completion of these actions should be monitored by the Scrutiny Panel 
on a quarterly basis in line with its other performance management and monitoring functions. 
 
6. Heads of Service will be in attendance at the meeting to respond to any questions 
raised in respect of individual Improvement Plan actions and performance thereon.  
 
Reason for decision: 
 
7. To ensure that the council monitors progress against the achievement of improvement 
in those areas identified by the CPA process. 
 
Options considered and rejected: 
 
8. None. The council has previously agreed arrangements for monitoring progress 
against actions and targets contained in the CPA Improvement Plan. 
 
Consultation undertaken: 
 
9. Performance against actions and targets contained in the CPA Improvement Plan has 
been reported by each appropriate Head of Service. Management Board supports the 
proposed refocusing of the Improvement Plan and the proposals set out in this report for 
revised future monitoring arrangements. 
 
Resource implications:  
 
Budget/Personnel/Land: None. 
Council Plan/Best Value Performance Plan reference: Section 8 – ‘How we Measure Our 
Achievements’ 
Relevant statutory powers: None 
 
Background papers: None 
Environmental/Human Rights Act/Crime and Disorder Act Implications: None 
Key Decision reference: (if required) None 
 

Page 62



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

1

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

�
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

�
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

(a
)

P
u
b

lis
h

E
p

p
in

g
F

o
re

s
t
D

is
tr

ic
t

C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y

S
tr

a
te

g
y

L
o
c
a
l
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

H
IG

H
M

a
rc

h
2

0
0

4
�

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

M
a
rc

h
2

0
0

5

(b
)

E
n
s
u
re

th
a
t

th
e

c
o
u

n
c
il

h
a
s

a
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t

ro
le

in
th

e
L
S

P
’s

th
e
m

e
s

a
c
ti
o
n

g
ro

u
p
s

to
d

e
v
e
lo

p
a
n

d
ta

k
e

fo
rw

a
rd

k
e
y

th
e
m

e
s

a
n

d

a
c
ti
o
n
s

J
o
in

t
C

h
ie

f
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

(C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
)

H
IG

H
M

a
y

2
0

0
5

�
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

/O
N

-G
O

IN
G

S
p

e
c
if
ic

a
c
ti
o
n
s
/t

a
rg

e
ts

s
e
t

in
M

a
y

2
0

0
5

,
a
lo

n
g

w
it
h

th
e

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n

o
f

re
s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

fo
r

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n

t
o
f

ta
rg

e
ts

v
ia

a
ra

n
g

e
o
f

th
e
m

e
d

a
c
ti
o
n

g
ro

u
p
s
.

T
h
e

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h

ip
b

e
tw

e
e
n

 t
h

e
C

o
u

n
c
il

a
n
d

 t
h

e
L

o
c
a
l

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

is
b

e
in

g
re

v
ie

w
e
d

d
u
ri

n
g

2
0

0
6
/0

7
b

y
a
n

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n
d

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
ta

s
k

a
n
d

fi
n
is

h
p

a
n

e
l.

(c
)

M
o
n
it
o
r

th
e

p
ro

g
re

s
s

o
f

th
e

C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y

S
tr

a
te

g
y

a
c
ti
o
n
s

a
lo

n
g

w
it
h

L
S

P
p

a
rt

n
e
rs

J
o
in

t
C

h
ie

f
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

(C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
)

H
IG

H
S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
5

�
O

N
-G

O
IN

G

T
h
e

C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y

S
tr

a
te

g
y

a
c
ti
o
n
s
/t

a
rg

e
ts

h
a

v
e

b
e
e
n

re
v
ie

w
e
d

a
n
d

u
p
d

a
te

d
b

y
 t
h

e
th

e
m

e
d

a
c
ti
o
n

g
ro

u
p
s

o
n

a
n

o
n
-g

o
in

g
b

a
s
is

a
n
d

a
re

n
o
w

a
lig

n
e
d

w
it
h

 t
h

e
L

o
c
a
l
A

re
a

A
g
re

e
m

e
n

t
(L

A
A

)
fo

r
E

s
s
e
x
.

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/t

a
rg

e
ts

w
ill

b
e

re
v
ie

w
e
d

fu
rt

h
e
r

in
lin

e
w

it
h

g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t

g
u

id
a
n
c
e

o
n

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
.

(1
)

C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y

S
tr

a
te

g
y

is
o
n
ly

n
o
w

e
m

e
rg

in
g

a
n
d

h
a
s

w
e
a
k
n

e
s
s
e
s

(C
P

A
R

e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
s

2
6
,

1
0

6
).

(d
)

E
n
s
u
re

th
a
t

th
e

c
o
u

n
c
il

p
la

y
s

a
fu

ll
p

a
rt

in

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

a
c
ti
o
n

g
ro

u
p
s

in
 t

e
rm

s
o
f

d
ri

v
in

g
fo

rw
a
rd

th
e

a
c
ti
o
n
s

in
th

e
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

S
tr

a
te

g
y

J
o
in

t
C

h
ie

f
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

(C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
)

O
n
-g

o
in

g

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

o
f

a
c
ti
o
n

g
ro

u
p
s

a
n

d
p

a
rt

n
e
r

a
g

e
n
c
ie

s

to
th

e
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

S
tr

a
te

g
y

�
O

N
-G

O
IN

G

T
h
e

in
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n

t
o
f

th
e

C
o
u

n
c
il

in
th

e
L
S

P
’s

th
e
m

e
d

a
c
ti
o
n

g
ro

u
p
s

is
b

e
in

g
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
a
s

p
a
rt

o
f

th
e

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n

d
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
re

v
ie

w
to

b
e

u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

d
u
ri

n
g

2
0

0
6
/0

7
.

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
T

h
e

L
S

P
B

o
a
rd

h
a
s

a
d

o
p

te
d

it
s

o
w

n
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

fo
r

m
o
n
it
o
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n

t
o
f

in
d
iv

id
u

a
l
a
c
ti
o
n
s

w
it
h

in
 t
h

e
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y

S
tr

a
te

g
y
.

Page 63



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

2

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

�
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

�
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

A
c
ti
o
n
s

o
n
g

o
in

g
a
n

d
 t

o
re

m
a
in

w
it
h
in

th
e

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

P
L

A
N

in
v
ie

w
o
f

th
e

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
im

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e

o
f

th
e

E
s
s
e
x

L
o
c
a
l
A

re
a

A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t.

(a
)

R
e
v
ie

w
a
n
d

re
v
is

e
a
s

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

th
e

e
x
is

ti
n

g
C

o
u

n
c
il

P
la

n
a
n
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

.

H
IG

H
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
5

	
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

/O
N

-G
O

IN
G

R
e
v
ie

w
o
f

C
o
u
n
c
il

P
la

n
c
o
m

p
le

te
d

F
e
b

ru
a
ry

2
0
0

6
a
n

d

n
e
w

p
la

n
a
d

o
p
te

d
b

y
C

o
u

n
c
il

in
J
u
ly

2
0

0
6
.

R
e
v
ie

w
o
f

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

to
b

e
c
o
m

p
le

te
d

u
p

o
n

p
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n

o
f

n
e
w

C
o
u
n
c
il

P
la

n
in

la
te

2
0

0
6
.

(2
)

C
o
u

n
c
il

P
la

n
a
n

d
B

u
s
in

e
s
s

P
la

n
s

d
o

n
o
t

a
ll

h
a
v
e

S
M

A
R

T

ta
rg

e
ts

,
o
r

m
a
k
e

in
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t

u
s
e

o
f

S
M

A
R

T
ta

rg
e
ts

(C
P

A
R

e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
s

2
3
,

5
5
).

(b
)

R
e
v
ie

w
a
n
d

re
v
is

e
a
s

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

e
x
is

ti
n
g

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

p
la

n
g
u

id
a
n
c
e
,
to

re
q

u
ir

e
th

e
in

c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n

o
f

S
M

A
R

T
ta

rg
e
ts

a
n

d
a
im

s
fo

c
u
s
e
d

o
n

th
e

m
e
d
iu

m
-t

e
rm

p
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s

w
it
h
in

a
ll

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

p
la

n
s

fr
o
m

2
0

0
5

/0
6

o
n

w
a
rd

s
.

J
o
in

t
C

h
ie

f
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

(R
e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
)/

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
u
m

a
n

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
n

d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

H
IG

H

A
p
ri

l
2

0
0
5

A
ll

w
it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s



C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

B
u
s
in

e
s
s

P
la

n
g

u
id

a
n
c
e

re
v
is

e
d

a
n
d

re
is

s
u

e
d

M
a
rc

h
2
0

0
5

a
n

d
M

a
rc

h
2
0

0
6

.
B

u
s
in

e
s
s

P
la

n
g
u

id
a
n
c
e

to
b

e

fu
rt

h
e
r

re
v
ie

w
e
d

a
n

d
re

v
is

e
d

a
s

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

o
n

a
n

a
n

n
u

a
l
b

a
s
is

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
T

h
e

n
e
w

C
o
u

n
c
il

P
la

n
fo

r
2

0
0

6
-2

0
1

0
h

a
s

b
e
e
n

a
g
re

e
d

a
n
d

w
ill

b
e

p
u

b
lis

h
e
d

in
la

te
2
0

0
6
.

F
u
rt

h
e
r

re
v
is

e
d

B
u
s
in

e
s
s

P
la

n
g

u
id

a
n
c
e

w
ill

b
e

is
s
u
e
d

in
la

te
2
0

0
6

to
re

fl
e
c
t

v
a
lu

e
fo

r
m

o
n

e
y

a
n

d

e
q

u
a
lit

y
re

q
u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

A
c
ti
o
n
s

to
b

e
D

E
L

E
T

E
D

(3
)

C
o
u

n
c
il

d
e
c
la

re
d

p
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s

a
re

to
o

b
ro

a
d

a
n

d
in

c
lu

d
e

a
ll

a
re

a
s

o
f

C
o
u
n
c
il

s
e
rv

ic
e

(C
P

A
R

e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

3
1
).

(a
)

U
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

re
v
ie

w
o
f

e
x
is

ti
n

g
C

o
u

n
c
il

P
la

n
a
n

d
p

u
b

lis
h

n
e
w

d
o
c
u

m
e
n
t.

J
o
in

t
C

h
ie

f
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

(R
e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
)/

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
u
m

a
n

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
n

d
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

H
IG

H

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
5

A
ll

w
it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
�

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

R
e
v
ie

w
o
f

C
o
u
n
c
il

P
la

n
c
o
m

p
le

te
d

F
e
b

ru
a
ry

2
0
0

6
a
n

d
n

e
w

p
la

n
a
d

o
p
te

d
b

y
C

o
u

n
c
il

in
J
u
ly

2
0

0
6
.

R
e
v
ie

w
o
f

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

to
b

e
c
o
m

p
le

te
d

u
p

o
n

p
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n

o
f

n
e
w

C
o
u
n
c
il

P
la

n
in

la
te

2
0

0
6
.

Page 64



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

3

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

�
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D


T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

(b
)

R
e
v
ie

w
c
u
rr

e
n
t

s
u
it
e

o
f

L
o
c
a
l

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
to

e
n
s
u
re

fo
c
u
s

o
n

c
u
rr

e
n

t
p
ri

o
ri
ti
e
s
.

H
IG

H
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
5

�
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

A
ll

L
o
c
a
l
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d
ic

a
to

rs
re

v
ie

w
e
d

b
y

H
e
a
d
s

o
f

S
e
rv

ic
e

d
u
ri

n
g

M
a
rc

h
/A

p
ri

l
2
0

0
5

.
R

e
le

v
a
n
c
e

o
f

L
o
c
a
l
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
to

b
e

fu
rt

h
e
r

re
v
ie

w
e
d

o
n

a
n

a
n
n

u
a
l
b

a
s
is

.

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
T

h
e

n
e
w

C
o
u

n
c
il

P
la

n
w

ill
b

e
p
u

b
lis

h
e
d

in
la

te
2

0
0

6
.
H

e
a
d
s

o
f

S
e
rv

ic
e

re
v
ie

w
c
u
rr

e
n
t
s
u
it
e

o
f

L
o
c
a
l
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
a
t
th

e
e
n

d
o
f

e
a
c
h

y
e

a
r,

 t
o

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t
fo

c
u
s

re
m

a
in

s
c
o
n
c
e
n

tr
a
te

d
o
n

p
ri

o
ri
ti
e
s
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

A
c
ti
o
n
s

to
b

e
D

E
L

E
T

E
D

(a
)

A
n

a
ly

s
e

le
v
e
ls

o
f

d
e
p
ri

v
a
ti
o
n

b
y

in
d

iv
id

u
a
l
w

a
rd

s
w

it
h

re
fe

re
n
c
e

to
th

e
 I
n

d
e
x

o
f

D
e
p
ri

v
a
ti
o
n
.

M
E

D
IU

M
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
5

�
A

n
a
ly

s
is

o
f

le
v
e
ls

o
f

d
e
p

ri
v
a
ti
o
n

b
y

in
d

iv
id

u
a
l
w

a
rd

s

c
u
rr

e
n

tl
y

in
p
ro

g
re

s
s
,

a
n

d
b

e
in

g
a
lig

n
e
d

w
it
h

th
e

E
s
s
e
x

L
A

A
p
ro

c
e
s
s

in
w

h
ic

h
th

e
C

o
u
n
c
il

is
ta

k
in

g
a

fu
ll

a
n
d

a
c
ti
v
e

ro
le

.

(4
)

N
o

c
la

ri
ty

a
ro

u
n

d

g
e
o
g
ra

p
h
ic

a
l
a
n

d
d

e
p
ri

v
a
ti
o
n

p
ri

o
ri
ti
e
s

(C
P

A
R

e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

3
1
).

(b
)

R
e
p

o
rt

o
n

c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
s

a
n

d
p

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

fo
r

fu
rt

h
e
r

a
c
ti
o
n

.

J
o
in

t
C

h
ie

f
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

(C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
)

M
E

D
IU

M

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
5

A
ll

w
it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s

�
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

N
e
w

C
o
u

n
c
il

P
la

n
in

c
lu

d
e
s

re
fe

re
n
c
e
s

to
d

e
p
ri

v
a
ti
o
n

a
s

p
a
rt

o
f

A
c
ti
o
n

P
la

n
.

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
T

h
e

n
e
w

C
o
u

n
c
il

P
la

n
fo

r
2

0
0

6
-2

0
1

0
w

ill
u
s
e

d
e
p
ri

v
a
ti
o
n

d
a
ta

to
fo

c
u

s
p
ri

o
ri
ti
e
s
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

D
e
p
ri

v
a
ti
o
n

a
c
ti
o
n

o
n

g
o
in

g
a
n

d
to

re
m

a
in

w
it
h

in
th

e
IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
in

v
ie

w
o
f

th
e

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
im

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e

o
f

th
e

E
s
s
e
x

L
o
c
a
l
A

re
a

A
g
re

e
m

e
n

t.

Page 65



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

4

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

�
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

�
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

(a
)

A
s

A
c
ti
o
n

2
(a

).
J
o
in

t
C

h
ie

f
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

(R
e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
)/

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
u
m

a
n

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
n

d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

H
IG

H
A

p
ri

l
2

0
0
6

�
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

R
e
v
ie

w
o
f

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
,

lin
k
e
d

to
re

v
ie

w
o
f

C
o
u

n
c
il

P
la

n
.

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

to
b

e
re

v
is

e
d

fo
ll
o
w

in
g

p
u

b
lic

a
ti
o
n

o
f

n
e
w

C
o
u

n
c
il

P
la

n
in

la
te

2
0
0

6
.

(b
)

R
e
v
ie

w
a
n
d

re
v
is

e
a
s

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

e
x
is

ti
n
g

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

p
la

n
g
u

id
a
n
c
e
,
to

re
q

u
ir

e
th

e

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n

o
f

re
s
o
u

rc
e
s

to
s
p

e
c
if
ic

p
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s

w
it
h

in
a
ll

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

p
la

n
s

fr
o
m

2
0
0

5
/0

6
o
n

w
a
rd

s
.

J
o
in

t
C

h
ie

f
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

(R
e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
)/

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
u
m

a
n

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
n

d
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

H
IG

H
A

p
ri

l
2

0
0
5

�
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

B
u
s
in

e
s
s

P
la

n
g

u
id

a
n
c
e

re
v
is

e
d

a
n
d

re
is

s
u

e
d

M
a
rc

h
2
0

0
5
.

F
u
rt

h
e
r

re
v
is

e
d

B
u
s
in

e
s
s

P
la

n
g

u
id

a
n
c
e

is
s
u

e
d

in
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

2
0
0

6
,

a
n

d
 t

o
b

e
re

v
ie

w
e
d

a
n

n
u

a
ll
y
.

(c
)

U
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

re
v
ie

w
o
f

e
x
is

ti
n

g
fo

rm
a
t

o
f

B
e
s
t
V

a
lu

e
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

P
la

n
(B

V
P

P
).

J
o
in

t
C

h
ie

f
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

(R
e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
)/

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
u
m

a
n

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
n

d
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

H
IG

H

A
p
ri

l
2

0
0
5

�
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

R
e
v
is

e
d

fo
rm

a
t
fo

r
B

V
P

P
a
g
re

e
d

b
y

F
in

a
n
c
e

C
a
b

in
e
t

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
J
a
n

u
a
ry

2
0

0
5

.
B

V
P

P
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
b

y

C
a
b

in
e
t

a
n

d
a
d

o
p
te

d
b

y
C

o
u

n
c
il

M
a

y
2

0
0

5
. 

F
o
rm

a
t
fo

r
B

V
P

P
fo

r
2
0

0
6

/0
7

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
b

y
F

in
a
n
c
e

a
n
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n

d
S

c
ru

ti
n

y

P
a
n

e
l
in

A
p

ri
l
2

0
0

6
.

A
d

o
p
ti
o
n

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
fo

r
fu

tu
re

y
e

a
rs

in
c
lu

d
e
d

in
a
n

n
u

a
l
C

a
b
in

e
t

w
o
rk

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

(5
)

S
e
rv

ic
e

P
la

n
s

d
o

n
o
t

a
llo

c
a
te

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

to
s
p

e
c
if
ic

p
ri

o
ri
ti
e
s

(C
P

A
R

e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

3
5
).

(d
)

H
e
a
d
s

o
f

S
e
rv

ic
e

to
p
ro

d
u
c
e

B
u
s
in

e
s
s

P
la

n
s

in
a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e

w
it
h

re
v
is

e
d

m
o
d

e
l
a
n
d

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
.

A
ll

H
e
a
d

s
o
f

S
e
rv

ic
e

H
IG

H

J
u
n

e
2

0
0

5

A
ll

w
it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s

�
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

P
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

o
f

B
u
s
in

e
s
s

P
la

n
s

fo
r

2
0

0
6
/0

7
c
o
m

p
le

te
d

.
H

e
a
d
s

o
f

S
e
rv

ic
e

re
q

u
e
s
te

d
to

s
u
b

m
it

a
ll

B
u
s
in

e
s
s

P
la

n
s

to
 t
h

e
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
U

n
it

to
e
n

a
b
le

m
o
n
it
o
ri

n
g

o
f

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

e
a
c
h

y
e

a
r.

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
A

ll
B

u
s
in

e
s
s

P
la

n
s

fo
r

2
0
0

6
/0

7
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
U

n
it

to
m

o
n
it
o
r

a
n

n
u

a
l
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

w
it
h

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

p
la

n
n
in

g
p
ro

c
e
s
s
.

Page 66



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

5

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

�
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

�
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

A
c
ti
o
n
s

to
b

e
D

E
L

E
T

E
D

(6
)

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

d
a
ta

is
n

o
t

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y

fo
c
u
s
s
e
d

o
n

k
e
y

is
s
u

e
s

(C
P

A
R

e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

4
1
).

Im
p
le

m
e
n

t
re

v
is

e
d

p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
in

re
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
th

e
fu

tu
re

re
p

o
rt

in
g

o
f

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
.

J
o
in

t
C

h
ie

f
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

(R
e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
)/

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
u
m

a
n

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
n

d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

H
IG

H
A

p
ri

l
2

0
0
5

W
it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s

�

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

R
e
v
is

e
d

re
p

o
rt

in
g

p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
a
n

d
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

fo
rm

a
t

a
g
re

e
d

a
n

d
in

tr
o
d

u
c
e
d

fr
o
m

1
A

p
ri

l
2

0
0

5
.

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
IC

T
s
ys

te
m

in
tr

o
d

u
c
e
d

fr
o
m

J
u

n
e

2
0
0

6
.

F
if
ty

-t
w

o
K

e
y

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
a
d

o
p
te

d
fo

r
2
0

0
6
/0

7
.
R

e
v
ie

w
o
f

B
V

P
I
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

b
y

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
B

o
a
rd

in
J
u

ly
2

0
0

6
a
n

d
to

b
e

re
p

e
a
te

d
o
n

a
q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
b

a
s
is

.

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y
m

o
n

it
o
ri

n
g

a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n
ts

fo
r

K
e

y
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
in

p
la

c
e
.

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
IC

T
s
ys

te
m

in
tr

o
d

u
c
e
d

fr
o
m

J
u

n
e

2
0

0
6
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

A
c
ti
o
n
s

to
b

e
D

E
L

E
T

E
D

(7
)

W
h
e
re

n
o

p
o
lit

ic
a
l
c
o
n
s
e
n
s
u
s

e
x
is

ts
is

s
u

e
s

c
a
n

d
ri
ft

(C
P

A

R
e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

4
0
).

(a
)

R
e
v
ie

w
o
n

in
d

iv
id

u
a
l
b

a
s
is

c
o
n
te

n
ti
o
u
s

is
s
u

e
s

re
q
u

ir
in

g
d

e
c
is

io
n
s

in
a
d

v
a
n

c
e
,

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y

w
h

e
re

a
c
o
n
s
e
n
s
u
s

o
n

h
o
w

to
p
ro

c
e
e
d

is
n

o
t

a
p
p

a
re

n
t.

G
ro

u
p

L
e
a
d

e
rs

/H
e
a
d

o
f

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
a
n

d
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

O
n
-g

o
in

g
(a

s
re

le
v
a
n

t
is

s
u

e
s

a
ri
s
e
)

W
it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
�

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

In
fo

rm
a
l
s
e
s
s
io

n
s

h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

h
e
ld

to
d

is
c
u
s
s
 t
h

e
o
v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n
d

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
re

v
ie

w
,

R
S

S
1
4

a
n

d
lo

c
a
l
p
la

n
s
,

a
n

d
th

e
re

fu
s
e

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

c
o
n

tr
a
c
t.

Page 67



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

6

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

�
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

�
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

(b
)

A
rr

a
n

g
e

in
fo

rm
a
l
s
e
s
s
io

n
s
,

w
o
rk

s
h

o
p
s

a
n

d
b

ri
e
fi
n
g
s

p
ri

o
r

to
im

p
o
rt

a
n
t

is
s
u

e
s

b
e
in

g
d

e
b

a
te

d
,
to

c
la

ri
fy

is
s
u

e
s
,

b
ri

e
f

m
e
m

b
e
rs

a
n
d

s
e
e
k

c
o
n
s
e
n
s
u
s

o
n

a
w

a
y

fo
rw

a
rd

.

O
n
-g

o
in

g
(a

s
re

le
v
a
n

t
is

s
u

e
s

a
ri
s
e
)

�
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

/O
N

-G
O

IN
G

In
fo

rm
a
l
s
e
s
s
io

n
s

b
e
in

g
u
s
e
d

to
c
la

ri
fy

v
o
ti
n
g

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s

a
s

re
le

v
a
n

t
is

s
u

e
s

a
ri
s
e
.

A
n

y
p

o
te

n
ti
a
l
d

if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
a
ri

s
in

g
fr

o
m

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

b
e
in

g
p

o
lit

ic
a
ll
y

b
a
la

n
c
e
d

h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

re
m

e
d

ie
d

b
y

a
p

o
lit

ic
a
l

a
lli

a
n
c
e

th
a
t

h
a
s

c
o
n
tr

o
ll
e
d

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

a
n
d

th
e

C
a
b

in
e
t
s
in

c
e

M
a
y

2
0

0
6
.

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
 I
n
fo

rm
a
l
s
e
s
s
io

n
s

h
e
ld

o
n

a
n

in
d

iv
id

u
a
l
b

a
s
is

a
s

re
q
u

ir
e
d
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

A
c
ti
o
n
s

to
b

e
D

E
L

E
T

E
D

Page 68



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

7

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

�
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

�
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

(a
)

R
e
v
ie

w
m

e
m

b
e
r

a
tt

e
n

d
a
n
c
e

a
t

tr
a
in

in
g

c
o
u
rs

e
s

fo
r

2
0

0
4

/0
5
.

M
E

D
IU

M
M

a
y

2
0

0
5

 
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

R
e
v
ie

w
o
f

m
e
m

b
e
r

a
tt

e
n

d
a
n
c
e

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

A
p
ri

l
2
0

0
5

.

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

b
e

m
a
d

e
 t

o
n

e
w

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n

d
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
T

a
s
k

a
n

d
F

in
is

h
G

ro
u
p
.

(b
)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
m

b
e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
fo

r
2
0

0
5
/0

6
in

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

w
it
h

a
ll

m
e
m

b
e
rs

o
f

th
e

c
o
u

n
c
il.

H
IG

H
O

c
to

b
e
r

2
0
0

5
!

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

M
e
m

b
e
r

tr
a
in

in
g

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
fo

r
2

0
0

6
/0

7
p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

.
T

ra
in

in
g

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
fo

r
2

0
0

7
/0

8
to

b
e

re
v
ie

w
e
d

b
y

th
e

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n
d

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
S

ta
n
d

in
g

P
a
n

e
l
o
n

C
o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n

a
l
A

ff
a
ir
s
.

(c
)

R
e
v
ie

w
m

e
m

b
e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
,

in
c
lu

d
in

g
n

e
e
d

s
o
f

o
v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n
d

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
.

M
E

D
IU

M
S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
5

"
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n

d
s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 t
ra

in
in

g
re

q
u

ir
e
m

e
n

ts
re

v
ie

w
e
d

b
y

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n
d

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
T

a
s
k

a
n
d

F
in

is
h

G
ro

u
p

.
T

ra
in

in
g

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
fo

r
2

0
0

6
/0

7
c
o
m

p
le

te
d

a
n

d

p
u

b
lis

h
e
d
.

C
o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n

a
l
A

ff
a
ir
s

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n
d

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
S

ta
n

d
in

g
P

a
n

e
l
to

re
v
ie

w
tr

a
in

in
g

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
fo

r
2
0

0
7

/0
8
.

(d
)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
p
ro

to
c
o
l
o
n

M
e
m

b
e
rs

’
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
,

in
c
lu

d
in

g
re

q
u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
fo

r
m

a
n

d
a
to

ry
tr

a
in

in
g
.

M
E

D
IU

M
S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
5

#
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

N
e
w

p
ro

to
c
o
l
a
p
p
ro

v
e
d

b
y

th
e

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
a
n

d
is

s
u

e
d
 t

o
a
ll

m
e
m

b
e
rs

(8
)

L
a
c
k

o
f

ta
k
e

u
p

o
f

tr
a
in

in
g

b
y

s
o
m

e
m

e
m

b
e
rs

(C
P

A
R

e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

4
9
).

(e
)

R
e
v
ie

w
m

e
m

b
e
r

a
tt

e
n

d
a
n
c
e

a
t

tr
a
in

in
g

c
o
u
rs

e
s

fo
r

2
0

0
5

/0
6
.

G
ro

u
p

L
e
a
d

e
rs

/H
e
a
d

o
f

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
a
n

d
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

L
O

W
A

p
ri

l
2

0
0
6

W
it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s

$
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

U
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

b
y

n
e
w

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n
d

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
T

a
s
k

a
n
d

F
in

is
h

P
a
n

e
l
in

c
o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n

w
it
h

th
e

re
v
ie

w
o
f

g
e
n

e
ra

l
a
n

d
o
v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n
d

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 t
ra

in
in

g
.

D
e
ta

ile
d

s
u

rv
e
y

o
f

th
e

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 t
ra

in
e
d

in
k
e
y

s
k
ill

s

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

a
n

d
re

s
u
lt
s

is
s
u

e
d

to
G

ro
u

p
L

e
a
d

e
rs

.

Page 69



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

8

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

%
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

&
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

(f
)

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n

d
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
T

a
s
k

a
n

d
F

in
is

h
G

ro
u

p
o
n

M
e
m

b
e
r

T
ra

in
in

g
 t

o
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e

m
e
m

b
e
r 

ta
k
e
-u

p
o
f 

tr
a
in

in
g

c
o
u
rs

e
s
.

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n

d
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
T

a
s
k

a
n

d
F

in
is

h
G

ro
u
p

o
n

M
e
m

b
e
r

T
ra

in
in

g

H
IG

H
M

a
y

2
0

0
5

'
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n

d
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
T

a
s
k

a
n

d
F

in
is

h
G

ro
u

p
o
n

M
e
m

b
e
r

T
ra

in
in

g
h

a
s

m
a
d

e
re

p
re

s
n
ta

ti
o
n
s

to
G

ro
u

p
L

e
a
d

e
rs

a
n
d

le
tt

e
rs

a
re

to
b

e
s
e
n
t

to
a
ll

c
o
u

n
c
ill

o
rs

w
h

o
re

q
u

ir
e

tr
a
in

in
g
.
N

e
w

p
ro

to
c
o
ls

o
n

m
e
m

b
e
r

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

re
fe

r 
to

th
e

im
p

o
rt

a
n
c
e

o
f 

tr
a
in

in
g

.

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
A

c
ti
o
n
s

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

A
c
ti
o
n
s

to
b

e
D

E
L

E
T

E
D

(a
)

In
tr

o
d

u
c
e

tr
a
in

e
e

p
o
s
it
io

n
s

in
h

a
rd

 t
o

fi
ll

a
re

a
s
.

(
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

O
n

e
tr

a
in

e
e

p
o
s
it
io

n
re

c
ru

it
e
d
 t

o
in

B
u

ild
in

g
C

o
n
tr

o
l

a
n

d
tw

o
in

P
la

n
n

in
g

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
.
O

n
e

p
o
s
t

o
f 

tr
a
in

e
e

c
a
rp

e
n
te

r
re

c
ru

it
e
d
.
T

ra
in

e
e

p
o
s
ts

w
it
h
in

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
,

L
e
g

a
l,

B
e
n

e
fi
ts

a
n

d
C

o
u

n
tr

yc
a
re

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

.

(9
)

R
e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t
a
n

d
re

te
n
ti
o
n

p
ro

b
le

m
s

fo
r

s
o
m

e
p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l
p

o
s
ts

(C
P

A
R

e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

4
7
).

(b
)

F
u
rt

h
e
r

d
e
v
e
lo

p
jo

in
t

a
d

v
e
rt

is
in

g
w

o
rk

w
it
h

E
s
s
e
x

a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s
.

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
u
m

a
n

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
n
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

H
IG

H

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
5

W
it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
n
d

s
u
b
je

c
t

o
f

p
o
s
s
ib

le
fu

n
d
in

g
b

id
 t

o
th

e

O
D

P
M

)
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

T
h
e

c
o
u

n
c
il

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

d
in

a
n

e
x
te

n
s
iv

e
E

s
s
e
x

w
id

e
a
d

v
e
rt

is
in

g
c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
fr

o
m

O
c
to

b
e
r

2
0

0
4
 t

o
J
a
n

u
a
ry

2
0

0
5
.

A
fu

rt
h

e
r

E
s
s
e
x

w
id

e
c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
 t

o
o
k

p
la

c
e

in

J
a
n
u

a
ry

2
0
0

6
,

a
n

d
a
n

o
th

e
r

is
p
la

n
n

e
d

fo
r

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
6
 t

o
 t

a
rg

e
t

m
in

o
ri

ty
g
ro

u
p
s
.

Page 70



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

9

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

*
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

+
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

(c
)

R
e
v
ie

w
c
u
rr

e
n
t

s
ta

ff
b

e
n

e
fi
ts

p
a
c
k
a
g

e
.

,
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
h
ild

c
a
re

v
o
u
c
h

e
rs

to
b

e
in

tr
o
d

u
c
e
d

fr
o
m

O
c
to

b
e
r/

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

2
0
0

5
.

F
re

e
h

e
a
lt
h

c
h

e
c
k
s

fo
r

s
ta

ff
o
v
e
r

fo
rt

y
y
e

a
rs

o
f

a
g

e
in

tr
o
d

u
c
e
d

fr
o
m

J
a
n

u
a
ry

2
0
0

5
.

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
T

e
n

 t
ra

in
e
e

p
o
s
it
io

n
s

w
ill

h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

b
y

th
e

y
e

a
r-

e
n

d
.
D

e
s
p
it
e
 t
h

e
p

o
s
it
iv

e
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s

w
it
h

re
g

a
rd

to
 t
ra

in
e
e

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t

a
n

d
c
o
u

n
ty

-w
id

e
a
d

v
e
ry

s
in

g
,
s
ta

ff
 t
u
rn

o
v
e
r

s
ti
ll

g
iv

e
s

c
a
u
s
e

fo
r

c
o
n
c
e
rn

in
s
o
m

e
a
re

a
s

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

A
c
ti
o
n
s

to
b

e
D

E
L

E
T

E
D

(a
)

U
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

a
s
ta

ff
a
tt

it
u

d
e

s
u
rv

e
y
.

-
S

u
rv

e
y

d
e
fe

rr
e
d

u
n

ti
l
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r

2
0
0

6
d
u

e
to

c
o
n
fl
ic

ti
n
g

p
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
.

(1
0
)

S
ta

ff
m

o
ra

le
s
u
ff

e
ri

n
g

fo
ll
o
w

in
g

S
in

g
le

S
ta

tu
s

(C
P

A
R

e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

4
8
).

(b
)

S
e
e
k

re
-a

c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n

o
f

In
v
e
s
to

rs
in

P
e
o
p
le

s
ta

tu
s
.

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
u
m

a
n

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
n
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

M
E

D
IU

M
F

e
b

ru
a
ry

2
0
0

6
W

it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s

.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

In
v
e
s
to

rs
in

P
e
o
p

le
re

-a
c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n

a
c
h

ie
v
e
d

M
a
rc

h
2
0

0
5
.

Page 71



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

1
0

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

/
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

0
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

(c
)

R
e
v
ie

w
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
T

ra
in

in
g

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
to

h
e
lp

s
ta

ff
id

e
n
ti
fy

tr
a
in

in
g

n
e
e
d
s
,

u
s
in

g
E

s
s
e
x

C
o
u

n
ty

C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
c
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
y

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

1
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

J
u
ly

2
0
0

5

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
T

h
e

s
ta

ff
a
tt
it
u

d
e

s
u
rv

e
y

w
ill

p
ro

v
id

e
u
s
e
fu

l
a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

o
n

th
e

w
a

y
th

e
c
o
u

n
c
il

is
v
ie

w
e
d

a
s

a
n

e
m

p
lo

y
e
r,

a
n

d
w

h
a
t

a
s
p

e
c
ts

a
re

a
tt
ra

c
ti
v
e

to
n

e
w

jo
in

e
rs

.
T

h
is

is
c
o
m

p
lim

e
n
te

d
b

y

e
x
is

ti
n

g
s
u

rv
e
y
s

o
f

le
a

v
e
rs

a
n

d
s
ta

rt
e
rs

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

A
c
ti
o
n

1
0
(a

)
w

ill
b

e
c
o
m

p
le

te
d

b
y

th
e

e
n

d
o
f

2
0
0

6
.

A
c
ti
o
n
s

to
b

e
D

E
L

E
T

E
D

Page 72



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

1
1

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

2
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

3
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

(a
)

R
e
v
ie

w
c
u
rr

e
n
t

o
v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n

d
s
c
ru

ti
n

y
a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
,
s
e
e
k
in

g
m

e
m

b
e
r

c
o
n
s
e
n
s
u
s

a
n

d
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
fo

r
d

e
li
v
e
ri

n
g

c
h

a
n
g

e
.

H
IG

H
A

p
ri

l
2

0
0
5

4
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

R
e
v
ie

w
o
f

c
u
rr

e
n
t

o
v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n

d
s
c
ru

ti
n

y

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
c
o
m

p
le

te
d

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
4
.

(b
)

G
a
in

a
c
c
e
p
ta

n
c
e

b
y

th
e

c
o
u

n
c
il

o
f

th
e

p
ri

n
c
ip

le
s

o
n

w
h
ic

h
th

e
n

e
w

o
v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n
d

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
w

ill
o
p

e
ra

te
,
c
o
n
s
u
lt
in

g
a
ll

m
e
m

b
e
rs

a
n
d

o
ff

ic
e
rs

a
t

a
ll

k
e
y

s
ta

g
e
s
.

H
IG

H

F
e
b

ru
a
ry

2
0
0

5
5

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

N
e
w

o
v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n
d

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
p
ri

n
c
ip

le
s

a
g
re

e
d

b
y

c
o
u
n
c
il

F
e
b

ru
a
ry

2
0
0

5
.

(c
)

C
o
n
s
u

lt
o
n

a
n
d

a
p

p
ro

v
e

c
h

a
n

g
e
s
 t

o
th

e

c
o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n

a
n
d

o
th

e
r

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s

to
g
iv

e
e
ff

e
c
t

to
th

e
n

e
w

o
v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n
d

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
p
ri

n
c
ip

le
s

a
g
re

e
d

.

H
IG

H

A
p
ri

l
2

0
0
5

6
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
o
n
s
ti
tu

a
ti
o
n

a
l
c
h

a
n

g
e
s

a
p

p
ro

v
e
d

a
t
fu

ll
c
o
u
n
c
il

m
e
e
ti
n

g
o
n

1
9

A
p
ri

l
2
0

0
5

(d
)

G
a
in

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

to
c
o
n
ti
n

u
in

g
p
ro

c
e
s
s

o
f

a
n

n
u

a
l
re

v
ie

w
a
n

d
 t
ra

in
in

g
o
n

n
e
w

o
v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n

d
s
c
ru

ti
n

y
a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
.

H
IG

H

A
p
ri

l
2

0
0
5

7
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

R
e
v
ie

w
re

q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
ts

a
g
re

e
d

a
t
fu

ll
c
o
u

n
c
il

m
e
e
ti
n

g
in

F
e
b

ru
a
ry

2
0
0

5

(1
1
)

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
n

o
t
fu

ll
y

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

(C
P

A
R

e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

4
6
).

(e
)

A
g
re

e
in

it
ia

l
re

v
ie

w
a
u

d
it

o
f

n
e
w

o
v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n

d
s
c
ru

ti
n

y
a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
d

u
ri

n
g

2
0
0

6
/0

7
.

H
e
a
d

o
f

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
a
n
d

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

M
E

D
IU

M
M

a
y

2
0

0
5

W
it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s

8
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

A
u
d

it
re

q
u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
a
g
re

e
d

a
t
fu

ll
c
o
u
n
c
il

m
e
e
ti
n

g
in

F
e
b

ru
a
ry

2
0
0

5

Page 73



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

1
2

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

9
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

:
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

(f
)

U
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

in
it
ia

l
re

v
ie

w
a
u
d

it
o
f

n
e
w

o
v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n
d

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
d

u
ri

n
g

2
0

0
6
/0

7

M
E

D
IU

M
O

c
to

b
e
r

2
0
0

5
;

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

R
e
v
ie

w
s
e
m

in
a
r

h
e
ld

a
n
d

re
s
u

lt
s

im
p
le

m
e
n

te
d

d
u
ri

n
g

2
0

0
6
/0

7
.

(g
)

R
e
v
ie

w
 t
ra

in
in

g
n

e
e
d
s

a
ft

e
r

in
a
u

g
u
ra

ti
o
n

o
f

n
e
w

o
v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n

d
s
c
ru

ti
n

y
a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n
ts

.
M

E
D

IU
M

O
c
to

b
e
r

2
0
0

5
<

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n

d
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 t
ra

in
in

g
re

q
u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
re

v
ie

w
e
d

b
y

T
a
s
k

a
n

d
F

in
is

h
G

ro
u

p
.
T

ra
in

in
g

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
o
f

m
e
m

b
e
r

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n
d

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
s
k
ill

s
a
rr

a
n

g
e
d

fo
r

F
e
b

ru
a
ry

to
J
u
n

e
2
0

0
6

.
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
fo

r
fu

tu
re

y
e

a
rs

to

b
e

p
la

n
n

e
d

a
n

d
d

e
liv

e
re

d
in

th
e

s
a
m

e
w

a
y
.

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
A

c
ti
o
n
s

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

A
c
ti
o
n
s

to
b

e
D

E
L

E
T

E
D

(a
)

T
ra

in
m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

o
n

re
v
is

e
d

m
a
n

a
g

in
g

a
b
s
e
n
c
e

p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
.

H
IG

H
A

p
ri

l
2

0
0
5

=
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

M
a
n

a
g

e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g

o
n

re
v
is

e
d

m
a
n

a
g

in
g

a
b
s
e
n
c
e

p
ro

c
e
d
u

re
s

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

M
a
rc

h
2

0
0

5
.

(1
2
)

H
ig

h
s
ic

k
n

e
s
s

ra
te

s
a
n

d
s
ic

k
n

e
s
s

d
a
ta

n
o
t
u
s
e
d

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 t
o

m
a
n

a
g

e
a
b
s
e
n
c
e

(C
P

A
R

e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

4
8
).

(b
)

C
o
m

m
u
n

ic
a
te

re
v
is

e
d

m
a
n

a
g

in
g

a
b
s
e
n
c
e

p
ro

c
e
d
u

re
s

to
a
ll

s
ta

ff
.

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
u
m

a
n

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
n
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

H
IG

H
A

p
ri

l
2

0
0
5

W
it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s

>
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
o
m

m
u
n

ic
a
ti
o
n
s

e
x
e
rc

is
e

in
c
lu

d
e
d

in
s
ta

ff
p

a
y
s
lip

s

a
n

d
T

e
a
m

B
ri

e
fi
n
g

d
u
ri

n
g

M
a
rc

h
2
0

0
5

.

Page 74



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

1
3

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

?
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

@
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

(c
)

Im
p
le

m
e
n

t
re

v
is

e
d

m
a
n

a
g

in
g

a
b
s
e
n
c
e

p
ro

c
e
d
u

re
s

a
c
ro

s
s

th
e

c
o
u
n
c
il.

H
IG

H
A

p
ri

l
2

0
0
5

A
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

N
e
w

m
a
n

a
g
in

g
a
b
s
e
n
c
e

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

in
tr

o
d

u
c
e
d

fr
o
m

M
a
rc

h
2

0
0

5

(d
)

M
o
n
it
o
r

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n

e
s
s

o
f

re
v
is

e
d

m
a
n

a
g
in

g
a
b
s
e
n
c
e

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
a
n

d
im

p
a
c
t

u
p

o
n

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
.

H
IG

H
O

n
g

o
in

g
B

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
/O

N
-G

O
IN

G

M
o
n
it
o
ri

n
g

u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

o
n

a
q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
b

a
s
is

fr
o
m

J
u

ly

2
0

0
5
.

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
S

ta
ff

a
n
d

m
a
n

a
g

e
r

tr
a
in

in
g

s
e
s
s
io

n
s

h
a

v
e

re
s
u

lt
e
d

in
a

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

is
e
d

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

to
m

a
n

a
g

in
g

s
ic

k
n

e
s
s

a
c
ro

s
s

th
e

c
o
u
n
c
il,

w
h
ic

h
a
p
p

e
a
rs

 t
o

b
e

y
ie

ld
in

g
a

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n

in
a
b
s
e
n
c
e

le
v
e
ls

.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

A
c
ti
o
n
s

to
b

e
D

E
L

E
T

E
D

(a
)

R
e
v
ie

w
c
u
rr

e
n
t

s
u
it
e

o
f

L
o
c
a
l

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
,
to

e
n
s
u
re

fo
c
u
s

o
n

p
ri

o
ri
ti
e
s
.

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
B

o
a
rd

/A
ll

H
e
a
d
s

o
f

S
e
rv

ic
e

C
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
u
rr

e
n
t
s
u
it
e

o
f

L
P

Is
re

v
ie

w
e
d

b
y

H
e
a
d
s

o
f

S
e
rv

ic
e

M
a
rc

h
2

0
0

5
.

L
P

I
s
u
it
e
 t

o
b

e
fu

rt
h

e
r

re
v
ie

w
e
d

o
n

a
n

a
n

n
u

a
l
b

a
s
is

.

(1
3
)

L
o
c
a
l
P

I's
n

o
t

a
lig

n
e
d
 t

o

p
ri

o
ri
ti
e
s

(C
P

A
R

e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

5
5
).

(b
)

A
d

o
p
t

n
e
w

s
u
it
e

o
f

L
o
c
a
l
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
a
lig

n
e
d
 t

o
 t
h

e
c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
m

e
d
iu

m
-

te
rm

p
ri

o
ri
ti
e
s
.

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
u
m

a
n

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
n
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

H
IG

H

A
p
ri

l
2

0
0
5

W
it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

R
e
v
is

e
d

s
u
it
e

o
f

L
P

Is
in

tr
o
d
u
c
e
d

fr
o
m

1
A

p
ri

l
2

0
0

5
.

M
e
m

b
e
r

a
tt

e
n
ti
o
n

fo
c
u
s
e
d

o
n

k
e
y

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

is
s
u

e
s

th
ro

u
g
h

th
e

F
in

a
n
c
e

a
n
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n

d
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
P

a
n

e
l.

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
R

e
v
is

e
d

s
u
it
e

o
f

L
P

Is
in

tr
o
d

u
c
e
d

 f
ro

m
1

A
p
ri

l
2

0
0
5
.

H
e
a
d
s

o
f

S
e
rv

ic
e

re
v
ie

w
c
u
rr

e
n
t

s
u
it
e

o
f

L
o
c
a
l
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
a
t 

th
e

e
n
d

o
f

e
a
c
h

y
e
a
r,

 t
o

e
n
s
u
re

 f
o
c
u
s

re
m

a
in

s
c
o
n
c
e
n
tr

a
te

d
o
n

p
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
.

Page 75



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

1
4

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

E
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

F
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

A
c
ti
o
n
s

to
b

e
D

E
L

E
T

E
D

(a
)

R
e
v
ie

w
e
x
is

ti
n

g
a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
fo

r
c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

o
f

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

;
G

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

R
e
v
ie

w
c
o
m

p
le

te
d

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0
0

4
.
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
o
f

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

q
u

a
lit

y
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s

fo
r

th
e

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

o
f

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

re
c
o
m

m
e
n

d
e
d
,

to
e
n
s
u
re

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

in
a

ti
m

e
ly

,
a
c
c
u
ra

te

a
n

d
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t

w
a
y
,

w
it
h

fu
ll

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
c
o
n
tr

o
l.

(1
4
)

P
o
o
r

q
u

a
lit

y
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
,

m
a
n

y
P

I's
q
u

a
lif

ie
d

in
a
u
d

it
(C

P
A

R
e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

5
7
).

(b
)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
a
n
d

in
tr

o
d
u
c
e

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

q
u

a
lit

y
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s

fo
r

th
e

c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n

o
f

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

,
to

e
n
s
u
re

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

in
a
 t
im

e
ly

,
a
c
c
u
ra

te

a
n

d
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t

w
a
y
,

w
it
h

fu
ll

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
c
o
n
tr

o
l.

J
o
in

t
C

h
ie

f
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

(R
e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
)/

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
u
m

a
n

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
n

d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

H
IG

H
A

p
ri

l
2

0
0
5

W
it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s

H
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

Q
u

a
lit

y
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s

in
tr

o
d

u
c
e
d

fr
o
m

1
J
a
n
u

a
ry

2
0
0

5
.

P
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 t

o
b

e
fu

rt
h

e
r

re
v
ie

w
e
d

in

lig
h
t

o
f

in
te

rn
a
l
a
u

d
it

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

o
f

L
P

I
c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

p
ro

c
e
d
u

re
s

fo
r

2
0

0
4

/0
5
.

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
F

u
rt

h
e
r

re
v
is

e
d

q
u

a
lit

y
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

p
ro

c
e
d
u

re
s

is
s
u

e
d

S
e
p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0
0

5
.
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
IC

T
s
ys

te
m

in
tr

o
d

u
c
e
d

fr
o
m

J
u
n

e
2
0

0
6

.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

A
c
ti
o
n
s

to
b

e
D

E
L

E
T

E
D

(1
5
)

S
ta

ff
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

R
e
v
ie

w
s

in
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y

re
fe

r
to

S
e
rv

ic
e

P
la

n
s

(C
P

A
R

e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

6
0
).

(a
)

U
p
d

a
te

a
n
d

re
is

s
u

e
g
u

id
a
n
c
e

to
a
ll

m
a
n

a
g

e
rs

in
re

la
ti
o
n

to
th

e
c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

a
n

d
fo

rm
a
t

o
f

S
ta

ff
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
R

e
v
ie

w
s
.

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
u
m

a
n

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
n
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

H
IG

H
A

p
ri

l
2

0
0
5

W
it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
I

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

S
ta

ff
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

R
e
v
ie

w
g
u
id

a
n
c
e

u
p
d

a
te

d
a
n

d

re
is

s
u

e
d

A
p
ri

l
2
0

0
5

.

Page 76



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

1
5

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

J
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

K
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

(b
)

M
o
n
it
o
r

a
d

h
e
re

n
c
e

to
n

e
w

g
u
id

a
n
c
e

fo
ll
o
w

in
g

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

o
f

S
ta

ff
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
R

e
v
ie

w
p
ro

c
e
s
s

fo
r

2
0
0

5
/0

6

H
IG

H
A

p
ri

l
2

0
0
6

L
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

M
o
n
it
o
ri

n
g

u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

fo
ll
o
w

in
g

th
e

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

o
f

S
ta

ff
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

R
e
v
ie

w
s

fo
r

2
0
0

6
/0

7
.

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
S

ta
ff

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

R
e
v
ie

w
g
u
id

e
lin

e
s

h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

u
p

d
a
te

d
.
A

d
h

e
re

n
c
e

to
n

e
w

g
u

id
e
lin

e
s

m
o
n

it
o
re

d
a
t
th

e
e
n
d

o
f

e
a
c
h

y
e

a
r.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

A
c
ti
o
n
s

to
b

e
D

E
L

E
T

E
D

(a
)

A
s

A
c
ti
o
n

2
.

H
IG

H

A
p
ri

l
2

0
0
5

M
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

R
e
v
is

e
d

re
p

o
rt

in
g

p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
a
n

d
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

a
g
re

e
d

a
n

d
in

tr
o
d

u
c
e
d

fr
o
m

A
p

ri
l
2

0
0

5
.

A
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
IC

T
s
ys

te
m

to
b

e
in

tr
o
d

u
c
e
d

fr
o
m

J
u

n
e

2
0

0
6

.
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
B

o
a
rd

re
v
ie

w
o
f

B
V

P
I
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

M
a
rc

h
2
0

0
5

a
n

d
J
u
ly

2
0

0
6
.

(1
6
)

M
e
m

b
e
rs

n
o
t

g
e
tt

in
g

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

in
a

w
a
y

th
a
t

e
n

a
b

le
s

th
e
m

 t
o

m
o
n

it
o
r

s
e
rv

ic
e

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
.

L
it
tl
e

u
s
e

o
f

b
e
n
c
h

m
a
rk

in
g

d
a
ta

o
r

c
o
s
t

a
n

a
ly

s
is

(C
P

A
R

e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
s

5
8
,

1
0

4
).

(b
)

Im
p
le

m
e
n

t
re

c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a
ti
o
n
s

o
f

th
e

o
v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n
d

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
re

v
ie

w
in

re
la

ti
o
n

to
th

e
fu

tu
re

re
p

o
rt

in
g

o
f

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

.

J
o
in

t
C

h
ie

f
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

(R
e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
)/

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
u
m

a
n

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
n

d
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
/O

v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n

d
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
S

ta
n
d

in
g

P
a
n

e
l

H
IG

H
M

a
y

2
0

0
5

W
it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

N
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

N
e
w

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

re
p

o
rt

in
g

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
in

tr
o
d

u
c
e
d

fr
o
m

M
a
y

2
0

0
5

.
F

in
a
n
c
e

a
n
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n

d
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
P

a
n

e
l
re

v
ie

w
in

g
q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

a
g

a
in

s
t

b
a
s
k
e
t

o
f

k
e
y

B
V

P
Is

a
n

d
L

P
Is

.

Page 77



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

1
6

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

O
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

P
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

(c
)

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

p
o
s
s
ib

le
p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

b
e
n
c
h

m
a
rk

in
g

d
a
ta

to
e
n

a
b
le

im
p
ro

v
e
d

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

m
o
n

it
o
ri

n
g
.

H
IG

H
S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
5

Q
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

/O
N

G
O

IN
G

B
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g

a
g

a
in

s
t

n
a
ti
o
n

a
l
q
u

a
rt

il
e
s

in
c
lu

d
e
d

fo
r

a
ll

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

B
V

P
Is

in
B

e
s
t

V
a
lu

e
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

P
la

n
fo

r
2
0

0
5

/0
6

a
n
d

2
0
0

6
/0

7
.

E
s
s
e
x

w
id

e
B

V
P

I
b

e
n
c
h

m
a
rk

in
g

g
ro

u
p

b
e
in

g
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
b

y
E

s
s
e
x

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
N

e
tw

o
rk

.

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
C

a
b

in
e
t/

F
in

a
n
c
e

a
n

d
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n

d
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
P

a
n

e
l
a
g

re
e

k
e
y

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
e
a
c
h

y
e

a
r.

T
h

e
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
IC

T
s
ys

te
m

in
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d

in

J
u
n

e
2

0
0

6
w

ill
p
ro

v
id

e
fo

r
e
n

h
a
n
c
e
d

le
v
e
ls

o
f

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

b
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g

a
n

d
c
o
m

p
a
ri

s
o
n
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

A
c
ti
o
n
s

to
b

e
D

E
L

E
T

E
D

(a
)

Id
e
n
ti
fy

a
ll

re
le

v
a
n

t
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

it
e
m

s

fr
o
m

th
e

O
D

P
M

p
ri

o
ri

ty
lis

t
th

a
t
s
h

o
u

ld
b

e
in

c
lu

d
e
d

o
n

th
e

c
o
u

n
c
il’

s
w

e
b
s
it
e
.

M
E

D
IU

M

O
c
to

b
e
r

2
0
0

5
R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

O
D

P
M

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
a
n

d
p
ri

o
ri

ty
lis

t
o
f

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

it
e
m

s
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

fo
r

th
e

c
o
u

n
c
il’

s
w

e
b
s
it
e

d
u
ri

n
g

O
c
to

b
e
r

2
0
0

4
.

(1
7
)

W
e
b
s
it
e

is
im

p
ro

v
in

g
b

u
t
s
ti
ll

n
o
t

e
a
s
y
 t

o
a
c
c
e
s
s

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

(C
P

A
R

e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

7
9
).

(b
)

Im
p
le

m
e
n

t
a
ll

p
ri

o
ri

ty
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

it
e
m

s
o
n

th
e

c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
w

e
b
s
it
e
.

J
o
in

t
C

h
ie

f
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

(R
e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
)/

H
e
a
d

o
f

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
a
n

d
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

H
IG

H
M

a
rc

h
2

0
0

5

W
it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

S
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

A
ll

re
le

v
a
n

t
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

it
e
m

s
fr

o
m

th
e

O
D

P
M

p
ri

o
ri
ty

lis
t
in

c
lu

d
e
d

o
n

th
e

c
o
u

n
c
il’

s
w

e
b
s
it
e

d
u
ri

n
g

M
a
rc

h
2
0

0
5
.

Page 78



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

1
7

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

T
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

U
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

(c
)

Im
p
le

m
e
n

t
c
o
m

m
it
te

e
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

IC
T

s
ys

te
m

to
p
ro

v
id

e
b

e
tt

e
r

a
n

d
w

id
e
r

a
c
c
e
s
s

to
th

e
c
o
u

n
c
il’

s
d

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s

a
n

d

re
la

te
d

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
.

H
IG

H
A

p
ri

l
2

0
0
5

V
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
IC

T
s
ys

te
m

im
p
le

m
e
n

te
d

fr
o
m

M
a
y

2
0

0
5

.

(d
)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
o
n
-l

in
e

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
p

a
c
k
a
g

e
fo

r

fi
n

a
n
c
e

re
la

te
d

(C
o
u

n
c
il

T
a
x
,
s
u
n

d
ry

d
e
b

to
rs

,
h

o
u
s
in

g
re

n
ts

)
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

H
IG

H

J
u
n

e
2

0
0

5
X

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

G
o
-l
iv

e
o
f

o
n
-l

in
e

p
a
y
m

e
n

ts
p

a
c
k
a
g

e
fo

r
fi
n

a
n
c
e

re
la

te
d

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

a
c
h

ie
v
e
d

M
a
y

2
0
0

5
.

(e
)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
o
n
-l

in
e

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
p

a
c
k
a
g

e
fo

r
a
ll

o
th

e
r

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

H
IG

H
J
u
n

e
2

0
0

6
Y

T
a
rg

e
t

d
a
te

fo
r

g
o
-l

iv
e

o
f

o
n

-l
in

e
p

a
c
k
a
g

e
fo

r
a
ll

o
th

e
r

p
a
y
m

e
n

t
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

n
o
t

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d

.
N

e
w

o
ff

ic
e
r

w
o
rk

in
g

g
ro

u
p

m
o
n

it
o
ri

n
g

p
ro

g
re

s
s
.

(f
)

R
e
v
ie

w
n

a
v
ig

a
ti
o
n

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
o
f

th
e

w
e
b
s
it
e

a
n

d
p
ro

d
u
c
e

n
e
w

tr
a
in

in
g

m
a
n
u

a
l.

H
IG

H
M

a
y

2
0

0
5

Z
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

R
e
v
ie

w
o
f

n
a
v
ig

a
ti
o
n

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
c
o
m

p
le

te
d

.
B

e
s
t

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

in
c
lu

d
e
d

w
it
h
in

re
v
is

e
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
m

a
n
u

a
l

is
s
u

e
d

a
t

a
ll

w
e
b
s
it
e
 t
ra

in
in

g
c
o
u
rs

e
s

fr
o
m

M
a
rc

h
2
0

0
5
.

Page 79



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

1
8

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

[
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

\
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

(g
)

R
e
v
ie

w
a
n
d

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
e
x
is

ti
n

g
w

e
b
s
it
e

s
e
rv

ic
e

c
a
te

g
o
ri

e
s

in
lin

e
w

it
h

c
u
rr

e
n
t

p
u
b

lic
s
e
c
to

r
b

e
s
t

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
.

H
IG

H
J
u
ly

2
0
0

5
]

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

P
h
io

s
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n

ts
a
p
p

o
in

te
d

to
u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e

re
v
ie

w
o
f

e
x
is

ti
n

g
w

e
b
s
it
e

s
e
rv

ic
e

c
a
te

g
o
ri

e
s
.

R
e
p

o
rt

o
f

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

re
c
e
iv

e
d

a
n

d
re

c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a
ti
o
n
s

in
fl
u

e
n
c
in

g
fu

tu
re

w
e
b
s
it
e

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

(h
)

C
a
rr

y
o
u
t

in
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n

t
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n

o
f

w
e
b
s
it
e

u
s
a
b
ili

ty
.

H
IG

H
A

p
ri

l
2

0
0
5

^
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

b
y

M
ys

te
ry

S
h

o
p

p
e
rs

.
T

h
e

c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
w

e
b
s
it
e

ra
n

k
e
d

2
4

th
o
u

t
o
f

4
4
1

lo
c
a
l

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

s
u
rv

e
y
e
d
.

(i
)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
-f

o
rm

s
p

a
c
k
a
g

e
a
n

d
u
s
e

a
s

th
e

c
e
n
tr

a
l
m

e
a
n
s

o
f

p
ro

d
u
c
in

g
a
n

d
d
is

tr
ib

u
ti
n
g

c
o
u
n
c
il

fo
rm

s
.

M
E

D
IU

M
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
5

_
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

In
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n

o
f

e
-f

o
rm

s
c
o
m

p
le

te
.

S
u

p
p

lie
r

to
b

e
e
n

g
a
g

e
d

to
a
s
s
is

t
w

it
h

p
a
c
k
lo

g
,
s
ta

ff
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d

to
c
re

a
te

n
e
w

fo
rm

s
.

(j
)

C
o
n
s
o
lid

a
te

s
ta

ff
in

g
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s

to
s
u
p

p
o
rt

w
e
b
s
it
e

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

ts
.

M
E

D
IU

M

O
c
to

b
e
r

2
0
0

5

W
it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
`

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

T
h
e

n
e
e
d

to
im

p
ro

v
e

th
e

c
o
n

te
n
t

a
n

d
q
u

a
lit

y
o
f

w
e
b
s
it
e

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d

.
S

ta
ff

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

fo
r

c
o
n

te
n
t

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
h

a
v
e

b
e
e
n

fo
c
u
s
e
d

b
y

th
e

re
d

e
fi
n
it
io

n
o
f

ro
le

s
w

it
h

IC
T

s
ta

ff
 t
o

e
n

a
b

le
b

e
tt

e
r

d
e
fi
n

it
io

n
in

p
u
b

lic
it
y

a
n

d
te

c
h

n
ic

a
l

s
u
p
p

o
rt

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
s
.

Page 80



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

1
9

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

�
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

�
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

(k
)

U
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
 t
ra

in
in

g
a
n
d

d
e
v
o
lu

ti
o
n

o
f

w
e
b
s
it
e

c
o
n
te

n
t

o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

.
H

IG
H

M
a
y

2
0

0
5

W
it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
�

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

T
ra

in
in

g
c
o
u

rs
e
s

s
c
h

e
d
u
le

d
e
v
e
ry

 t
h
re

e
m

o
n
th

s
.

(l
)

Im
p
le

m
e
n

t
a
p
p

ro
p
ri

a
te

s
o
ft

w
a
re

to
a
c
c
u
ra

te
ly

m
o
n
it
o
r

w
e
b
s
it
e

u
s
a
g

e
.

H
IG

H
F

e
b

ru
a
ry

2
0
0

5
�

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

S
o
ft

w
a
re

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

2
0
0

5
.
V

is
it
s

to
w

e
b
s
it
e

in
e

xc
e
s
s

o
f

B
V

P
I

1
5
7

ta
rg

e
ts

.

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
A

c
ti
o
n
s

(a
)

to
(l
)

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

o
r

in
-h

a
n

d
.
P

ro
g

re
s
s

u
p
d

a
te

d
b

y
H

e
a
d

o
f

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
a
n

d
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

R
e
fe

r
A

c
ti
o
n

(e
)

to
C

u
s
to

m
e
r

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
,

In
fo

m
ra

ti
o
n

T
e
c
h
n

o
lo

g
y
,

M
e
d

ia
a
n
d

C
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s

P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

H
O

L
D

E
R

.
O

th
e
r

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
b

e
D

E
L

E
T

E
D

(1
8
)

M
ix

e
d

le
v
e
ls

o
f

c
u
s
to

m
e
r

a
n

d
p

a
rt

n
e
r

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

(C
P

A

R
e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

6
7
).

(a
)

A
ll

H
e
a
d

s
o
f

S
e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
in

v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

c
u
s
to

m
e
r

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

a
n

d
,

w
h

e
re

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

,

to
d

e
v
e
lo

p
a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

a
c
ti
o
n

p
la

n
s

to
im

p
ro

v
e

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

le
v
e
ls

.

A
ll

H
e
a
d

s
o
f

S
e
rv

ic
e

L
O

W
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
6

A
ll

w
it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
�

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

C
u
s
to

m
e
r

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

s
u
rv

e
y
s

(2
0
0

3
/0

4
)

a
ls

o
p
ro

v
id

e
d

m
ix

e
d

le
v
e
ls

o
f

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

,
a

s
it
u

a
ti
o
n

s
h

a
re

d
b

y
a

m
a
jo

ri
ty

o
f

lo
c
a
l
a
u

th
o
ri
ti
e
s
.
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n
d

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
re

c
e
iv

e
d

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s

in
J
u
ly

2
0

0
3

o
n

 t
h

e
re

s
u
lt
s

o
f

re
c
e
n
t
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

s
u
rv

e
ys

a
n

d
n

o
fu

rt
h

e
r

a
c
ti
o
n

w
a
s

re
q
u

ir
e
d
.

A
c
ti
o
n

p
la

n
s

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

w
h

e
re

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

to
im

p
ro

v
e

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

le
v
e
ls

,
a
ft

e
r

2
0

0
6
/0

7
c
u
s
to

m
e
r

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

s
u
rv

e
y
s

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

Page 81



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

2
0

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

�
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

�
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

(b
)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
s
tr

a
te

g
y

fo
r

id
e
n

ti
fy

in
g

a
n
d

m
e
a
s
u
ri

n
g

c
u
s
to

m
e
r

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
u
m

a
n

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
n
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

M
E

D
IU

M
M

a
rc

h
2

0
0

6
�

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

N
e
w

P
u
b

lic
C

o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n

a
n

d
E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t

S
tr

a
te

g
y
,

a
n

d
p

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

fo
r

d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
a
n
d

in
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o
n

o
f

a
n

n
u

a
l
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

P
la

n
a
g
re

e
d

b
y

C
a
b

in
e
t

in
M

a
rc

h
2
0

0
6

(c
)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
a
n
d

im
p

le
m

e
n
t

p
ro

-a
c
ti
v
e

p
re

s
s

s
ta

n
c
e

in
re

la
ti
o
n

to
th

e
a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n

ts
a
n
d

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
s

o
f

th
e

c
o
u

n
c
il.

H
e
a
d

o
f

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
a
n
d

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

M
E

D
IU

M

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
5

	
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

/O
N

-G
O

IN
G

T
h
e

c
o
u

n
c
il

o
p

e
ra

te
s

a
s
ys

te
m

o
f

w
e
e
k
ly

m
e
d

ia
b
ri

e
fi
n
g
s
.
T

h
e

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n

d
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
w

ill

b
e

c
o
n
s
id

e
ri

n
g

a
s
im

ila
r

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

d
u
ri

n
g

2
0

0
6
/0

7
.

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
T

h
e

A
u

d
it

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
c
a
rr

ie
d

o
u
t

a
‘U

s
e
r

F
o
c
u
s
’
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

o
f 

th
e

w
a
y

in
w

h
ic

h
th

e
c
o
u
n
c
il

c
o
n
s
u
lt
s

it
s

c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

d
u
ri

n
g

2
0
0

5
.
T

h
e

re
s
u
lt
s

o
f

th
is

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

w
e
re

th
a
t

th
e

C
o
u

n
c
il’

s

s
tr

e
n

g
th

s
in

 t
h

is
a
re

a
o
u

tw
e
ig

h
e
d

w
e

a
k
n

e
s
s
e
s
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

A
c
ti
o
n
s

to
re

m
a
in

w
it
h
in

th
e

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

P
L

A
N

in
v
ie

w
o
f

th
e

im
m

in
e
n
t
c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

la
te

s
t
ro

u
n

d
o
f

c
u
s
to

m
e
r

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

s
u
rv

e
y
s

(a
)

P
ro

v
id

e
n
in

e
u

n
it
s

o
f 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

fo
r

h
o
m

e
le

s
s

fa
m

ili
e
s

a
t

H
e
m

n
a
ll

H
o
u
s
e
,

E
p

p
in

g
.

H
IG

H

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
4

W
it
h
in

H
o
u
s
in

g

C
a
p

it
a
l

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e



C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

A
d
d

it
io

n
a
l
te

m
p

o
ra

ry
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

s
e
c
u
re

d
S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
4

.

(1
9
)

H
o
m

e
le

s
s

p
e
o
p

le
s
p

e
n

d
to

o

lo
n

g
in

 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

(C
P

A
R

e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

7
3
).

(b
)

R
e
v
ie

w
e
x
is

ti
n

g
A

ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s

S
c
h

e
m

e
a
n
d

in
c
re

a
s
e

th
e

n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n

b
a
n
d
s
 t

o

g
iv

e
a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l
p
ri

o
ri

ty
to

h
o
m

e
le

s
s

fa
m

ili
e
s

in
te

m
p

o
ra

ry
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

.

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

H
IG

H
S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
4

W
it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g
s
ta

ff
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
�

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

R
e
v
ie

w
o
f

A
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s

S
c
h

e
m

e
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

in
S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
4

,
a
n

d
re

v
ie

w
e
d

a
n

d
u
p

d
a
te

d
a
n

n
u

a
ll
y

th
e
re

a
ft

e
r.

Page 82



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

2
1

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

�
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D


T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

(c
)

R
e
v
ie

w
 t
h

e
s
u
c
c
e
s
s

o
f

th
e

‘F
re

s
h

S
ta

rt
’

s
c
h
e
m

e
a
n

d
e
x
te

n
d

s
c
h

e
m

e
b

e
y
o
n

d
th

e
c
u
rr

e
n

t
m

a
x
im

u
m

n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
.

M
E

D
IU

M
S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
5

W
e
e
k
ly

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
fe

e
w

it
h

in
e

x
is

ti
n
g

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
,

a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l
b

u
d
g

e
t

p
ro

v
is

io
n

re
q
u

ir
e
d

if
s
c
h
e
m

e
e
x
te

n
d

e
d

�
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

/O
N

-G
O

IN
G

T
e
n

h
o
m

e
le

s
s

a
p
p

lic
a
n
ts

h
a

v
e

b
e
e
n

p
ro

v
id

e
d

w
it
h

p
ri

v
a
te

s
e
c
to

r
le

a
s
e
s

a
t

m
a
rk

e
t
re

n
ts

u
n
d

e
r

th
e
 F

re
s
h

S
ta

rt
s
c
h

e
m

e
,

w
h

ic
h

is
 t
h

e
 t

o
ta

l
n

u
m

b
e
r

a
g
re

e
d

b
y

C
a
b

in
e
t.

T
h
e

C
a
b
in

e
t

a
g
re

e
d

in
S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
5

to
e
x
te

n
d

th
e

s
c
h
e
m

e
to

tw
e
n

ty
p
ri

v
a
te

s
e
c
to

r
le

a
s
e
s

a
t

m
a
rk

e
t

re
n
t

w
it
h

E
a
s
t
T

h
a
m

e
s

H
o
u
s
in

g
A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
.

N
e
a
rl

y
a
ll

o
f

th
e

a
d
d

it
io

n
a
l
te

n
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

h
a
v
e

n
o
w

b
e
e
n

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d

a
n

d
le

a
s
e
d

b
y

E
a
s
t

T
h

a
m

e
s

(d
)

E
xt

e
n

d
th

e
H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s

P
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n

S
e
rv

ic
e

u
n

ti
l
A

p
ri
l
2

0
0

5
a
n

d
re

v
ie

w
th

e
fu

tu
re

o
f

th
e

s
e
rv

ic
e
.

H
IG

H
J
u
ly

2
0
0

4
S

u
p

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ry

E
s
ti
m

a
te

a
p

p
ro

v
e
d

fo
r

2
0

0
4
/0

5
.

R
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t
fo

r
2
0

0
5
/6

u
n

k
n

o
w

n

u
n
ti
l
O

D
P

M
fu

n
d
in

g
p

o
s
it
io

n
k
n

o
w

n

�
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

E
xt

e
n
s
io

n
a
n
d

re
v
ie

w
o
f

H
o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s

P
re

v
e
n

ti
o
n

S
e
rv

ic
e

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

J
u
ly

2
0

0
4
.

T
h

e
s
e
rv

ic
e

w
a
s

e
x
te

n
d

e
d

fu
rt

h
e
r

in
S

u
m

m
e
r

2
0

0
6
,
th

ro
u

g
h

a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l

fu
n
d
in

g
re

c
e
iv

e
d

fr
o
m

th
e

D
e
p

a
rt

m
e
n
t

o
f

C
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s

a
n

d
L

o
c
a
l
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t.

(e
)

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

th
e

re
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
o
f

L
e
a
d

e
r

L
o
d
g

e
a
t
N

o
rt

h
W

e
a
ld

 t
o

p
ro

v
id

e
a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

fo
r

h
o
m

e
le

s
s

fa
m

ili
e
s
.

M
E

D
IU

M
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
4

F
e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

w
it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
�

A
n

o
u
tl
in

e
p
la

n
n
in

g
a
p
p

lic
a
ti
o
n

w
a
s

s
u

b
m

it
te

d
.

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

d
e
s
p

it
e

th
e
e

p
la

n
n

in
g

o
ff

ic
e
r’
s

re
c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a
ti
o
n

fo
r

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l,

th
e

a
p
p

lic
a
ti
o
n

w
a
s

re
fu

s
e
d
.

A
n

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l
is

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

b
e
in

g
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
.

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
P

ro
g
re

s
s

u
p
d

a
te

d
b

y
H

e
a
d

o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

R
e
fe

r
to

H
o
u
s
in

g
 P

O
R

T
F

O
L

IO
H

O
L

D
E

R

Page 83



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

2
2

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

�
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

�
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

(2
0
)

P
la

n
n

in
g

a
n

d
L

a
n

d
S

e
a
rc

h
e
s

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

d
ip

p
e
d

in
2
0

0
2
/0

3
(C

P
A

R
e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
s

7
2
,

1
4

6
).

(a
)

E
n
s
u
re

fu
ll

u
s
e

o
f

re
v
is

e
d

d
e
le

g
a
ti
o
n

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
in

re
s
p

e
c
t

o
f 

th
e

d
e
te

rm
in

a
ti
o
n

o
f

p
la

n
n
in

g
a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
.

(s
e
e

a
ls

o
A

c
ti
o
n

3
4

)

H
e
a
d

o
f

P
la

n
n

in
g

a
n

d
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
H

IG
H

J
a
n
u

a
ry

2
0
0

5
W

it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
id

e
d

b
y

P
la

n
n
in

g

D
e
liv

e
ry

G
ra

n
t

�
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

Page 84



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

2
3

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

�
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

�
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

(b
)

R
e
v
ie

w
 t
h

e
u
s
e

o
f

c
a
s
u

a
l/
a
g

e
n
c
y

s
ta

ff
to

a
d

d
re

s
s

p
e
a
k
s

in
p
la

n
n
in

g
w

o
rk

lo
a
d

.
H

IG
H

J
a
n
u

a
ry

2
0
0

5
�

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

P
la

n
n

in
g

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

h
a
v
e

lo
n

g
u
s
e
d

c
o
n
s
u

lt
a
n
ts

to

a
s
s
is

t
w

it
h

p
e
a
k
s

o
f

w
o
rk

lo
a
d

,
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
to

d
e
a
l
w

it
h

a
p

p
e
a
ls

a
n

d
s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t
ta

s
k
s
.

T
h

e
re

is
a
n

a
u
d

it
o
f

th
is

fo
r

w
h
ic

h
w

e
a
re

a
w

a
it
in

g
th

e
re

s
u
lt
s
;
th

is
in

c
lu

d
e
s

B
u
ild

in
g

C
o
n
tr

o
l.

P
la

n
n
in

g
h

a
s

a
ls

o
u
s
e
d

c
a
s
u

a
l
s
ta

ff
to

fu
lf
ill

c
e
rt

a
in

ro
le

s
;

e
x
a
m

p
le

s
in

c
lu

d
e

re
lie

f
re

c
e
p

ti
o
n

is
ts

, 
th

o
s
e

re
c
e
iv

in
g

w
o
rk

e
x
p

e
ri

e
n
c
e

o
r

s
h

o
rt

 t
e
rm

tr
a
in

in
g

p
o
s
it
io

n
s

w
it
h

u
s
;
in

p
a
rt

ic
u

la
r

o
u

r
"s

u
m

m
e
r

s
tu

d
e
n

ts
."

W
e

h
a
v
e

a
ls

o
u
s
e
d

a
g

e
n
c
y

s
ta

ff
in

c
lu

d
in

g
te

m
p
s

d
o
in

g
a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e

ro
le

s
,

a
n

d

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l
ro

le
s
.

In
re

s
p

e
c
t

o
f

te
m

p
s

a
n

e
w

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t

w
a
s

a
g
re

e
d

w
it
h

A
d

d
e
c
c
o

la
s
t

y
e
a
r,

w
h
ic

h
o
ff

e
rs

lo
w

e
r

ra
te

s
th

a
n

th
o
s
e

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

a
v
a
il
a
b

le
.

W
e

h
a
v
e

fe
w

te
m

p
s

le
ft

fr
o
m

p
re

v
io

u
s

s
u

p
p

lie
rs

.
C

a
b
in

e
t

a
g
re

e
d

a

h
it

s
q
u

a
d

fo
r

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
C

o
n

tr
o
l
la

s
t
J
u

ly
,

w
h
ic

h
is

s
ta

ff
e
d

b
y

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l
a
g

e
n
c
y

s
ta

ff
.

T
h

is
is

s
u

b
je

c
t

to
a

re
p

o
rt

a
t
th

e
e
n
d

.

It
is

a
ls

o
 t
h

e
c
a
s
e

th
a
t

w
e

re
v
ie

w
th

e
n

e
e
d

to
a
p

p
o
in

t
o
r

b
ri
n

g
 t

o
a

c
lo

s
e

th
e
s
e

ty
p

e
s

o
f

p
o
s
it
io

n
n

o
t

o
n
ly

h
a
v
in

g
re

g
a
rd

to
w

o
rk

lo
a
d

p
e
a
k
s
,

b
u

t
a
ls

o
th

e
fu

n
d
in

g
/b

u
d

g
e
ts

 t
h

a
t

w
e

h
a
v
e
.
W

h
ils

t
th

e
re

h
a
s

n
o
t

b
e
e
n

o
n

e
fo

rm
a
l
re

v
ie

w
o
f

th
e

a
b

o
v
e
,

in
te

rm
s

o
f

re
p

o
rt

in
g
/u

p
d

a
ti
n

g
p

ro
g
re

s
s

it
w

o
u
ld

b
e

w
ro

n
g
 t

o

re
c
o
rd

th
a
t 

th
e

ta
rg

e
t

h
a
s

n
o
t

b
e
e
n

m
e
t.

R
a
th

e
r,

w
e

h
a
v
e

p
ro

b
a
b

ly
fu

lly
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
th

e
v
a
lu

e
b
ro

u
g

h
t

b
y

u
s
in

g
s
u
c
h

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

e
s

to
h

e
lp

u
s

d
e
li
v
e
r

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
,

in
c
lu

d
in

g
th

e
v
a
lu

e
fo

r
m

o
n

e
y
.

A
re

c
e
n
t

A
u

d
it

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
re

p
o
rt

re
fl
e
c
ti
n

g
th

e

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
o
f

re
c
ru

it
in

g
p
la

n
n

e
rs

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
th

e
u
s
e

o
f

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n

ts
.

Page 85



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

2
4

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

�
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

�
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

(c
)

U
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

p
ro

c
e
s
s

m
a
p
p

in
g

fo
r

m
a
jo

r
p
la

n
n
in

g
a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
.

M
E

D
IU

M
O

c
to

b
e
r

2
0
0

5
�

G
e
n

e
ra

l
p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
o
f

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s

is
u

n
d

e
r

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
w

it
h

 t
h

e
in

tr
o
d

u
c
ti
o
n

o
f

n
e
w

 I
C

T
a
n

d
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
s
ys

te
m

s
.

M
a
jo

r
a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g

h
a
s

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 t

o
m

e
e
t

th
e

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n

t
ta

rg
e
t
fo

r 
th

e
fi
rs

t
q
u

a
rt

e
r

o
f

2
0
0

6
/0

7
.

(d
)

R
e
v
ie

w
re

a
s
o
n
s

fo
r

c
o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
d

o
w

n
tu

rn
in

L
o
c
a
l
L

a
n
d

C
h

a
rg

e
s

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

a
n

d
re

p
o
rt

a
c
c
o
rd

in
g
ly

.

H
e
a
d

o
f

L
e
g

a
l,

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o
n

a
n

d
E

s
ta

te
s

H
IG

H
M

a
y

2
0

0
5

�
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

R
e
v
ie

w
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

M
a

y
2

0
0

5
.

C
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
s

re
a
c
h

e
d

in
c
lu

d
e

th
e

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

u
s
e

o
f

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l
p

e
rs

o
n

a
l

s
e
a
rc

h
e
s
,

a
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n

in
s
ta

ff
in

g
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
n

d
a

n
e
e
d

to
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

to
th

e
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

n
e
w

P
la

n
n
in

g
/L

o
c
a
l
L

a
n
d

C
h

a
rg

e
s

c
o
m

p
u
te

r
s
ys

te
m

.
A

c
ti
o
n
s

ta
k
e
n

in
c
lu

d
e

th
e

a
p
p

o
in

tm
e
n
t

o
f

a
n

a
d
d

it
io

n
a
l

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
m

e
m

b
e
r

o
f

s
ta

ff
in

M
a
rc

h
2
0

0
5

,
a
n
d

 t
h

e

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t

o
f

a
n

o
n
-g

o
in

g
re

v
ie

w
o
f

th
e

C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
p

e
rs

o
n

a
l
s
e
a
rc

h
p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
in

lig
h

t
o
f

g
u

id
a
n
c
e

is
s
u

e
d

b
y

th
e

O
D

P
M

in
M

a
rc

h
2

0
0
5
.

R
e
p

o
rt

m
a
d

e
to

th
e

C
a
b
in

e
t

o
n

th
e
s
e

is
s
u

e
s
.

(e
)

Im
p
le

m
e
n

t
th

e
n

e
w

in
te

g
ra

te
d

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

te
c
h

n
o
lo

g
y

s
ys

te
m

fo
r

P
la

n
n
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
,

B
u
ild

in
g

C
o
n
tr

o
l,

a
n
d

L
o
c
a
l
L

a
n

d
C

h
a
rg

e
s

to
it
s

fu
ll

s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
.

H
e
a
d

o
f

P
la

n
n

in
g

a
n

d

E
c
o
n

o
m

ic
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t/

H
e
a
d

o
f

L
e
g

a
l,

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o
n

a
n

d

E
s
ta

te
s

H
IG

H

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
6

�
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

M
a
jo

r
g

o
-l

iv
e

d
a
te

S
u

m
m

e
r

2
0

0
5

.

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
In

it
ia

l
s
ys

te
m

im
p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d

s
u

m
m

e
r

2
0

0
5
,

n
e
s
t

u
p

g
ra

d
e

d
u

e
in

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
6

.
L

o
c
a
l
la

n
d

C
h

a
rg

e
s

s
ys

te
m

u
p

g
ra

d
e
d
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
fu

ll
s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

R
e
fe

r
to

P
la

n
n
in

g
a
n
d

E
c
o
n

o
m

ic
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
P

O
R

T
F

L
IO

H
O

L
D

E
R

Page 86



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

2
5

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

�
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

�
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

(a
)

S
e
e
k

th
e

fo
llo

w
in

g
th

ro
u
g

h
a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s

to
th

e
L

o
c
a
l
P

la
n
:

(i
)

a
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n

in
th

e
th

re
s
h

o
ld

a
b

o
v
e

w
h
ic

h
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

h
o
u
s
in

g
is

s
o
u

g
h
t

o
n

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
s
it
e
s

in
u
rb

a
n

a
re

a
s
,
fr

o
m

1
h

a
o
r

2
5

d
w

e
lli

n
g
s

to
0

.5
h

a
o
r

1
5

d
w

e
lli

n
g
s

a
n

d
in

ru
ra

l
a
re

a
s

to
2

d
w

e
lli

n
g
s
;

(i
i)

w
h

e
re

s
o
c
ia

l
h

o
u
s
in

g
g
ra

n
t

is
a
v
a
il
a
b
le

,
a
n

in
c
re

a
s
e

fr
o
m

3
0
%

 t
o

4
0
%

in
 t
h

e
a
m

o
u

n
t

o
f

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

h
o
u
s
in

g
e
x
p

e
c
te

d

o
n

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t
s
it
e
s

in
u
rb

a
n

a
re

a
s
;

(i
ii)

a
n

e
x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o
n

th
a
t
5

0
%

o
f

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

o
n

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

in
ru

ra
l
a
re

a
s

w
ill

b
e

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
h

o
u
s
in

g
.

H
IG

H
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
5

W
it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g
s
ta

ff
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
�

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

th
is

a
c
ti
o
n

w
a
s

d
e
la

y
e
d

d
u

e
to

 t
h

e

c
o
n
ti
n
u

in
g

w
o
rk

lo
a
d

o
n

th
e

E
a
s
t

o
f

E
n
g
la

n
d

P
la

n
, 

th
e

p
la

n
n

e
d

o
u
tc

o
m

e
w

a
s

a
c
h

ie
v
e
d

in
J
u
ly

2
0
0

6
,

fo
llo

w
in

g
a

P
u
b

lic
In

q
u
ir

y
,

a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
5
0

%
e
x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o
n

in
ru

ra
l

a
re

a
s

w
a
s

re
d

u
c
e
d

(2
1
)

P
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

h
o
m

e
s

(C
P

A
R

e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

8
6
).

(b
)

F
a
c
ili

ta
te

 t
h

e
c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

o
f

9
3

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

fo
r

re
n
t

a
n

d
2
2

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

fo
r

s
h

a
re

d
o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

.

H
e
a
d

o
f

P
la

n
n

in
g

a
n

d
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t/

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

M
E

D
IU

M
A

p
ri

l
2

0
0
5

L
A

S
H

G
w

it
h
in

H
o
u
s
in

g
C

a
p
it
a
l

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

A
d
d

it
io

n
a
l
S

H
G

re
q

u
ir

e
d

fr
o
m

H
o
u
s
in

g
C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n

(c
o
m

m
it
te

d
)

�
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

8
0

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
u

n
it
s

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
,

o
f

w
h

ic
h

6
a
re

k
e
y

w
o
rk

e
r

a
n

d
4

s
h

a
re

d
o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

.
T

h
e
re

a
re

a
fu

rt
h

e
r

1
4

7
u

n
it
s

in
th

e
p
ip

e
lin

e
w

it
h

a
m

ix
tu

re
o
f

re
n

te
d
,

s
h

a
re

d
o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

a
n

d
k
e
y

w
o
rk

e
r,

a
ll

s
u
b

je
c
t 

to
fu

n
d
in

g
,
p

la
n
n

in
g

a
p

p
ro

v
a
l
a
n

d
S

1
0

6
a
g
re

e
m

e
n

ts

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
C

lo
s
in

g
d

a
te

fo
r

s
u
b

m
is

s
io

n
o
f

c
o
m

m
e
n

ts
o
n

re
-d

e
p

o
s
it

3
1

A
u
g

u
s
t
2

0
0
5
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

A
c
ti
o
n
s

to
b

e
D

E
L

E
T

E
D

Page 87



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

2
6

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

 
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

!
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

(2
2
)

D
is

a
b

le
d

a
c
c
e
s
s

n
o
t

im
p
ro

v
in

g
(C

P
A

R
e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

8
8
).

R
e
v
ie

w
o
p
ti
o
n
s

fo
r

th
e

re
lo

c
a
ti
o
n

o
f

E
p
p

in
g

S
p

o
rt

s
C

e
n
tr

e
in

lig
h
t

o
f

fu
tu

re
le

is
u
re

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
p
ro

v
is

io
n
.

H
e
a
d

o
f

L
e
is

u
re

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

H
IG

H
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
5

(R
e
v
is

e
d

ta
rg

e
t

O
c
to

b
e
r

2
0
0

6
)

W
it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
"

L
e
is

u
re

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
C

o
n

tr
a
c
to

r
a
p

p
o
in

te
d

in
J
a
n
u

a
ry

2
0

0
6
 t

o
 t

a
k
e

a
 t
h
re

e
y
e
a
r

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t

o
f

E
p
p

in
g

S
p

o
rt

s
C

e
n
tr

e
.

A
w

a
it
in

g
le

g
a
l
a
d

v
ic

e
a
ro

u
n

d

th
e

n
e
e
d

to
fo

rm
a
lly

re
-t

e
n

d
e
r

a
s

o
p

p
o
s
e
d

to
C

o
n

tr
a
c
t

E
xt

e
n
s
io

n
.

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l
h

o
u
s
in

g
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

in
th

e
d
is

tr
ic

t
w

ill
in

fl
u

e
n
c
e

th
e

lo
c
a
ti
o
n

o
f

a
n

y
lo

n
g
-t

e
rm

re
p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

th
e

c
e
n
tr

e
.

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n

d
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
T

a
s
k

a
n

d
F

in
is

h
G

ro
u

p
to

c
o
n
s
id

e
r

o
p

ti
o
n
s

fo
r

fu
tu

re
o
f

E
p
p

in
g

S
p

o
rt

s
C

e
n

tr
e

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

R
e
fe

r
to

L
e
is

u
re

P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

H
O

L
D

E
R

(a
)

In
tr

o
d

u
c
e

th
e

d
o
o
rs

te
p

c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n

o
f

g
la

s
s

re
c
yc

la
b

le
s

o
n

a
o
n

e
-y

e
a
r 

tr
ia

l
b

a
s
is

fr
o
m

J
a
n
u

a
ry

2
0
0

5
.

H
IG

H
J
a
n
u

a
ry

2
0
0

5
G

la
s
s

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

fu
lly

fu
n
d

e
d

b
y

D
E

F
R

A
fo

r
2
0

0
5
.
#

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

D
o
o
rs

te
p

g
la

s
s

c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n

in
tr

o
d

u
c
e
d

J
a
n

u
a
ry

2
0
0

5
.

(2
3
)

W
ill

n
o
t

m
e
e
t

2
0
0

3
/2

0
0
4

re
c
yc

lin
g

ta
rg

e
ts

(C
P

A
R

e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

8
3
).

(b
)

C
o
n
s
id

e
r

fu
rt

h
e
r

o
p

ti
o
n
s

fo
r

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

re
c
yc

lin
g

o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
to

b
e

in
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d

d
u
ri

n
g

2
0

0
/0

6
,

in
c
lu

d
in

g
th

e
p

o
s
s
ib

le
in

tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n

o
f

w
h

e
e
le

d
b
in

s
.

H
e
a
d

o
f

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

H
IG

H
A

p
ri

l
2

0
0
5

C
a
b

in
e
t

a
p

p
ro

v
e
d

b
u

d
g

e
t

p
ro

v
is

io
n

fo
r

w
h

e
e
le

d
b

in
s

fr
o
m

2
0

0
5
/0

6
o
n

w
a
rd

s
.

$
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
a
b

in
e
t

a
p

p
ro

v
e
d

th
e

in
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o
n

o
f

w
h

e
e
le

d
b
in

s

fr
o
m

a
u
tu

m
n

2
0

0
5

.

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
W

h
e
e
le

d
b

in
s
e
rv

ic
e

in
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d

in
to

th
o
s
e

a
re

a
s

o
f

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
w

it
h

M
o
d

a
y

a
n

d
T

u
e
s
d

a
y

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
.

T
h

e
fi
rs

t
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

,
in

C
h
ig

w
e
ll

&
L

a
m

b
o
u
rn

e
is

s
h

o
w

in
g

re
c
yc

lin
g

le
v
e
ls

a
t

4
1
%

in
c
o
m

p
a
ri

s
o
n

to
th

e
p
re

v
io

u
s

2
5
%

.
S

im
ila

rl
y

in
it
ia

l
fi
g

u
re

s
fo

r
W

a
lt
h

a
m

A
b
b

e
y

s
h

o
w

re
c
yc

lin
g

le
v
e
ls

a
t

a
ro

u
n

d
3
7

%
.

T
h

e
s
e

fi
g
u
re

s
e
x
c
lu

d
e

re
c
yc

lin
g

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
b
ri

n
g

s
c
h

e
m

e
s

w
h

ic
h

a
d

d

a
ro

u
n

d
3
%

o
v
e
ra

ll.
It

is
in

te
n
d

e
d

to
c
o
m

p
le

te
th

e
d

is
tr

ic
t

w
id

e
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

b
y

th
e

e
n

d
o
f

th
e

2
0

0
6

c
a
le

n
d

a
r

y
e

a
r.

T
h

e
re

a
re

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
w

it
h

h
o
u
s
e
h

o
ld

e
r

c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
io

n
a
n

d
s
o
m

e
re

lu
c
ta

n
c
e

to
e
m

b
ra

c
e

th
e

n
e
w

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
,

e
s
p

e
c
ia

ll
y

re
g

a
rd

in
g

th
e

1
8
0

lit
re

c
a
p

a
c
it
y

b
in

.
If

o
u
r

g
o
a
l
o
f

4
0

%
o
v
e
r

th
e

n
e
x
t

c
o
u
p

le
o
f

y
e

a
rs

is
to

b
e

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d

,
a

re
s
o
lu

te
a
p
p

ro
a
c
h

w
ill

b
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

in
m

a
n

a
g
in

g
h

o
u
s
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

w
h

o
d

o
n

o
t
fu

lly
e
n

g
a
g

e
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

A
c
ti
o
n
s

to
b

e
D

E
L

E
T

E
D

Page 88



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

2
7

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

%
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

&
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

(2
4
)

N
o
t

a
lw

a
y
s

p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

in
s
e
e
k
in

g
e
x
te

rn
a
l
c
h

a
ll
e
n
g

e
a
n

d
in

te
rn

a
l
c
h

a
lle

n
g

e

in
te

rm
it
te

n
t
(C

P
A

R
e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

9
6
).

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
B

o
a
rd

to
re

v
ie

w
a
ll

B
e
s
t
V

a
lu

e
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d

ic
a
to

r
re

s
u
lt
s

o
n

a
re

g
u

la
r

b
a
s
is

.

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
B

o
a
rd

M
E

D
IU

M
O

n
g

o
in

g
W

it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
'

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

T
h
e

c
o
u

n
c
il’

s
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

to
c
h

a
ll
e
n
g

e
w

a
s

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d

w
it
h

in
th

e
re

v
ie

w
o
f 

th
e

o
v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n

d
s
c
ru

ti
n

y
fu

n
c
ti
o
n
.
T

h
e

m
o
s
t

re
c
e
n
t
(2

0
0

3
/0

4
)

c
u
s
to

m
e
r

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

s
u
rv

e
y
s

p
ro

v
id

e
d

e
x
te

rn
a
l
c
h

a
ll
e
n
g

e
to

th
e

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

.
A

re
v
ie

w
o
f

th
e

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

w
ill

c
o
n
s
id

e
r

b
e
n
c
h

m
a
rk

in
g

a
n

d
o
th

e
r

c
o
m

p
a
ra

to
r

d
a
ta

.
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
B

o
a
rd

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

re
v
ie

w
o
f

a
ll

B
e
s
t
V

a
lu

e
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d
ic

a
to

r
re

s
u
lt
s

in
2
0

0
5

a
n
d

2
0
0

6
.

T
h
e

c
o
u

n
c
il

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

d
v
o
lu

n
ta

ri
ly

in
th

e
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
fo

r
R

a
c
ia

l
E

q
u

a
lit

y
’s

(C
R

E
)

re
c
e
n
t

n
a
ti
o
n

a
l
s
u
rv

e
y

a
n

d
C

R
E

G
y
p
s
y

a
n

d
T

ra
v
e
ll
e
r

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
P

ro
je

c
t.

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
F

u
rt

h
e
r

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
B

o
a
rd

re
v
ie

w
o
f

c
u

rr
e
n
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
fo

llo
w

in
g

a
d

o
p
ti
o
n

o
f

K
e
y

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
fo

r
2

0
0

6
/0

7

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

A
c
ti
o
n
s

to
b

e
D

E
L

E
T

E
D

Page 89



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

2
8

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

(
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

)
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

(a
)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
a
n
d

im
p

le
m

e
n
t

a
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n

t
S

tr
a
te

g
y
.

H
e
a
d

o
f

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

a
n

d
C

o
m

m
u
n

ic
a
ti
o
n

T
e
c
h

n
o
lo

g
y
/H

e
a
d

o
f

F
in

a
n
c
e

H
IG

H
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
5

(R
e
v
is

e
d

ta
rg

e
t

J
u
ly

2
0
0

6
)

W
it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
n
d

fr
o
m

c
o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
o
n

to
E

s
s
e
x

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n

t
A

g
e
n
c
y

*
T

h
e

e
-P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n

t
S

ys
te

m
(E

s
s
e
x

M
a
rk

e
tp

la
c
e
)

is
c
u
rr

e
n

tl
y

b
e
in

g
im

p
le

m
e
n

te
d
,

w
it
h

a
n

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
‘g

o
liv

e
’
d

a
te

o
f

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
6

.

T
h
e

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

o
f

a
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t

S
tr

a
te

g
y

s
ta

rt
e
d

in
S

e
p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0
0

6
,

w
it
h

a
h

e
a
lt
h

c
h

e
c
k

c
a
rr

ie
d

o
u
t

b
y

th
e

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n

t
A

g
e
n
c
y

fo
r

E
s
s
e
x

(P
A

E
)

T
h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

h
a
s

a
ls

o
jo

in
e
d

 t
h

e
E

s
s
e
x

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n

t
H

u
b

(E
P

H
),

w
h

ic
h

p
ro

v
id

e
s

th
e

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

s
k
ill

s
 t

o
a
llo

w
fo

r
a

fa
r

m
o
re

p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

to

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n

t
a
c
ro

s
s

th
e

a
u

th
o
ri

ty
a
n

d
g
iv

e
s

th
e

C
o
u

n
c
il

th
e

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

le
v
e
l
o
f

re
s
o
u
rc

e
to

c
o
m

p
le

te
th

e
p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

o
f 

th
e

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n

t
S

tr
a
te

g
y
.

(b
)

R
e
v
ie

w
a
n
d

re
v
is

e
a
s

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

th
e

C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

.

A
s

A
c
ti
o
n

2
A

s
A

c
ti
o
n

2
A

s
A

c
ti
o
n

2
A

s
A

c
ti
o
n
 2

(2
5
)

S
o
m

e
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

in
p

la
c
e

b
u
t

n
o
t

y
e
t

fu
ll
y

e
m

b
e
d

d
e
d

-
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t,

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t
s
tr

a
te

g
y
,

a
n

d
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n

t
a
g

e
n
c
y

(C
P

A
R

e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

9
5
).

(a
)

R
e
v
ie

w
 t
h

e
C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t

a
n
d

R
e
te

n
ti
o
n

S
tr

a
te

g
y
.

A
s

A
c
ti
o
n

9
A

s
A

c
ti
o
n

9
A

s
A

c
ti
o
n

9
A

s
A

c
ti
o
n
 9

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
A

c
ti
o
n
s

(a
)

to
(c

)
c
o
m

p
le

te
d

o
r

in
h

a
n

d
.

R
e
p

o
rt

to
c
a
b
in

e
t

o
n

e
-p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n

t
s
ys

te
m

O
c
to

b
e
r

2
0
0

5
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

R
e
fe

r
to

F
in

a
n
c
e

a
n
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
P

O
R

T
F

O
L

IO
H

O
L

D
E

R

(2
6
)

L
e
a
rn

in
g

n
o
t

s
ys

te
m

is
e
d

in
to

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s

(C
P

A
R

e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

9
9
).

(a
)

Im
p
le

m
e
n

t
te

a
m

a
n

d
o
ff

ic
e
r

re
c
o
g

n
it
io

n
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
.

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
u
m

a
n

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
n
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t/
H

e
a
d

o
f

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
a
n

d
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

L
O

W
A

p
ri

l
2

0
0
6

A
ll

w
it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
+

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
b

y
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
B

o
a
rd

M
a
rc

h
2
0

0
5
.

R
e
c
o
g

n
it
io

n
e
v
e
n
t

to
o
k

p
la

c
e

in
S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
5

a
n

d
w

ill
b

e
re

p
e
a
te

d
d
u
ri

n
g

S
e
p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0

0
6

.

Page 90



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

2
9

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

,
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

-
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

(b
)

L
e
a
rn

in
g

a
n

d
b

e
s
t

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

to
b

e
s
h

a
re

d
a
t
H

e
a
d

o
f

S
e
rv

ic
e

le
v
e
l
th

ro
u

g
h

S
e
n
io

r
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
T

e
a
m

a
n

d
o
th

e
r

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
.

H
IG

H
O

n
g

o
in

g
.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
/O

N
G

O
IN

G

S
e
n

io
r

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
T

e
a
m

a
g

e
n

d
a

in
c
lu

d
e
s

o
p

p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
fo

r
s
h

a
re

d
le

a
rn

in
g

a
n

d
in

-h
o
u
s
e

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
p

ra
c
ti
c
e
.

L
e
a
rn

in
g

s
h

a
re

d
th

ro
u

g
h

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s

s
u
c
h

a
s

T
e
a
m

B
ri

e
fi
n

g
,

te
a
m

m
e
e
ti
n

g
s
,
In

tr
o
d

u
c
ti
o
n

to
E

F
D

C
S

e
s
s
io

n
s

fo
r

n
e
w

s
ta

ff
,
S

ta
ff

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t
R

e
v
ie

w
,

re
v
ie

w
/e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n

o
f 

tr
a
in

in
g

c
o
u
rs

e
s

e
tc

.
C

ro
s
s

s
e
rv

ic
e

In
v
e
s
to

rs
In

P
e
o
p

le
 t

e
a
m

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

to
s
h

a
re

b
e
s
t

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
.

(c
)

R
e
-s

e
e
k

In
v
e
s
to

rs
in

P
e
o
p

le

A
c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n
.

H
IG

H

A
p
ri

l
2

0
0
5

/
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

Ii
P

re
a
c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d

M
a
rc

h
2

0
0

5
.
Ii
P

S
te

e
ri

n
g

G
ro

u
p

to
c
o
n
ti
n
u

e
a
s

m
e

a
n
s

o
f

d
e
li
v
e
ri

n
g

b
e
s
t

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
.

(d
)

In
-h

o
u
s
e

a
n

d
e
x
te

rn
a
l
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
tr

a
in

in
g

s
c
h

e
m

e
s

to
fo

c
u
s

o
n

w
o
rk

b
a
s
e
d

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
s

to
p
ro

b
le

m
s

a
s

m
e
a
n

s
o
f

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
a
n

d
s
h

a
ri

n
g

o
f

b
e
s
t
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
.

H
IG

H
O

n
g

o
in

g
0

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

T
w

o
m

e
m

b
e
rs

o
f

s
ta

ff
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

d
in

th
e

E
s
s
e
x

L
e
a
d

e
rs

h
ip

A
c
a
d

e
m

y
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
.

M
e
m

b
e
r

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t

o
b
ta

in
e
d

to
th

e
C

o
u

n
c
il

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g

in
a

o
n

e
-y

e
a
r

p
ilo

t
o
f

th
e

R
e
g

io
n

a
l
In

te
rc

h
a
n

g
e

s
e
c
o
n

d
m

e
n
t

s
c
h

e
m

e
.

(e
)

C
o
n
s
id

e
r

re
-i

n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n

o
f

S
ta

ff
S

u
g

g
e
s
ti
o
n

S
c
h

e
m

e
.

M
E

D
IU

M
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
5

1
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

fo
r

re
-i

n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n

o
f

S
ta

ff
S

u
g

g
e
s
ti
o
n

S
c
h

e
m

e
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
b

y
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
B

o
a
rd

in
A

u
g
u
s
t

2
0

0
6
.

P
re

v
io

u
s

s
c
h

e
m

e
to

b
e

re
-l

a
u

n
c
h

e
d

o
n

tw
e
lv

e
-

m
o
n
th

 t
ri

a
l
b

a
s
is

.

Page 91



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

3
0

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

2
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

3
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

(f
)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

fo
r

im
p
ro

v
e
d

s
ta

ff
c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o
n
.

M
E

D
IU

M
M

a
rc

h
2

0
0

6
4

T
o

b
e

a
d

d
re

s
s
e
d

a
s

p
a
rt

o
f

S
ta

ff
A

tt
it
u

d
e

S
u

rv
e
y

d
u
ri

n
g

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
6
.

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
T

h
e
s
e

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s

s
h

o
w

th
a
t
th

e
c
o
u

n
c
il

is
d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
a

ra
n

g
e

o
f

a
c
ti
o
n

s
to

c
a
p
tu

re
a
n

d
s
h

a
re

le
a
rn

in
g

.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
to

H
u

m
a
n

R
e
s
o
u

rc
e
s

a
n
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
U

n
it

B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
P

L
A

N

(2
7
)

N
o

W
a
s
te

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

S
tr

a
te

g
y

(C
P

A
R

e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
s

1
0
8
,

1
5
3

,
1

5
7

).

P
re

p
a
re

jo
in

t
w

a
s
te

s
tr

a
te

g
y

d
o
c
u
m

e
n

t
in

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

w
it
h

E
s
s
e
x

C
o
u
n
ty

C
o
u

n
c
il

a
n
d

o
th

e
r

E
s
s
e
x

lo
c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
,

in
a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e

w
it
h

g
u
id

e
lin

e
s

is
s
u

e
d

b
y

th
e

D
e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t
o
f

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
t,

F
a
rm

in
g

a
n

d
R

u
ra

l
A

ff
a
ir
s

(D
E

F
R

A
)

(s
e
e

a
ls

o
A

c
ti
o
n

3
7
).

H
e
a
d

o
f

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

H
IG

H

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
4

(d
ra

ft
s
tr

a
te

g
y
)

B
u
d

g
e
t

a
p
p

ro
v
e
d

to
s
u

p
p

o
rt

th
e

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n

t
p
ro

c
e
s
s

fo
r

n
e
x
t

3

y
e

a
rs

.

5
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

J
o
in

t
W

a
s
te

S
tr

a
te

g
y

in
p

la
c
e

a
lb

e
it

s
u

b
je

c
t

to
o
n
-

g
o
in

g
re

v
ie

w
.

J
o
in

t
W

a
s
te

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
s

c
o
n
ti
n

u
e

to

m
e
e
t.

C
h

a
n

g
e
s

to
P

F
I

ru
le

s
h

a
v
e

e
x
c
lu

d
e
d

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

fr
o
m

th
e

P
F

I
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t
h

a
t

w
ill

n
o
w

,
if

s
o
u

g
h

t,
o
n

ly
d

e
a
l

w
it
h

 t
h

e
m

a
jo

r
d

is
p

o
s
a
l
p
la

n
ts

.
C

o
n
ti
n

u
e
d

n
e
e
d

to

e
n
s
u
re

th
a
t
th

e
c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n

/d
is

p
o
s
a
l
in

te
rf

a
c
e
s

re
d

u
c
e

ri
s
k

to
th

e
w

a
s
te

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
s
e
rv

ic
e

o
v
e
ra

ll.

Page 92



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

3
1

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

6
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

7
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
T

h
e

W
e
s
t
E

s
s
e
x

J
o
in

t
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
h

a
s

b
e

e
n

m
e
e
ti
n

g
m

o
n
th

ly
s
in

c
e

it
s

in
c
e
p
ti
o
n

a
n

d
h

a
s

a
g
re

e
d

s
u
c
h

m
a
tt

e
rs

a
s

th
e

‘M
e
m

o
ra

n
d
u

m
o
f

U
n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g
’
a
n

d
th

e
p
re

fe
rr

e
d

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t

ro
u
te

fo
r

th
e

d
is

p
o
s
a
l
e
le

m
e
n
s
t

o
f

th
e

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t.

F
in

d
in

g
w

o
rk

a
b
le

o
p
ti
o
n
s

fo
r

jo
in

t
c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n
ts

b
e
tw

e
e
n

 t
h

e
d
is

tr
ic

ts
re

m
a
in

s
d
if
fi
c
u
lt
,
b

u
t

w
o
rk

is
c
o
n
ti
n

u
in

g
in

th
a
t
re

g
a
rd

.
T

h
e

p
ro

g
re

s
s

to
w

a
rd

s
a

P
F

I
b

a
s
e
d

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n

t
h

a
s

ru
n

in
to

s
o
m

e
d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
d
u

e
to

c
h

a
n

g
e
s

in
 t
h

e
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t

ru
le

s
fo

r
P

F
I.

T
h
is

h
a
s

s
e
t 

th
e

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t

b
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
b

a
c
k

b
y

1
8
-2

4

m
o
n
th

s
.
D

E
F

R
A

h
a
s

re
g

o
g

n
is

e
d

th
e

jo
in

t
a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

o
f

th
e

C
o
u

n
ty

C
o

u
n
c
il

a
n
d

E
s
s
e
x

d
is

tr
ic

ts
a
n

d
a
c
c
e
p
ts

th
a
t

w
e

a
re

w
o
rk

in
g

jo
in

tl
y

to
w

a
rd

s
a

M
u
n

ic
ip

a
l
W

a
s
te

S
tr

a
te

g
y

a
n

d
th

a
t
E

F
D

C
d

o
e
s

n
o
t

n
e
e
d

to
p
ro

d
u
c
e

it
s

o
w

n
s
ta

n
d

a
lo

n
e

s
tr

a
te

g
y
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

A
c
ti
o
n
s

to
b

e
D

E
L

E
T

E
D

(a
)

E
n
g

a
g

e
c
o
n
s
u

lt
a
n
ts

in
o
rd

e
r 

to
u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e

a
s
c
o
p

in
g

e
x
e
rc

is
e
.

H
IG

H
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
4

T
o

b
e

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d

8
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

(2
8
)

C
o
n
ta

c
t
C

e
n

tr
e

a
n

im
p

o
rt

a
n

t
a
s
p
ir

a
ti
o
n

b
u
t

n
o

p
la

n
to

a
c
h
ie

v
e

(C
P

A
R

e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

1
0

8
).

(b
)

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

m
e
m

b
e
rs

o
n

th
e

re
s
u

lt
s

o
f

th
e

s
c
o
p

in
g

e
x
e
rc

is
e

a
n

d
th

e
C

u
s
to

m
e
r

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
P

la
n

.

J
o
in

t
C

h
ie

f
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

(R
e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
)/

H
e
a
d

o
f

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

a
n

d
C

o
m

m
u
n

ic
a
ti
o
n

T
e
c
h

n
o
lo

g
y

H
IG

H
J
u
ly

2
0
0

5
T

o
b

e
d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

9
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

/O
N

-G
O

IN
G

S
te

ri
a

L
td

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
th

e
ir

fi
n
d

in
g
s

to
 t
h

e
C

a
b

in
e
t

in
S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
5

.
C

a
b
in

e
t

a
g
re

e
d

to
m

o
v
e

th
e

C
o
n
ta

c
t

C
e
n
tr

e
p
ro

je
c
t

fo
rw

a
rd

b
y

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
th

e
p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

o
f

a
fo

rm
a
l
C

u
s
to

m
e
r

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
P

la
n

 t
h

a
t

w
o
u
ld

p
re

s
e
n
t

b
o
th

th
e

fu
ll

b
u
d

g
e
ta

ry
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s

a
n

d
im

p
le

m
e
n

ta
io

n
ti
m

e
lin

e
w

it
h

d
e
ta

ils
o
f

a
ll

re
le

v
a
n
t

p
ro

je
c
ts

.
T

h
e

P
o
rt

fo
li
o

H
o
ld

e
r

a
p
p

o
in

te
d

F
o
re

s
ig

h
t

C
o
n
s
u

lt
in

g
L

td
 t

o
p
ro

d
u
c
e

th
is

p
la

n
th

a
t

w
a
s

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

in
J
u

n
e

2
0
0

6
a
n

d
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
b

y
th

e
C

a
b

in
e
t

in
J
u
ly

2
0
0

6
.

T
h

e
e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
c
o
s
ts

o
f

th
e

p
la

n
h

a
v
e

b
e
e
n

in
c
o
rp

a
ra

te
d

in
 t
h

e
C

o
u

n
c
il

C
a
p
it
a
l

S
tr

a
te

g
y

a
n

d
b
id

s
h

a
v
e

b
e
e
n

p
u
t
fo

rw
a
rd

fo
r

th
e

C
S

B
a
n

d
D

D
F

it
e
m

s
.

Page 93



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

3
2

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

:
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

;
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

(c
)

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

m
e
m

b
e
rs

o
n

th
e

p
ro

g
re

s
s

o
f

th
e

C
u
s
to

m
e
r

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
P

la
n

(C
S

T
P

).
<

D
u

e
 t

o
c
u
rr

e
n
t

b
u
d

g
e
ta

ry
is

s
u

e
s

re
la

ti
n

g
to

th
e

W
a
s
te

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t,

th
e

C
S

T
P

B
o
a
rd

is
c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

c
o
n
s
id

e
ri

n
g

e
le

m
e
n
ts

w
it
h

in
 t
h

e
p
la

n
 t
h

a
t
c
a
n

b
e

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d

a
s

‘n
o
n
-c

o
re

’
to

a
llo

w
fo

r
a

m
o
re

fl
e
x
ib

le
a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

to
fi
n

a
n
c
in

g
th

e
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
A

c
ti
o
n
s

(a
)

a
n
d

(b
)

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

o
r

in
h

a
n

d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

R
e
fe

r
to

C
u
s
to

m
e
r

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
,
In

fo
m

ra
ti
o
n

T
e
c
h
n

o
lo

g
y
,

M
e
d

ia
a
n
d

C
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s

P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

H
O

L
D

E
R

(a
)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
a
n
d

im
p

le
m

e
n
t

a
R

a
c
e

E
q

u
a
lit

y
S

c
h

e
m

e
.

H
IG

H
A

p
ri

l
2

0
0
5

=
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

R
a
c
e

E
q
u

a
lit

y
S

c
h

e
m

e
a
d

o
p

te
d

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r

2
0
0

4
.

V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

in
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
fo

r
R

a
c
ia

l
E

q
u

a
lit

y
’s

(C
R

E
)

n
a
ti
o
n

a
l
s
u
rv

e
y

a
n

d
C

R
E

G
y
p
s
y

a
n

d
T

ra
v
e
ll
e
r

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
P

ro
je

c
t

(M
a

y
2

0
0

5
),

re
p

o
rt

o
f

C
R

E

is
s
u

e
d

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0
0

5
.

(b
)

P
ilo

t
a

R
a
c
e

E
q
u

a
lit

y
S

c
h

e
m

e
in

H
o
u
s
in

g

N
e
e
d
s

a
n
d

H
u

m
a
n

R
e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
.

H
IG

H

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
4

>
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

R
a
c
e

E
q
u

a
lit

y
S

c
h

e
m

e
p
il
o
ts

u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
4
.

(2
9
)

N
o

R
a
c
e

E
q
u

a
lit

y
S

tr
a
te

g
y

(C
P

A
R

e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

1
0

7
).

(c
)

U
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

R
a
c
e

E
q
u

a
lit

y
S

c
h

e
m

e
tr

a
in

in
g

s
e
s
s
io

n
s

fo
r

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

o
ff

ic
e
rs

.

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
u
m

a
n

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
n
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

H
IG

H
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
4

W
it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s

?
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

R
a
c
e

E
q
u

a
lit

y
S

c
h

e
m

e
tr

a
in

in
g

s
e
s
s
io

n
s

h
e
ld

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
4

.

Page 94



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

3
3

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

@
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

A
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

(d
)

R
o
ll-

o
u
t
R

a
c
e

E
q
u

a
lit

y
S

c
h

e
m

e
a
c
ro

s
s

a
ll

p
ri

o
ri
ty

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

H
IG

H
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
5

B
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

Im
p

a
c
t

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

p
ro

c
e
s
s

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

a
c
ro

s
s

a
ll

s
e
rv

ic
e

a
re

a
s

b
y

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

2
0
0

6
.

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
re

b
e
in

g
ta

rg
e
tt

e
d

a
t

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
ra

c
e

e
q

u
a
lit

y
a
n

d
g

e
n

e
ra

l
d
iv

e
rs

it
y

is
s
u

e
s
.

D
e
d
ic

a
te

d
re

s
o
u
rc

e
e
n

g
a
g

e
d

in
S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r

2
0
0

5
to

c
o
m

p
le

te
s
e
rv

ic
e

e
q

u
a
lit

y
im

p
a
c
t

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

A
c
ti
o
n
s

to
b

e
D

E
L

E
T

E
D

(3
0
)

U
n
c
e
rt

a
in

ty
o
f

re
s
p

o
n
s
e

to
R

P
G

1
4

(R
S

S
1
4
)

(C
P

A
R

e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

1
1

1
).

C
o
n
ti
n

u
e

to
in

fl
u

e
n
c
e

th
e

R
S

S
1

4
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

in
o
rd

e
r

to
p
ro

te
c
t
th

e
s
p

e
c
ia

l
c
h

a
ra

c
te

r
a
n

d
a
d

v
a
n

ta
g

e
o
f

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t,
w

h
ils

t

a
ls

o
s
e
c
u
ri

n
g

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

le
v
e
ls

o
f

lo
c
a
l

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
h

o
u
s
in

g
.

H
e
a
d

o
f

P
la

n
n

in
g

a
n

d
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
H

IG
H

O
n
g

o
in

g
W

it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s

C

O
N

G
O

IN
G

T
h
e

c
o
u

n
c
il

h
a
s

s
o

fa
r

in
fl
u

e
n
c
e
d

h
o
u
s
in

g
n

u
m

b
e
rs

d
o
w

n
fr

o
m

1
8
,6

0
0

to
1
1
,0

0
0
.

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
E

x
a
m

in
a
ti
o
n

in
p

u
b

lic
d
u

e
J
a
n
u

a
ry

2
0

0
6
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

R
e
fe

r
to

P
la

n
n
in

g
a
n
d

E
c
o
n

o
m

ic
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
P

O
R

T
F

O
L

IO
H

O
L

D
E

R

(3
1
)

N
o

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

p
la

n
(C

P
A

R
e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

1
0

9
).

(a
)

P
ilo

t
th

e
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

P
la

n

w
it
h

in
P

la
n

n
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
;

a
n
d

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
u
m

a
n

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
n
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

H
IG

H

A
p
ri

l
2

0
0
5

W
it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

P
ilo

t
o
f

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
P

la
n

u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

w
it
h

in
P

la
n

n
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

d
u
ri

n
g

M
a
rc

h
2
0

0
5

.

Page 95



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

3
4

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

E
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

F
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

(b
)

R
o
ll-

o
u
t
th

e
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

P
la

n
a
c
ro

s
s

th
e

C
o
u

n
c
il.

G
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

P
la

n
ro

lle
d
-o

u
t
to

L
e
g

a
l,

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o
n

a
n

d
E

s
ta

te
s
,

a
n

d
F

in
a
n
c
e

fr
o
m

1
A

p
ri

l
2
0

0
5
.

F
u
ll

ro
llo

u
t

to
b

e
c
o
m

p
le

te
d

b
y

M
a
rc

h
2
0

0
7
.

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
T

h
e

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

P
la

n
is

b
e
g

in
n
in

g
to

a
s
s
is

t
m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

in
th

e
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

p
e
o
p

le
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s

n
e
e
d

e
d

to
b

e
d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

in
o
rd

e
r

to
d

e
li
v
e
r

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

A
c
ti
o
n
s

to
b

e
D

E
L

E
T

E
D

(3
2
)

L
o
w

le
v
e
l
o
f

in
te

re
s
t

o
r

e
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n
t

w
it
h

in
d
iv

id
u

a
l

te
n

a
n

ts
(C

P
A

R
e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

1
1

6
).

T
h
e
re

is
n

o
te

x
t

in
th

e
C

P
A

re
p

o
rt

to
s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

s
u
p

p
o
rt

th
is

c
o
m

m
e
n
t

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

H
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

A
S

h
e
lt
e
re

d
H

o
u
s
in

g
F

o
ru

m
w

a
s

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

in
2
0

0
5

,
c
o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 t

w
o

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s

fr
o
m

e
a
c
h

o
f

th
e

C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
s
h

e
lt
e
re

d
h

o
u
s
in

g
s
c
h

e
m

e
s
,

a
n
d

tw
o

m
e
m

b
e
rs

o
f

th
e

T
e
n

a
n

ts
a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

F
e
d

e
ra

ti
o
n

.

W
o
rk

is
p
ro

g
re

s
s
in

g
to

s
e
t

u
p

a
R

u
ra

l
T

e
n

a
n
ts

 F
o
ru

m
,

w
it
h

p
a
ri
s
h

c
o
u

n
c
ils

w
it
h

in
 t
h

e
ru

ra
l
a
re

a
s

b
e
in

g
e
n

g
a
g

e
d

to
m

o
v
e

th
e

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

fo
rw

a
rd

.

Page 96



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

3
5

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

I
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

J
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
T

h
e
s
e
 t

w
o

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
, 

to
g

e
th

e
r

w
it
h
 t

h
e

e
x
is

ti
n

g
a
n
d

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l
T

e
n

a
n
ts

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 F
e
d

e
ra

ti
o
n

a
n
d

th
e

L
e
a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
,

s
h

o
u
ld

in
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e

in
te

re
s
t

o
f

te
n

a
n
ts

in
g

e
tt
in

g
in

v
o
lv

e
d

. 
T

h
e
re

a
re

 t
a
rg

e
ts

w
it
h

in
H

o
u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
p
ro

m
o
te

T
e
n

a
n
t

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
o
u
t

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
a
n
d

s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
re

a
s
 t

o
b

e
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
to

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
g
ro

u
p
s

a
re

p
la

n
n

e
d

in
L

o
u
g

h
to

n
,

E
p
p

in
g

a
n

d
N

o
rt

h
W

e
a
ld

o
v
e
r

th
e

n
e
x
t 

tw
o

y
e
a
rs

.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

A
c
ti
o
n
s

to
b

e
D

E
L

E
T

E
D

(3
3
)

B
e
lo

w
a
v
e
ra

g
e

o
n

S
A

P
ra

ti
n
g

(C
P

A
R

e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

1
1

5
).

In
c
re

a
s
e

th
e

a
v
e
ra

g
e

S
A

P
R

a
ti
n

g
fo

r
th

e

C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

th
ro

u
g

h
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

ts
to

th
e

h
o
u
s
in

g
s
to

c
k
,
to

:
(a

)
6
2

b
y

th
e

e
n

d
o
f

2
0

0
4

/0
5
;

a
n

d

(b
)

6
8

b
y

th
e

e
n

d
o
f

2
0

0
8

/0
9
.

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

(a
)

M
E

D
IU

M
A

p
ri

l

2
0

0
5

(b
)

M
E

D
IU

M
A

p
ri

l
2
0

0
9

W
it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g

H
o
u
s
in

g
(H

R
A

)
c
a
p
it
a
l

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

K
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

A
S

A
P

ra
ti
n

g
o
f

6
9

w
a
s

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d

fo
r

2
0
0

4
/0

5
(1

1
%

a
b

o
v
e

th
e

ta
rg

e
t
fo

r
2
0

0
4

/5
),

w
h

ic
h

a
ls

o
e
x
c
e
e
d
s

th
e

ta
rg

e
t
fo

r
2

0
0

8
/0

9
.

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
T

h
e

B
e
s
t

V
a
lu

e
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

P
la

n
fo

r
2
0

0
5

/0
6

s
e
ts

a
S

A
P

ta
rg

e
t

o
f

7
6

b
y

A
p
ri

l
2
0

0
8

.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

A
c
ti
o
n
s

to
b

e
D

E
L

E
T

E
D

(3
4
)

M
ix

e
d

c
o
m

p
a
ra

ti
v
e

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

o
n

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
n

d
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
c
o
n
tr

o
l
(C

P
A

R
e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
s

7
2
,

1
4
6
).

A
s

A
c
ti
o
n

2
0

A
s

A
c
ti
o
n

2
0

A
s

A
c
ti
o
n

2
0

A
s

A
c
ti
o
n

2
0

A
s

A
c
ti
o
n

2
0

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
A

s
A

c
ti
o
n

2
0

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

A
c
ti
o
n
s

to
b

e
D

E
L

E
T

E
D

Page 97



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

3
6

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

L
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

M
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

(3
5
)

L
im

it
e
d

c
ro

s
s
-d

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n
ta

l
fa

u
lt

re
p

o
rt

in
g

(C
P

A
R

e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

1
5

2
).

In
tr

o
d

u
c
e

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
fo

r
c
ro

s
s
-s

e
rv

ic
e

fa
u
lt

re
p

o
rt

in
g

a
c
ro

s
s

a
ll

s
e
rv

ic
e

a
re

a
s
.

J
o
in

t
C

h
ie

f
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

(C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
)/

H
e
a
d

o
f

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

H
IG

H
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
5

W
it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
N

It
w

a
s

o
ri

g
in

a
lly

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t

th
e

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
o
f

a
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
c
u
s
to

m
e
r

c
o
n
ta

c
t
c
e
n
tr

e
w

o
u

ld
a
d

d
re

s
s

th
is

is
s
u

e
.
C

ro
s
s
-d

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n
ta

l
fa

u
lt

re
p

o
rt

in
g

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
to

b
e

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d

w
it
h
in

s
ta

ff
in

d
u
c
ti
o
n

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
fr

o
m

J
a
n

u
a
ry

2
0

0
7
.

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
D

u
e
 t

o
o
th

e
r

o
p

e
ra

ti
o
n

a
l
is

s
u

e
s

ta
k
in

g
p
ri

o
ri

ty
,

n
o

p
ro

g
re

s
s

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

m
a
d

e
in

th
is

re
g

a
rd

.
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

th
e

S
ta

n
d
in

g
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
P

a
n

e
l
o
n

P
la

n
n

in
g

&
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

h
a
s

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d

th
e

C
le

a
n

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d

s
a
n
d

E
n

v
ir

o
n
m

e
n

t
A

c
t

2
0

0
5

in
d

e
ta

il
a
n

d
w

ill
b

e
c
o
n
s
id

e
ri

n
g

in
th

e
n

e
a
r

fu
tu

re
th

e
is

s
u

e
o
f

w
a
rd

e
n
s

a
n
d

 t
h

e
u
s
e

o
f

fi
x
e
d

p
e
n

a
lt
y

n
o
ti
c
e
s

e
tc

.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
to

H
u

m
a
n

R
e
s
o
u

rc
e
s

a
n
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
U

n
it

B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
P

L
A

N

(3
6
)

L
a
c
k

o
f

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

a
n

d
re

s
o
u
rc

e
fo

r
s
o
m

e
a
s
p

e
c
ts

o
f

th
e

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

a
g

e
n

d
a

(C
P

A
R

e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

1
5

3
).

F
ill

,
s
u

b
je

c
t
to

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

re
q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
ts

,

th
e

v
a
c
a
n

t
p

o
s
t

o
f

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r
a
s

s
o
o
n

a
s

p
o
s
s
ib

le
.

H
e
a
d

o
f

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

H
IG

H

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
5

W
it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
O

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

A
p
p

o
in

tm
e
n
t

m
a
d

e
d
u
ri

n
g

2
0

0
6
.

Page 98



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

3
7

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

P
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

Q
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
N

o
n

e
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

A
c
ti
o
n
s

to
b

e
D

E
L

E
T

E
D

(3
7
)

N
o

W
a
s
te

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
S

tr
a
te

g
y

a
n

d
w

ill
n

o
t

m
e
e
t

2
0

0
3

re
c
yc

lin
g

ta
rg

e
t,

a
n

d
2
0

0
5
 t

a
rg

e
t
is

a
t
ri

s
k

(C
P

A

R
e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
s

1
0
8

,
1
5

5
,

1
5

7
).

A
s

A
c
ti
o
n

2
7

A
s

A
c
ti
o
n

2
7

A
s

A
c
ti
o
n

2
7

A
s

A
c
ti
o
n

2
7

R
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

D
E

F
R

A
h

a
s

c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d

th
a
t

in
v
ie

w
o
f

th
e

c
o
u

n
c
il’

s

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

w
o
rk

in
g

w
it
h

E
s
s
e
x

C
o
u
n

ty
C

o
u
n
c
il,

n
o

in
d

iv
id

u
a
l
w

a
s
te

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
s
tr

a
te

g
y

is
re

q
u

ir
e
d
.

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
D

E
F

R
A

h
a
s

a
g
re

e
d

th
a
t
E

s
s
e
x

d
is

tr
ic

t
c
o
u

n
c
il’

s
a
re

n
o
t

re
q
u

ir
e
d
 t

o
d

e
v
e
lo

p
th

e
ir

o
w

n
w

a
s
te

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
in

v
ie

w
o
f

th
e

w
a
s
te

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

b
e
tw

e
e
n

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

ts
a
n

d
E

s
s
e
x

C
o
u

n
ty

C
o
u

n
c
il.

S
e
e

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

o
n

A
c
ti
o
n

2
7

a
b

o
v
e
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

A
c
ti
o
n
s

to
b

e
D

E
L

E
T

E
D

(a
)

U
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

a
S

e
c
ti
o
n

1
7

a
u
d

it
o
f

c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y

s
a
fe

ty
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
id

e
n

ti
fy

w
e
a
k
n

e
s
s
e
s

a
n
d

o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
in

th
e

C
o
u

n
c
il'

s
a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

to
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

s
a
fe

ty
.

M
E

D
IU

M
A

p
ri

l
2

0
0
6

W
it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
S

E
xp

lo
ra

ti
o
n

o
f

w
a
y
s

in
w

h
ic

h
a

S
e
c
ti
o
n

1
7

a
u

d
it

c
a
n

b
e

c
a
rr

ie
d

o
u

t
a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
c
o
u
n
c
il

c
u
rr

e
n

tl
y

in
p
ro

g
re

s
s
.

(3
8
)

N
o
t

e
x
p

lo
it
in

g
m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

in
g

o
p

p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
(C

P
A

R
e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

1
6

7
).

(b
)

Im
p
le

m
e
n

t
re

c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a
ti
o
n
s

o
f

S
e
c
ti
o
n

1
7

a
u

d
it
.

J
o
in

t
C

h
ie

f
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

(C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
)

M
E

D
IU

M
S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
6

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
re

q
u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n

t
o
n

re
c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a
ti
o
n
s

o
f

S
e
c
ti
o
n

1
7

a
u

d
it

T
T

h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s
a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
c
o
m

m
u
n

it
y

s
a
fe

ty
to

b
e

re
v
ie

w
e
d

o
n
c
e

a
S

e
c
ti
o
n

1
7

a
u
d

it
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

Page 99



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

3
8

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

U
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

V
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
N

o
p
ro

g
re

s
s

to
d

a
te

.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

R
e
fe

r
to

C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y

W
e
llb

e
in

g
P

O
R

T
F

O
L

IO
H

O
L

D
E

R

(3
9
)

L
im

it
e
d

u
s
e

o
f

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

d
a
ta

to
e
n
s
u

re
a
ll

s
e
c
ti
o
n
s

o
f

th
e

c
o
m

m
u
n

it
y

a
c
c
e
s
s

th
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

(C
P

A
R

e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

1
7

3
).

D
e
v
e
lo

p
a
n

a
c
ti
o
n

p
la

n
b

a
s
e
d

o
n

re
s
u
lt
s

o
f

n
o
n
-u

s
e
r

re
s
e
a
rc

h
c
o
n

d
u
c
te

d
in

M
a
rc

h
2

0
0

4
.

H
e
a
d

o
f

L
e
is

u
re

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

M
E

D
IU

M
S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
5

W
it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
W

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

In
te

rn
a
l
L

e
is

u
re

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

c
ro

s
s
-s

e
rv

ic
e

m
a
rk

e
ti
n

g

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

a
n

d
c
u
rr

e
n

tl
y

im
p
le

m
e
n

ti
n
g

a
n

n
u

a
l
p
la

n
o
f

w
o
rk

 t
o

in
c
re

a
s
e

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

a
m

o
n
g
s
t

n
o
n
-u

s
e
rs

.
D

is
a
b
ili

ty
C

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e

p
la

n
n

e
d

fo
r

J
u

n
e

2
0

0
6

le
a
d

in
g

to
a

g
u
id

e
b

e
in

g
p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

to
ra

is
e

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s

o
f

le
is

u
re

a
n

d
c
u
lt
u
ra

l
o
p

p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
fo

r
p

e
o
p

le
w

it
h

s
p

e
c
ia

l
n

e
e
d

s

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
M

a
rk

e
ti
n
g

d
a
ta

to
b

e
u
ti
lis

e
d

b
y

S
L

M
L
td

in
fu

tu
re

o
p

e
ra

ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
le

is
u

re
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

A
c
ti
o
n
s

to
b

e
D

E
L

E
T

E
D

(4
0
)

C
h
ild

P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

p
o
lic

ie
s

a
n

d
p
ra

c
ti
s
e

a
re

n
o
t

c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
(C

P
A

R
e
p

o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

1
7

5
).

(a
)

R
e
v
is

e
e
x
is

ti
n
g

C
h
ild

P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

p
o
lic

ie
s

to
e
n
s
u
re

th
a
t
c
u
rr

e
n

t
b

e
s
t

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

is

re
fl
e
c
te

d
;

H
e
a
d

o
f

L
e
is

u
re

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

H
IG

H
J
u
n

e
2

0
0

5

(R
e
v
is

e
d

T
a
rg

e
t

J
u
n

e
2

0
0

6
)

W
it
h
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s

X

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

In
d

iv
id

u
a
l
s
e
rv

ic
e

a
re

a
s

h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 t
h

e
ir

o
w

n
C

h
ild

P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

P
o
lic

ie
s
.

C
ro

s
s

S
e
rv

ic
e

G
ro

u
p

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

to
e
n
s
u
re

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y

a
n

d
u
n

if
o
rm

it
y

o
f

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
,

p
ri

o
r 

to
fo

rm
a
l
a
d

o
p

ti
o
n

b
y

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il.

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
C

h
ild

P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

P
o
lic

y
d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

a
n

d

a
d

o
p
te

d
b

y
J
o
in

t
C

o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
v
e

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
a
n

d
C

a
b

in
e
t.

Page 100



E
P

P
IN

G
F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
S

IV
E

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
P

L
A

N
(N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
2

0
0

6
)

3
9

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

Y
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

fu
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

a
c
ti

o
n

o
n

-
g

o
in

g

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

T
A

R
G

E
T

F
O

R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
A

N
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

(H
IG

H
,
M

E
D

IU
M

,

L
O

W
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

/
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

Z
T

a
rg

e
t(

s
)

p
a
rt

ia
ll
y

a
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 o
r

li
m

it
e

d
a
c
ti

o
n

to
d

a
te

(b
)

S
e
e
k

e
x
te

rn
a
l
v
e
ri

fi
c
a
ti
o
n

fr
o
m

W
e
s
t

E
s
s
e
x

C
h
ild

P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

T
e
a
m

a
n

d
N

a
ti
o
n

a
l

S
o
c
ie

ty
fo

r
th

e
P

re
v
e
n

ti
o
n

o
f

C
ru

e
lt
y

to

C
h
ild

re
n

(N
S

P
C

C
);

a
n
d

[

D
e
la

y
a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
in

g
a
in

in
g

e
x
te

rn
a
l
v
e
ri
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
,

p
e
n
d

in
g

o
u
tc

o
m

e
o
f

C
ro

s
s

S
e
rv

ic
e

W
o
rk

in
g

G
ro

u
p
.

V
e
ri
fi
c
a
ti
o
n

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

b
e
in

g
s
o
u
g

h
t
fr

o
m

n
e
w

ly

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

E
s
s
e
x

S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

B
o
a
rd

.

(c
)

In
tr

o
d

u
c
e

n
e
w

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 t
ra

in
in

g
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
(s

).
H

e
a
d

o
f

L
e
is

u
re

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
/H

e
a
d

o
f

H
u
m

a
n

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
n
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

H
IG

H
S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
5

(R
e
v
is

e
d

T
a
rg

e
t

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
6

)

\
T

ra
in

in
g

d
e
la

y
e
d

p
e
n

d
in

g
a
d

o
p
ti
o
n

o
f

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
C

h
ild

P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

P
o
lic

y,
b

u
t

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
n

o
w

 t
o

b
e

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

a
n

d
in

c
lu

d
e
d

in
 t
h

e
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
T

ra
in

in
g

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

P
o

s
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
C

h
ild

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

p
o
lic

ie
s

a
w

a
it
in

g
v
e
ri
fi
c
a
ti
o
n

b
y

W
e
s
t
E

s
s
e
x

S
o
c
ia

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

R
e
fe

r
to

L
e
is

u
re

P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

H
O

L
D

E
R

.

Page 101



Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank



 1

Report to Finance and Performance 
Management Scrutiny Panel 
 
Date of meeting: 14 November 2006 
 
 
 
 
Portfolio:  Finance, Performance Management and Corporate Support Services 
 
Subject: Essex Local Area Agreement 
 
Officer contact for further information:  S. Tautz (Ext 4180) 
 
Committee Secretary:  A. Hendry (Ext 4246) 
 

 
Recommendations: 

 
That the Scrutiny Panel: 

 
(a) consider and agree proposed actions and targets within the priority areas of the 

Essex Local Area Agreement adopted by the council; and  
 

(b) agree appropriate performance management arrangements for monitoring the 
achievement of targets within the priority areas of the Local Area Agreement. 

 
Report: 
 
1. (Head of Human Resources and Performance Management) As the Scrutiny Panel 
will be aware, Local Area Agreements (LAA) are contracts between local and central 
government intended to secure improvement across a number of priority areas over a three-
year period. The LAA scheme was first published in June 2004 and a number of pilot 
schemes were run in a first phase. The Government expects every authority to participate in 
the LAA process and the second phase of the scheme, which included Essex, was 
announced in June 2005. 
 
2. The Essex LAA is a joint project between the county’s thirteen Local Strategic 
Partnerships, which bring the county’s local authorities together with the community and 
voluntary sector and local arms of national public sector organisations. The Essex 
Partnership is leading the LAA process on behalf of the other partners, and this council’s 
contribution to the LAA was coordinated by a Task and Finish Panel that reported to the 
Cabinet in November 2005. 
 
3. The Essex LAA was formally adopted in March 2006 and contains the following 
priorities: 
 

Priority 1 Reduce Obesity 
Priority 2 Reduce the number of people who smoke in Essex 
Priority 3 Ensure development is designed to promote healthier living in the built 

environment. 
Priority 4 Reduce the need for older people to go into hospital or residential care 
Priority 5 Generate inward investment and stimulate business development and 

innovation 
Priority 6 Increase the number of young people who take a job or stay on in 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 103



 2

education or in training 
Priority 7 Raise educational attainment 
Priority 8 Keep vulnerable children and young people safe 
Priority 9 Save lives at risk from accidents 
Priority 10 Reduce crime, the harm caused by illegal drugs and to reassure the 

public, reducing the fear of crime 
Priority 11 Build respect in communities and reduce anti-social behaviour 
Priority 12 Actively manage our environment 
Priority 13 Empower local people to have a greater voice and influence over local 

decision-making and the delivery of services 
Priority 14 Improve the quality of life for people in the most disadvantaged 

neighbourhoods and ensure service providers are more responsive to 
neighbourhood needs and improve their delivery 

 
5. The LAA breaks down each of these priorities into a number of specific targets. 
 
Epping Forest District Council Priorities 

 
6. At its meeting on 21 February 2006, the Council resolved to support the general 
principles of the LAA in, in recognition of the fact that all of the identified priorities could bring 
benefits for the population of the Epping Forest District.  In particular, the Council agreed to 
target its own activities towards the following five priorities: 

 
• Priority 3 – Ensure development is designed to promote healthier living in the 

built environment; 
• Priority 8 – Keep vulnerable children and young people safe; 
• Priority 10 – Reduce crime, the harm caused by illegal drugs and to reassure the 

public reducing the fear of crime;  
• Priority 11 – Build respect in communities and reduce anti-social behaviour; and 
• Priority 12 – Actively manage our environment. 

 
5. The individual LAA targets that flow from each of these priorities are as follows:  
 

Priority 3 – Ensure development is designed to promote healthier living in the 
built environment 
 
(a) All local authorities will ensure that their Local Development Frameworks (or 

equivalent development plan document) contain a policy requiring Health Impact 
Assessments for relevant planning applications by 2009;  

 
(b) The number of new homes built to the Lifetime Homes Standard (LHS) in each 

borough/district will be a minimum of 3% of annual completions by 2009; 
 

Priority 8 – Keep vulnerable children and young people safe 
 

(c) Increase the percentage of young people leaving care who are in accommodation 
that meets their particular support needs to 55.5%;  

 
(d) Reduce the number of children and young people who are victims of crime or 

anti-social behaviour, by reducing the number of recorded non-minor crimes 
where the victim is aged 0-19 by 3% year on year; and 

 
(e) Reduce offending by children and young people by increasing positive attitudes 

and behaviour among those at risk of offending, by increasing the use of 
Acceptable Behaviour Contracts by 15%; 

 

Page 104



 3

Priority 10 – Reduce crime, the harm caused by illegal drugs and to reassure the 
public reducing the fear of crime 

 
(f) Reduce the number of traders who are willing to supply alcohol to young people 

in Essex; the percentage of young people on the books of YOS who have re-
offended with an offence relating to drugs or alcohol; and the percentage of 
young people receiving a service from the Leaving and After Care Service who 
are misusing drugs and/or alcohol;  

 
(g) Increase the number of adult drug users in treatment in Essex and the 

percentage retained in treatment for 12 weeks or more; 
 

(h) Reduction in 10 key crimes (basket of crimes) from 2003/04 baseline by 16.5% by 
March 2008 across the LAA area; 

 
(i) Reduction in fear of crime - increase the sanction detection rate (including charge 

and caution) for domestic violence offences; 
 

Priority 11 – Build respect in communities and reduce anti-social behaviour 
 

(j) Reduction in perceived anti-social behaviour (as measured by survey) from 
32.2% in 2003/04 to 29% in 2008/09, to be linked into the developing Respect 
Action Plan, which was launched nationally on 9 January 2006; 

 
Priority 12 – Actively manage our environment 
 
(k) Reduce or limit the increase in size of Essex’s ecological footprint in terms of 

household waste collected per head of population and CO2 emissions from 
domestic energy use and car travel; 

 
(l) Maximise recycling and composting of household waste (BVPI 82a and 82b); and 

 
(m) Improve the cleanliness of and public satisfaction with Essex gateway areas and 

adjoining lands based on BV199a and BV89. 
 
6. A number of actions and targets for the relevant priorities have now been developed, 
and are attached for consideration by the Scrutiny Panel as Appendix 1 to this report.  The 
attention of members is drawn to a number of actions and targets within Priority 10, which 
can only be achieved in partnership with other agencies and where the council has a 
supporting rather than leading role.  
 
Performance Management Arrangements 
 
7. The Head of Human Resources and Performance Management has considered how 
the measurement of LAA achievements should be built into the council’s performance 
management framework. 
 
8. The Cabinet has agreed a recommendation of the Task and Finish Panel that 
Overview and Scrutiny should monitor progress against the council’s LAA actions and 
targets. It is suggested that this would best be undertaken through by the Finance and 
Performance Management Scrutiny Panel as part of its remit to consider issues relating to 
the council’s overall performance. Once all relevant actions and targets have been formally 
agreed, these could be incorporated into the ‘Ten’ performance management system in order 
that quarterly monitoring and reporting arrangements mirror those recently introduced for the 
Key Performance Indicators. 
 
9. This approach is also to be taken in respect of the monitoring of performance against 

Page 105



 4

actions and targets contained in the new Council Plan 2006-2010. In addition, it is suggested 
that the LAA actions and targets should be subject of a quarterly performance report to 
Management Board, in the same way that the Board also currently reviews KPI three-monthly 
performance. 
 
10. The Scrutiny Panel is requested to consider the draft actions and targets developed in 
relation to Priorities 3, 8, 10, 11 and 12 of the Essex LAA, and to agree arrangements for the 
future monitoring of performance. 
 
Reason for decision: 
 
11. To report on the development of actions and targets within the priority areas of the 
Essex LAA adopted by the council, and to recommend appropriate performance 
management arrangements in view of the corporate importance attached to the identification 
and achievement of relevant actions in support of the LAA. 
 
Options considered and rejected: 
 
12. None. The Council could have chosen not to participate in the LAA process. However 
it is clear that the Government places great emphasis on the success of the area 
agreements. 
 
Consultation undertaken: 
 
13. The draft actions and targets developed in relation to Priorities 3, 8, 10, 11 and 12 of 
the Essex LAA, and proposed arrangements for the future monitoring of performance, have 
been agreed by Management Board. 
 
Resource implications:  
 
Budget/Personnel/Land: As set out within individual actions and targets 
 
Council Plan/BVPP reference: Council Plan Section 9 – ‘How We Measure Our Success’ 
 
Relevant statutory powers: None 
 
Background papers: None 
 
Environmental/Human Rights Act/Crime and Disorder Act Implications: None 
 
Key Decision reference: (if required) None 
 

Page 106



1

E
S

S
E

X
L

O
C

A
L

A
R

E
A

A
G

R
E

E
M

E
N

T
–

A
C

T
IO

N
A

N
D

T
A

R
G

E
T

S

P
ri

o
ri

ty
N

o
:

 3

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
:

E
n

s
u

re
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t
is

d
e

s
ig

n
e

d
 t

o
p

ro
m

o
te

h
e
a

lt
h

ie
r

liv
in

g
in

th
e

b
u

ilt
e
n

v
ir
o
n

m
e

n
t.

S
e

rv
ic

e
:

P
la

n
n

in
g

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e

A
c
ti

o
n

to
b

e
ta

k
e
n

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

ta
rg

e
t

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
o

ff
ic

e
r

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

re
q

u
ir

e
d

a
n

d
s
o

u
rc

e

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

fo
r

c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

P
ro

g
re

s
s

P
ri

o
ri
ty

3
c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
h
e
a
lt
h
ie

r
liv

in
g
,
in

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
tw

o
 t

a
rg

e
ts

i.
e
.

T
a
rg

e
t

1
:

th
e

n
e
e
d
 f

o
r

H
e
a
lt
h

Im
p
a
c
t
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r

la
rg

e
r

P
la

n
n
in

g
A

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s

(H
IA

’s
)

b
y

2
0
0
9
.

T
h
e

L
A

A
L
e
a
d

h
a
s

d
is

c
u
s
s
e
d

th
is

w
it
h

th
e

E
s
s
e
x

P
la

n
n
in

g
O

ff
ic

e
rs

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
,
a
n
d
,
a
s

fa
r

a
s

E
p
p
in

g
is

c
o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
,
it

is
to

o
la

te
fo

r
u
s

to
h
a
v
e

s
o
u
g
h
t
a
n

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
o
n

to
o
u
r

lo
c
a
l
p
la

n
to

m
a
k
e

re
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

o
 t

h
is

,
a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

th
is

w
ill

h
a
v
e

to
b
e

b
ro

u
g
h
t
in

v
ia

 t
h
e

L
o
c
a
l
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

(w
h
ic

h
w

e
c
a
n
’t

p
ro

c
e
e
d
 f

u
rt

h
e
r

w
it
h

u
n
ti
l
w

e
le

a
rn

th
e

o
u
tc

o
m

e
o
f 
th

e
R

e
g
io

n
a
l
P

la
n
,

a
n
d

in
a
d
d
it
io

n
w

e
h
a
v
e

u
n
ti
l
2
0
0
9
 t

o
d
o

th
is

).

H
e
a
lt
h
 I
m

p
a
c
t

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

fo
r

la
rg

e
r

p
la

n
n
in

g
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s

(H
IA

’s
).

H
e
a
d

o
f

P
la

n
n
in

g
a
n
d

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

T
.B

.C
B

y
2
0
0
9

D
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
a
t
E

P
O

A
a
n
d

o
u
tc

o
m

e
w

a
s
 t

h
a
t 
th

is
w

o
u
ld

h
a
v
e
 t

o
b
e

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d

v
ia

 t
h
e

L
D

F
.

T
a
rg

e
t

2
:

to
h
a
v
e

3
%

lif
e
ti
m

e
h
o
m

e
s

(M
in

)
b
y

2
0
0
9
.

A
t
th

e
E

P
O

A
th

e
re

w
a
s

s
o
m

e
d
e
b
a
te

a
s

to
w

h
a
t 
th

e
L
if
e
ti
m

e
H

o
m

e
s

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

a
c
tu

a
lly

is
,
a
n
d
 t

h
is

is
p
ro

b
a
b
ly

s
ti
ll

s
o
m

e
w

h
a
t
u
n
c
le

a
r,

h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

a
g
a
in

w
e

s
o
u
g
h
t
to

m
a
k
e

s
o
m

e
a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 t

o
o
u
r

L
o
c
a
l
P

la
n
.

U
n
fo

rt
u
n
a
te

ly
th

is
w

a
s

o
n
e

o
f
th

e
 f

e
w

m
a
tt

e
rs

 t
h
e

In
s
p
e
c
to

r
d
id

n
o
t

g
o

a
lo

n
g

w
it
h
,

s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
;
a
g
a
in

,
w

e
w

ill
h
a
v
e

to
g
o

d
o
w

n
th

e
L
D

F
ro

u
te

 t
o

b
ri

n
g

th
e
s
e

p
o
lic

ie
s

in
b
y

2
0
0
9
.

3
%

lif
e
ti
m

e
s

h
o
m

e
s

m
in

H
e
a
d

o
f

P
la

n
n
in

g
a
n
d

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

T
.B

.C
B

y
2
0
0
9

D
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
a
t
E

P
O

A
a
n
d

o
u
tc

o
m

e
w

a
s
 t

h
a
t 
th

is
w

ill
h
a
v
e
 t

o
b
e

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d

v
ia

 t
h
e

L
D

F
.

Page 107



2

P
ri

o
ri

ty
N

o
:

8

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
:

K
e

e
p

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
c
h

ild
re

n
a
n

d
y
o
u

n
g

p
e
o

p
le

s
a
fe

.

S
e

rv
ic

e
:

H
o
u

s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e

A
c
ti

o
n

to
b

e
ta

k
e
n

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

ta
rg

e
t

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
o

ff
ic

e
r

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

re
q

u
ir

e
d

a
n

d
s
o

u
rc

e

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

fo
r

c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

P
ro

g
re

s
s

P
ro

v
id

e
3
7

b
e
d

s
p
a
c
e
s

a
c
ro

s
s

th
e

D
is

tr
ic

t
fo

r
s
in

g
le

h
o
m

e
le

s
s

p
e
o
p
le

a
n
d

y
o
u
n
g

p
e
o
p
le

le
a
v
in

g
c
a
re

,
th

ro
u
g
h

th
e

S
in

g
le

A
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

F
o
r

E
p
p
in

g
F

o
re

s
t
(S

A
F

E
)

P
ro

je
c
t.

A
t
le

a
s
t
7
5
%

o
f
y
o
u
n
g

p
e
o
p
le

le
a
v
in

g
c
a
re

in
th

e
D

is
tr

ic
t
w

it
h

a
n

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

n
e
e
d
 t

o
b
e

h
o
u
s
e
d

b
y
 t

h
e

S
A

F
E

p
ro

je
c
t

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

A
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

to
b
e

p
ro

v
id

e
d

b
y

N
a
c
ro

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
s

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0
0
6

T
h
e

c
o
u
n
c
il

a
lr

e
a
d
y

fa
c
ili

ta
te

s
th

e
p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

fo
r

n
e
a
rl
y

a
ll

s
u
c
h

c
a
re

le
a
v
e
rs

 t
h
ro

u
g
h

re
fe

rr
a
ls

to
th

e
S

in
g
le

A
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

F
o
r

E
p
p
in

g
F

o
re

s
t
(S

A
F

E
)

P
ro

je
c
t,

a
n
d

w
o
rk

s
c
lo

s
e
ly

w
it
h
 t

h
e

lo
c
a
l

m
a
n
a
g
e
r

fr
o
m

C
h
ild

re
n

a
n
d

Y
o
u
n
g

P
e
o
p
le

s
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

fo
r

L
e
a
v
in

g
a
n
d

A
ft

e
r

C
a
re

.

F
u
rt

h
e
rm

o
re

,
th

e
C

o
u
n
c
il

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

s
th

e
ir

m
o
v
e
-o

n
fr

o
m

th
e

S
A

F
E

P
ro

je
c
t
b
y

g
iv

in
g
 t

h
e
m

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
p
ri

o
ri
ty

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

H
o
u
s
in

g
A

ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s

S
c
h
e
m

e
.

A
m

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g

s
y
s
te

m
is

in
th

e
p
ro

c
e
s
s

o
f
b
e
in

g
s
e
t

u
p

w
it
h

th
e

lo
c
a
l
L
e
a
v
in

g
a
n
d

A
ft

e
r

C
a
re

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

to
re

c
o
rd

 t
h
e

n
u
m

b
e
r

a
n
d

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

a
ll

c
a
re

le
a
v
e
rs

w
h
o

e
n
te

r
"a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t
m

e
e
ts

th
e
ir

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r
s
u
p
p
o
rt

n
e
e
d
s
".

In
c
re

a
s
e

th
e

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

y
o
u
n
g

p
e
o
p
le

le
a
v
in

g
c
a
re

w
h
o

a
re

in
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

th
a
t
m

e
e
ts

 t
h
e
ir

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r
s
u
p
p
o
rt

n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
5
5
.5

%
.

In
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

 t
h
e
 f

e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

o
f
d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
a
 f

o
y
e
r

s
c
h
e
m

e
w

it
h
in

th
e

D
is

tr
ic

t
fo

r
y
o
u
n
g

p
e
o
p
le

,
in

c
lu

d
in

g
y
o
u
n
g

p
e
o
p
le

le
a
v
in

g
c
a
re

,
to

p
ro

v
id

e
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
,
s
k
ill

s
tr

a
in

in
g

a
n
d

s
u
p
p
o
rt

.

If
 f

e
a
s
ib

le
a
n
d

v
ia

b
le

,
to

p
ro

v
id

e
a

s
c
h
e
m

e
o
f
a
t
le

a
s
t

2
5

b
e
d
s
p
a
c
e
s
, 
to

in
c
re

a
s
e
 t

o
9
0
%

 t
h
e

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f
y
o
u
n
g

p
e
o
p
le

le
a
v
in

g
c
a
re

in
th

e
D

is
tr

ic
t
w

it
h

a
n

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

n
e
e
d

w
h
o

a
re

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

d

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

F
e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

to
b
e

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

b
y

E
a
s
t
T

h
a
m

e
s

G
ro

u
p

a
n
d

th
e

E
p
p
in

g
F

o
re

s
t

F
o
y
e
r

P
ro

je
c
t

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0
0
6

E
a
s
t
T

h
a
m

e
s

G
ro

u
p

h
a
s

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d

a
fe

a
s
ib

ili
ty

e
x
e
rc

is
e
,

b
a
s
e
d

o
n

a
p
o
te

n
ti
a
l
s
it
e

w
it
h
in

th
e

D
is

tr
ic

t.

Page 108



3

P
ri

o
ri

ty
N

o
:

1
0

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
:

R
e

d
u

c
e

c
ri
m

e
,
th

e
h

a
rm

c
a

u
s
e

d
b

y
ill

e
g

a
l
d

ru
g

s
a
n

d
 t

o
re

a
s
s
u

re
th

e
p

u
b

lic

S
e

rv
ic

e
:

R
e

s
e

a
rc

h
a

n
d

D
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

Page 109



4

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e

A
c
ti

o
n

to
b

e
ta

k
e
n

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

ta
rg

e
t

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
o

ff
ic

e
r

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

re
q

u
ir

e
d

a
n

d
s
o

u
rc

e

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

fo
r

c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

o
f
c
ri
m

e
a
n
d

re
a
s
s
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e

p
u
b
lic

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t
2
0
0
5
-0

8
E

p
p
in

g
F

o
re

s
t

C
ri
m

e
a
n
d

D
ru

g
s

S
tr

a
te

g
y

A
ll

ta
rg

e
ts

w
it
h
in

S
tr

a
te

g
y

a
n
d

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

A
c
ti
o
n

P
la

n
s

C
D

R
P

C
O

G
a
n
d

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

A
c
ti
o
n
 G

ro
u
p
s

E
F

D
C

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
b
u
d
g
e
ts

a
n
d

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
S

a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
F

u
n
d
s

V
a
ri

o
u
s

d
a
te

s
1

A
p
ri
l
2
0
0
5

– 3
1

M
a
rc

h
2
0

0
8

S
o
m

e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
,

s
o
m

e
o
n
g
o
in

g
,
s
o
m

e
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f

o
r

fu
tu

re
a
c
ti
o
n

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

o
f
c
ri
m

e
, 
th

e
h
a
rm

c
a
u
s
e
d

b
y

ill
e
g
a
l
d
ru

g
s

a
n
d

re
a
s
s
u
re

 t
h
e

p
u
b
lic

U
s
e

o
f

'D
ru

g
s
'
D

o
g
s

o
u
ts

id
e

lic
e
n
s
e
d

p
re

m
is

e
s

la
te

a
t
n
ig

h
t
(p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

a
c
ti
o
n
)

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

o
f
s
c
h
e
m

e
in

th
e

D
is

tr
ic

t
C

ri
m

e
R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

C
o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r/
C

D
R

P
n
ig

h
t

(P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

a
c
ti

o
n

)

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
S

a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
F

u
n
d
s

A
p
ri
l
2
0
0
7

D
A

R
G

d
e
a
lin

g
w

it
h

p
re

p
a
ra

to
ry

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

C
ru

c
ia

l
C

re
w

S
c
h
e
m

e
C

a
rr

y
o
u
t
s
c
h
e
m

e
C

ri
m

e
R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

C
o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r
C

D
R

P

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
S

a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
F

u
n
d
s

J
u
n
e

2
0
0
7

S
c
h
e
m

e
to

o
k

p
la

c
e

M
a
y

2
0
0
6

fu
rt

h
e
r

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
c
h
e
d
u
le

d
fo

r
s
u
m

m
e
r

2
0
0
7

2
s
m

a
rt

4
d
ru

g
s

S
c
h
e
m

e
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

o
f
S

c
h
e
m

e
C

D
R

P
a
n
d

D
A

R
G

C
ri
m

e
R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

C
o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r
(P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

a
c
ti

o
n

)

F
ro

m
E

s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e
A

n
n
u
a
l

E
v
e
n
t

A
n
n
u
a
l
E

v
e
n
t

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
o
f
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o

s
c
h
o
o
ls

T
h
e
a
tr

e
C

o
m

p
a
n
y

p
ro

v
id

e
a
c
to

rs
a
n
d

c
u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
s
u
p
p
o
rt

fo
r

re
a
c
h
e
s

th
ro

u
g
h

in
te

ra
c
ti
v
e

th
e
a
tr

e
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

C
D

R
P

a
n
d

D
A

R
G

a
n
d

c
ri
m

e
R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

C
o
-

o
rd

in
a
to

r

E
F

D
C

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
b
u
d
g
e
ts

a
n
d

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
F

u
n
d
s
.

A
n
n
u
a
l

E
v
e
n
t

A
n
n
u
a
l
E

v
e
n
t

D
ru

g
a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
,

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

a
n
d

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

C
h
a
n
c
e
 f

o
r

C
h
a
n
g
e

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
C

D
R

P
a
n
d

D
A

R
G

a
n
d

c
ri
m

e
R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

C
o
-

o
rd

in
a
to

r

E
F

D
C

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
b
u
d
g
e
ts

a
n
d

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
F

u
n
d
s

Id
e
n
ti
fy

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

y
o
u
n
g

p
e
o
p
le

, 
to

c
o
lle

c
t

d
a
ta

to
in

fo
rm

lo
c
a
l
n
e
e
d
s
,

to
p
ro

v
id

e

O
u
tr

e
a
c
h

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
s

D
ru

g
a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s

A
lc

o
h
o
l
a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s

C
a
rr

y
o
u
t

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
s

a
n
d

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

C
D

R
P

a
n
d

D
A

R
G

a
n
d

c
ri
m

e
R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

C
o
-

E
s
s
e
x

D
A

A
T

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

R
e
p
o
rt

s
W

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s

h
e
ld

q
u
a
rt

e
rl

y
3

w
o
rk

e
rs

c
a
rr

y
o
u
t
o
n
-s

tr
e
e
t

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s

Page 110



5

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e

A
c
ti

o
n

to
b

e
ta

k
e
n

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

ta
rg

e
t

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
o

ff
ic

e
r

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

re
q

u
ir

e
d

a
n

d
s
o

u
rc

e

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

fo
r

c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

P
ro

g
re

s
s

s
u
p
p
o
rt

a
n
d
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
S

u
s
ta

in
in

g
e
x
is

ti
n
g

a
n
d

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
n
e
w

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r

lo
c
a
l
d
e
liv

e
ry

o
f

d
ro

p
-i
n

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

a
n
d

a
d
v
ic

e
fo

r
y
o
u
n
g

p
e
o
p
le

D
e
v
e
lo

p
n
e
w

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
lo

c
a
l

d
e
li
v
e
ry

o
f
d
ro

p
-i
n

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
.

o
rd

in
a
to

r
(P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

a
c
ti
o
n
)

O
ff
ic

e
F

u
n
d
s

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

T
h
e
re

a
re

o
n
g
o
in

g
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s

s
u
c
h

a
s

W
A

Y
P

IC
w

h
ic

h
p
ro

v
id

e
th

is
s
e
rv

ic
e

b
u
t
p
ro

v
is

io
n

c
o
u
ld

b
e

e
x
te

n
d

e
d
.

M
o
v
in

g
C

la
s
s

A
d
ru

g
u
s
in

g
o
ff

e
n
d
e
rs

,
a
w

a
y

fr
o
m

d
ru

g
s

a
n
d

c
ri
m

e
to

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 t

h
e

D
ru

g
In

te
rv

e
n
ti
o
n

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
E

s
s
e
x

lo
c
a
lly

D
R

R
(D

ru
g

R
e
h
a
b
ili

ta
ti
o
n

R
e
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
t)

R
e
d
u
c
e

re
fe

rr
a
ls

S
u
b
s
ta

n
c
e

M
is

u
s
e

T
ra

in
in

g

P
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

o
f
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

F
lo

a
ti
n
g

S
u
p
p
o
rt

S
c
h
e
m

e

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

E
n
s
u
re

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t

p
ro

v
id

e
d
.

E
n
s
u
re

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n

ta
k
e
s

p
la

c
e
.

C
a
rr

y
o
u
t
tr

a
in

in
g
.

P
ro

d
u
c
e

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
.

C
a
rr

y
o
u
t
s
c
h
e
m

e
.

C
D

R
P

a
n
d

D
A

R
G

.
(P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

a
c
ti

o
n

)

F
ro

m
E

s
s
e
x

P
ro

b
a
ti
o
n
(?

)
C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

2
0
0
5

-
n
o
w

c
a
lle

d
P

R
O

E
s
s
e
x
.

T
a
c
k
le

d
ru

g
s

is
s
u
e
s

a
s

p
a
rt

o
f

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d

re
n
e
w

a
l

G
ra

ff
it
i
C

le
a
ra

n
c
e

C
a
rr

y
o
u
t
g
ra

ff
it
i
c
le

a
ra

n
c
e

a
s

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

C
ri
m

e
R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

C
o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r
F

ro
m

E
F

D
C

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
B

u
d
g
e
t

O
n
g
o
in

g
C

le
a
ra

n
c
e

is
c
a
rr

ie
d

o
u
t

o
n

a
n

o
n
g
o
in

g
b
a
s
is

a
s

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

,
s
u
b
je

c
t
to

fu
n
d
s

b
e
in

g
a
v
a
ila

b
le

T
a
c
k
le

d
ru

g
/d

ri
n
k

d
ri
v
in

g
c
ri
m

in
a
l
ju

s
ti
c
e

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s

–
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l
a
n
d

h
a
rm

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s

D
ri

n
k

im
p
a
ir
e
d

D
ri
v
in

g
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
S

a
fe

r
B

a
r

A
c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n

S
c
h
e
m

e
T

e
s
t

p
u
rc

h
a
s
in

g

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

In
c
re

a
s
e

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f
p
re

m
is

e
s

a
c
c
re

d
it
e
d
.

R
e
d
u
c
e

b
in

g
e

d
ri
n
k
in

g
/d

ri
n
k

re
la

te
d

v
io

le
n
c
e
.

C
D

R
P

a
n
d

D
A

R
G

E
s
s
e
x

P
ro

b
a
ti
o
n

E
s
s
e
x

P
o
li
c
e

E
s
s
e
x

T
ra

d
in

g
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
(P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

a
c
ti

o
n

)

F
ro

m
E

s
s
e
x

P
ro

b
a
ti
o
n

(?
)

O
n
g
o
in

g
S

c
h
e
m

e
s
ti
ll

b
e
in

g
d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
.

R
e
d
u
c
e

Im
p
a
c
t
o
f

d
ru

g
/a

lc
o
h
o
l
u
s
e

in
th

e
s
tr

e
e
t

D
ru

g
s

d
e
b
ri

s
c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

C
o
ll
e
c
t
d
e
b
ri
s

w
h
e
n

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

a
n
d

re
d
u
c
e

in
c
id

e
n
c
e

E
F

D
C

-
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

E
F

D
C

-
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

B
u
d
g
e
t

O
n
g
o
in

g

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
s
u
p
p
ly

–
h
a
v
in

g
a

M
o
b
il
e

C
C

T
V

V
a
n

R
e
d
u
c
e

in
c
id

e
n
c
e

o
v
e
r

a
p
e
ri
o
d

C
D

R
P

E
s
s
e
x

P
o
li
c
e

O
n
g
o
in

g

Page 111



6

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e

A
c
ti

o
n

to
b

e
ta

k
e
n

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

ta
rg

e
t

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
o

ff
ic

e
r

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

re
q

u
ir

e
d

a
n

d
s
o

u
rc

e

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

fo
r

c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

P
ro

g
re

s
s

s
u
s
ta

in
e
d

im
p
a
c
t

o
n

s
u
p
p
ly

o
f

C
la

s
s

A
d
ru

g
s

a
v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
w

it
h
in

it
s

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

o
f 
ti
m

e
.

V
a
n

u
s
e
d

a
s

p
a
rt

o
f
a

'r
a
ft
'
o
f
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
.

D
A

R
G

C
ri
m

e
R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

C
o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r
(P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

a
c
ti

o
n

)

F
u
n
d
s

a
n
d

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
F

u
n
d
s

S
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n

lo
c
a
l
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

a
n
d

im
p
ro

v
e

a
c
c
e
s
s

A
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t
o
f
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t
to

a
c
t
a
s

p
ro

je
c
t
m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

ta
k
in

g
fo

rw
a
rd

p
la

n
s

to
a
d
d
re

s
s
 t

h
e

s
h
o
rt

fa
ll

in
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
t

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 f

o
r

E
p
p
in

g
F

o
re

s
t
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

P
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
a
d
d
re

s
s

s
h
o
rt

fa
ll

in
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
t
p
ro

v
is

io
n

fo
r

E
p
p
in

g
F

o
re

s
t
re

s
id

e
n
ts

A
p
p
o
in

t
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t,

d
e
v
e
lo

p
p
la

n
s
.

R
e
d
u
c
e

s
h
o
rt

fa
ll

in
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
t

p
ro

v
is

io
n

a
n
d

%
o
f
re

s
id

e
n
ts

w
it
h

s
u
b
s
ta

n
c
e

m
is

u
s
e

p
ro

b
le

m
p
re

s
e
n
ti
n
g

fo
r

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t

J
o
in

t
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
T

e
a
m

Page 112



7

P
ri

o
ri

ty
N

o
:

1
1

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
:

B
u

ild
R

e
s
p
e

c
t

in
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
a
n

d
R

e
d

u
c
e

A
n
ti
-S

o
c
ia

l
B

e
h
a

v
io

u
r

S
e

rv
ic

e
:

R
e

s
e

a
rc

h
a

n
d

D
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e

A
c
ti

o
n

to
b

e
ta

k
e
n

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

ta
rg

e
t

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
o

ff
ic

e
r

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

re
q

u
ir

e
d

a
n

d
s
o

u
rc

e

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

fo
r

c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

P
ro

g
re

s
s

D
e
v
e
lo

p
a

w
o
rk

in
g

p
ro

to
c
o
l

w
it
h

a
ll

re
le

v
a
n
t

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

c
o
n
c
e
rn

in
g

A
S

B
is

s
u
e
s
.

P
ro

to
c
o
l
to

in
c
lu

d
e

d
e
te

rm
in

in
g

le
a
d

d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t

o
n

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

re
c
e
iv

e
d
.

C
o
n
s
u
lt

w
it
h

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

E
x
a
m

in
e

b
e
s
t
p
ra

c
ti
c
e

D
ra

ft
P

ro
to

c
o
l
fo

r
d
e
b
a
te

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t
a
g
re

e
d

p
ro

to
c
o
l

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

o
f
w

ri
tt
e
n

p
ro

to
c
o
l

C
D

R
P

A
S

B
N

G
ro

u
p
,
A

S
B

C
o
-

o
rd

in
a
to

r

E
F

D
C

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
B

u
d
g
e
ts

a
n
d

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
F

u
n
d
s

3
1
.8

.2
0
0
7

In
fo

rm
a
l
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
in

p
la

c
e

a
n
d

a
d
h
e
re

d
to

a
t
p
re

s
e
n
t

D
e
v
e
lo

p
in

te
rn

a
l
s
ta

ff
tr

a
in

in
g

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

c
o
n
c
e
rn

in
g

la
te

s
t
A

S
B

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 t

o
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e

a
p
ro

-a
c
ti
v
e

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

to
A

S
B

w
o
rk

w
it
h
in

E
F

D
C

.

D
e
te

rm
in

e
b
e
s
t

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

C
o
n
s
u
lt

w
it
h

a
c
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
d

e
x
p

e
rt

s
L
ia

is
e

w
it
h

re
le

v
a
n
t
E

F
D

C
d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

c
o
n
c
e
rn

in
g

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d

tr
a
in

in
g

n
e
e
d
s

P
ro

d
u
c
e

a
ro

lli
n
g

s
e
ri
e
s

o
f

c
o
u
rs

e
s

fo
r

s
ta

ff
.

U
n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 t
ra

in
in

g
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
C

D
R

P
A

S
B

N
G

ro
u
p
,
A

S
B

C
o
-

o
rd

in
a
to

r

E
F

D
C

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
B

u
d
g
e
ts

a
n
d

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
F

u
n
d
s

3
1
.8

.2
0
0
7

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
ta

k
in

g
tr

a
in

in
g

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
e
t
u
p

fo
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

2
0
0
6

D
e
v
e
lo

p
a

tr
a
in

in
g

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
fo

r
p
a
ri

s
h

c
o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

to
e
x
p
la

in
 t

h
e

la
w

a
n
d

th
e
ir

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s

to
A

S
B

w
o
rk

.

E
x
a
m

in
e

b
e
s
t
p
ra

c
ti
c
e

C
o
n
s
u
lt

w
it
h

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

D
e
v
e
lo

p
w

it
h

E
s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e
C

ri
m

e
R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

O
ff
ic

e
r

D
e
v
e
lo

p
tr

a
in

in
g

p
a
c
k
a
g
e

Id
e
n
ti
fy

n
o
m

in
a
te

d
P

a
ri
s
h

C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

to
le

a
d

o
n

A
S

B
a
n
d

re
p
re

s
e
n
t 

th
e
ir

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

o
n

a
c
ti
o
n

g
ro

u
p
s

a
s

p
ro

b
le

m
s

a
ri
s
e
.

F
in

a
lis

a
ti
o
n

o
f
tr

a
in

in
g

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
C

D
R

P
A

S
B

N
G

ro
u
p
,
A

S
B

C
o
-

o
rd

in
a
to

r

E
F

D
C

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
B

u
d
g
e
ts

a
n
d

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
F

u
n
d
s

3
1
.8

.2
0
0
7

In
it
ia

l
g
ro

u
n
d
w

o
rk

c
a
rr

ie
d

o
u
t

D
e
v
e
lo

p
lo

c
a
l
p
ro

to
c
o
ls

a
n
d

tr
a
in

in
g

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
re

g
a
rd

in
g

A
S

B
is

s
u
e
s

w
it
h

a
ll

R
e
g
is

te
re

d
S

o
c
ia

l
L
a
n
d
lo

rd
s

in
E

F
D

C
.

Id
e
n
ti
fy

R
S

L
's

D
e
te

rm
in

e
S

P
O

C
D

ra
ft

a
n
d

a
g
re

e
s
in

g
le

w
o
rk

in
g

p
ro

to
c
o
l

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t
o
f
p
ro

to
c
o
l
a
n
d

tr
a
in

in
g

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
C

D
R

P
A

S
B

N
G

ro
u
p
,
A

S
B

C
o
-

o
rd

in
a
to

r

E
F

D
C

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
B

u
d
g
e
ts

a
n
d

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
F

u
n
d
s

3
1
.8

.2
0
0
7

P
ro

to
c
o
l
in

d
ra

ft

Page 113



8

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e

A
c
ti

o
n

to
b

e
ta

k
e
n

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

ta
rg

e
t

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
o

ff
ic

e
r

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

re
q

u
ir

e
d

a
n

d
s
o

u
rc

e

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

fo
r

c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

P
ro

g
re

s
s

D
e
v
e
lo

p
a

jo
in

t 
ta

s
k
in

g
s
tr

a
te

g
y

w
it
h

E
s
s
e
x

P
o
li
c
e

o
n

th
e

d
e
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t
o
f

P
C

S
O

's
.

O
b
ta

in
s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l

re
tu

rn
 t

o
m

o
n
it
o
r

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
.

L
ia

is
e

w
it
h

D
is

tr
ic

t
C

o
m

m
a
n
d
e
r

S
e
e
k

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t

F
o
rm

u
la

te
ta

s
k
in

g
s
tr

a
te

g
y

O
b
ta

in
E

s
s
e
x

P
o
li
c
e

P
I'
s

fo
r

P
C

S
O

L
ia

is
e

w
it
h

C
R

O
E

s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e
D

e
v
e
lo

p
a

s
y
s
te

m
 t

o
id

e
n
ti
fy

E
F

D
C

le
d
 t

a
s
k
in

g
s

D
e
v
e
lo

p
lo

c
a
l
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t
fo

r
th

e
h
a
n
d
lin

g
o
f

s
e
n
s
it
iv

e
in

te
lli

g
e
n
c
e

L
ia

is
e

w
it
h

L
o
u
g
h
to

n
D

IU
a
n
d

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

te
lli

g
e
n
c
e

p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s

re
g
a
rd

in
g

A
S

B
to

b
e

d
is

s
e
m

in
a
te

d
to

in
te

re
s
te

d
E

F
D

C
d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

a
n
d

E
s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e

T
a
s
k
in

g
p
ro

 f
o
rm

a
d
ra

ft
e
d

T
a
s
k
in

g
re

s
u
lt
s

a
g
re

e
d

a
s

p
e
r

E
s
s
e
x

P
o
li
c
e

P
I'
s
.

T
o

b
e

re
tu

rn
e
d

fo
r

e
a
c
h

ta
s
k
in

g
.

In
te

re
s
te

d
E

F
D

C
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

to
b
e

n
o
ti
fi
e
d

S
tr

a
te

g
y

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

in
li
n
e

w
it
h

J
o
in

t
S

e
rv

ic
e

A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t

o
n

P
C

S
O

's

L
o
c
a
l
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t
to

b
e

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

B
ri

e
fi
n
g

p
a
c
k

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 f

o
r

ta
rg

e
t
a
re

a
L
im

e
s

F
a
rm

.
W

ill
b
e

u
p
d
a
te

d
a
s

n
e
w

o
ff

e
n
d
e
rs

c
o
m

e
o
n

li
n
e

C
ri
m

e
R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

C
o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r,
C

D
R

P
E

F
D

C
S

a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
B

u
d
g
e
ts

a
n
d

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
F

u
n
d
s

3
1
.1

2
.0

6
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

S
e
p
t

2
0
0
6

C
o
m

p
le

te
d

S
e
p
t

2
0
0
6

A
c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n

a
p
p
lie

d
 f

o
r

C
o
m

p
le

te
d

8
.9

.0
6

D
e
v
e
lo

p
g
e
n
e
ri

c
m

u
lt
i-

a
g
e
n
c
y

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

to
re

c
u
rr

in
g

s
e
a
s
o
n
a
l
A

S
B

is
s
u
e
s

(i
.e

.
T

ri
c
k

o
r

T
re

a
t,

fi
re

w
o
rk

s
)

E
x
a
m

in
e

b
e
s
t
p
ra

c
ti
c
e

C
o
n
s
u
lt

w
it
h

lic
e
n
s
in

g
L
ia

is
e

a
n
d

d
e
v
e
lo

p
w

it
h

C
R

O
a
n
d

E
s
s
e
x

P
o
li
c
e

P
ro

b
le

m
S

o
lv

e
r

A
p
p
ro

a
c
h

T
ra

d
in

g
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
re

g
a
rd

in
g

T
P

w
o
rk

o
n

th
o
s
e

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s

s
u
s
p
e
c
te

d
o
f

in
fr

in
g
e
m

e
n
ts

T
a
s
k

P
C

S
O

's
In

v
o
lv

e
S

c
h
o
o
ls

L
ia

is
o
n

E
s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e

A
g
re

e
d

m
u
lt
i-

a
g
e
n
c
y

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

s
ig

n
e
d

u
p

to
b
y

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

A
S

B
C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r
C

D
R

P
,

A
S

B
N

G
ro

u
p

E
F

D
C

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
a
n
d

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
F

u
n
d
s

3
1
.8

.2
0
0
7

O
n
g
o
in

g
.

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

o
n

w
e
b
s
it
e

re
T

ri
c
k

o
r

T
re

a
t
a
n
d

fi
re

w
o
rk

s
.

P
re

s
s

R
e
le

a
s
e

is
s
u
e
d
.

F
u
rt

h
e
r

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

in
d
u
e

c
o
u
rs

e

Page 114



9

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e

A
c
ti

o
n

to
b

e
ta

k
e
n

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

ta
rg

e
t

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
o

ff
ic

e
r

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

re
q

u
ir

e
d

a
n

d
s
o

u
rc

e

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

fo
r

c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

P
ro

g
re

s
s

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

to
d
e
a
li
n
g

w
it
h

A
S

B
is

s
u
e
s

S
e
c
u
re

a
tt

e
n
d
a
n
c
e

o
f

h
o
u
s
in

g
a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s

a
t

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
,
in

v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

im
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s

fo
r

d
a
ta

s
h
a
ri

n
g

a
n
d

a
g
re

e
p
ro

to
c
o
ls

H
o
u
s
in

g
A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
s

to
a
tt
e
n
d

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
.

P
ro

to
c
o
l 
to

b
e

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

A
S

B
C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r
A

S
B

N
G

ro
u
p

E
F

D
C

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
B

u
d
g
e
ts

a
n
d

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
F

u
n
d
s

3
1
.8

.0
7

H
o
u
s
in

g
A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
s

n
o
w

a
tt

e
n
d

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
.

P
ro

to
c
o
ls

to
b
e

a
g
re

e
d

a
n
d

fo
rm

a
lis

e
d

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t
a
n

in
te

ri
m

A
S

B
re

c
o
rd

in
g

d
a
ta

b
a
s
e

L
ia

is
e
 I

T
Im

p
le

m
e
n
t
A

c
c
e
s
s

d
a
ta

b
a
s
e

L
ia

is
e

w
it
h

H
o
u
s
in

g
,

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

a
n
d

R
S

L
's

D
e
v
e
lo

p
s
y
s
te

m
o
f
re

c
o
rd

in
g

d
a
ta

fr
o
m

a
ll

o
f
a
b
o
v
e

In
te

ri
m

IC
T

C
R

IS
d
a
ta

b
a
s
e

in
s
ta

lle
d

1
2
.9

.0
6

A
S

B
P

ro
je

c
t

B
o
a
rd

d
a
ta

b
a
s
e

s
ti
ll

in
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

A
S

B
C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r
E

F
D

C
S

a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
a
n
d

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
F

u
n
d
s

C
o
m

p
le

te
d

1
2
.9

.0
6

D
e
a
l
w

it
h

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

o
f
A

S
B

u
s
in

g
m

u
lt
i-

a
g
e
n
c
y

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
S

e
t 

ta
rg

e
ts

a
n
d

m
e
a
s
u
re

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
ts

E
n
s
u
re

w
o
rk

in
g

p
ro

to
c
o
ls

a
re

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d

E
n
s
u
re

b
e
s
t
u
s
e

m
a
d
e

o
f
E

s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e
C

R
O

E
n
s
u
re

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d

le
a
d

o
n

A
S

B
N

G
O

b
ta

in
Y

O
T

a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e

a
t
A

S
B

N
G

re
g
a
rd

in
g

p
a
re

n
ti
n
g

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

A
g
re

e
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
a
n
d

p
ro

to
c
o
ls

A
S

B
C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r
C

D
R

P
,

A
S

B
N

G
ro

u
p

E
F

D
C

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
B

u
d
g
e
ts

a
n
d

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
F

u
n
d
s

3
1
.8

.2
0
0
7

In
fo

rm
a
l
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s

in
p
la

c
e
.

P
ro

to
c
o
ls

to
b
e

fo
rm

a
lis

e
d

in
d
u
e

c
o
u
rs

e

D
e
v
e
lo

p
a
n
d

im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
u
s
e

o
f
te

c
h
n
o
lo

g
y

in
g
a
th

e
ri
n
g

e
v
id

e
n
c
e

o
f
A

S
B

O
b
ta

in
a
n
d

d
e
v
e
lo

p
th

e
u
s
e

o
f

C
D

R
P

C
C

T
V

D
e
v
e
lo

p
w

o
rk

in
g

p
o
lic

y
o
n

u
s
e

E
v
a
lu

a
te

n
e
w

e
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t
fo

r
s
u
it
a
b
ili

ty
o
f

u
s
e

in
A

S
B

A
g
re

e
w

o
rk

in
g

p
o
lic

y
 f

o
r

u
s
e

o
f

C
C

T
V

a
n
d

o
th

e
r 

te
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y

in
A

S
B

c
a
s
e
s

A
S

B
C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r
C

D
R

P
,

A
S

B
N

G
ro

u
p

E
F

D
C

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
B

u
d
g
e
ts

a
n
d

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
F

u
n
d
s

3
1
.8

.2
0
0
7

W
o
rk

in
g

p
o
lic

y
to

b
e

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

2
0
0
7

D
e
v
e
lo

p
w

it
h

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

a
p
o
s
it
iv

e
m

e
d
ia

s
tr

a
te

g
y

to
p
ro

m
o
te

C
D

R
P

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s

a
n
d

re
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 f

e
a
r

o
f
c
ri
m

e

L
ia

is
e

w
it
h

E
s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e
m

e
d
ia

o
ff
ic

e
r

fo
r

E
p
p
in

g
F

o
re

s
t
D

is
tr

ic
t

W
o
rk

w
it
h

E
F

D
C

C
D

R
P

C
o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r
P

o
s
it
iv

e
ly

p
ro

m
o
te

a
ll

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

a
c
ti
o
n
s

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t
o
f
m

e
d
ia

s
tr

a
te

g
y

A
S

B
C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r
C

D
R

P
,

A
S

B
N

G
ro

u
p

E
F

D
C

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
B

u
d
g
e
ts

a
n
d

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
F

u
n
d
s

3
1
.8

.2
0
0
7

S
tr

a
te

g
y

in
p
la

c
e
.

P
a
rt

n
e
r

a
c
ti
o
n
s

p
ro

m
o
te

d
th

ro
u
g
h

p
re

s
s

re
le

a
s
e

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
w

it
h

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

o
p
e
ra

to
rs

to
re

d
u
c
e

A
S

B
o
n

p
u
b
li
c

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

a
n
d

a
d
d
re

s
s

fe
a
rs

a
t
b
u
s

s
to

p
s

F
u
rt

h
e
r

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s

w
it
h

T
F

L
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t
o
f
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
A

S
B

C
o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r
C

D
R

P
,

A
S

B
N

G
ro

u
p

E
F

D
C

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
B

u
d
g
e
ts

a
n
d

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
F

u
n
d
s

A
p
ri
l
2
0
0
8

T
F

L
n
o
t
y
e
t

p
re

p
a
re

d
 t

o
a
c
c
e
p
t

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

o
n

th
e

ro
u
te

s
th

e
y

a
re

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
fo

r.
F

u
rt

h
e
r

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 t

o
b
e

h
e
ld

w
it
h

T
F

L

Page 115



1
0

P
ri

o
ri

ty
N

o
:

1
2

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
:

A
c
ti
v
e

ly
m

a
n

a
g

e
o
u

r
e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t

S
e

rv
ic

e
:

E
n

v
ir
o
n

m
e

n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e

A
c
ti

o
n

to
b

e
ta

k
e
n

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

ta
rg

e
t

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
o

ff
ic

e
r

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

re
q

u
ir

e
d

a
n

d
s
o

u
rc

e

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

fo
r

c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

P
ro

g
re

s
s

T
o

re
d
u
c
e

o
r

lim
it

th
e

in
c
re

a
s
e

in
s
iz

e
o
f

E
s
s
e
x
’s

e
c
o
lo

g
ic

a
l
fo

o
tp

ri
n
t

(1
)

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l
C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r
to

w
o
rk

w
it
h
in

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

a
n
d

th
e

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

to
in

c
re

a
s
e

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s

o
f

th
e

is
s
u
e
s

T
o

d
e
v
e
lo

p
a

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
o
f

s
c
h
o
o
l
v
is

it
s
,
a
tt

e
n
d
a
n
c
e

a
t

o
th

e
r

lo
c
a
l
e
v
e
n
ts

 t
o

p
u
b
lic

is
e

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l
a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s

e
tc

H
e
a
d

o
f

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
,

H
e
a
d

o
f

P
la

n
n
in

g
a
n
d

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l
C

o
-

O
rd

in
a
to

r

N
o

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

re
q
u
ir

e
d

R
e
v
ie

w
p
ro

g
re

s
s

a
t

M
a
rc

h
2
0
0
7

L
o
c
a
l
e
v
e
n
ts

to
p
ro

m
o
te

 t
h
e

is
s
u
e

h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

a
tt

e
n
d
e
d

b
y

th
e

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l
c
o
-

o
rd

in
a
to

r.

A
G

re
e
n

F
a
y
re

is
p
la

n
n
e
d

fo
r

th
e

a
u
tu

m
n

a
n
d

w
o
rk

h
a
s

s
ta

rt
e
d
.

Page 116



1
1

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e

A
c
ti

o
n

to
b

e
ta

k
e
n

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

ta
rg

e
t

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
o

ff
ic

e
r

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

re
q

u
ir

e
d

a
n

d
s
o

u
rc

e

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

fo
r

c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

P
ro

g
re

s
s

(2
)

T
a
rg

e
t
fu

e
l
p
o
o
r

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
b
y
:

• 
Id

e
n
ti
fy

in
g

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
e
x
p
e
ri

e
n
c
in

g
o
r

a
t
ri
s
k

o
f
fu

e
l

p
o
v
e
rt

y
a
n
d

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

h
e
m

.

• 
E

n
d
e
a
v
o
u
ri

n
g

to
d
e
v
e
lo

p
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
w

h
e
re

p
o
s
s
ib

le
w

it
h

o
th

e
r

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 t

o
c
o
n
d
u
c
t

H
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

e
n
e
rg

y
s
u
rv

e
y
s
 t

o
m

a
p
 t

h
e

fu
e
l
p
o
o
r.

• 
M

a
p
p
in

g
a
re

a
s

w
h
ic

h
a
re

n
o
t

s
u
p
p
lie

d
w

it
h

m
a
in

g
a
s

• 
U

n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
H

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

e
n
e
rg

y
s
u
rv

e
y
s

to
g
a
th

e
r

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

re
g
a
rd

in
g

fu
e
l
p
o
v
e
rt

y
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e

d
is

tr
ic

t

• 
T

a
rg

e
ti
n
g

s
u
it
a
b
le

p
ro

je
c
t

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

a
t

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
/a

re
a
s

m
o
s
t
a
t
ri
s
k

o
f

fu
e
l
p
o
v
e
rt

y
.

T
o

b
e

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d

T
o

m
a
x
im

is
e

re
c
y
c
lin

g
a
n
d

c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g

o
f

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

w
a
s
te

(1
)

T
o

c
o
m

p
le

te
 t

h
e

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

o
f
th

e
w

h
e
e
le

d
b
in

b
a
s
e
d

w
a
s
te

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
s
e
rv

ic
e

(2
)

T
o

in
c
re

a
s
e

p
u
b
lic

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s

o
f

th
e

n
e
e
d
 t

o
re

c
y
c
le

m
o
re

&
 t

h
ro

w
a
w

a
y

le
s
s

(1
)

W
h
e
e
le

d
b
in

s
a
c
ro

s
s

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
b
y

th
e

e
n
d

o
f
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0
0
6

(2
)

A
c
h
ie

v
e

3
0
%

re
c
y
c
lin

g
b
y

M
a
rc

h
2
0
0
7

a
n
d

3
6
%

b
y

M
a
rc

h
2
0
0
8

H
e
a
d

o
f

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

B
a
s
ic

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

in
p
la

c
e
,
b
u
t

s
u
b
je

c
t
to

c
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l

re
v
ie

w

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 f

o
r

p
u
b
lic

R
o
ll

o
u
t

c
o
m

p
le

te
b
y

3
1

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0
0
6

3
0
%

re
c
y
c
lin

g
b
y

3
1

M
a
rc

h
2
0
0
7

(1
)

W
h
e
e
le

d
b
in

s
in

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n

fo
r

M
o
n
d
a
y
,

T
u
e
s
d
a
y

a
n
d

W
e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

ro
u
n
d
s

(2
)

R
e
c
y
c
lin

g
ra

te
in

c
re

a
s
e
d

fr
o
m

2
0
.3

%
in

2
0
0
4
/0

5
to

2
3
.9

%
fo

r
2
0
0
5
/0

6
,
w

it
h

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
d
a
ta

fo
r

2
0
0
6
/0

7
in

d
ic

a
ti
n
g

re
c
y
c
lin

g
le

v
e
ls

in
e
x
c
e
s
s

o
f

3
0
%

Page 117



1
2

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e

A
c
ti

o
n

to
b

e
ta

k
e
n

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

ta
rg

e
t

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
o

ff
ic

e
r

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

re
q

u
ir

e
d

a
n

d
s
o

u
rc

e

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

fo
r

c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

P
ro

g
re

s
s

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
,

n
e
w

e
x
h
ib

it
io

n
c
a
ra

v
a
n

a
c
q
u
ir
e
d

a
n
d

n
o
w

re
a
d
y
 f

o
r

u
s
e

M
o
re

le
a
fl
e
ts

e
tc

re
q
u
ir
e
d

w
h
ic

h
w

ill
re

q
u
ir

e
re

s
o
u
rc

in
g

3
6
%

re
c
y
c
lin

g
b
y

3
1

M
a
rc

h
2
0
0
8

Im
p
ro

v
e

th
e

c
le

a
n
li
n
e
s
s

o
f

a
n
d

p
u
b
lic

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

w
it
h

E
s
s
e
x

g
a
te

w
a
y

a
re

a
s

(1
)

R
e
v
ie

w
th

e
E

P
A

c
a
te

g
o
ry

fo
r

g
a
te

w
a
y

a
re

a

(2
)

R
e
-e

x
p
lo

re
 t

h
e

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r

u
s
in

g
P

ro
b
a
ti
o
n

S
e
rv

ic
e

p
e
rs

o
n
n
e
l 
fo

r
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
c
le

a
n
s
in

g
w

o
rk

s

In
c
re

a
s
e

p
u
b
lic

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

le
v
e
ls

a
n
d

B
V

1
9
9
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r

g
a
te

w
a
y

a
re

a
s

(2
)

T
o

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
a

p
ro

to
c
o
l
w

it
h

th
e

P
ro

b
a
ti
o
n

S
e
rv

ic
e

fo
r

ro
u
ti
n
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
c
le

a
n
s
in

g
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s

H
e
a
d

o
f

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

D
e
p

e
n
d
a
n
t

u
p
o
n

th
e

o
u
tc

o
m

e
o
f
th

e
re

v
ie

w

N
o
n
e

if
w

h
o
lly

p
ro

v
id

e
b
y

P
ro

b
a
ti
o
n

S
e
rv

ic
e

P
a
rt

o
f

re
v
ie

w
o
f

w
a
s
te

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

c
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t

s
(b

y
M

a
rc

h
2
0
0
7
)

P
ro

to
c
o
l
in

p
la

c
e

b
y

M
a
rc

h
2
0
0
7

N
o
n
e

N
o
n
e

Page 118



Report to the Finance & Performance Management 
Standing Panel 
 
 
Date of meeting: 14 November 2006 
 
Portfolio: Finance & Performance Management 
 
Subject: Quarterly Financial Monitoring  
 
Officer contact for further information: Peter Maddock (01992 - 56 4602). 
 
Democratic Services Officer: Adrian Hendry (01992 – 56 4246) 
 
Recommendations/Decisions Required: 
 

That the Panel note the financial monitoring report for the second quarter of 
2006/07 including the Capital Monitoring reports. 

 
Report: 
 

1. The Panel has within its terms of reference to consider financial monitoring reports on 
key areas of income and expenditure for each portfolio. This is the second quarterly 
report for 2006/07 and covers the period from 1 April 2006 to 30 September 2006. 

 
2. Salaries monitoring data is presented as well as it represents a large proportion of the 

authorities expenditure and is an area in which large under spends have been seen. 
The salaries data is held by Service rather than by portfolio, although there are clearly 
some services that are linked closely to particular portfolios.  

 
Revenue Budgets 
 

3. Comments are provided on the monitoring schedules but a few points are highlighted 
here as they are of particular significance. The salaries schedule shows an under 
spend of some £391,000 (4.2% of budget) of this around 40% relates to the HRA and, 
although this reflects the fact that staff vacancies are running at a high level in 
percentage terms, the under spend has reduced since the first quarter and is 
significantly lower than that experienced in 2005/06.   

 
4. Income budgets are generally in line with expectations. Income from Land Charge 

searches and industrial estate rents however are slightly above expected levels. 
Tipping away payments from the County Council have now been invoiced for the last 
quarter of 2005/6. Income from recycling credits is well up on that originally expected 
and reflects the significant increase in recycling that is now taking place across the 
District. 

 
5. Expenditure relating to the alteration to the Local Plan, which falls under Forward 

Planning, shows a marked underspend. This is DDF money, and much of this 
underspend will need to be rephased into 2007/08. 

 
6. The Housing Repairs Fund also shows an underspend. Much of this is due to the 

cyclical maintenance contracts, which did not commence until July.  
 

7. The payments to Sports and Leisure Management Ltd are still lagging behind 
expectations, indeed both July and August payments which would normally have 
been paid by the end of September were not paid until late October.  

Agenda Item 9

Page 119



 
8. There has been an increase in the number of homeless persons that have been 

placed in Bed and Breakfast Accommodation recently, however this is thought to be a 
one off situation and expenditure is expected to return to levels seen in 2005/06 over 
the next year or so. 

 
9. This report has been circulated to Portfolio-holders. An oral update will be provided to 

cover any additional comments or information received from Portfolio-holders.  
 
Capital Budgets 
 

10. Tables have now been prepared for capital expenditure monitoring purposes for the 
six months to 30 September. The tables show the major schemes separately with 
other more minor items being summarised. There is a brief commentary on each item 
highlighting the scheme progress and where there is potentially for slippage to occur.  

 
11. The process of profiling capital budgets is currently being carried out and although 

many of the budgets have been profiled in line with expectations more work is still 
necessary in this area. 

 
Conclusion 

 
12. The panel is asked to note the position on both revenue and capital budgets as at 

Month 6. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 120



P
O

R
TF

O
LI

O
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 - 
S

A
LA

R
IE

S

20
06

/0
7

20
05

/0
6

SE
R

VI
C

E
EX

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

E
B

U
D

G
ET

VA
R

IA
TI

O
N

EX
PE

N
D

IT
U

R
E

B
U

D
G

ET
VA

R
IA

TI
O

N
TO

 3
0/

09
/0

6
PR

O
VI

SI
O

N
FR

O
M

 B
U

D
G

ET
TO

 3
0/

09
/0

5
PR

O
VI

SI
O

N
FR

O
M

 B
U

D
G

ET
(O

R
IG

IN
A

L)
(O

R
IG

IN
A

L)
(O

R
IG

IN
A

L)
(O

R
IG

IN
A

L)
£0

00
£0

00
%

£0
00

£0
00

%

C
O

R
PO

R
A

TE
 M

A
N

A
G

EM
EN

T
16

1
17

5
-8

.0
15

0
14

7
2.

0

IN
TE

R
N

A
L 

A
U

D
IT

  *
97

97
0.

0
92

10
0

-8
.0

H
R

 &
 P

M
U

 *
15

7
19

6
-1

9.
9

17
0

17
4

-2
.3

R
ES

EA
R

C
H

 &
 D

EM
O

C
R

A
TI

C
 S

ER
VI

C
ES

 * 
34

8
36

7
-5

.2
32

8
40

0
-1

8.
0

LE
G

A
L,

A
D

M
IN

 &
 E

ST
A

TE
S 

*
77

7
77

5
0.

3
68

6
76

3
-1

0.
1

FI
N

A
N

C
E 

 *
1,

41
9

1,
38

6
2.

4
1,

29
2

1,
31

8
-2

.0

IN
FO

,C
O

M
M

 &
 T

EC
H

39
1

46
0

-1
5.

0
31

4
38

6
-1

8.
7

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 S
ER

VI
C

ES
  *

 
1,

44
1

1,
49

4
-3

.5
1,

36
3

1,
43

7
-5

.1

PU
B

LI
C

 W
O

R
K

S 
U

N
IT

84
3

95
2

-1
1.

4
68

0
81

3
-1

6.
4

EN
VI

R
O

N
M

EN
TA

L 
SE

R
VI

C
ES

 * 
   

1,
16

0
1,

16
6

-0
.5

1,
02

1
1,

11
4

-8
.3

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

  *
1,

01
0

1,
09

9
-8

.1
97

5
98

2
-0

.7

LE
IS

U
R

E 
*  

1,
17

6
1,

20
4

-2
.3

2,
06

8
2,

26
9

-8
.9

TO
TA

L
8,

98
0

9,
37

1
-4

.2
9,

13
9

9,
90

3
-7

.7

* 
A

ge
nc

y 
co

st
s 

ar
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
sa

la
rie

s 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

.

Page 121



Page 122

This page is intentionally left blank



20
06

/0
7-

P
O

R
TF

O
LI

O
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 - 
LE

A
D

E
R

`S

06
/0

7
C

om
m

en
ts

Fu
ll 

Y
ea

r
06

/0
7

06
/0

7
05

/0
6

B
ud

ge
t

B
ud

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

A
ct

ua
l

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
%

M
aj

or
 in

co
m

e 
ite

m
s:

Lo
ca

l L
an

d 
C

ha
rg

es
38

4
19

2
21

5
19

3
23

11
.9

8

Th
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 re

fle
ct

s 
an

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
nu

m
be

r o
f 

se
ar

ch
es

 o
ve

r t
he

 s
am

e 
pe

rio
d 

la
st

 y
ea

r, 
an

d 
co

ns
eq

ue
nt

ly
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 in
co

m
e.

 T
he

re
 w

as
 

ho
w

ev
er

 a
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t r
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 th
e 

Fu
ll 

Y
ea

r 
B

ud
ge

t i
n 

20
06

/0
7 

ov
er

 2
00

5/
06

 o
f £

10
0,

00
0 

to
 

al
lo

w
 fo

r t
he

 re
du

ct
io

ns
 in

 s
ea

rc
he

s.

S
ec

on
d 

Q
ua

rte
r

06
/0

7
V

ar
ia

nc
e

B
ud

ge
t v

 A
ct

ua
l

Page 123



Page 124

This page is intentionally left blank



 2
00

6/
07

- P
O

R
TF

O
LI

O
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 - 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 W

E
LL

B
E

IN
G

06
/0

7
C

om
m

en
ts

Fu
ll 

Y
ea

r
06

/0
7

06
/0

7
05

/0
6

M
aj

or
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 it

em
s:

B
ud

ge
t

B
ud

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

A
ct

ua
l

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
%

G
ra

nt
s 

to
 V

ol
un

ta
ry

 G
ro

up
s

13
0 

35
 

16
 

20
 

-1
9 

-5
4.

12

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 te
nd

s 
to

 b
e 

he
av

ie
r t

ow
ar

d 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r a

nd
 in

 fa
ct

 th
e 

ac
tu

al
 in

cl
ud

es
 a

 
re

ve
rs

al
 fo

r g
ra

nt
s 

co
m

m
itt

ed
 in

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
ye

ar
s 

bu
t y

et
 to

 b
e 

pa
id

 o
ut

.  
Fo

r 2
00

6/
07

, £
31

,0
00

 
re

m
ai

ns
 u

nc
om

m
itt

ed
 a

t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

06
. £

99
,0

00
 in

 g
ra

nt
 a

id
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 in
 

to
ta

l f
or

 2
00

6/
07

, m
os

t o
f w

hi
ch

 is
 y

et
 to

 b
e 

pa
id

 
ou

t.

V
ol

un
ta

ry
 S

ec
to

r S
up

po
rt

16
1 

76
 

76
 

72
 

0 
0.

00
G

ra
nt

 re
la

te
s 

to
 C

A
B

, V
A

E
F 

an
d 

E
ss

ex
 W

om
en

s 
re

fu
ge

.

C
on

ce
ss

io
na

ry
 F

ar
es

89
1 

39
7 

36
0 

19
4 

-3
7 

-9
.4

2

C
S

B
 G

ro
w

th
  o

f £
58

2,
00

0 
is

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t y
ea

r f
or

 fr
ee

 tr
av

el
 fo

r o
ve

r 6
0'

s 
&

 
di

sa
bl

ed
. T

he
 ta

ke
 u

p 
of

 p
as

se
s 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 le
ss

 
th

an
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 a

nd
 th

er
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
sa

vi
ng

 o
n 

th
is

 b
ud

ge
t.

1,
18

2 
50

8 
45

2 
28

5 
-5

7 
-1

1.
13

M
aj

or
 in

co
m

e 
ite

m
s:

Li
ce

ns
in

g 
&

 R
eg

is
tra

tio
n

67
 

29
 

29
 

10
9 

0 
0.

00

H
ac

kn
ey

 C
ar

ria
ge

 L
ic

en
si

ng
10

7
57

61
55

4
7.

0

S
ec

on
d 

Q
ua

rte
r

06
/0

7

B
ud

ge
t v

 A
ct

ua
l

V
ar

ia
nc

e

Page 125



 2
00

6/
07

- P
O

R
TF

O
LI

O
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 - 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 W

E
LL

B
E

IN
G

17
4 

86
 

90
 

16
4 

4 
4.

56

Page 126



20
06

/0
7 

- P
O

R
TF

O
LI

O
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 - 
FI

N
A

N
C

E
 &

 P
E

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T 

&
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

TE
 S

U
P

P
O

R
T 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

06
/0

7
C

om
m

en
ts

Fu
ll 

Y
ea

r
06

/0
7

06
/0

7
05

/0
6

B
ud

ge
t

B
ud

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

A
ct

ua
l

M
aj

or
 in

co
m

e 
ite

m
s:

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
%

In
du

st
ria

l E
st

at
es

88
7

64
4

66
4

63
5

20
3.

1
Th

e 
es

tim
at

e 
an

d 
ac

tu
al

 in
co

m
e 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 th

re
e 

qu
ar

te
rs

 o
f a

nn
ua

l r
en

ts
 d

ue
. T

en
an

ts
 a

re
 m

ai
nl

y 
ch

ar
ge

d 
qu

ar
te

rly
 in

 a
dv

an
ce

.

La
nd

 &
 P

ro
pe

rty
20

9 
69

 
71

 
99

 
2 

2.
90

1,
09

6 
71

3 
73

5 
73

4 
22

 
3.

09

B
ud

ge
t v

 A
ct

ua
l

S
ec

on
d 

Q
ua

rte
r

06
/0

7
V

ar
ia

nc
e

Page 127



Page 128

This page is intentionally left blank



 2
00

6/
07

-P
O

R
TF

O
LI

O
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 - 
C

U
S

TO
M

E
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 M

E
D

IA
, &

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

TI
O

N
S

  &
 IC

T

06
/0

7
C

om
m

en
ts

Fu
ll 

Y
ea

r
06

/0
7

06
/0

7
05

/0
6

M
aj

or
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 it

em
s:

B
ud

ge
t

B
ud

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

A
ct

ua
l

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
%

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
58

5 
37

5 
37

6 
33

3 
1 

0.
27

Te
le

ph
on

es
22

9 
88

 
65

 
83

 
-2

3 
-2

6.
1

Th
e 

ac
tu

al
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 in

cl
ud

es
 tw

o 
m

on
th

s 
fo

r 
lin

e 
re

nt
al

, a
nd

 fi
ve

 m
on

th
s 

fo
r c

al
l c

ha
rg

es
.

81
4 

46
3 

44
1 

41
6 

-2
2 

-4
.7

5

S
ec

on
d 

Q
ua

rte
r

06
/0

7

B
ud

ge
t v

 A
ct

ua
l

V
ar

ia
nc

e

Page 129



Page 130

This page is intentionally left blank



P
O

R
TF

O
LI

O
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 - 
C

IV
IL

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 &

 M
A

IN
TE

N
A

N
C

E

06
/0

7
C

om
m

en
ts

M
aj

or
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 it

em
s:

Fu
ll 

Y
ea

r
06

/0
7

06
/0

7
05

/0
6

B
ud

ge
t

B
ud

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

A
ct

ua
l

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
%

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
G

en
er

al
 F

un
d

28
8 

12
3 

12
4 

14
2 

1 
0.

8

O
ff 

S
tre

et
 P

ar
ki

ng
54

4 
28

2 
28

8 
26

7 
6 

2.
13

O
n 

S
tre

et
 P

ar
ki

ng
36

2 
15

3 
11

1 
12

2 
-4

2 
-2

7.
45

P
ay

m
en

ts
to

th
e

pa
rk

in
g

co
nt

ra
ct

or
ar

e
la

gg
in

g
be

hi
nd

 e
xp

ec
ta

tio
ns

 d
ue

 to
 la

te
 in

vo
ic

in
g.

1,
19

4 
55

8 
52

3 
53

1 
-3

5 
-6

.2
7

M
aj

or
 in

co
m

e 
ite

m
s:

O
ff 

S
tre

et
 P

ar
ki

ng
1,

00
9 

50
5 

50
9 

56
6 

4 
0.

79

O
n 

S
tre

et
 P

ar
ki

ng
44

7 
22

3 
21

8 
20

7 
-5

 
-2

.2
4

1,
45

6 
72

8 
72

7 
77

3 
-1

 
-0

.1
4

S
ec

on
d 

Q
ua

rte
r

06
/0

7
V

ar
ia

nc
e

B
ud

ge
t v

 A
ct

ua
l

Page 131



Page 132

This page is intentionally left blank



P
O

R
TF

O
LI

O
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 - 
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

TA
L 

P
R

O
TE

C
TI

O
N

06
/0

7
C

om
m

en
ts

M
aj

or
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 it

em
s:

Fu
ll 

Y
ea

r
06

/0
7

06
/0

7
05

/0
6

B
ud

ge
t

B
ud

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

A
ct

ua
l

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
%

R
ef

us
e 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n

1,
62

6 
72

1 
40

2 
63

3 
-3

19
 

-4
4.

24
P

ay
m

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 a
re

 la
gg

in
g 

be
hi

nd
 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
n 

an
d 

th
er

ef
or

e 
fo

rm
 th

e 
m

aj
or

ity
 o

f t
hi

s 
un

de
rs

pe
nd

.

S
tre

et
 C

le
an

si
ng

1,
22

1 
51

0 
30

3 
46

8 
-2

07
 

-4
0.

59
A

s 
ab

ov
e

R
ec

yc
lin

g
1,

34
0 

61
9 

55
2 

53
5 

-6
7 

-1
0.

82
A

s 
ab

ov
e

4,
18

7 
1,

85
0 

1,
25

7 
1,

63
6 

-5
93

 
-3

2.
05

M
aj

or
 in

co
m

e 
ite

m
s:

R
ef

us
e 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n

27
5 

69
 

-6
9 

31
 

-1
38

 
-2

00
.6

3
Q

tr.
4 

20
05

/0
6 

an
d 

Q
tr.

 1
 2

00
6/

07
 u

nc
ol

le
ct

ed
 a

t 
30

 S
ep

te
m

be
r. 

A
n 

in
vo

ic
e 

fo
r t

he
 fi

na
l q

ua
rte

r o
f 

20
05

/0
6 

w
as

 ra
is

ed
 in

 la
te

 O
ct

ob
er

.

R
ec

yc
lin

g
34

4 
86

 
22

0 
63

 
13

4 
15

5.
94

R
ec

yc
le

d 
w

as
te

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

is
 s

ho
w

in
g 

a 
12

%
 

in
cr

ea
se

.

61
9 

15
5 

15
1 

94
 

-4
 

0.
00

S
ec

on
d 

Q
ua

rte
r

06
/0

7
V

ar
ia

nc
e

B
ud

ge
t v

 A
ct

ua
l

Page 133



Page 134

This page is intentionally left blank



P
O

R
TF

O
LI

O
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 - 
P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 &

 E
C

O
N

O
M

IC
 D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T

06
/0

7
Fu

ll 
Y

ea
r

06
/0

7
06

/0
7

05
/0

6
B

ud
ge

t
B

ud
ge

t
A

ct
ua

l
A

ct
ua

l
C

om
m

en
ts

M
aj

or
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 it

em
s

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
%

Fo
rw

ar
d 

P
la

nn
in

g
25

4 
14

3 
55

 
33

 
-8

8 
-6

1.
54

R
el

at
es

m
ai

nl
y

to
an

un
de

rs
pe

nd
on

th
e

Lo
ca

l
P

la
n

A
m

en
dm

en
t

(D
D

F)
.

Th
is

is
du

e
to

a
th

re
e

ye
ar

pr
oj

ec
tt

o
co

nv
er

tt
he

Lo
ca

lP
la

n
to

th
e

ne
w

ly
pr

op
os

ed
fo

rm
at

of
th

e
Lo

ca
l

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
Fr

am
ew

or
k;

so
m

e
of

th
is

un
de

rs
pe

nd
w

ill
ne

ed
to

be
 c

ar
rie

d 
fo

rw
ar

d 
to

 2
00

7/
08

.

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
on

tro
l

12
1 

56
 

37
 

57
 

-1
9 

-3
3.

93
U

nd
er

sp
en

d
on

pr
of

es
si

on
al

fe
es

fu
nd

ed
by

P
la

nn
in

g 
D

el
iv

er
y 

G
ra

nt
.

B
ui

ld
in

g 
C

on
tro

l F
ee

 E
ar

ni
ng

37
 

13
 

5 
51

 
-8

 
-6

1.
54

U
nd

er
sp

en
ds

on
th

e
ne

w
IT

sy
st

em
an

d
on

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 fe
es

41
2 

21
2 

97
 

14
1 

-1
15

 
-1

57
.0

1

M
aj

or
 in

co
m

e 
ite

m
s

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
on

tro
l

56
4 

28
2 

27
8 

27
5 

-4
 

-1
.4

2

B
ui

ld
in

g 
C

on
tro

l F
ee

 E
ar

ni
ng

58
6 

26
3 

26
0 

29
9 

-3
 

-1
.1

4

1,
15

0 
54

5 
53

8 
57

4 
-7

 
-2

.5
6

B
ud

ge
t v

 A
ct

ua
l

S
ec

on
d 

Q
ua

rte
r

06
/0

7
V

ar
ia

nc
e

Page 135



Page 136

This page is intentionally left blank



P
O

R
TF

O
LI

O
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 - 
H

O
U

S
IN

G
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T

06
/0

7
C

om
m

en
ts

M
aj

or
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 it

em
s:

Fu
ll 

Y
ea

r
06

/0
7

06
/0

7
05

/0
6

B
ud

ge
t

B
ud

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

A
ct

ua
l

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
%

M
an

ag
in

g 
Te

na
nc

ie
s

27
8

13
9

14
3

14
2

4
2.

9

H
ou

si
ng

 R
ep

ai
rs

5,
56

2 
2,

73
8 

2,
19

9 
1,

99
3 

-5
39

 
-1

9.
69

 

C
yc

lic
al

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

co
nt

ra
ct

s
st

ar
te

d
Ju

ly
20

06
;

so
m

e
de

la
y

in
in

vo
ic

in
g

fo
r

w
or

ks
ca

rr
ie

d
ou

t.
S

om
e

m
in

or
un

de
rs

pe
nd

s
al

so
ap

pe
ar

on
th

e
al

l
ar

ea
s 

sp
ec

ia
l w

or
ks

 b
ud

ge
t.

S
pe

ci
al

 It
em

s
1,

29
7 

64
9 

61
3 

59
1 

-3
6 

-5
.5

5

7,
13

7 
3,

52
6

2,
95

5
2,

72
6 

-5
71

 
-1

6.
19

M
aj

or
 in

co
m

e 
ite

m
s:

G
ro

ss
 D

w
el

lin
g 

R
en

t
22

,1
57

 
11

,0
79

11
,0

57
10

,3
77

 
-2

2 
-0

.2
0

C
ou

nc
il

ho
us

in
g

st
oc

k
is

lo
w

e r
th

an
ex

pe
ct

ed
;

ho
us

e
sa

le
s

to
da

te
ha

ve
ex

ce
ed

ed
la

st
ye

ar
's

es
tim

at
es

.

S
ec

on
d 

Q
ua

rte
r

06
/0

7
V

ar
ia

nc
e

B
ud

ge
t v

 A
ct

ua
l

Page 137



Page 138

This page is intentionally left blank



P
O

R
TF

O
LI

O
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 - 
LE

IS
U

R
E

06
/0

7
Fu

ll 
Y

ea
r

06
/0

7
06

/0
7

05
/0

6
C

om
m

en
ts

B
ud

ge
t

B
ud

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

A
ct

ua
l

M
aj

or
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 it

em
s:

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
%

M
us

eu
m

11
2 

64
 

58
 

52
 

-6
 

-9
.3

8
O

ut
re

ac
h 

P
ro

gr
am

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 £
6,

00
0 

un
de

rs
pe

nt
.

P
la

yg
ro

un
ds

 &
 O

pe
n 

S
pa

ce
s

18
8 

94
 

91
 

92
 

-3
 

-3
.1

9

N
or

th
 W

ea
ld

 C
en

tre
32

9 
18

8 
13

6 
10

9 
-5

2 
-2

7.
66

U
nd

er
sp

en
ds

on
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
an

d
el

ec
tri

ci
t y

ac
co

un
ts

 fo
r m

os
t o

f t
hi

s 
va

ria
nc

e.

62
9 

34
6 

28
5 

25
3 

-6
1 

-4
0.

23

M
aj

or
 in

co
m

e 
ite

m
s:

N
or

th
 W

ea
ld

 C
en

tre
1,

36
4 

70
0 

68
0 

69
0 

-2
0 

-2
.8

3

C
on

tra
ct

 c
os

t M
on

ito
rin

g

Le
is

ur
e 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s:
-

Lo
ug

ht
on

 L
ei

su
re

 C
en

tre
14

6 
61

 
40

 
N

/A
 

-2
1 

-3
4.

43
}

E
pp

in
g 

S
po

rts
 C

en
tre

14
0 

58
 

33
 

N
/A

 
-2

5 
-4

3.
10

}

W
al

th
am

 A
bb

ey
 S

w
im

m
in

g 
P

oo
l

48
7 

20
3 

12
1 

N
/A

 
-8

2 
-4

0.
39

}

O
ng

ar
 S

po
rts

 C
en

tre
57

8 
24

1 
15

6 
N

/A
 

-8
5 

-3
5.

27
}

1,
35

1 
56

3 
35

0 
0 

-2
13

 
-1

53
.1

9

In
vo

ic
es

 fo
r A

pr
il,

 M
ay

 a
nd

 J
un

e 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

re
ce

iv
ed

 a
nd

 p
ai

d;
 h

ow
ev

er
, t

he
 J

ul
y 

an
d 

A
ug

us
t 

in
vo

ic
es

 h
ad

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
re

ce
iv

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r. 
Th

e 
pa

ym
en

ts
 w

er
e 

fin
al

ly
 m

ad
e 

in
 

la
te

 O
ct

ob
er

.

V
ar

ia
nc

e
S

ec
on

d 
Q

ua
rte

r
06

/0
7

B
ud

ge
t v

 A
ct

ua
l

Page 139



Page 140

This page is intentionally left blank



P
O

R
TF

O
LI

O
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 - 
H

O
U

S
IN

G
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L 

FU
N

D

06
/0

7
Fu

ll 
Y

ea
r

06
/0

7
06

/0
7

05
/0

6
C

om
m

en
ts

B
ud

ge
t

B
ud

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

A
ct

ua
l

M
aj

or
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 it

em
s

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
%

B
ed

 &
 B

re
ak

fa
st

 A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n

27
7 

13
8 

17
2 

12
7 

34
 

24
.6

4

H
ig

he
r

nu
m

be
rs

of
vu

ln
er

ab
le

ho
m

el
es

s
pe

op
le

th
an

an
tic

ip
at

ed
ha

ve
re

qu
es

te
d

pl
ac

em
en

ts
th

ro
ug

h
th

e
C

ou
nc

il.
Th

e
C

ou
nc

il
ha

s
as

si
st

ed
on

ly
th

os
e

w
hi

ch
it

ha
s

a
st

at
ut

or
y

du
ty

to
ho

us
e,

an
d

ha
s

no
t

pl
ac

ed
an

y
fa

m
ili

es
in

be
d

an
d

br
ea

kf
as

t a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n.

M
aj

or
 in

co
m

e 
ite

m
s

B
ed

 &
 B

re
ak

fa
st

 A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n

27
7 

13
8 

19
5 

14
8 

57
 

41
.3

0

R
ei

m
bu

rs
em

en
t

fo
r

be
d

an
d

br
ea

kf
as

t
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

;
as

th
e

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
ha

s
ex

ce
ed

ed
bu

dg
et

ed
le

ve
ls

,
th

e
re

im
bu

rs
em

en
t

is
co

rr
es

po
nd

in
gl

y 
gr

ea
te

r.

Le
as

eh
ol

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
dm

in
13

8 
2 

3 
2 

1 
50

.0
0

A
ct

ua
la

dm
in

ch
ar

ge
s

ar
e

ca
lc

ul
at

ed
an

d
ap

pl
ie

d
to

 th
is

 a
cc

ou
nt

 a
t t

he
 y

ea
r e

nd
. 

41
5 

14
0 

19
8 

15
0 

58
 

91
.3

0

V
ar

ia
nc

e
S

ec
on

d 
Q

ua
rte

r
06

/0
7

B
ud

ge
t v

 A
ct

ua
l

Page 141



Page 142

This page is intentionally left blank



20
06

/0
7 

C
A

P
IT

A
L 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 - 
FI

N
A

N
C

E
, P

E
R

FO
R

M
A

N
C

E
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T 
&

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TE

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T 
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

  a
nd

 C
U

S
TO

M
E

R
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

, M
E

D
IA

 &
 IC

T

06
/0

7
C

om
m

en
ts

Fu
ll 

Y
ea

r
06

/0
7

06
/0

7
B

ud
ge

t
B

ud
ge

t
A

ct
ua

l
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
%

Fi
na

nc
e,

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
an

't 
&

 C
SS

Y
ou

th
 S

po
rts

 F
ac

ili
tie

s
12

4 
62

 
60

 
-2

 
-3

.2
3

G
ra

nt
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 a
re

 p
ro

gr
es

si
ng

 w
el

l.

C
ou

nt
ry

ca
re

 V
eh

ic
le

28
 

0 
0 

0 
0.

00
Th

e 
ve

hi
cl

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 a
nd

 p
ai

d 
fo

r i
n 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

6.

C
iv

ic
 O

ffi
ce

 W
or

ks
77

 
0 

0 
0 

0.
00

A
lth

ou
gh

 n
o 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 is

 s
ho

w
n 

at
 3

0 
S

ep
te

m
be

r w
or

ks
 h

av
e 

be
en

 p
ro

gr
es

si
ng

 w
ith

 
so

m
e 

pa
ym

en
ts

 b
ei

ng
 m

ad
e 

du
rin

g 
O

ct
ob

er
.

G
en

er
al

 C
ap

ita
l C

on
tin

ge
nc

y
12

5 
0 

0 
0 

0.
00

It 
lo

ok
s 

lik
el

y 
th

at
 a

 v
ire

m
en

t t
o 

th
e 

W
he

el
le

d 
bi

ns
 

an
d 

bi
n 

lif
t b

ud
ge

t w
ill

 b
e 

ne
cc

es
ar

y.
 A

 re
po

rt 
w

ill
 

be
 p

re
pa

re
d 

to
 th

at
 e

ffe
ct

 fo
r t

he
 n

ex
t c

ab
in

et
.

To
ta

l
35

4 
62

 
60

 
-2

 
3.

23

C
us

to
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s,

 M
ed

ia
 &

 IC
T

IE
G

 fu
nd

ed
 IC

T 
sc

he
m

es
42

3
14

0 
12

6
-1

4 
-1

0.
16

B
y 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 th

is
 fi

na
nc

ia
l y

ea
r, 

th
e 

R
ev

en
ue

s 
an

d 
B

en
ef

its
 S

ys
te

m
 is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 b
e 

pr
oc

ur
ed

 a
nd

 
th

e 
fir

st
 p

ha
se

 o
f t

he
 E

R
D

M
S

 s
ys

te
m

  i
s 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 
to

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
.

O
th

er
 IC

T 
P

ro
je

ct
s

49
6

17
6 

16
6 

-1
0 

-5
.6

8

C
om

pu
te

r S
ui

te
 2

 is
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r. 

Th
e 

pl
an

ne
d 

ne
w

 
te

le
ph

on
y 

sy
st

em
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ab
an

do
ne

d 
an

d 
a 

ca
rr

y 
fo

rw
ar

d 
of

 a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

£1
30

,0
00

 is
 

th
er

ef
or

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
G

en
er

al
 IT

 b
ud

ge
t. 

Th
e 

fin
al

 in
st

al
m

en
t o

f t
he

 L
an

d 
C

ha
rg

es
 s

ys
te

m
 h

as
 

be
en

 w
ith

he
ld

 p
en

di
ng

 a
cc

ep
ta

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
sy

st
em

 
in

 fu
ll,

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
6.

B
ud

ge
t v

 A
ct

ua
l

S
ec

on
d 

Q
ua

rte
r

06
/0

7
V

ar
ia

nc
e

Page 143



20
06

/0
7 

C
A

P
IT

A
L 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 - 
FI

N
A

N
C

E
, P

E
R

FO
R

M
A

N
C

E
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T 
&

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TE

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T 
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

  a
nd

 C
U

S
TO

M
E

R
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

, M
E

D
IA

 &
 IC

T

To
ta

l
91

9
31

6 
29

2 
-2

4 
-7

.6
7

Page 144



 2
00

6/
07

 C
A

P
IT

A
L 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 - 
LE

IS
U

R
E

 a
nd

 E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
TA

L 
P

R
O

TE
C

TI
O

N

06
/0

7
C

om
m

en
ts

Fu
ll 

Y
ea

r
06

/0
7

06
/0

7
B

ud
ge

t
B

ud
ge

t
A

ct
ua

l
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
%

Le
is

ur
e

Lo
ug

ht
on

 L
ei

su
re

 C
en

tre
54

27
25

-2
 

-7
.4

1 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 s

til
l p

ur
su

in
g 

th
e 

A
rc

hi
te

ct
s 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
th

e 
hi

gh
lig

ht
ed

 c
la

im
s.

 T
he

 te
nd

er
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

te
ac

hi
ng

 p
oo

l b
al

co
ny

 c
oo

lin
g/

ve
nt

ila
tio

n 
ha

ve
 

be
en

 re
tu

rn
ed

 a
nd

 th
is

 w
or

k 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 

in
 th

e 
ne

xt
 fe

w
 m

on
th

s.

O
ng

ar
 L

ei
su

re
 C

en
tre

 : 
E

xt
en

si
on

45
3

0
0

0
0.

00

Th
e 

w
or

k 
at

 O
ng

ar
 L

ei
su

re
 C

en
tre

 is
 w

el
l u

nd
er

 
w

ay
. T

he
re

 is
 a

 p
ha

se
d 

op
en

in
g 

of
 v

ar
io

us
 p

ar
ts

 
of

 th
e 

bu
ild

in
g 

an
d 

it 
sh

ou
ld

 a
ll 

be
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 in
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
07

.

O
th

er
 L

ei
su

re
 S

ch
em

es
10

6
27

0
-2

7 
-1

00
.0

0 

Th
is

 in
cl

ud
es

 th
e 

M
us

eu
m

 R
ed

is
pl

ay
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e;
 

th
e 

re
ch

ar
ge

ab
le

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t W

or
ks

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

an
nu

al
ly

 a
t N

or
th

 W
ea

ld
 A

irf
ie

ld
; a

nd
 th

e 
D

is
tri

ct
 

fu
nd

ed
 S

ec
ur

ity
 W

or
ks

 a
t t

he
 A

irf
ie

ld
, n

ow
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
.

To
ta

l
61

3
54

25
-2

9 
53

.2
7

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l P
ro

te
ct

io
n

B
ob

bi
ng

w
or

th
 T

ip
 

1,
65

9
18

0
83

-9
7 

-5
3.

76
 

Th
e 

m
ai

n 
w

or
ks

 o
n 

si
te

 h
av

e 
be

en
 d

el
ay

ed
 fo

r 
va

rio
us

 re
as

on
s 

an
d 

ar
e 

no
w

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 to
 g

o 
ah

ea
d 

be
tw

ee
n 

M
ar

ch
 a

nd
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
7.

 It
 is

 
es

tim
at

ed
 th

at
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
£1

,3
00

,0
00

 w
ill

 n
ee

d
to

 b
e 

ca
rr

ie
d 

fo
rw

ar
d 

in
to

 2
00

7/
08

.

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

53
3

53
3

57
8

45
8.

44

Th
e 

co
st

 o
f W

he
el

le
d 

bi
ns

 a
nd

 b
in

 li
fts

 h
av

e 
ex

ce
ed

ed
 th

e 
es

tim
at

e 
by

 £
45

,0
00

. I
t w

ill
 

th
er

ef
or

e 
be

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 s
ee

k 
a 

vi
re

m
en

t f
ro

m
 

th
e 

ca
pi

ta
l c

on
tin

ge
nc

y 
to

 c
ov

er
 th

is
 o

ve
rs

pe
nd

. 

To
ta

l
2,

19
2

71
3

66
1

-5
2 

-4
5.

32
 

S
ec

on
d 

Q
ua

rte
r

06
/0

7

B
ud

ge
t v

 A
ct

ua
l

V
ar

ia
nc

e

Page 145



 2
00

6/
07

 C
A

P
IT

A
L 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 - 
C

IV
IL

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 &

 M
A

IN
TE

N
A

N
C

E

06
/0

7
Fu

ll 
Y

ea
r

06
/0

7
06

/0
7

B
ud

ge
t

B
ud

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

%
C

iv
il 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

&
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce

TC
E

: L
ou

gh
to

n 
H

ig
h 

R
oa

d 
W

or
ks

91
4

68
6

69
0

5
0.

66

Th
e 

w
or

ks
 o

n 
ph

as
e 

2 
of

 th
e 

Lo
ug

ht
on

 H
ig

h 
R

oa
d 

To
w

n 
C

en
tre

 E
nh

an
ce

m
en

t S
ch

em
e 

ar
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 

no
w

, a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

tw
o 

m
on

th
s 

ov
er

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e.

 F
in

al
 

pa
ym

en
ts

, h
ow

ev
er

, a
re

 s
til

l t
o 

be
 m

ad
e.

TC
E

: L
ou

gh
to

n 
B

ro
ad

w
ay

 W
or

ks
98

6
24

7
34

-2
13

 
-8

6.
21

 

W
or

k 
on

 th
e 

Lo
ug

ht
on

 B
ro

ad
w

ay
 T

C
E

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
de

la
ye

d 
pe

nd
in

g 
fin

al
is

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

27
8 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t. 

P
ha

se
 

1,
 th

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t o
f t

he
 c

ar
 p

ar
ks

, s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 
in

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

6 
an

d 
ph

as
e 

2 
w

ill
 c

om
m

en
ce

 in
 2

00
7.

C
ar

 P
ar

ki
ng

 &
 T

ra
ffi

c 
S

ch
em

es
63

5
16

8
67

-1
01

 
-6

0.
12

 
Th

e 
ca

r p
ar

k 
up

gr
ad

es
 a

t B
uc

kh
ur

st
 H

ill
 a

nd
 C

ot
tis

 L
an

e 
ar

e 
pr

og
re

ss
in

g 
w

el
l b

ut
 o

th
er

 p
ar

ki
ng

 re
vi

ew
s 

an
d 

tra
ffi

c 
sc

he
m

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 d
el

ay
ed

.

O
th

er
 C

iv
il 

E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

S
ch

em
es

11
0

25
1

-2
4 

-9
6.

00
 

P
ro

je
ct

s 
in

cl
ud

ed
 h

er
e 

ar
e 

th
e 

E
pp

in
g 

D
rin

ki
ng

 F
ou

nt
ai

n,
 

th
e 

Fl
oo

d 
A

lle
vi

at
io

n 
S

ch
em

es
 a

nd
 G

ro
un

ds
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

P
la

nt
 a

nd
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t. 
Th

e 
E

pp
in

g 
fo

un
ta

in
 is

 d
ue

 to
 b

e 
un

de
rta

ke
n 

in
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
6.

 T
he

 H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 S

af
et

y 
dr

ai
na

ge
 w

or
ks

 h
av

e 
be

en
 d

el
ay

ed
 b

ut
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

an
d 

th
e 

in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 p

la
nn

ed
 to

 
id

en
tif

y 
ca

pi
ta

l  
re

pa
irs

 to
 th

e 
dr

ai
na

ge
 s

ys
te

m
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
de

la
ye

d,
 it

 is
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

th
er

ef
or

e 
th

at
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
£2

5,
00

0 
m

ay
 b

e 
re

qu
es

te
d 

fo
r c

ar
ry

 fo
rw

ar
d.

 F
in

al
ly

, 
gr

ou
nd

s 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 p

la
nt

 a
cq

ui
si

tio
ns

 fo
r t

hi
s 

ye
ar

 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 s

oo
n 

an
d 

a 
su

m
 o

f £
19

,0
00

 is
 li

ke
ly

 to
 

be
 re

qu
es

te
d 

fo
r c

ar
ry

 fo
rw

ar
d 

in
 o

rd
er

 th
at

 a
 £

34
,0

00
 

tra
ct

or
 c

an
 b

e 
pu

rc
ha

se
d 

in
 2

00
7/

08
.

To
ta

l
2,

64
5

1,
12

5
79

2
-3

33
 

-2
9.

60
 

V
ar

ia
nc

e
B

ud
ge

t v
 A

ct
ua

l

06
/0

7
S

ec
on

d 
Q

ua
rte

r

Page 146



P
O

R
TF

O
LI

O
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 - 
H

O
U

S
IN

G
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L 

FU
N

D

06
/0

7
Fu

ll 
Y

ea
r

06
/0

7
06

/0
7

C
om

m
en

ts
B

ud
ge

t
B

ud
ge

t
A

ct
ua

l
H

ou
si

ng
 G

en
er

al
 F

un
d

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

%

C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 to
 A

ffo
rd

ab
le

 H
ou

si
ng

1,
00

0 
25

0 
0 

-2
50

 
-1

00
.0

0 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
is

 b
ei

ng
 m

ad
e 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 
ho

us
in

g 
in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 E
st

ua
ry

 H
ou

si
ng

 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n.
 P

la
nn

in
g 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

se
cu

re
d 

on
 4

 o
ut

 o
f t

he
 8

 s
ite

s 
to

 d
at

e 
an

d 
on

e 
sc

he
m

e 
ha

s 
ha

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

er
m

is
si

on
 re

fu
se

d.
 W

ith
 re

ga
rd

 to
 th

e 
bu

dg
et

 fo
r u

na
llo

ca
te

d 
sc

he
m

es
, C

ab
in

et
 is

 d
ue

 to
 

co
ns

id
er

 a
 re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
on

 1
3 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

6 
th

at
 th

is
 a

ll 
be

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
to

 L
on

do
n 

&
 Q

ua
dr

an
t 

H
ou

si
ng

 T
ru

st
 to

 c
on

ve
rt 

a 
m

ar
ke

t h
ou

si
ng

 s
ch

em
e 

in
 O

ng
ar

 to
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

.

D
is

ab
le

d 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

G
ra

nt
s

50
0 

25
0

16
2 

-8
8 

-3
5.

20
 

D
is

ab
le

d
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s

G
ra

nt
ap

pr
ov

al
s

ar
e

in
lin

e
w

ith
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
an

d
it

is
an

tic
ip

at
ed

th
at

th
e

bu
dg

et
w

ill
be

 fu
lly

 e
xp

en
de

d 
by

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r.

O
th

er
 P

riv
at

e 
S

ec
to

r G
ra

nt
s

50
9 

13
0

58
 

-7
2 

-5
5.

21
 

A
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 P
ol

ic
y 

is
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 p
ro

ce
ss

 th
e 

gr
an

ts
 

th
at

 w
ill

 b
e 

fu
nd

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l a

llo
ca

tio
n 

by
 

G
O

-E
as

t. 
 T

he
 re

vi
se

d 
P

ol
ic

y 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 
re

dr
af

te
d.

 

A
lfr

ed
 R

oa
d 

D
ra

in
ag

e 
W

or
ks

9 
5

0 
-5

 
-1

00
.0

0 
Th

e
pr

op
os

al
ag

re
ed

ha
s

m
et

w
ith

re
si

st
an

ce
fro

m
th

e
co

m
pl

ai
na

nt
s

an
d

th
e

sc
he

m
e

is
un

lik
el

y
to

pr
oc

ee
d 

no
w

. 

C
P

O
 8

/8
A

 S
un

 S
tre

et
, W

. A
bb

ey
37

8 
0

0 
0

0.
00

Th
e 

co
m

pu
ls

or
y 

pu
rc

ha
se

 o
f 8

/8
A

 S
un

 S
tre

et
 is

 
be

in
g 

pu
rs

ue
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t o

w
ne

r.

To
ta

l
2,

39
6 

63
4 

22
0 

-1
64

 
-1

90
.4

1

V
ar

ia
nc

e
S

ec
on

d 
Q

ua
rte

r
06

/0
7

B
ud

ge
t v

 A
ct

ua
l

Page 147



20
06

/0
7 

C
A

P
IT

A
L 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 - 
H

O
U

S
IN

G
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T

06
/0

7
C

om
m

en
ts

Fu
ll 

Y
ea

r
06

/0
7

06
/0

7
B

ud
ge

t
B

ud
ge

t
A

ct
ua

l
H

ou
si

ng
 R

ev
en

ue
 A

cc
ou

nt
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
%

S
pr

in
gf

ie
ld

s,
 W

al
th

am
 A

bb
ey

93
6 

33
0 

40
 

-2
90

 
-8

7.
88

Th
e

im
pr

ov
em

en
t

w
or

ks
to

be
ca

rr
ie

d
ou

t
at

S
pr

in
gf

ie
ld

s
ha

ve
be

en
de

la
ye

d
du

e
to

th
e

re
pu

rc
ha

se
of

th
e

le
as

eh
ol

d
fla

ts
.

It
is

an
tic

ip
at

ed
th

at
th

e
w

or
ks

w
ill

no
tn

ow
co

m
m

en
ce

be
fo

re
th

e
en

d
of

th
is

fin
an

ci
al

ye
ar

an
d

th
at

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y
£2

70
,0

00
of

th
e

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
ud

ge
t m

ay
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
ca

rr
ie

d 
fo

rw
ar

d 
to

 2
00

7/
08

.

W
ic

kf
ie

ld
s

79
0 

0 
0 

0 
0.

00
W

ic
kf

ie
ld

s
w

as
tra

ns
fe

rr
ed

to
W

ar
de

n
H

ou
si

ng
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
on

16
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
6.

H
ea

tin
g/

R
ew

iri
ng

1,
35

6 
67

8 
65

3 
-2

5 
-3

.6
9

A
ll

bo
ile

r
re

pl
ac

em
en

ts
,

he
at

in
g

up
gr

ad
es

an
d

re
w

iri
ng

co
nt

ra
ct

s
ar

e 
on

 ta
rg

et
.

W
in

do
w

s/
R

oo
fin

g 
/ A

sb
es

to
s 

/ W
at

er
 T

an
ks

89
1 

25
0 

16
7 

-8
3 

-3
3.

20

Fu
rth

er
co

nt
ra

ct
s

ar
e

to
be

le
tf

or
w

in
do

w
re

pl
ac

em
en

ta
nd

ro
of

in
g

w
or

ks
.

It
is

po
ss

ib
le

th
at

so
m

e
of

th
es

e
bu

dg
et

s
m

ay
ha

ve
to

be
ca

rr
ie

d
fo

rw
ar

d.
Th

e
as

be
st

os
w

or
ks

ha
ve

no
w

co
m

m
en

ce
d

an
d

th
e

w
at

er
ta

nk
s

co
nt

ra
ct

ha
s

be
en

te
nd

er
ed

;
bo

th
es

tim
at

es
ar

e
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 b
e 

fu
lly

 e
xp

en
de

d 
by

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 2

00
6/

07
.

O
th

er
 P

la
nn

ed
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
71

5 
21

7 
12

3 
-9

4 
-4

3.
32

Th
is

 in
cl

ud
es

 th
e 

N
or

w
ay

 H
ou

se
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
; c

om
m

un
al

 T
V

 
up

gr
ad

es
; d

oo
r e

nt
ry

 s
ys

te
m

s,
 c

ap
ita

l d
ra

in
ag

e 
w

or
ks

; a
nd

 e
ne

rg
y 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
w

or
ks

. A
ll 

bu
dg

et
 a

re
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 b

e 
sp

en
t b

y 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r e
xc

ep
t f

or
 th

e 
en

er
gy

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 w

or
ks

 w
hi

ch
 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t i
n 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 B

rit
is

h 
G

as
. E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

in
 2

00
6/

07
 is

 d
iff

ic
ul

t t
o 

as
se

ss
 b

ut
 it

 m
ay

 b
e 

th
at

  a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

 
£1

00
,0

00
 w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
ca

rr
ie

d 
fo

rw
ar

d 
in

to
 2

00
7/

08
.

O
th

er
 C

ap
ita

l W
or

ks
3,

17
3 

93
3 

50
6 

-4
27

 
-4

5.
77

Th
is

re
pr

es
en

ts
al

l
ot

he
r

H
R

A
ca

pi
ta

l
pr

oj
ec

ts
;

in
cl

ud
in

g
m

aj
or

st
ru

ct
ur

al
re

pa
irs

;
di

sa
bl

ed
ad

ap
ta

tio
ns

;
ki

tc
he

n
&

ba
th

ro
om

re
pl

ac
em

en
ts

;
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l

&
of

f
st

re
et

pa
rk

in
g

sc
he

m
es

;
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
to

sh
op

pi
ng

pa
ra

de
s;

an
d

ot
he

r
sm

al
l

ca
pi

ta
l

re
pa

irs
.

It
is

an
tic

ip
at

ed
th

at
th

er
e

w
ill

be
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

sl
ip

pa
ge

on
st

ru
ct

ur
al

sc
he

m
es

,o
ff

st
re

et
pa

rk
in

g,
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
to

sh
op

s
an

d
sm

al
l

ca
pi

ta
l

re
pa

irs
.

Th
e

to
ta

l
po

te
nt

ia
l

ca
rr

y
fo

rw
ar

d
ha

s
be

en
es

tim
at

ed
 a

t a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

£1
,0

00
,0

00
.

To
ta

l
7,

86
1 

24
08

 
14

89
 

-9
19

 
-3

8.
16

S
ec

on
d 

Q
ua

rte
r

06
/0

7
V

ar
ia

nc
e

B
ud

ge
t v

 A
ct

ua
l

Page 148



Report to Finance and Performance Management Standing 
Panel 
 
Date of meeting: 14 November 2006 
 
Portfolio:  Finance and Performance Management 
 
Subject:  Fees and Charges 2007/08 
 
Officer contact for further information:  Peter Maddock – Assistant Head of Finance 

(Ext 4602) 
Committee Secretary:  A. Hendry (Ext 4246) 
 
Recommendations/Decisions Required: 
 

That the Panel consider the policy for increasing fees and charges for 2007/08, 
and recommends a general increase of 3.5% to the Finance and Performance 
Management Cabinet Committee. 

 
Report: 
 
Introduction 
 
.1 As part of the budget setting process the level of fees and charges are considered for the 

forthcoming financial year. The general premise is that fees and charges will be increased 
by 3.5% in line with the retail prices index. However where it can be justified a higher 
increase should be considered. This report is intended to give members an opportunity to 
comment on those fees and charges proposed for 2007/08. 

 
Leisure Services 
 
.2 The general uplift for fees and charges is specified within the leisure contract, however if 

there is any exceptional changes to specific charges, these cannot be varied without 
recourse to the Council.  

 
Civil Engineering and Maintenance 
 
.3 A report is scheduled for consideration at Cabinet on13 November proposing the 

introduction of some free parking in short stay car parks on Saturdays, the anticipated 
lost income as a result is in the region of £75,000. Having said that a revised fee 
structure is being formulated that will endeavour to provide at least a 3.5% increase on 
the total fee income after the £75,000 has been deducted from the original budget. The 
proposed tariff structure for 2007/08 is shown in Appendix 1.  

  
Finance and Performance Management 
 
.3 There are no fees subject to the annual uplift as income of this portfolio relates to 

Government Subsidies and Industrial Estate rents. 
 
Leader’s Portfolio 
 
.4 The main source of income to this Portfolio is for Land Charge searches. The recent fall 

in search income appears to have levelled out and the revised figure for 2006/07 is 
expected to be £15,000 higher than originally anticipated. However given the recent 
difficulties competing with the charge relating to private searches it is the view of officers 
that an increase at this time would again make the service less attractive and income lost 
through reduced searches would exceed the gain by increasing price.  

Agenda Item 10

Page 149



 
Planning and Economic Development  
 
.5 The two main income areas within this portfolio are Development Control and Building 

Control fees.  
 
.6 Development Control fee levels are controlled by Central Government. An increase was 

applied from 1 April 2005, however no indication has been given regarding fee increases 
for 2007/08 and it is assumed that no increase will occur. 

 
.7 Building Control Fees are income to the ring-fenced Building Control Charging Account 

and therefore do not affect the General Fund. Fees and Charges were increased from 1 
July 2006 in order to ensure that in 2006/07 the fee earning account did not fall into 
deficit. Given that the costs incurred by the account are likely to be subject to inflation it is 
proposed to increase charges by 3.5% from 1 April 2007. 

 
Environmental Protection 
 
.8 All fees in this area are recommended to increase by 3.5% to cover inflation. The 

proposed fee structure is set out in Appendix 2. 
 
Community Wellbeing 
 
.9 The income here relates to Licences. The 2003 Licensing act transferred responsibilities 

to Local Councils for the administering and granting of Public Entertainment licences. The 
fee structure is governed by statute and there is therefore no discretion on fee levels. 
Other licences, which the council can set, are to be increased by 3.5%. Full details are 
also contained in Appendix 2. 

 
Housing 
 
.10 The Housing Portfolio has a number of fees and charges, most of which relate to income 

to the Housing Revenue Account.  The schedule at Appendix 3 shows the levels 
proposed for 2007/08. These generally represent an increase of around 3.5% from the 
2006/07 levels. 

 
.11 For administrative and practical ease, it is proposed that two nominal “standard charges” 

remain the same (dishonoured cheques and file photocopying). A detailed review of 
heating charges at the Homeless Persons Hostel will be undertaken during 2007, since it 
is some time since a detailed reconciliation has been made between the fuel charges the 
Council pays to the utility supplier and the charges the Council makes to residents.  In the 
meantime, despite fuel charges generally being increased nationally, there is no need to 
increase the charges any more than 3.5% for 2007/08. 

 
.12 As previously agreed by members, licences for vehicular access across housing land that 

were issued before 1 July 2002 will be brought into line, for the first time, with those 
charges for licences issued after 1 July 2002.  These will then be increased annually by 
inflation from 2008/09, in the same way as other fees and charges. 

 
.13 The schedule now also includes the new charges agreed for the three management 

services that the Council provides to Home Group, following the transfer of Wickfields 
sheltered housing, Chigwell in October 2006. 

 
Conclusion 
 
.14 The proposed policy for increasing fees and charges for 2007/08 are presented for 

comment but generally are based on an increase of 3.5%.  

Page 150



           Appendix 1 
 
Short stay car parks 

 Up to 30 
minutes 

Up to 1 
hour 

Up to 2 
hours 

Up to 3 
hours 

Over 3 
hours 

Previous £0.20 £0.60 £1.00 £2.50 £8.00 
Existing £0.10 £0.60 £1.20 £2.50 £8.00 
Proposed £0.15 £0.65 £1.30 £2.60 £9.00 
 
Long stay 
 Up to 2 

hours 
 

Over 2 
hours 

Previous £1.00 £2.50 
Existing £1.20 £2.50 
Proposed £1.30 £2.60 
 
Combined  
 Up to 30 

minutes 
Up to 1 

hour 
Up to 2 
hours 

Over 2 
hours 

 
Previous £0.20 £0.60 £1.00 £2.50 
Existing £0.10 £0.60 £1.20 £2.50 
Proposed £0.15 £0.65 £1.30 £2.60 
 
On street+ 
 Up to 30 

minutes 
Up to 1 

hour 
Up to 2 
hours 

 
Previous £0.10 £0.60 £1.00 
Existing £0.10 £0.60 £1.20 
Proposed £0.15 £0.65 £1.30 
 
 
Season tickets (240 days each year)   
EDR = Equivalent daily rate compared to £2.60 short stay and £9.00 long stay. 
Long stay car parks    
  Discount Period cost Cost p/a EDR 

Monthly 10% £47 £562 £2.34 
Quarterly 20% £125 £499 £2.08 

Annual 30% £437 £437 £1.82 
     
Short stay car parks    
  Discount Period cost Cost p/a EDR 

Monthly 10% £162 £1,944 £8.10 
Quarterly 20% £432 £1,728 £7.20 
Annual 30% £1,512 £1,512 £6.30 
 

Page 151



Page 152

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2

Fees and Charges 2007/08 - ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH
Service 2006/2007 2007/2008

First Application Renewal First Application Renewal
Training
Basic Food Hygiene Course £47.00 - £49.00 -
Basic Health & Safety Course £40.00 - £41.00 -

Animals
Animal Boarding £234.00 £160.00 £242.00 £166.00
Dog Breeding £234.00 £160.00 £242.00 £166.00
Pet Animals Act £234.00 £160.00 £242.00 £166.00
Dangerous Wild Animals £512.50 £347.00 £530.00 £359.00
Riding Establishment £512.00 £430.00 £530.00 £445.00
Stray Dog (all occasions) £60.00 Plus £9 per day £62.00 Plus £9 per day

Pest control (inc.VAT)
Rats / Cockroaches Free - Free -
Mice £27.00 - £28.00 -
Wasps £39.00 - £40.00 -
Others £27.00 - £28.00 -
Concessions 50% to those of 50% to those of

pensionable age pensionable age

Hackney Carriage/Private Hire
Annual vehicle licence £257.00 £257.00 £266.00 £266.00
Annual driver licence £79.00 £79.00 £82.00 £82.00
Vehicle plate £26.00 Refundable £27.00 Refundable
Driver badge £6.00 - £6.00 -

Private Hire Operators
Annual operator licence for 1 vehicle only £35.00 £35.00 £36.00 £36.00
Annual operator licence for more than 1 vehicle £131.00 £131.00 £136.00 £136.00
Plate exemption £79.00 £79.00 £82.00 £82.00

Miscellaneous
Amusements with Prizes £32.00 - £32.00 -
Special treatments (premises) £95.00 - £98.00 -
Special treatments (person) £48.00 - £50.00 -
Lotteries £37.00 - £38.00 -
Game dealers £35.00 £17.50 £35.00 £17.50

Transfer/amendment of the above licences
Licensing Panel - £76.00 - £79.00
Officer - £51.00 - £53.00

Licensing Act 2003 fees set by statute

Page 153



Page 154

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 Appendix 3  
  
 
 

Fees and Charges 2006/7 – HOUSING RELATED SERVICES 
 
                                            Service 

 
2007/8 

 
         2006/7 

 
Communal Halls: 
     Pelly Court Hall, Epping 
     Oakwood Hill Hall, Loughton 
     Barrington Hall, Loughton  

 
 
£7.85 per hour 
£147.00 per annum 
£6.35 per session   

 
 
£7.60 per hour 
£142.00 per annum 
£6.15 per session 

 
Hire of Halls for Elections     

 
£64.20 per day 

 
£62.00 per day 

 
Guest Rooms - Sheltered Housing 

 
£6.60 per room per 
night 

 
£6.40 per room per 
night 

 
Dispersed Alarms: 
          Alarm units 
          Smoke Detectors 
          Additional Pendants 
          Control Monitoring (per speech module) 
          Flood Detector 
          Fall Detector 
          Carbon Monoxide Detector 
          Extreme Temperature Sensor 
          Pressure Mat 
          Pull Cord Installation 
          Bogus Caller Button 
          Large Button Telephone 

 
 
£149.00 per annum 
£37.20 per annum 
£33.45 per annum 
£79.20 per annum 
£40.35 per annum 
£52.00 per annum 
£53.00 per annum 
£51.45 per annum 
£50.90 per annum 
£54.55 per annum 
£40.40 per annum 
£17.00 per telephone 

 
 
£144.00 per annum 
£35.90 per annum 
£32.30 per annum 
£76.50 per annum 
£39.00 per annum 
£50.25 per annum 
£51.25 per annum 
£49.70 per annum 
£49.20 per annum 
£52.70 per annum 
£39.00 per annum 
£16.40 per telephone 

 
Leasehold Vendors’ Enquiries 

 
£103.35 per enquiry 

 
£99.85 per enquiry 

 
Certificates of Buildings Insurance – 
Leaseholders 

 
£32.90 per copy 

 
£31.80 per copy 

 
Hardstandings 

 
£23.55 per annum 

 
£22.75 per annum 

 
Scooter Stores: 
          Rental 
          Electricity 

 
 
£3.10 per week 
£1.45 per week 

 
 
£3.00 per week 
£1.40 per week 

 
Dis-honoured cheques 

 
£10.00 per cheque 

 
£10 per cheque 

 
Homeless Hostel Accommodation: 

One room: 
Room charge 
Heating charge 

Two rooms: 
Room charge 
Heating charge  

Three rooms 
Room charge 
Heating charge  

Chalet: 
Room charge 

 
 
 
£34.00 per week  
£13.50 per week 
 
£53.00 per week  
£20.30 per week 
 
£71.40 per week  
£23.65 per week 
 
£61.85 per week  

 
 
 
£32.80 per week 
£13.05 per week 
 
£51.25 per week 
£19.60 per week 
 
£69.00 per week 
£22.85 per week 
 
£59.75 per week 

Page 155



 
 Appendix 3  
  

Heating charge £20.30 per week £19.60 per week 
 
Bed and Breakfast Accommodation: 
          Single Room 
          Double Room 
          Family Room 

 
 
£40.30 per night 
£60.55 per night 
£74.70 per night 

 
 

£38.95 per night 
£58.50 per night 
£72.15 per night 

 
Mortgage references 

 
£30.10 per enquiry 

 
£29.10 per enquiry 

 
Requests for covenant approval 

 
£48.10 per request 

 
£46.50 per request 

 
Licences for vehicular access across housing 
land: 
        Licences after 1.7.02 
        Licences before 1.7.02 

 
 
 

£80 per annum 
£80 per annum 

 
 
 
£80 per annum 
£70 per annum 

 
Condition surveys to respond to Party Wall Act 
Notices 

 
£54.30 per Notice 

 
£52.50 per Notice 

 
Copies of Structural Reports on RTB Properties 

 
£26.90 per report 

 
£26.00 per report 

 
Replacement Door Entry and Suited Keys 

 
£10.15 per key 

 
£9.80 per key 

 
Garage Rents  

 
£6.60 per week  

 
£6.40 per week 

 
Small Land Sales Valuation Charge 

 
£265 per sale 

 
£255 per sale 

 
File Copying Charge 

 
£10 per request 

 
£10 per request 

 
Valuation & Legal Charge – Re-sale of RTB 
Property within 5 years or Sale of RTB Property 
to EFDC within 10 Years  

 
£265 per application 

 
£255 per application 

 
Consideration of Right to Re-purchase Former 
RTB Property within 10 years of Original 
Purchase  

 
£47.00 per application 

 
£45.40 per application 

 
Management services to Home Group for 
Wickfields sheltered housing scheme, Chigwell: 
 
         (a)  Careline Service (per speech module) 
          
         (b)  Scheme Management 
 
         
         (c)  Cleaning (including materials) 
  

 
 
 
 
£176 per annum           
 
From 1 September      { 
2007 – increased by     
the same percentage  { 
as the increase in the 
national pay award for { 
local government 
employees that            { 
becomes effective 
from 1 April 2007         { 

 
 
 
 
£170 per annum 
 
(b)  £11,144 per annum 
(from 16.10.06) 
 
(c)  £4,087 per annum 
(from 16.10.06) 

 

Page 156



 1

 
Report to: Finance and Performance 
Management Scrutiny Panel 
 
Date of Meeting: 14 November 2006 
 
 
 
 
Portfolio:  Finance, Performance Management and Corporate Support Services 
 
Subject: Consultation Plan 2006/07  
 
Officer contact for further information:  S. Tautz (Ext 4180) 
 
Committee Secretary:  A.. Hendry (Ext 4246) 
 
 

 
Recommendations: 

 
That the Consultation Plan for 2006/07, setting out those issues on which public 
consultation is planned to be undertaken during the remainder of 2006/07, and 
detailing those public consultation exercises completed during 2005/06, be noted. 
 
 
Background 
 
1. (Head of Human Resources and Performance Management) During the latter part of 

2005, the Audit Commission undertook a User Focus assessment across Essex, 
looking at how effectively councils engaged with local communities, the results of which 
have previously been reported to the Scrutiny Panel. Although the assessment 
confirmed that the council’s strengths in relation to public engagement outweighed its 
weaknesses, the Commission identified a number of possible areas for improvement in 
relation to the authority’s approach to public consultation, particularly in respect of 
ensuring engagement with minority communities and other hard to reach groups. 

 
2. The Council’s existing Consultation Strategy was originally published in 1999 in 

response to the introduction of Best Value legislation. As a result of the User Focus 
assessment, the need to develop robust consultation proposals in relation to the new 
Council Plan for 2006-2010, and a likely future Comprehensive Performance 
Assessment (CPA) focus, a new Public Consultation and Engagement Strategy was 
adopted in April 2006, setting out how the council will plan and undertake future 
consultation exercises. All consultation and engagement exercises undertaken by and 
on behalf of the council are now required to comply with the provisions of the Public 
Consultation and Engagement Strategy. A revised consultation toolkit is also currently 
being produced in order to standardise consultation approaches and methodologies 
wherever possible, and this document will be issued to Heads of service and relevant 
staff in due course. 

 
3. As part of the new Public Consultation and Engagement Strategy, the Cabinet has 

requested that a Consultation Plan be developed as part of the annual business 
planning process from 2006/07 onwards, in order to focus consultation and 
engagement on priorities and operational issues to be faced in the coming year. The 

 

Agenda Item 11

Page 157



 2

Consultation Plan will also incorporate the results of consultation exercises undertaken 
during the preceding twelve months, through a Consultation Register that will enable 
members to scrutinise consultation results and processes. The Consultation Register 
had previously been produced for consideration by one of the former Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees, and will therefore now form part of the development of the annual 
Consultation Plan, which will be submitted to both the Cabinet and the Scrutiny Panel 
on an annual basis. This information will also be summarised within the annual Best 
Value Performance Plan. 

 
4. The Consultation Plan for 2006/07 is attached as Appendix 1 to this report. In future 

this will be reported to members at the commencement of each financial year, and will 
set out the issues on which individual services will be consulting or engaging residents 
or customers during the year, the overall objective for each consultation exercise, and 
how each exercise will be undertaken. In establishing this approach, it is recognised 
that the need for some consultation exercises will arise subsequent to the development 
of the Consultation Plan each year, as a result of unforeseen circumstances or priority 
issues. In addition, it should be noted that regular on-going satisfaction surveys such as 
housing report cards, or consultation carried out in relation to planning applications, will 
not be included within the Consultation Plan. 

 
5. The Scrutiny Panel is requested to note the Consultation Plan for 2006/07, and the 

details of those public consultation exercises completed in 2005 (Appendix 2) and 
during 2006 to date (Appendix 3). These documents were considered by the Cabinet at 
its meeting on 13 November 2006. Heads of Service will be in attendance at the 
meeting to respond to any questions raised in respect of individual consultation 
exercises.  

 
Reason for decision: 
 
6. To enable members to scrutinise consultation results and processes 
 
Options considered and rejected: 
 
7. None. The council has previously agreed arrangements for reporting the results of 

public consultation and engagement and proposals or future consultation exercises. 
 
Consultation undertaken: 
 
8. Consultation results and proposals have been reported by each appropriate Head of 

Service. 
 
Resource implications:  
 
Budget/Personnel/Land: None. 
Council Plan/Best Value Performance Plan reference: Section 8 – ‘How we Measure Our 
Achievements’ 
Relevant statutory powers: None 
 
Background papers: None 
Environmental/Human Rights Act/Crime and Disorder Act Implications: None 
Key Decision reference: (if required) None 
 

Page 158



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

1
-

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

P
la

n
2
0
0
6
-0

7
.x

ls

N
o

.
S

u
b

je
c
t

m
a
tt

e
r 

o
r

is
s
u

e
s

to
 b

e

c
o

n
s
u

lt
e
d

a
b

o
u

t

W
h

e
n

th
e

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

w
il

l
ta

k
e

p
la

c
e

T
h

e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f
th

e

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

e
x
e
rc

is
e

T
h

e
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

c
h

a
n

n
e
ls

a
n

d
m

e
th

o
d

s
to

b
e
 u

s
e
d

1
C

ri
te

ri
a

fo
r

ve
h
ic

u
la

r

c
ro

s
s
o
ve

rs
o
n

h
o
u
s
in

g
la

n
d

N
o
ve

m
b
e
r

2
0
0
6

T
o

s
e
e
k
 t
h
e

vi
e
w

s
o
f 

te
n
a
n
t

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
ve

s
in

o
rd

e
r 

to
a
g
re

e
a

p
o
lic

y
o
n

ve
h
ic

u
la

r
c
ro

s
s
o
ve

r

a
p
p
ro

va
ls

w
h
ic

h
e
n
s
u
re

s
 t
h
a
t
s
u
c
h

in
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
s

d
o

n
o
t
h
a
ve

a

d
e
tr

im
e
n
ta

l
a
ff

e
c
t
o
n
 t
h
e

o
ve

ra
ll

a
p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e

o
f 

th
e

s
tr

e
e
t
s
c
e
n
e

T
o

b
e

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
a
t
a

m
e
e
ti
n
g

o
f 

th
e

E
p
p
in

g
 F

o
re

s
t
T

e
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
H

o
u
s
in

g

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

th
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
ye

a
r

T
o

p
ro

vi
d
e

d
a
ta

o
n

h
o
u
s
in

g

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 t
e
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

le
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

a
n
d

g
iv

e
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s

fo
r

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k

a
n
d

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n

A
re

g
u
la

r
re

p
o
rt

d
e
ta

ili
n
g

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

in
re

la
ti
o
n
 t
o

h
o
u
s
in

g

re
la

te
d

B
e
s
t
V

a
lu

e
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d
ic

a
to

rs
is

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e

F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

3
B

V
P

I
T

e
n
a
n
t

S
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

S
u
rv

e
y

(s
ta

tu
to

ry

tr
ie

n
n
ia

l
s
u
rv

e
y)

A
u
g
u
s
t 
to

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0
0
6
.

R
e
s
u
lt
s

in
fo

rm
B

V
P

Is
o
n

o
ve

ra
ll

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

w
it
h

la
n
d
lo

rd
a
n
d

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
fo

r
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
,
a
n
d

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

ra
ti
n
g
s

o
f

s
p
e
c
if
ic

h
o
u
s
in

g
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

e
.g

.
re

p
a
ir
s

a
n
d

h
o
u
s
in

g
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

P
o
s
ta

l
s
u
rv

e
y.

T
h
is

is
 t
h
e

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

re
q
u
ir
e
d

b
y 

th
e

g
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t
fo

r 
te

n
a
n
t
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

s
u
rv

e
ys

fr
o
m

2
0
0
6
.

E
p
p
in

g
 F

o
re

s
t
T

e
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

R
e
s
u
lt
s

a
n
d

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 t
o

b
e

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
b
y

th
e

H
o
u
s
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r

S
a
m

p
le

o
f 

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s
 t
e
n
a
n
ts

u
s
in

g
'S

T
A

T
U

S
'm

e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y

(t
h
e

g
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t's

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

fo
r 

th
e

B
V

P
I

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
).

R
e
s
u
lt
s

in
c
lu

d
e

b
re

a
k
d
o
w

n
b
y

e
th

n
ic

m
in

o
ri
ty

a
n
d

c
a
n

b
e

fu
rt

h
e
r

b
ro

k
e
n

d
o
w

n
b
y

g
e
o
g
ra

p
h
ic

a
l
a
re

a
/a

g
e

e
tc

.

R
e
s
u
lt
s
 t
o

b
e

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o

M
e
m

b
e
rs

a
n
d
 t
h
e

T
e
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

. 
F

e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

fo
r

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
,
a
n
d

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

in
 t
h
e
 t
e
n
a
n
ts

n
e
w

s
le

tt
e
r

a
n
d
 t
h
e

B
e
s
t
V

a
lu

e
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

P
la

n
in

J
u
n
e

2
0
0
7
.
A

n
y

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

w
ill

b
e

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o

H
o
u
s
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r

fo
r

a
c
ti
o
n
.

R
E

F
F

E
E

D
B

A
C

K
 O

F
 R

E
S

U
L

T
S

S
U

B
J
E

C
T

O
R

 I
S

S
U

E
O

B
J
E

C
T

IV
E

S
T

A
R

G
E

T
 G

R
O

U
P

S
M

E
T

H
O

D

T
h

e
 g

ro
u

p
s
/i

n
d

iv
id

u
a
ls

to
 b

e
c
o

n
s
u

lt
e
d

H
o

w
th

e
re

s
u

lt
s
 o

f
th

e

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 w
il

l 
b

e
re

p
o

rt
e
d

E
p
p
in

g
 F

o
re

s
t
T

e
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

M
in

u
te

s
o
f

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s

o
f 

th
e

T
e
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

a
re

c
ir
c
u
la

te
d
 t
o

a
ll

m
e
m

b
e
rs

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N
2
0
0
6
/0

7

D
A

T
E

(S
)

Page 159



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

1
-

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

P
la

n
2
0
0
6
-0

7
.x

ls

4
H

o
u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
tr

a
te

g
y

o
n

E
n
e
rg

y
E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

w
ill

ta
k
e

p
la

c
e

d
u
ri
n
g

S
u
m

m
e
r

2
0
0
6
,

w
it
h
 t
h
e

re
s
u
lt
s

a
va

ila
b
le

in
 t
h
e

A
u
tu

m
n
.

T
o

s
e
e
k

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

a
n
d

vi
e
w

s
o
n

th
e

d
ra

ft
E

n
e
rg

y
E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y

S
tr

a
te

g
y,

a
n
d
 t
o

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
a
n
y

a
g
re

e
d

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

fi
n
a
l

ve
rs

io
n
.

T
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e

p
ro

vi
s
io

n
o
f

a

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

d
ra

ft
,
o
n

w
h
ic

h

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s

w
ill

b
e

in
vi

te
d
 t
o

c
o
m

m
e
n
t.

5
H

o
u
s
in

g
re

la
te

d

fe
e
s

a
n
d

c
h
a
rg

e
s

fo
r

2
0
0
7
/0

8

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

w
ill

ta
k
e

p
la

c
e

a
ro

u
n
d

N
o
ve

m
b
e
r

2
0
0
6
,

w
it
h
 t
h
e

re
s
u
lt
s

a
va

ila
b
le

a
ro

u
n
d

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

2
0
0
6
,

fo
llo

w
in

g
a
p
p
ro

va
l

o
f 

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s

b
u
d
g
e
t.

T
o

s
e
e
k

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

a
n
d

vi
e
w

s
o
n

th
e

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d

H
o
u
s
in

g
re

la
te

d
fe

e
s

a
n
d

c
h
a
rg

e
s

fo
r

2
0
0
7
/0

8
a
n
d
 t
o

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
a
n
y

a
g
re

e
d

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

fi
n
a
l
ve

rs
io

n
.

T
h
e

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

w
ill

a
tt
e
n
d

a
m

e
e
ti
n
g

o
f 

th
e

E
p
p
in

g

F
o
re

s
t
T

e
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

a
n
d

g
iv

e
a

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

o
n
 t
h
e

m
a
in

is
s
u
e
s
.
T

h
e
 F

e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

w
ill

b
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d

o
n
 t
h
e

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d

fe
e
s

a
n
d

c
h
a
rg

e
s

fo
r

2
0
0
7
0
8

p
ri
o
r 

to

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

b
y 

th
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e

a
n
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
S

c
ru

ti
n
y

P
a
n
e
l,
 t
h
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e

C
a
b
in

e
t

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
a
n
d
 t
h
e

C
a
b
in

e
t.

6
P

la
n
n
e
d

im
p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

o
r

m
a
jo

r
re

p
a
ir
s

in

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

o
r

b
lo

c
k
s

T
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e

ye
a
r

d
e
p
e
n
d
in

g
o
n

th
e

re
le

va
n
t

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
o
f

w
o
rk

.

T
o

s
e
e
k

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

a
n
d

vi
e
w

s
fr

o
m

te
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

le
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

o
n

m
a
tt
e
rs

a
ff

e
c
ti
n
g

c
h
o
ic

e
i.
e
.

c
o
lo

u
rs

,
fi
n
is

h
e
s

e
tc

.
T

h
e

o
u
tc

o
m

e

o
f 

th
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

w
ill

d
e
te

rm
in

e

th
e

ra
n
g
e

o
f

w
o
rk

,
a
n
d
 t
h
e

fi
tt
in

g
s

th
a
t
a
re

in
s
ta

lle
d

in
in

d
iv

id
u
a
l

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
.

In
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
te

n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

le
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

w
ill

b
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d

o
n

a
o
n
e
-t

o
-o

n
e

b
a
s
is

in
 t
h
e
ir

o
w

n
h
o
m

e
,
w

h
e
re

o
p
ti
o
n
s

o
f

c
h
o
ic

e
c
a
n

b
e

e
xp

la
in

e
d

a
n
d

s
h
o
w

n
 t
o

o
c
c
u
p
ie

rs
.

7
H

o
u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
tr

a
te

g
y

o
n

U
n
d
e
r

O
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n

J
u
ly

2
0
0
6
.
R

e
s
u
lt
s

w
ill

b
e

a
va

ila
b
le

in

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

2
0
0
6
,

fo
llo

w
in

g

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

b
y

th
e

H
o
u
s
in

g

S
c
ru

ti
n
y

P
a
n
e
l

T
o

s
e
e
k

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

a
n
d

vi
e
w

s
o
n

th
e

d
ra

ft
u
p
d
a
te

d
H

o
u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
tr

a
te

g
y

o
n

U
n
d
e
r

O
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n

a
n
d

to
in

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
a
n
y

a
g
re

e
d

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

fi
n
a
l
ve

rs
io

n
.

T
h
e

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

w
ill

a
ls

o
a
tt
e
n
d

a
m

e
e
ti
n
g

o
f 

th
e

E
p
p
in

g

F
o
re

s
t
T

e
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n
 t
o

g
iv

e
a

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

o
n

th
e

m
a
in

is
s
u
e
s
.
T

h
e
  
F

e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

w
ill

b
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d

o
n
 t
h
e

d
ra

ft
u
p
d
a
te

d

S
tr

a
te

g
y

o
n

U
n
d
e
r

O
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n

b
e
fo

re
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

b
y 

th
e

H
o
u
s
in

g

S
c
ru

ti
n
y

P
a
n
e
l.

E
p
p
in

g
 F

o
re

s
t
T

e
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
,
E

s
s
e
x

E
n
e
rg

y
A

d
vi

c
e

C
e
n
tr

e
,
C

it
iz

e
n
s

A
d
vi

c
e

B
u
re

a
u
s

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

D
is

tr
ic

t.

A
g
re

e
d

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

fo
rm

 t
h
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

e
xe

rc
is

e
w

ill
b
e

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

fi
n
a
l

ve
rs

io
n

o
f 

th
e

E
n
e
rg

y
E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y.

A
ll

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s

w
ill

re
c
e
iv

e
a

c
o
p
y

o
f 

th
e

S
tr

a
te

g
y.

E
p
p
in

g
 F

o
re

s
t
T

e
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

A
g
re

e
d

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

m
a
d
e

b
y 

th
e
 F

e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

w
ill

b
e

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

fi
n
a
l
ve

rs
io

n
.

T
h
e
 F

e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

w
ill

b
e

in
fo

rm
e
d

o
f

a
n
y

a
g
re

e
d

c
h
a
n
g
e
s

a
t 
th

e
m

e
e
ti
n
g

w
it
h
 t
h
e

F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n
.
T

h
e

vi
e
w

s
o
f 

th
e
 F

e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

w
ill

b
e

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

c
ru

ti
n
y

P
a
n
e
l

a
t 
th

e
s
a
m

e
 t
im

e
a
s
 t
h
e

P
a
n
e
l
c
o
n
s
id

e
rs

th
e

d
ra

ft
u
p
d
a
te

d
H

o
u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
tr

a
te

g
y

o
n

U
n
d
e
r-

o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
.

E
p
p
in

g
 F

o
re

s
t
T

e
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n
.

A
g
re

e
d

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

m
a
d
e

b
y 

th
e
 F

e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

w
ill

b
e

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

fi
n
a
l
ve

rs
io

n
.

T
h
e
 F

e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

w
ill

b
e

in
fo

rm
e
d

o
f

a
n
y

a
g
re

e
d

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

a
t 
th

e

m
e
e
ti
n
g

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 F

e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n
.
T

h
e

vi
e
w

s
o
f

th
e
 F

e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

w
ill

b
e

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e

F
in

a
n
c
e

a
n
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

S
c
ru

ti
n
y

P
a
n
e
l.

T
h
e
 F

e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

w
ill

b
e

in
fo

rm
e
d

o
f

a
n
y

c
h
a
n
g
e
s

s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y

m
a
d
e

b
y

a
n
y 

to
 t
h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s
c
o
m

m
it
te

e
s
.

In
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
te

n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

le
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

A
n
y

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

re
s
u
lt
s

w
ill

d
e
te

rm
in

e
 t
h
e

ra
n
g
e

o
f

w
o
rk

,
a
n
d
 t
h
e

fi
tt
in

g
s
 t
h
a
t
a
re

in
s
ta

lle
d

in
in

d
iv

id
u
a
l
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
.
T

h
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s

w
ill

b
e

g
iv

e
n

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k

d
u
ri
n
g

th
e

o
n
e
-t

o
-o

n
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

p
ro

c
e
s
s
.

D
e
ta

ile
d

re
s
u
lt
s

w
ill

n
o
t
b
e

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
.

Page 160



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

1
-

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

P
la

n
2
0
0
6
-0

7
.x

ls

8
V

o
id

s
re

-l
e
t

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

2
0
0
6
.

A
n
y

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

w
ill

b
e

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d

in

th
e

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
.

T
o

s
e
e
k

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

a
n
d

vi
e
w

s
fr

o
m

te
n
a
n
ts

o
n
 t
h
e

vo
id

s
re

-l
e
t

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s

T
o

p
ro

vi
d
e
 t
h
e

E
p
p
in

g
 F

o
re

s
t

T
e
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

w
it
h

a
c
o
p
y

o
f 

th
e

V
o
id

s

R
e
-l
e
t
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
a
n
d

s
e
e
k
 t
h
e
ir

vi
e
w

s
a
t
a

fu
tu

re
m

e
e
ti
n
g

o
f 

th
e

F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n
.

9
P

la
n
n
e
d

im
p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

a
t

S
p
ri
n
g
fi
e
ld

s
,

W
a
lt
h
a
m

A
b
b
e
y.

T
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e

ye
a
r,

d
e
p
e
n
d
in

g
o
n

th
e

re
le

va
n
t

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
o
f

w
o
rk

.

T
o

s
e
e
k

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

a
n
d

vi
e
w

s
fr

o
m

te
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

le
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

o
n

m
a
tt
e
rs

a
ff

e
c
ti
n
g

c
h
o
ic

e
(i
.e

.

c
o
lo

u
rs

,
fi
n
is

h
e
s
).

T
o

c
o
n
s
u
lt

re
s
id

e
n
ts

a
s

p
a
rt

o
f 

th
e

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r

s
e
le

c
ti
o
n

p
ro

c
e
s
s
.
L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

o
p
ti
n
g
 t
o

s
e
ll

b
a
c
k
 t
h
e
ir

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
,

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

e
le

c
ti
n
g
 t
o

re
ta

in
 t
h
e
ir

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
a
n
d

p
a
y

fo
r 

th
e

im
p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

.

C
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s

w
ill

b
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d

o
n

a

o
n
e
-t

o
-o

n
e

b
a
s
is

in
 t
h
e
ir

o
w

n
h
o
m

e
,

w
h
e
re

o
p
ti
o
n
s

o
f

c
h
o
ic

e
c
a
n

b
e

e
xp

la
in

e
d

a
n
d

s
h
o
w

n
 t
o

o
c
c
u
p
ie

rs
.

E
p
p
in

g
 F

o
re

s
t
T

e
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

A
s
 t
h
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

w
ill

 t
a
k
e

p
la

c
e

a
t
a

m
e
e
ti
n
g

o
f 

th
e

T
e
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n
, 
th

e
fe

e
d
b
a
c
k

w
ill

b
e

g
iv

e
n

a
t

th
a
t 
ti
m

e

P
u
b
lic

m
e
e
ti
n
g

o
f 

th
e
 F

o
c
u
s

G
ro

u
p

o
n

m
a
tt
e
rs

o
f

c
h
o
ic

e
.

R
e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

fr
o
m

 t
h
e

R
o
u
n
d
h
ill

s
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n

a
n
d
/o

r 
th

e
 F

o
c
u
s

G
ro

u
p

o
n

in
te

rv
ie

w
p
a
n
e
l
w

h
e
n

in
te

rv
ie

w
in

g

p
ro

s
p
e
c
ti
ve

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
a
t 
th

e

te
n
d
e
r

s
ta

g
e
.
O

n
e
-t

o
-o

n
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

w
it
h

le
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

o
p
ti
n
g
 t
o

s
e
ll

b
a
c
k
 t
h
e
ir

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

w
ill

 t
a
k
e

p
la

c
e

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e

S
u
m

m
e
r

2
0
0
6
.
T

h
e

o
u
tc

o
m

e
w

ill
re

s
u
lt

in

th
e

p
u
rc

h
a
s
e

o
f

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l
le

a
s
e
s

a
s

a
p
p
ro

ve
d

b
y 

th
e

C
a
b
in

e
t.

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

re
s
u
lt
s

w
ill

d
e
te

rm
in

e
 t
h
e

ra
n
g
e

o
f

w
o
rk

,
a
n
d
 t
h
e

fi
tt
in

g
s
 t
h
a
t
a
re

in
s
ta

lle
d

in
in

d
iv

id
u
a
l
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
.
T

h
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s

w
ill

b
e

g
iv

e
n

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k

d
u
ri
n
g

th
e

o
n
e
-t

o
-o

n
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

p
ro

c
e
s
s
.

D
e
ta

ile
d

re
s
u
lt
s

w
ill

n
o
t
b
e

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
.

Page 161



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

1
-

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

P
la

n
2
0
0
6
-0

7
.x

ls

1
0

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

tr
a
te

g
y

2
0
0
6
-2

0
0
9

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

w
ill

ta
k
e

p
la

c
e

d
u
ri
n
g

S
u
m

m
e
r

2
0
0
6
,

w
it
h
 t
h
e

re
s
u
lt
s

a
va

ila
b
le

in
 t
h
e

A
u
tu

m
n

T
o

s
e
e
k

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

a
n
d

vi
e
w

s
o
n

th
e

d
ra

ft
H

o
u
s
in

g
S

tr
a
te

g
y,

a
n
d
 t
o

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
a
n
y

a
g
re

e
d

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

fi
n
a
l
ve

rs
io

n

C
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s

w
ill

b
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h

th
e

p
ro

vi
s
io

n
o
f

a
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

D
ra

ft

o
f 

th
e

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

tr
a
te

g
y 

, 
o
n

w
h
ic

h

th
e
y

w
ill

b
e

in
vi

te
d
 t
o

c
o
m

m
e
n
t
u
p
o
n
.

1
1

T
h
e

p
ro

vi
s
io

n
o
f

o
ff

-s
tr

e
e
t
p
a
rk

in
g

a
t
va

ri
o
u
s

s
it
e
s

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e

d
is

tr
ic

t.

O
n
-g

o
in

g
.

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

w
ill

ta
k
e

p
la

c
e

o
n
c
e
 t
h
e

fe
a
s
ib

ili
ty

s
tu

d
y

fo
r

e
a
c
h

s
it
e

is

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
,
w

h
ic

h

is
a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
in

la
te

A
u
tu

m
n

e
a
c
h

ye
a
r.

T
o

s
e
e
k

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

a
n
d

vi
e
w

s
fr

o
m

re
s
id

e
n
ts

o
n
 t
h
e

p
ro

vi
s
io

n
a
n
d

lo
c
a
ti
o
n

o
f

n
e
w

o
ff

-s
tr

e
e
t
p
a
rk

in
g
.

T
h
e

re
s
u
lt
s

o
f 

th
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

e
xe

rc
is

e
w

ill
d
e
te

rm
in

e
if
 t
h
e
re

is

s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t
lo

c
a
l
s
u
p
p
o
rt

fo
r

w
o
rk

 t
o

g
o

a
h
e
a
d
.

C
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s

w
ill

b
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h

th
e

p
ro

vi
s
io

n
o
f

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

le
tt
e
r

a
n
d

p
la

n
o
f 

th
e

s
it
e

w
it
h

a
p
re

-p
a
id

re
p
ly

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
,
o
n

w
h
ic

h
 t
h
e
y

w
ill

b
e

in
vi

te
d
 t
o

c
o
m

m
e
n
t
u
p
o
n
.

D
e
p
e
n
d
in

g
o
n
 t
h
e

le
ve

l
o
f

re
tu

rn
s
,
it

m
a
y

b
e

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
o

d
o

o
n
e
-t

o
-o

n
e

h
o
m

e
vi

s
it

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 t
o

g
a
u
g
e

re
s
id

e
n
t’
s

vi
e
w

s
.

R
e
g
is

te
re

d
S

o
c
ia

l
L
a
n
d
lo

rd
s

(R
S

L
’s

)
w

it
h

h
o
u
s
in

g
s
to

c
k

in
 t
h
e

D
is

tr
ic

t,
L
o
c
a
l 
to

w
n

a
n
d

p
a
ri
s
h

c
o
u
n
c
ils

,
E

p
p
in

g
 F

o
re

s
t
T

e
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n
,

d
e
ve

lo
p
e
rs

o
p
e
ra

ti
n
g

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

d
is

tr
ic

t,
lo

c
a
l
e
s
ta

te
a
g
e
n
ts

a
n
d

p
ri
va

te
la

n
d
lo

rd
s
,
E

p
p
in

g
 F

o
re

s
t

P
ri
m

a
ry

C
a
re

T
ru

s
t,

N
o
rt

h
E

s
s
e
x

M
e
n
ta

l
H

e
a
lt
h

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

N
H

S

T
ru

s
t,

E
s
s
e
x

C
o
u
n
ty

C
o
u
n
c
il

S
o
c
ia

l
C

a
re

(A
d
u
lt

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
),

E
s
s
e
x

C
o
u
n
ty

C
o
u
n
c
il

S
o
c
ia

l

C
a
re

(C
h
ild

re
n
's

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
),

E
s
s
e
x

C
o
u
n
ty

C
o
u
n
c
il

S
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g

P
e
o
p
le

T
e
a
m

,
T

h
e
 t
h
re

e
C

it
iz

e
n
s

A
d
vi

c
e

B
u
re

a
u
x

o
p
e
ra

ti
n
g

w
it
h
in

th
e

D
is

tr
ic

t,
V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
A

c
ti
o
n

E
p
p
in

g
 F

o
re

s
t

A
g
re

e
d

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

fr
o
m

 t
h
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

e
xe

rc
is

e
w

ill
b
e

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

fi
n
a
l

ve
rs

io
n

o
f 

th
e

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

tr
a
te

g
y.

A
ll

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s

w
ill

re
c
e
iv

e
a

c
o
p
y

o
f 

th
e

fi
n
a
l

ve
rs

io
n

o
f 

th
e

S
tr

a
te

g
y.

L
o
c
a
l
W

a
rd

M
e
m

b
e
rs

,
lo

c
a
l

re
s
id

e
n
ts

in
 t
h
e

im
m

e
d
ia

te

lo
c
a
ti
o
n

a
ff

e
c
te

d
b
y 

th
e

w
o
rk

s
,

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

re
s
id

e
n
t/
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

/t
e
n
a
n
t
a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
s

R
e
s
u
lt
s

w
ill

b
e

in
c
lu

d
e
d

in
fu

tu
re

P
o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r

re
p
o
rt

s
,
w

h
ic

h
w

ill
d
e
te

rm
in

e
fu

tu
re

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

o
f

w
o
rk

.

Page 162



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

1
-

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

P
la

n
2
0
0
6
-0

7
.x

ls

1
2

F
u
tu

re

re
fu

s
e
/r

e
c
yc

lin
g

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

a
t

R
o
m

e
la

n
d
s
,

W
a
lt
h
a
m

A
b
b
e
y

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

w
ill

ta
k
e

p
la

c
e

o
n

7
th

J
u
n
e

2
0
0
6
.

R
e
s
u
lt
s

w
ill

b
e

a
va

ila
b
le

w
e
e
k

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
in

g
1
9
th

J
u
n
e

2
0
0
6

T
o

o
b
ta

in
a

vi
e
w

o
n

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l
a
n
d

e
xt

ra
c
t
o
th

e
r

id
e
a
s

fr
o
m

re
s
id

e
n
ts

.

L
e
tt
e
r

a
n
d

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
.

1
3

T
h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s

H
o
u
s
in

g
R

e
ve

n
u
e

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
(H

R
A

)

B
u
s
in

e
s
s

P
la

n

2
0
0
7

T
h
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

w
ill

 t
a
k
e

p
la

c
e

in

M
a
rc

h
2
0
0
7
,
w

it
h

th
e

re
s
u
lt
s

a
va

ila
b
le

in
M

a
rc

h

2
0
0
7
.

T
o

s
e
e
k

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

a
n
d

vi
e
w

s
o
n

th
e

d
ra

ft
H

R
A

B
u
s
in

e
s
s

P
la

n
; 
to

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
a
n
y

a
g
re

e
d

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

fi
n
a
l
ve

rs
io

n
;
a
n
d
 t
o

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 t
h
e

vi
e
w

s
o
f 

th
e

T
e
n
a
n
ts

&
L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

fi
n
a
l
ve

rs
io

n
.

T
h
e
y

w
ill

b
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d

o
n
 t
h
e

D
ra

ft

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

tr
a
te

g
y,

p
ri
o
r 

to

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

b
y 

th
e

H
o
u
s
in

g

S
c
ru

ti
n
y

P
a
n
e
l.

T
h
e
y

w
ill

a
ls

o
b
e

g
iv

e
n

a
P

la
in

E
n
g
lis

h
S

u
m

m
a
ry

o
f

th
e

H
R

A
B

u
s
in

e
s
s

P
la

n
,
a
n
d
 t
h
e

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

w
ill

a
tt
e
n
d

a
m

e
e
ti
n
g

o
f 

th
e
 F

e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

a
n
d

g
iv

e

a
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

o
n
 t
h
e

m
a
in

is
s
u
e
s
.

1
4

H
o
u
s
in

g
R

e
p
a
ir
s

T
e
n
a
n
t

S
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

S
u
rv

e
y

O
n
g
o
in

g
fo

r
a
ll

re
p
a
ir

w
o
rk

s
.

T
o

m
o
n
it
o
r 

te
n
a
n
ts

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 t
o

re
s
p
o
n
s
iv

e
re

p
a
ir
s

s
e
rv

ic
e

S
u
rv

e
y

a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 t
o

re
p
a
ir
s

c
o
n
fi
rm

a
ti
o
n

a
c
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
m

e
n
t.

1
5

E
p
p
in

g
 F

o
re

s
t

C
a
re

lin
e

U
n
k
n
o
w

n
a
t 
th

is

s
ta

g
e

T
o

s
e
e
k

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

a
n
d

vi
e
w

s
o
n

th
e

fu
tu

re
o
f 

th
e

C
a
re

lin
e

c
e
n
tr

e

U
n
k
n
o
w

n
a
t 
th

is
s
ta

g
e

1
6

U
p
g
ra

d
in

g
d
o
o
r

e
n
tr

y
s
ys

te
m

s
a
t

s
h
e
lt
e
re

d
h
o
u
s
in

g

s
c
h
e
m

e
s

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

w
ill

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e

a
ro

u
n
d

A
u
g
u
s
t
2
0
0
6

w
it
h

re
s
u
lt
s

a
va

ila
b
le

a
ro

u
n
d

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

2
0
0
6

T
o

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
c
o
u
n
c
il

in
s
ta

lls

s
ys

te
m

s
 t
h
a
t
a
re

ri
g
h
t
fo

r 
th

e
c
lie

n
t

g
ro

u
p

H
o
u
s
in

g
o
ff

ic
e
r

a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e

a
t

S
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 F

o
ru

m
,
T

e
n
a
n
ts

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s

a
t
in

d
iv

id
u
a
l
s
c
h
e
m

e
s

A
ll 

te
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

le
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

a
t

R
o
m

e
la

n
d
s

in
W

a
lt
h
a
m

A
b
b
e
y

W
ill

fo
rm

b
a
s
is

o
f

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
w

it
h

w
a
s
te

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
o
n

fu
tu

re
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
 I
n

d
u
e

c
o
u
rs

e
c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s

w
ill

b
e

a
d
vi

s
e
d

o
f

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

in
w

ri
ti
n
g
.

T
h
e

E
p
p
in

g
 F

o
re

s
t
T

e
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n

A
g
re

e
d

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

m
a
d
e

b
y 

th
e
 F

e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

w
ill

b
e

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

fi
n
a
l
ve

rs
io

n
.

T
h
e
 F

e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

w
ill

b
e

in
fo

rm
e
d

o
f

a
n
y

a
g
re

e
d

c
h
a
n
g
e
s

a
t 
th

e
m

e
e
ti
n
g

w
it
h
 t
h
e

F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n
.
T

h
e

vi
e
w

s
o
f 

th
e
 F

e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

w
ill

b
e

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

c
ru

ti
n
y

P
a
n
e
l

a
t 
th

e
s
a
m

e
 t
im

e
a
s
 t
h
e

P
a
n
e
l
c
o
n
s
id

e
rs

th
e

d
ra

ft
H

R
A

B
u
s
in

e
s
s

P
la

n
.

A
ll 

te
n
a
n
ts

w
h
o

h
a
ve

h
a
d

re
s
p
o
n
s
iv

e
re

p
a
ir
s

w
o
rk

s
c
a
rr

ie
d

o
u
t
n
 t
h
e
ir

p
ro

p
e
rt

y.

R
e
s
u
lt
s

u
s
e
d
 t
o

im
p
ro

ve
s
e
rv

ic
e

a
n
d

fo
r

b
e
tt
e
r

c
u
s
to

m
e
r

c
a
re

.

E
p
p
in

g
 F

o
re

s
t
T

e
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e

H
o
ld

e
rs

 F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

a
n
d

S
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 F

o
ru

m

R
e
p
o
rt

 t
o

C
a
b
in

e
t
o
n

fu
tu

re
o
f

C
a
re

lin
e
-

in
fo

rm
c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s

o
f

o
u
tc

o
m

e

O
ld

e
r

P
e
o
p
le

R
e
s
u
lt
s

w
ill

d
e
te

rm
in

e
w

h
ic

h
d
o
o
r

e
n
tr

y

s
ys

te
m

is
p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
d

fo
r

s
h
e
lt
e
re

d

s
c
h
e
m

e
s

Page 163



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

1
-

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

P
la

n
2
0
0
6
-0

7
.x

ls

1
7

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

S
tr

a
te

g
y

o
n

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

B
y

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

2
0
0
6
.

T
o

o
b
ta

in
fe

e
d
b
a
c
k

a
s

p
a
rt

o
f

a

re
vi

e
w

o
f 

th
is

s
e
rv

ic
e

s
tr

a
te

g
y.

A
d
ra

ft
s
tr

a
te

g
y

w
ill

b
e

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 t
o

th
e

T
e
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

fo
r

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
a
t
o
n
e

o
f

it
s

re
g
u
la

r
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
.

1
8

H
o
u
s
in

g

A
llo

c
a
ti
o
n

S
c
h
e
m

e

It
is

in
te

n
d
e
d
 t
o

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 t
h
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

in

J
a
n
u
a
ry

2
0
0
7

w
it
h

vi
e
w

 t
o

c
o
m

p
le

ti
n
g

th
e

e
xe

rc
is

e
b
y 

th
e

e
n
d

o
f 

th
a
t
m

o
n
th

T
o

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t
a
ll

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

a
n
d

p
e
o
p
le

 t
h
e
y

re
p
re

s
e
n
t
a
g
re

e
in

p
ri
n
c
ip

le
w

it
h

a
n
y

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
, 
to

in
vi

te
c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

a
n
d

fu
rt

h
e
r

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l

fo
r

c
h
a
n
g
e

B
y

p
ro

vi
d
in

g
 t
h
e

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t

in
d
ra

ft
fo

rm
,
g
iv

in
g

in
te

re
s
te

d

p
a
rt

ie
s
 t
im

e
 t
o

c
o
m

m
e
n
t
o
n

a
n
y

a
s
p
e
c
t
o
f 

th
e

d
ra

ft
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t.

1
9

C
h
o
ic

e
B

a
s
e
d

L
e
tt
in

g
s

A
u
tu

m
n

2
0
0
6

A
G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
th

a
t

C
h
o
ic

e
B

a
s
e
d

L
e
tt
in

g
s

S
c
h
e
m

e
s

b
e

in
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d

b
y

2
0
1
0

g
iv

in
g

h
o
u
s
in

g
a
p
p
lic

a
n
ts

c
h
o
ic

e
,
o
p
ti
o
n
s
,

m
a
k
in

g
 t
h
e

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n

o
f

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

a
m

o
re

 t
ra

n
s
p
a
re

n
t

p
ro

c
e
s
s
.
T

o
s
e
e
k
 t
h
e

vi
e
w

s
o
f

te
n
a
n
t
re

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
ve

s
a
n
d

e
xt

e
rn

a
l

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
o
n
 t
h
e

S
c
h
e
m

e
.

T
h
is

in
c
lu

d
e
s

a
p
p
ro

va
l
o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g

S
c
ru

ti
n
y

P
a
n
e
l
m

e
m

b
e
rs

a
n
d
 t
h
e

H
o
u
s
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r.

M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
/P

re
s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
/C

ir
c
u
la

ti
o
n

o
f

S
c
h
e
m

e
d
e
ta

ils
.

E
p
p
in

g
 F

o
re

s
t
T

e
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n
.

A
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

a
ri
s
in

g
fr

o
m

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
w

it
h

th
e

T
e
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

w
ill

b
e

a
g
re

e
d

a
t 
th

e
m

e
e
ti
n
g

a
n
d

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d

in
to

 t
h
e

fi
n
a
l
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

s
tr

a
te

g
y.

M
in

u
te

s
o
f 

F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s

a
re

c
ir
c
u
la

te
d
 t
o

a
ll

m
e
m

b
e
rs

.

R
e
g
is

te
re

d
S

o
c
ia

l
L
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
,

o
th

e
r

s
ta

tu
to

ry
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
,
a
n
d

re
le

va
n
t
o
lu

n
ta

ry
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s

U
n
k
n
o
w

n
a
t 
th

is
s
ta

g
e

E
p
p
in

g
 F

o
re

s
t
T

e
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n
,

in
te

re
s
te

d
e
xt

e
rn

a
l
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
,

S
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 F

o
ru

m
,
L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
,
H

o
u
s
in

g
S

c
ru

ti
n
y

P
a
n
e
l.

A
g
re

e
d

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

w
ill

b
e

in
c
lu

d
e
d

in
 t
h
e

S
c
h
e
m

e
.

Page 164



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

1
-

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

P
la

n
2
0
0
6
-0

7
.x

ls

2
0

P
la

n
n
e
d

im
p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

o
r

m
a
jo

r
re

p
a
ir
s

in

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

o
r

b
lo

c
k
s

T
h
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

w
ill

 t
a
k
e

p
la

c
e

th
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e

ye
a
r,

d
e
p
e
n
d
in

g
o
n

th
e

re
le

va
n
t

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
o
f

w
o
rk

.
T

h
e

o
u
tc

o
m

e

o
f 

th
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

w
ill

d
e
te

rm
in

e
 t
h
e

ra
n
g
e

o
f

w
o
rk

,
a
n
d

th
e

fi
tt
in

g
s
 t
h
a
t
a
re

in
s
ta

lle
d

in

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
.

D
e
ta

ile
d

re
s
u
lt
s

w
ill

n
o
t
b
e

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
.

T
o

s
e
e
k

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

a
n
d

vi
e
w

s
fr

o
m

te
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

le
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

o
n

m
a
tt
e
rs

a
ff

e
c
ti
n
g

c
h
o
ic

e
i.
e
.

c
o
lo

u
rs

,
fi
n
is

h
e
s

e
tc

.

T
h
e
y

w
ill

b
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d

o
n

a
o
n
e
-t

o
-

o
n
e

b
a
s
is

in
 t
h
e
ir

o
w

n
h
o
m

e
,
w

h
e
re

o
p
ti
o
n
s

o
f

c
h
o
ic

e
c
a
n

b
e

e
xp

la
in

e
d

a
n
d

s
h
o
w

n
 t
o

o
c
c
u
p
ie

rs
.

2
1

D
iv

e
rs

it
y

a
n
d

In
c
lu

s
io

n

S
tr

a
te

g
y.

N
o
ve

m
b
e
r

2
0
0
6

T
o

s
e
e
k
 t
h
e

vi
e
w

s
o
f 

te
n
a
n
t

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
ve

s
a
n
d

e
xt

e
rn

a
l

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
o
n
 t
h
e

D
iv

e
rs

it
y

a
n
d

In
c
lu

s
io

n
S

tr
a
te

g
y.

T
h
is

in
c
lu

d
e
s

a
p
p
ro

va
l
o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

c
ru

ti
n
y

P
a
n
e
l

m
e
m

b
e
rs

a
n
d
 t
h
e

H
o
u
s
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r.

T
o

b
e

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
a
t
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s

o
f 

th
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e

g
ro

u
p
s

a
n
d

w
ill

b
e

c
ir
c
u
la

te
d

in
a
d
va

n
c
e

2
2

H
a
ra

s
s
m

e
n
t

S
e
rv

ic
e

S
tr

a
te

g
y

J
u
n
e

2
0
0
6

T
o

s
e
e
k
 t
h
e

vi
e
w

s
o
f 

te
n
a
n
t

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
ve

s
a
n
d

e
xt

e
rn

a
l

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
o
n
 t
h
e

H
a
ra

s
s
m

e
n
t

S
tr

a
te

g
y,

w
h
ic

h
s
e
ts

o
u
t
H

o
u
s
in

g

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
'a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o

d
e
a
lin

g
w

it
h

in
c
id

e
n
ts

o
f

h
a
ra

s
s
m

e
n
t
o
f 

te
n
a
n
ts

.

T
h
is

in
c
lu

d
e
s

a
p
p
ro

va
l
o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g

S
c
ru

ti
n
y

P
a
n
e
l
m

e
m

b
e
rs

a
n
d
 t
h
e

H
o
u
s
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r

T
o

b
e

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
a
t
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s

o
f 

th
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e

g
ro

u
p
s

a
n
d

w
ill

b
e

c
ir
c
u
la

te
d

in
a
d
va

n
c
e

In
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
te

n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

le
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

A
n
y

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

re
s
u
lt
s

w
ill

d
e
te

rm
in

e
 t
h
e

ra
n
g
e

o
f

w
o
rk

,
a
n
d
 t
h
e

fi
tt
in

g
s
 t
h
a
t
a
re

in
s
ta

lle
d

in
in

d
iv

id
u
a
l
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
.
T

h
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s

w
ill

b
e

g
iv

e
n

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k

d
u
ri
n
g

th
e

o
n
e
-t

o
-o

n
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

p
ro

c
e
s
s
.

T
e
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n
,
C

ri
m

e
a
n
d

D
is

o
rd

e
r

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

,
H

o
u
s
in

g

S
c
ru

ti
n
y

P
a
n
e
l.

A
g
re

e
d

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

w
ill

b
e

in
c
lu

d
e
d

in
 t
h
e

fi
n
a
l
ve

rs
io

n
o
f 

th
e

s
tr

a
te

g
y

T
e
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n
,
C

ri
m

e
a
n
d

D
is

o
rd

e
r

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

,
H

o
u
s
in

g
S

c
ru

ti
n
y

P
a
n
e
l.

A
g
re

e
d

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

w
ill

b
e

in
c
lu

d
e
d

in
 t
h
e

fi
n
a
l
ve

rs
io

n
o
f 

th
e

s
tr

a
te

g
y

Page 165



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

1
-

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

P
la

n
2
0
0
6
-0

7
.x

ls

2
3

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
tr

a
te

g
y

R
e
n
t

A
rr

e
a
rs

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

2
0
0
7

T
o

s
e
e
k
 t
h
e

vi
e
w

s
o
f 

te
n
a
n
t

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
ve

s
a
n
d

e
xt

e
rn

a
l

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
o
n
 t
h
e

R
e
n
t
A

rr
e
a
rs

S
tr

a
te

g
y,

w
h
ic

h
e
xp

la
in

s
C

o
u
n
c
il’

s

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o

re
n
t
a
rr

e
a
rs

re
c
o
ve

ry
.

T
h
is

in
c
lu

d
e
s

a
p
p
ro

va
l
o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g

S
c
ru

ti
n
y

P
a
n
e
l
m

e
m

b
e
rs

a
n
d
 t
h
e

H
o
u
s
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r.

T
o

b
e

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
a
t
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s

o
f 

th
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e

g
ro

u
p
s

a
n
d

w
ill

b
e

c
ir
c
u
la

te
d

in
a
d
va

n
c
e
.

2
4

L
o
c
a
l
S

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g

P
e
o
p
le

S
tr

a
te

g
y

J
a
n
u
a
ry

2
0
0
7

T
o

s
e
e
k
 t
h
e

vi
e
w

s
o
f 

te
n
a
n
t

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
ve

s
a
n
d

e
xt

e
rn

a
l

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
o
n
 t
h
e

L
o
c
a
l
S

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g

P
e
o
p
le

S
tr

a
te

g
y,

w
h
ic

h
s
e
ts

o
u
t

h
o
w

h
o
u
s
in

g
re

la
te

d
s
u
p
p
o
rt

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

w
ill

b
e

d
e
liv

e
re

d
a
n
d

in
c
lu

d
e
s

a
n

A
c
ti
o
n

P
la

n
fo

r
s
e
rv

ic
e

im
p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

.
T

h
is

in
c
lu

d
e
s

a
p
p
ro

va
l
o
f 

th
e

m
e
m

b
e
rs

o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

c
ru

ti
n
y

P
a
n
e
l
a
n
d

H
o
u
s
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r.

T
o

b
e

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
a
t
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s

o
f 

th
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e

g
ro

u
p
s

a
n
d

w
ill

b
e

c
ir
c
u
la

te
d

in
a
d
va

n
c
e
.

2
5

A
p
o
lic

y
fo

r

d
e
m

o
ti
n
g

e
xi

s
ti
n
g

te
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

to
le

ra
te

d

tr
e
s
p
a
s
s
e
rs

o
n

th
e

H
o
u
s
in

g

R
e
g
is

te
r

w
h
o

a
re

s
e
e
k
in

g
a

tr
a
n
s
fe

r.

A
u
tu

m
n

2
0
0
6

T
o

s
e
e
k
 t
h
e

vi
e
w

s
o
f 

te
n
a
n
t

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
ve

s
, 
th

is
in

c
lu

d
e
s

a
p
p
ro

va
l
o
f 

th
e

H
o
u
s
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r.

T
o

b
e

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
a
t
a

m
e
e
ti
n
g

o
f 

th
e

T
e
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

a
n
d

c
ir
c
u
la

te
d

in

a
d
va

n
c
e
.

2
6

P
la

n
n
in

g

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

o
n

D
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t

C
o
n
tr

o
l

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s

A
u
tu

m
n
 t
o

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0
0
6

T
o

c
o
n
s
u
lt

lo
c
a
l
a
g
e
n
ts

/a
rc

h
it
e
c
ts

e
tc

o
n

d
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t
c
o
n
tr

o
l
is

s
u
e
s

in
o
rd

e
r 

to
a
s
s
e
s
s

w
o
rk

in
g

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s

a
n
d

m
a
k
e

s
e
rv

ic
e

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
ts

U
s
in

g
“D

e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t
C

o
n
tr

o
l 
F

o
ru

m
”

m
e
e
ti
n
g
.
P

ro
m

o
ti
o
n

vi
a

e
m

a
il,

p
o
s
t,

w
e
b
s
it
e

e
tc

.

T
e
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n
,
H

o
u
s
in

g
S

c
ru

ti
n
y

P
a
n
e
l.

A
g
re

e
d

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

w
ill

b
e

in
c
lu

d
e
d

in
 t
h
e

fi
n
a
l
ve

rs
io

n
o
f 

th
e

s
tr

a
te

g
y

L
o
c
a
l
p
la

n
n
in

g
a
g
e
n
ts

,
a
rc

h
it
e
c
ts

,

d
e
s
ig

n
e
rs

a
n
d

p
la

n
n
e
rs

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

a
n
d

re
s
u
lt
s

w
ill

b
e

u
s
e
d
 t
o

a
s
s
e
s
s

w
o
rk

in
g

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s

a
n
d
,
w

h
e
re

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

,
m

a
k
e

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o

s
e
rv

ic
e

le
ve

ls

T
e
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n
,
S

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g

P
e
o
p
le

C
o
re

S
tr

a
te

g
y

G
ro

u
p
, 
In

c
lu

s
iv

e

F
o
ru

m
A

n
n
u
a
l
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

W
o
rk

s
h
o
p
,
S

h
e
lt
e
re

d
 F

o
ru

m
,

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

c
ru

ti
n
y

P
a
n
e
l,

o
n
e
 t
o

o
n
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s

w
it
h

a
g
e
n
c
y

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
ve

s
.

A
g
re

e
d

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

w
ill

b
e

in
c
lu

d
e
d

in
 t
h
e

fi
n
a
l
ve

rs
io

n
o
f 

th
e

s
tr

a
te

g
y

E
p
p
in

g
 F

o
re

s
t
T

e
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n
.

A
g
re

e
d

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

w
ill

b
e

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
b
y 

th
e

H
o
u
s
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r

Page 166



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

1
-

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

P
la

n
2
0
0
6
-0

7
.x

ls

2
7

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t
o
f

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

In
vo

lv
e
m

e
n
t

J
u
n
e
 t
o

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

2
0
0
6

T
h
e

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t
o
f

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

In
vo

lv
e
m

e
n
t
is

a
s
ta

tu
to

ry

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t
o
f 

th
e

n
e
w

p
la

n
n
in

g

s
ys

te
m

.
T

o
e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
S

C
1

(w
h
ic

h
w

ill
b
e

u
s
e
d

a
s
 t
h
e
 t
e
m

p
la

te

fo
r

a
ll

fu
tu

re
p
la

n
n
in

g
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
)

m
e
e
ts

 t
h
e

e
xp

e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s

a
n
d

n
e
e
d
s

o
f 

th
e

re
s
id

e
n
ts

a
n
d

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s

in

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t

W
e
b
s
it
e
,
e
-m

a
il,

m
a
il

s
h
o
ts

2
8

C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

a
re

a
C

h
a
ra

c
te

r

A
p
p
ra

is
a
ls

a
n
d

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

P
la

n
s

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

2
0
0
6
 t
o

M
a
rc

h
2
0
0
7

T
o

s
e
e
k

vi
e
w

s
o
n

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

fo
r

p
re

s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

a
n
d

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
t
o
f

th
e

M
a
tc

h
in

g
G

re
e
n
,
M

a
tc

h
in

g
a
n
d

M
a
tc

h
in

g
T

ye
C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

A
re

a
s

P
u
b
lic

M
e
e
ti
n
g
/D

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
,

W
e
b
s
it
e

a
n
d

e
-m

a
il.

2
9

S
ta

ff
A

tt
it
u
d
e

S
u
rv

e
y

T
h
is

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

e
xe

rc
is

e
w

ill
 t
a
k
e

p
la

c
e

d
u
ri
n
g

O
c
to

b
e
r

2
0
0
6

a
n
d

th
e

re
s
u
lt
s

w
ill

b
e

a
va

ila
b
le

b
e
fo

re

J
a
n
u
a
ry

2
0
0
7

T
o

fi
n
d

o
u
t 
th

e
vi

e
w

s
o
f

s
ta

ff
o
n

a

ra
n
g
e

o
f

m
a
tt
e
rs

lin
k
in

g
 t
h
e
 I
iP

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

A
n

o
n
-l
in

e
s
u
rv

e
y

w
ill

b
e

c
o
n
d
u
c
te

d
.

H
a
rd

c
o
p
ie

s
w

ill
b
e

a
va

ila
b
le

 t
o

s
ta

ff

w
h
o

d
o

n
o
t
h
a
ve

 I
C

T
a
c
c
e
s
s
.

3
0

F
a
vo

u
ri
te

T
re

e
s

o
f

E
p
p
in

g
 F

o
re

s
t

D
is

tr
ic

t

E
n
tr

ie
s

c
a
n

b
e

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
u
n
ti
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0
0
6

T
o

p
ro

m
o
te

va
lu

e
o
f 

tr
e
e
s

a
n
d

e
n
g
a
g
e
 t
h
e

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

in

fi
n
d
in

g
/n

o
m

in
a
ti
n
g

5
0
 t
re

e
s

L
e
a
fl
e
ts

,
w

e
b
s
it
e
,
e
m

a
il,

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
,

C
o
u
n
tr

yc
a
re

c
o
n
ta

c
ts

A
ll

s
ta

ff
e
m

p
lo

ye
d

b
y 

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

A
ll

s
ta

ff
w

ill
b
e

in
fo

rm
e
d

o
f 

th
e

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s

o
d
 t
h
e

s
u
rv

e
y,

a
n
d

a
n
y

a
c
ti
o
n

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
.

A
c
ti
o
n
s

w
ill

d
e
p
e
n
d

o
n
 t
h
e

is
s
u
e
s

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
b
y

s
ta

ff
.

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l
b
o
d
ie

s
,
s
ta

tu
to

ry

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
rs

,
a
d
jo

in
in

g
lo

c
a
l

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
,
lo

c
a
l
c
o
u
n
c
ils

a
n
d

g
ro

u
p
s
,
a
n
d

in
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

w
h
o

h
a
ve

p
re

vi
o
u
s
ly

e
xp

re
s
s
e
d

a
n

in
te

re
s
t.

A
m

e
n
d
 t
h
e

S
C

1
fo

r
fo

rm
a
l
s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 t
o

th
e

S
e
c
re

ta
ry

o
f

S
ta

te
(i
n

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

2
0
0
6
)

–
T

h
e
n

fu
rt

h
e
r

ro
u
n
d

o
f

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

P
a
ri
s
h

C
o
u
n
c
ils

,
lo

c
a
l
re

s
id

e
n
ts

a
n
d

a
m

e
n
it
y

g
ro

u
p
s

R
e
s
u
lt
s

w
ill

b
e

u
s
e
d
 t
o

re
fi
n
e

a
n
d

fi
n
a
lis

e

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

a
n
d

p
la

n
s

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

,
a
m

e
n
it
y

g
ro

u
p
s
,
T

re
e

W
a
rd

e
n
s

e
tc

P
u
rp

o
s
e

b
u
ilt

w
e
b
s
it
e
 t
o

b
e

c
re

a
te

d
.

Page 167



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

1
-

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

P
la

n
2
0
0
6
-0

7
.x

ls

3
1

L
e
is

u
re

c
e
n
tr

e

C
u
s
to

m
e
r

S
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

O
n
-g

o
in

g
.

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s

h
e
ld

a
t
e
a
c
h

c
e
n
tr

e

b
y

U
s
e
r 

F
o
ru

m
s

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 t
o

g
a
u
g
e

c
u
s
to

m
e
r

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

a
n
d

s
e
e
k

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k

fr
o
m

u
s
e
rs

A
s

p
a
rt

o
f 

th
e

L
e
is

u
re

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

th
e

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

F
o
ru

m
s

a
llo

w
u
s
e
fu

l

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k

fr
o
m

c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

o
n
 t
h
e

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

o
f 

th
e

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r
a
n
d

a
s
s
is

t
C

lie
n
t
O

ff
ic

e
rs

in
id

e
n
ti
fy

in
g

w
h
a
t
is

s
u
e
s

a
re

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 
to

U
s
e
rs

.

T
h
e

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

F
o
ru

m
s

a
re

a
tt
e
n
d
e
d

b
y

C
lie

n
t
O

ff
ic

e
rs

a
s

w
e
ll

a
s

n
o
m

in
a
te

d
m

e
m

b
e
rs

o
f 

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il.

M
e
e
ti
n
g
s

a
re

h
e
ld

a
t
le

a
s
t
fo

u
r 

ti
m

e
s

p
e
r

a
n
n
u
m

a
t 
th

e
le

is
u
re

c
e
n
tr

e
s
.

T
h
e

a
g
e
n
d
a

is
a
d
ve

rt
is

e
d

a
n
d

m
in

u
te

s
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
. 
 I
n

a
d
d
it
io

n
 t
o
 t
h
e

F
o
ru

m
s

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k

is
o
b
ta

in
e
d

th
ro

u
g
h

C
u
s
to

m
e
r

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

C
a
rd

s
,
C

h
a
rt

e
rm

a
rk

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

a
n
d

b
y 

th
e

u
s
e

o
f

a
n

e
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

d
e
vi

c
e

c
a
lle

d
 t
h
e

O
p
in

io
n

M
e
te

r.

3
2

L
e
is

u
re

a
n
d

C
u
lt
u
ra

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

N
o
n
-U

s
e
r

S
u
rv

e
y

S
u
m

m
e
r

2
0
0
7

w
it
h

re
s
u
lt
s

a
va

ila
b
le

in

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

2
0
0
7
.

T
o

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
c
u
rr

e
n
t
p
a
tt
e
rn

s
o
f

u
s
e
,
b
a
rr

ie
rs

 t
o

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

a
n
d

h
o
w

 t
o

m
o
s
t
e
ff

e
c
ti
ve

ly
m

a
rk

e
t 
th

e

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

p
ro

vi
d
e
d

o
r

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
ve

ly
re

-d
e
s
ig

n
 t
h
e
m

 t
o

m
a
k
e
 t
h
e
m

m
o
re

a
tt
ra

c
ti
ve

a
n
d

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
.

S
u
rv

e
y 

to
b
e
 t
a
rg

e
te

d

a
t 
th

o
s
e

w
h
o

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

d
o

n
o
t 
ta

k
e

p
a
rt

o
r

m
a
k
e

u
s
e

o
f

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s

a
n
d

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

p
ro

vi
d
e
d

b
y 

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il.

T
h
e

m
a
jo

ri
ty

o
f

in
te

rv
ie

w
s
 t
o
 t
a
k
e

p
la

c
e

o
n

fa
c
e
-t

o
-f

a
c
e

b
a
s
is

b
u
t
fo

r

s
o
m

e
h
a
rd

 t
o

re
a
c
h

g
ro

u
p
s

te
le

p
h
o
n
e

in
te

rv
ie

w
s

a
n
d
/o

r
fo

c
u
s

g
ro

u
p
s

a
t
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
s

a
re

b
e
in

g
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
.

L
ia

is
o
n

w
ill

b
e

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

w
it
h

o
th

e
r

p
a
rt

n
e
r

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
a
n
d

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 t
o

a
c
c
e
s
s

h
a
rd

 t
o

re
a
c
h

g
ro

u
p
s

e
.g

.

Y
o
u
th

S
e
rv

ic
e
,
P

ri
m

a
ry

C
a
re

T
ru

s
t,

C
o
u
n
c
il

fo
r

V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
S

e
rv

ic
e
.

3
3

B
V

P
I
G

e
n
e
ra

l

S
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

S
u
rv

e
y

(s
ta

tu
to

ry

tr
ie

n
n
ia

l
s
u
rv

e
y)

J
u
n
e
 t
o

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0
0
6
.

R
e
s
u
lt
s

in
fo

rm
B

V
P

Is
o
n

o
ve

ra
ll

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

w
it
h

a
ra

n
g
e

o
f

c
o
u
n
c
il

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

a
n
d

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l
m

a
tt
e
rs

P
o
s
ta

l
s
u
rv

e
y.

T
h
is

is
 t
h
e

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

re
q
u
ir
e
d

b
y 

th
e

g
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t
fo

r
B

V
P

I
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

s
u
rv

e
ys

fr
o
m

2
0
0
6
.

R
e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
ve

s
o
f

c
lu

b
s

a
n
d

c
a
s
u
a
l
u
s
e
rs

o
f 

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s

le
is

u
re

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
.

O
u
tc

o
m

e
s

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

w
it
h

a
g
re

e
d

lis
t
o
f

A
c
ti
o
n

P
o
in

ts
.

P
ro

g
re

s
s

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h

C
lie

n
t
O

ff
ic

e
rs

a
n
d
 F

o
ru

m
s
. 
F

e
e
d
b
a
c
k

w
ill

b
e

fe
d

in
to

 t
h
e

m
o
n
th

ly
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
C

o
re

M
e
e
ti
n
g

a
s

w
e
ll

a
s

b
e
in

g
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

B
o
a
rd

C
h
a
ir
e
d

b
y 

th
e

L
e
is

u
re

P
o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r.

A
re

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
ve

s
a
m

p
le

o
f 

th
e

d
e
m

o
g
ra

p
h
ic

m
a
k
e

u
p

o
f 

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t,
p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

fa
c
e
 t
o

fa
c
e

in
te

rv
ie

w
s

w
it
h

1
,0

0
0

re
s
id

e
n
ts

.

R
e
s
u
lt
s

w
ill

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e

L
e
is

u
re

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

M
a
rk

e
ti
n
g

P
la

n
a
n
d

B
u
s
in

e
s
s

P
la

n
.

R
e
s
u
lt
s

o
f 

th
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

w
ill

b
e

re
fl
e
c
te

d

in
 t
h
e

d
e
s
ig

n
o
f

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

a
n
d

p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l

m
a
te

ri
a
ls

.

S
a
m

p
le

o
f 

th
e

re
s
id

e
n
ts

o
f 

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
u
s
in

g
 t
h
e

g
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t's

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

fo
r 

th
e

B
V

P
I

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
.
R

e
s
u
lt
s

in
c
lu

d
e

b
re

a
k
d
o
w

n
b
y

e
th

n
ic

it
y

a
n
d

c
a
n

b
e

fu
rt

h
e
r

b
ro

k
e
n

d
o
w

n
b
y

g
e
o
g
ra

p
h
ic

a
l
a
re

a
/a

g
e

e
tc

.

R
e
s
u
lt
s
 t
o

b
e

fo
rm

a
lly

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o

M
e
m

b
e
rs

a
n
d

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

in
 t
h
e

B
e
s
t
V

a
lu

e

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

P
la

n
in

J
u
n
e

2
0
0
7
.

Page 168



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

1
-

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

P
la

n
2
0
0
6
-0

7
.x

ls

3
4

B
V

P
I
P

la
n
n
in

g

S
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

S
u
rv

e
y

(s
ta

tu
to

ry

tr
ie

n
n
ia

l
s
u
rv

e
y)

J
u
n
e
 t
o

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0
0
6
.

R
e
s
u
lt
s

in
fo

rm
B

V
P

Is
o
n

o
ve

ra
ll

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

w
it
h

p
la

n
n
in

g
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

P
o
s
ta

l
s
u
rv

e
y.

T
h
is

is
 t
h
e

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

re
q
u
ir
e
d

b
y 

th
e

g
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t
fo

r
B

V
P

I
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

s
u
rv

e
ys

fr
o
m

2
0
0
6
.

3
5

B
V

P
I
B

e
n
e
fi
ts

S
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

S
u
rv

e
y

(s
ta

tu
to

ry

tr
ie

n
n
ia

l
s
u
rv

e
y)

J
u
n
e
 t
o

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0
0
6
.

R
e
s
u
lt
s

in
fo

rm
B

V
P

Is
o
n

o
ve

ra
ll

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

w
it
h

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

P
o
s
ta

l
s
u
rv

e
y.

T
h
is

is
 t
h
e

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

re
q
u
ir
e
d

b
y 

th
e

g
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t
fo

r
B

V
P

I
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

s
u
rv

e
ys

fr
o
m

2
0
0
6
.

3
6

D
o
m

e
s
ti
c

re
fu

s
e
,

re
c
yc

lin
g

a
n
d

s
tr

e
e
t
c
le

a
n
s
in

g

O
c
to

b
e
r

2
0
0
6

o
n
w

a
rd

s

R
e
s
u
lt
s

w
ill

in
fo

rm
d
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t
o
f

n
e
w

re
fu

s
e

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
,
re

c
yc

lin
g

a
n
d

s
tr

e
e
t
c
le

a
n
s
in

g
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t
in

2
0
0
7

O
n
-l
in

e
s
u
rv

e
y 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e

c
o
u
n
c
il'

s

w
e
b
s
it
e

A
ll

re
s
id

e
n
ts

o
f 

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
R

e
s
u
lt
s

w
il

b
e

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
b
y 

th
e

C
u
s
to

m
e
r

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
,
M

e
d
ia

,
C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s

a
n
d

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

T
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y

P
o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r

S
a
m

p
le

o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g
/C

o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x

B
e
n
e
fi
t
c
la

im
a
n
ts

u
s
in

g
 t
h
e

g
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t's

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

fo
r 

th
e

B
V

P
I
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
.
R

e
s
u
lt
s

in
c
lu

d
e

b
re

a
k
d
o
w

n
b
y

e
th

n
ic

it
y

R
e
s
u
lt
s
 t
o

b
e

fo
rm

a
lly

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o

M
e
m

b
e
rs

a
n
d

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

in
 t
h
e

B
e
s
t
V

a
lu

e

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

P
la

n
in

J
u
n
e

2
0
0
7
.

S
a
m

p
le

o
f

u
s
e
rs

o
f

p
la

n
n
in

g

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

u
s
in

g
 t
h
e

g
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t's

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

fo
r 

th
e

B
V

P
I

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
.
R

e
s
u
lt
s

in
c
lu

d
e

b
re

a
k
d
o
w

n
b
y

e
th

n
ic

it
y

R
e
s
u
lt
s
 t
o

b
e

fo
rm

a
lly

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o

M
e
m

b
e
rs

a
n
d

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

in
 t
h
e

B
e
s
t
V

a
lu

e

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

P
la

n
in

J
u
n
e

2
0
0
7
.

Page 169



Page 170

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

3
-

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

R
e
g
is

te
r

2
0
0
6
.x

ls

R
E

F
S

U
B

J
E

C
T

D
A

T
E

C
O

M
M

IS
S

IO
N

E
D

B
Y

C
A

R
R

IE
D

O
U

T
B

Y

P
U

R
P

O
S

E
C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
R

E
S

U
L

T
S

R
E

P
O

R
T

E
D

T
O

M
E

T
H

O
D

C
O

N
S

/0
1
/0

6
H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s

S
tr

a
te

g
y

2
0
0
6
/0

7

2
0
0
8
/0

9

J
u
n
-0

5
H

o
u
s
in

g
N

e
e
d
s

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

O
ff

ic
e

o
f

D
e
p
u
ty

P
ri
m

e
M

in
is

te
r

T
o

c
o
n
ta

c
t
va

ri
o
u
s

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

o
n

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d

s
tr

a
te

g
y.

T
o

a
s
s
is

t
in

p
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n

o
f

fo
rt

h
c
o
m

in
g

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
.

T
h
o
s
e

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

in
vo

lv
e
d

in

a
s
s
is

ti
n
g
 t
h
e

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

in
it
s

H
o
m

e
le

s
s

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
.
R

e
s
u
lt
s

re
c
e
iv

e
d

w
e
re

p
o
s
it
iv

e
w

it
h

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t

R
e
s
u
lt
s

o
f

S
tr

a
te

g
y

w
ill

b
e

p
a
s
s
e
d

to
fo

rt
h
c
o
m

in
g

C
P

G
.

W
ill

b
e

a
va

ila
b
le

in
 t
h
e

fo
rt

h
c
o
m

in
g

H
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s

S
tr

a
te

g
y

w
h
e
n
 t
h
is

is
m

a
d
e

a
p
u
b
lic

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t

P
o
s
ta

l
s
u
rv

e
y

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t
o
 t
h
e

a
b
o
ve

C
O

N
S

/0
2
/0

6
S

to
c
k

T
ra

n
s
fe

r
–

W
ic

k
fi
e
ld

s
,

C
h
ig

w
e
ll

(S
ta

g
e

1
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
)

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

–

M
a
rc

h
2
0
0
6

C
a
b
in

e
t

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
o

c
o
n
s
u
lt

re
s
id

e
n
ts

(f
o
rm

a
lly

)

o
n
 t
h
e

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t
o
n

a

tr
a
n
s
fe

r
o
f

W
ic

k
fi
e
ld

s
a
n
d

it
s

te
n
a
n
ts

 t
o

H
o
m

e
G

ro
u
p

L
td

(W
a
rd

e
n

H
o
u
s
in

g
),

 t
o

e
n
a
b
le

a

m
a
jo

r
im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
t
s
c
h
e
m

e
 t
o

g
o

a
h
e
a
d
.

A
ll

s
e
c
u
re

a
n
d

n
o
n
-s

e
c
u
re

te
n
a
n
ts

o
f

W
ic

k
fi
e
ld

s

N
o
.
o
f

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s

re
c
e
iv

e
d

1
7
(1

0
0
%

)-
N

o
.
o
f 

te
n
a
n
ts

“i
n

fa
vo

u
r”

1
2
(7

0
.6

%
)-

N
o
.
o
f 

te
n
a
n
ts

“n
o
t
in

fa
vo

u
r”

0
N

o
.
o
f

te
n
a
n
ts

“n
o
t
s
u
re

”
a
b
o
u
t 
th

e

tr
a
n
s
fe

r
5
(2

9
.4

%
)

S
e
ve

n
 t
e
n
a
n
ts

d
id

n
o
t
m

a
k
e

a
n
y

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

,

w
h
ils

t
1
0

re
s
id

e
n
ts

d
id

m
a
k
e

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

.

P
o
s
ta

l
s
u
rv

e
y

w
it
h

d
e
ta

ile
d

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t.

A
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n

a
n
d

A
n
s
w

e
r

S
e
s
s
io

n

w
a
s

a
ls

o
h
e
ld

d
u
ri
n
g

th
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

p
e
ri
o
d
.

C
O

N
S

/0
3
/0

6
H

o
m

e
le

s
s

E
xi

t

S
u
rv

e
y

M
a
r-

0
6

H
o
u
s
in

g
N

e
e
d
s

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

A
S

A
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

T
o

c
o
n
ta

c
t
p
e
o
p
le

in
 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
,
N

o
rw

a
y,

H
o
u
s
e
,
B

e
d

a
n
d

B
re

a
k
fa

s
t
a
n
d

S
A

F
E

,
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g

re
s
id

e
n
ts

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d

w
it
h

s
e
rv

ic
e

p
ro

vi
d
e
d
.

F
a
m

ili
e
s

o
w

e
d

a
d
u
ty

 t
o

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

u
n
d
e
r 

th
e

te
rm

s
o
f 

th
e

H
o
u
s
in

g
A

c
t

1
9
9
6

p
t
V

1
1
.
M

a
jo

ri
ty

o
f

re
s
id

e
n
ts

w
e
re

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d

w
it
h

s
e
rv

ic
e

p
ro

vi
d
e
d

H
o
u
s
in

g
N

e
e
d
s
.
R

e
s
u
lt
s

a
n
a
ly

s
e
d

to
e
n
s
u
re

re
s
id

e
n
ts

in
 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

w
e
re

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d

w
it
h

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

s
e
rv

ic
e

p
ro

vi
d
e
d
.
A

ls
o
 t
o

b
e

u
s
e
d

in

fo
rt

h
c
o
m

in
g

H
o
m

e
le

s
s

S
tr

a
te

g
y.

B
y

p
e
rs

o
n
a
l
c
o
n
ta

c
t,

fa
c
e
 t
o

fa
c
e

in
te

rv
ie

w
s
,
a
n
d

te
le

p
h
o
n
e

c
o
n
ta

c
t.

£
1
,4

7
5

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

T
IO

N
R

E
G

IS
T

E
R

2
0
0
6

Page 171



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

3
-

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

R
e
g
is

te
r

2
0
0
6
.x

ls

R
E

F
S

U
B

J
E

C
T

D
A

T
E

C
O

M
M

IS
S

IO
N

E
D

B
Y

C
A

R
R

IE
D

O
U

T
B

Y

P
U

R
P

O
S

E
C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
R

E
S

U
L

T
S

R
E

P
O

R
T

E
D

T
O

M
E

T
H

O
D

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

T
IO

N
R

E
G

IS
T

E
R

2
0
0
6

C
O

N
S

/0
4
/0

6
H

o
m

e
le

s
s

E
xi

t

S
u
rv

e
y

M
a
r-

0
6

H
o
u
s
in

g
N

e
e
d
s

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

H
o
u
s
in

g

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

S
tr

a
te

g
y

D
iv

is
io

n

T
o

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e

p
o
s
ta

l
s
u
rv

e
y

o
f

p
e
o
p
le

o
c
c
u
p
yi

n
g

d
if
fe

re
n
t

fo
rm

s
o
f 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

in
 t
h
e

d
is

tr
ic

t

u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 t
e
rm

s
o
f 

th
e

H
o
u
s
in

g

A
c
t
1
9
9
6

P
t
V

1
1

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

a
t
B

ro
o
k

H
a
ve

n
,

N
e
w

S
ta

rt
,
h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s

p
re

ve
n
ti
o
n

s
e
rv

ic
e

c
lie

n
ts

.

R
e
s
u
lt
s

w
e
re

p
o
s
it
iv

e
.

M
a
jo

ri
ty

o
f

re
s
id

e
n
ts

w
e
re

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d

w
it
h

s
e
rv

ic
e

p
ro

vi
d
e
d

H
o
u
s
in

g
N

e
e
d
s
.
R

e
s
u
lt
s

a
n
a
ly

s
e
d

to
e
n
s
u
re

re
s
id

e
n
ts

in
 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

w
e
re

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d

w
it
h

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

s
e
rv

ic
e

p
ro

vi
d
e
d
.
A

ls
o
 t
o

b
e

u
s
e
d

in

fo
rt

h
c
o
m

in
g

H
o
m

e
le

s
s

S
tr

a
te

g
y.

B
y

p
o
s
t 
to

 t
a
rg

e
te

d

g
ro

u
p
.

C
O

N
S

/0
5
/0

6
H

o
m

e
le

s
s

E
xi

t

S
u
rv

e
y

1
3
-2

4

M
a
rc

h
2
0
0
6

H
o
u
s
in

g
N

e
e
d
s

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

H
o
m

e
le

s
s

O
ff

ic
e
rs

a
n
d

H
o
m

e
le

s
s

p
re

ve
n
ti
o
n

o
ff

ic
e
rs

T
o

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e

s
u
rv

e
y

o
n

m
e
m

b
e
rs

o
f 

th
e

p
u
b
lic

s
e
e
k
in

g

A
d
vi

c
e

a
n
d

a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

o
n

a

h
o
u
s
in

g
d
if
fi
c
u
lt
y 

th
e
y

w
e
re

fa
c
e
d

w
it
h

A
ll

m
e
m

b
e
rs

o
f

p
u
b
lic

s
e
e
k
in

g
h
e
lp

w
it
h
 t
h
e
ir

h
o
u
s
in

g
d
if
fi
c
u
lt
y.

P
o
s
it
iv

e

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
M

o
s
t
p
e
o
p
le

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d

w
it
h

s
e
rv

ic
e

g
iv

e
n

H
o
u
s
in

g
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

S
tr

a
te

g
y

D
iv

is
io

n

P
re

p
a
re

d
fo

rm

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

a
n
d

re
tu

rn
e
d

a
t
c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

o
f

in
te

rv
ie

w

/C
O

N
S

/0
6
/0

6
S

p
ri
n
g
fi
e
ld

's

Im
p
ro

ve
m

e
n
t

S
c
h
e
m

e

2
4
-A

p
r-

0
6

R
o
u
n
d
h
ill

s
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t
H

e
a
d

o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
o

a
d
vi

s
e
 t
h
e

R
o
u
n
d
h
ill

s

re
s
id

e
n
ts

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n

M
e
m

b
e
rs

a
n
d

re
s
id

e
n
ts

o
f 

th
e

S
p
ri
n
g
fi
e
ld

's
e
s
ta

te
a
t 
th

e
ir

A
G

M
o
f

p
ro

g
re

s
s

o
n
 t
h
e

im
p
ro

ve
m

e
n
t
s
c
h
e
m

e
p
la

n
n
e
d

fo
r

S
p
ri
n
g
fi
e
ld

's
 F

la
ts

.

In
vi

ta
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e

R
o
u
n
d
h
ill

s

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n

A
G

M

is
s
u
e
d
 t
o

a
ll

re
s
id

e
n
ts

o
f 

th
e

R
o
u
n
d
h
ill

s
E

s
ta

te
,
w

h
ic

h

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 t
h
e

fl
a
ts

a
t

S
p
ri
n
g
fi
e
ld

's
,
in

vi
te

s
is

s
u
e
d

b
y 

th
e

R
o
u
n
d
h
ill

s
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n

C
o
m

m
it
te

e

M
e
m

b
e
rs

.

N
o

re
s
u
lt
s

re
c
o
rd

e
d

–
O

ra
l

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

w
it
h

Q
&

A
s
e
s
s
io

n

o
n
ly

. 
F

e
e
d
b
a
c
k

g
iv

e
n
 t
o
 t
h
e

S
p
ri
n
g
fi
e
ld

's
P

ro
je

c
t
T

e
a
m

a
n
d

H
o
u
s
in

g
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
m

a
n
a
g
e
r

fo
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e

m
e
e
ti
n
g
.
N

o
a
c
ti
o
n

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

a
n
d

n
o

re
s
u
lt
s
 t
o

re
p
o
rt

o
n
 t
h
is

o
c
c
a
s
io

n

O
ra

l
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

o
n
ly

C
o
s
t
–

lim
it
e
d
 t
o

m
e
e
ti
n
g

a
llo

w
a
n
c
e

Page 172



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

3
-

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

R
e
g
is

te
r

2
0
0
6
.x

ls

R
E

F
S

U
B

J
E

C
T

D
A

T
E

C
O

M
M

IS
S

IO
N

E
D

B
Y

C
A

R
R

IE
D

O
U

T
B

Y

P
U

R
P

O
S

E
C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
R

E
S

U
L

T
S

R
E

P
O

R
T

E
D

T
O

M
E

T
H

O
D

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

T
IO

N
R

E
G

IS
T

E
R

2
0
0
6

C
O

N
S

/0
7
/0

6
S

to
c
k

T
ra

n
s
fe

r
–

W
ic

k
fi
e
ld

s
,

C
h
ig

w
e
ll

(S
ta

g
e

2
B

a
llo

t)

A
p
ri
l
-

M
a
y

2
0
0
6

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

E
le

c
to

ra
l
R

e
fo

rm

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

(i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t

s
c
ru

ti
n
iz

e
rs

)

T
o

b
a
llo

t
re

s
id

e
n
ts

o
n
 t
h
e

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e

d
e
ta

ile
d

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t
(a

s

a
m

e
n
d
e
d

fo
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e

S
ta

g
e

1

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
)

o
n

a
 t
ra

n
s
fe

r
o
f

W
ic

k
fi
e
ld

s
a
n
d

it
s
 t
e
n
a
n
ts

 t
o

H
o
m

e
G

ro
u
p

L
td

(W
a
rd

e
n

H
o
u
s
in

g
) 

to
e
n
a
b
le

a
m

a
jo

r

im
p
ro

ve
m

e
n
t
s
c
h
e
m

e
 t
o

g
o

a
h
e
a
d
.

T
o
ta

l
n
o
.
o
f 

te
n
a
n
ts

b
a
llo

te
d

-

1
6
.

N
o
.
o
f

b
a
llo

t
p
a
p
e
rs

re
c
e
iv

e
d

-
1
4

(8
7
.5

%
o
f

th
o
s
e

b
a
llo

te
d
).

N
o
.
in

fa
vo

u
r

o
f 

th
e
 t
ra

n
s
fe

r
-

1
1

(7
8
.6

%
o
f 

th
o
s
e

w
h
o

re
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
).

N
o
.
n
o
t
in

fa
vo

u
r

o
f 

th
e
 t
ra

n
s
fe

r
3

(2
1
.4

%
o
f 

th
o
s
e

w
h
o

re
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
)

H
o
u
s
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r,

re
s
id

e
n
ts

a
n
d

S
e
c
re

ta
ry

o
f

S
ta

te
.

T
o

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 t
o
 t
h
e

S
e
c
re

ta
ry

o
f

S
ta

te
 t
h
a
t
a

m
a
jo

ri
ty

o
f

s
e
c
u
re

te
n
a
n
ts

w
e
re

in
fa

vo
u
r

o
f

a

tr
a
n
s
fe

r 
to

W
a
rd

e
n

H
o
u
s
in

g
.

C
O

M
S

S
ys

te
m

–
R

e
p
o
rt

 t
o

H
o
u
s
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r

–
M

a
y

2
0
0
6

F
o
rm

a
l
b
a
llo

t

Page 173



Page 174

This page is intentionally left blank



Report to the Finance and 
Performance Management Scrutiny 
Panel 
 
Date of meeting: 14 November 2006 
 
Portfolio:  Finance & Performance Management  
 
Subject:   Value for Money Analysis 2005/6 
 
Officer contact for further information: Alan Hall, Head of Housing Services (01992 
564004) 
 
Democratic Services Officer: A Hendry (01992 – 56 4246) 
 
Recommendations: 
 
(1)  That the Scrutiny Panel considers the Value for Money (VFM) Analysis 2005/6, 

attached as an Appendix, and whether the Panel: 
 

(a)  would like any clarification to be provided to a future meeting on any of 
the content; and/or 
 
(b) feels that any of the information provided by the VFM Analysis should be 
brought to the attention of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, to help 
inform the Committee’s Work Programme for 2007/8;  

 
(2) That the pages of the VFM Analysis relating to the following services be 

considered further by the Panel at a future meeting, once the outstanding cost 
information has been obtained and/or the required analysis has been 
undertaken and a commentary provided: 

 
 (a)  Housing Services (outstanding Housemark information) 
 
 (b)  Environmental Services (Commentary on Performance V Cost); and 

 
(3)  That information comparing costs and performance at the corporate level be 

gathered and considered at a future meeting of the Panel. 
 
 
Background 
 
1.   The Audit Commission now undertakes an annual Use of Resources (UoR) 
Assessment, which evaluates how well councils manage and use their financial resources.  
It is a more stringent test than the auditor-scored judgements that formed part of the 
comprehensive performance assessment (CPA) framework up until 2004.  The scope of the 
assessment has also been widened.  The assessment focuses on the importance of having 
sound and strategic financial management, to ensure that resources are available to support 
the Council’s priorities and improve services, covering five themes.  One of the five themes 
is “Value for Money” (VFM). 
 
2.   In March 2006, the Audit Commission reported on its UoR Assessment for the 

 

Agenda Item 12

Page 175



Council.  Overall, out of a possible score of 1-4, it gave the Council a score of “ 2 – Only at 
minimum requirements – adequate performance”.  A score of “ 2 “ was also given for the 
Value for Money theme, although the Audit Commission’s judgement for one of the two 
components of the VFM Score, relating to whether the Council manages and improves value 
for money, only scored “1 – Below minimum requirements – inadequate performance”. 
 
3.   The Audit Commission will be visiting the Council during week commencing 15th 
January 2007 to undertake the Council’s UoR Assessment for 2006/7. 
 
Progress since the 2005/6 UoR Assessment 
 
4.   Following last year’s UoR Assessment, the Management Board formed a high-level 
Use of Resources (officer) Working Party, chaired by the Head of Housing Services and 
including Heads or Assistant Heads of Service from each service.  The Terms of Reference 
for the Working Party included a requirement to study the Audit Commission’s Key Lines of 
Enquiry (KLOEs) and the Council’s Audit Score Feedback for 2006-7 in respect of the Use of 
Resources and to identify those recommended improvements/tasks that are required to 
enable the Council to move to the next level for each KLOE. 
 
5.   Accordingly, the Working Party formulated a detailed Work Programme / Progress 
Report, which listed the required tasks to reach the next level of the UoR KLOE, and 
assigned officer responsibilities, priorities and target completion dates for each task.  In view 
of the amount of detailed work required to improve the Council’s VFM Score, the Working 
Party made an early decision to form a small Value for Money Project Team, chaired by the 
Head of HR and Performance Management, to oversee the completion of the required tasks 
relating to the VFM KLOEs.  
 
6.   The Working Party, Project Team and individual officers have been working through 
the Work Programme since June 2006 and have made significant progress in completing its 
tasks.  This has included: 
 

• Production and approval of a Value for Money Strategy, Data Quality Strategy and 
Staff Code of Conduct   

• Formulation of the Council’s Value for Money Self-Assessment 
• Introduction of many new approaches and procedures (e.g. procedure note for 

closure of accounts processes and a proposed consultation on the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy) 

• Production and approval of a Business and Internal Control Assurance Framework 
• Formulation of proposals for the introduction of an independent Audit and 

Governance Committee from May 2007 
• Approval of the Corporate Risk Register and Risk Management Strategy by 

members, and the embedding of risk management within the organisation 
• Improved budgetary information to members and monitoring by officers  
• Introduction of a Value for Money Analysis for 2005/6 (see below). 
 

7.   During 2006, the Audit Commission amended the UoR KLOEs.  As a result, the 
Working Party has reviewed its original Work Programme, and revised it to incorporate 
additional tasks that need to be undertaken as a result of the KLOE. 
 
8.   The significant progress made by the Working Group appeared to be recognised by 
the Audit Manager of the District Audit Service at a positive meeting with the Head of 
Housing Services in October, at which it was agreed that the UoR Work Programme / 
Progress Report would be used by the Audit Commission, in lieu of the Council completing a 
separate UoR Self-Assessment, for the 2006/7 UoR Assessment.  It is felt that this is helpful 

Page 176



to the Council, not only because of the saving in officer time to complete a Self-Assessment, 
but mainly because the Work Programme / Progress Report is action-focussed on the areas 
that the Council needs to improve to reach the next level, and has comprehensively tracked 
completed actions and achievements.  
 
Value for Money Analysis 2005/6 
 
9.   A central theme running through the Audit Commission’s VFM KLOEs is the 
importance of the Council having information on its costs, and knowing how these compare 
to other organisations and how they relate to the quality of the Council’s services.  Stated 
linkages of performance and associated costs with the Council's overall objectives, 
contained within the Council Plan, are also important. 
 
 
10.   In order to better understand the Council’s unit costs for services and how they relate 
to the Council’s performance and compare with other organisations, the UoR Working Party 
has spent some time formulating a Value for Money (VFM) Analysis, which is attached as an 
appendix.  This is not based on any other organisation’s approach or model, but has been 
developed in-house.  Due to its relatively small print size, the VFM Analysis has been 
enlarged and reproduced for the Scrutiny Panel on A3 paper to assist members. 
 
11.   It is emphasised that the model still has some gaps and needs much refinement and 
development over the next twelve months, but the attached VFM Analysis is the first step of 
the Working Party’s intention to create a valuable tool to inform further analysis and 
discussions on VFM, by officers and members, on an annual basis.  
 
12.   It is also important for the Scrutiny Panel to understand that the purpose of the 
VFM Analysis is only to provide an initial “indicator” of the relationship between 
performance and costs for services, to prompt discussion, and to identify areas where 
further - more detailed and targeted analysis - may be required, which may then lead to a 
need for some form of corrective action or additional resource allocation.  It would be both 
inappropriate and imprudent to take any action directly in response to considering the initial 
information provided. 
 
13.   The VFM Analysis is separated into the nine Council Services that have BVPIs and 
LPIs.  Most Services are then broken down into distinct areas of activity within the Service, 
for which BVPIs and LPIs are available.  When looking at the information for each service, 
there are three distinct groupings of data, relating to each service area activity, as follows: 
 

• Clutches of BVPIs and LPIs  
• Clutches of cost information 
• A short commentary on performance and cost 

 
14.   It is important to note that the cost information on a particular row does not relate to 
the performance data on the same row.  The clutch of performance data for a particular 
service area grouping should be considered with the associated clutch of cost information 
for that service area grouping.  The first two pages of the VFM Analysis provide further 
explanation on how to use the model. 

 
15.   Although the VFM Analysis is still at a relatively early stage of development, with a 
number of gaps within the required data, it is felt important that the Scrutiny Panel is 
presented with the information at this initial stage.  Indeed, the Council’s new Value for 
Money Strategy gives the Scrutiny Panel the responsibility of carrying out the scrutiny of the 
Council’s performance and costs, compared to national/regional/local benchmarks where 
available, and to the links to KPI, BVPI and LPI performance, on an annual basis. 

Page 177



 
16.   The Scrutiny Panel is therefore invited to: 
 

• Discuss and comment on any of the information or conclusions; 
• Request clarification on any of the content for a future meeting; and 
• Consider whether any of the information provided by the VFM Analysis should be 

brought to the attention of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, to help inform the 
Committee’s Work Programme for 2007/8.  For example, the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee may ask a Task and Finish Panel to investigate and analyse 
the value for money of certain aspects of a Service’s activity, based on the initial 
indicators contained within the VFM Analysis, as part of its terms of reference 
and/or work programme. 

 
17.   It should be noted that one area of development for the VFM Analysis is a 
comparison of costs and performance at the corporate level.  This is an issue that the 
Working Party will be considering, and will bring forward to a future meeting of the Scrutiny 
Panel, in due course.  
 

Page 178



E
p

p
in

g
 F

o
re

s
t

D
is

tr
ic

t
C

o
u

n
c

il

V
a
lu

e
fo

r
M

o
n

e
y

A
n

a
ly

s
is

(
2

0
0

5
/6

 )

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0

0
6

A
 c

o
m

p
a

ri
s

o
n

 o
f 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 a

n
d

 c
o

s
ts

 

fo
r 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il

's
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
re

a
s

Page 179



Page 180

This page is intentionally left blank



In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

In
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r

2
0
0
6
, 

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il
's

C
a
b
in

e
t

a
d
o
p
te

d
it
s

V
a
lu

e
fo

r
M

o
n
e
y

S
tr

a
te

g
y
,

w
it
h
 t

h
e

fo
ll
o
w

in
g

P
o
li
c
y

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t:

T
h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

re
c
o
g
n
is

e
s

it
s

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s

a
s

a
c
u
s
to

d
ia

n
o
f

p
u
b
lic

 f
u
n
d
s
 t

o
s
tr

iv
e
 f

o
r

v
a
lu

e
 f

o
r

m
o
n
e
y

in
 t

h
e

d
e
liv

e
ry

o
f

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

T
h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

s
e
e
k
s
 t

o
a
c
h
ie

v
e

a
n
d

w
h
e
re

p
o
s
s
ib

le
im

p
ro

v
e

v
a
lu

e
 f

o
r

m
o
n
e
y

b
y

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
a
t:

<
>

C
o
s
ts

c
o
m

p
a
re

w
e
ll

w
it
h

o
th

e
r

lo
c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
,

a
n
d

w
h
e
re

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

o
th

e
r

s
e
c
to

rs
,

a
llo

w
in

g
 f

o
r

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
fa

c
to

rs

<
>

C
o
s
ts

a
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
s
u
ra

te
w

it
h

s
e
rv

ic
e

d
e
liv

e
ry

,
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

a
n
d

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d

<
>

C
o
s
ts

re
fl
e
c
t

p
o
lic

y
d
e
c
is

io
n
s

<
>

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

in
re

la
ti
o
n
 t

o
v
a
lu

e
 f

o
r

m
o
n
e
y

is
m

o
n
it
o
re

d
a
n
d

re
v
ie

w
e
d

<
>

Im
p
ro

v
e
d

v
a
lu

e
 f

o
r

m
o
n
e
y

a
n
d

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y

g
a
in

s
a
re

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d

<
>

  
F

u
ll

lo
n
g
 t

e
rm

c
o
s
ts

a
re

 t
a
k
e
n

in
to

a
c
c
o
u
n
t

w
h
e
n

m
a
k
in

g
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t

a
n
d

o
th

e
r

s
p
e
n
d
in

g
d
e
c
is

io
n
s
.

<
>

W
h
e
re

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

is
g
o
o
d
,

w
it
h

lo
w

c
o
s
ts

-
D

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
a

c
o
s
t

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

s
e
rv

ic
e

<
>

W
h
e
re

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

is
g
o
o
d
,

w
it
h

h
ig

h
c
o
s
ts

-
Is

it
a

C
o
u
n
c
il

p
ri

o
ri

ty
 t

o
in

v
e
s
t

m
o
n
e
y

in
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
h
ig

h
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

in
 t

h
is

a
re

a
 ?

<
>

W
h
e
re

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

is
p
o
o
r,

w
it
h

lo
w

c
o
s
ts

-
S

h
o
u
ld

 t
h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

b
e

in
v
e
s
ti
n
g

m
o
re

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t

o
im

p
ro

v
e

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

(i
f

a
p
ri

o
ri

ty
)?

<
>

W
h
e
re

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

is
p
o
o
r

w
it
h

h
ig

h
c
o
s
ts

-
S

u
g
g
e
s
ts

a
n

in
e
ff

ic
ie

n
t

s
e
rv

ic
e
,

a
n
d

fu
rt

h
e
r

a
n
a
ly

s
is

is
re

q
u
ir

e
d
 t

o
u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d

w
h
y

a
n

a
p
p
a
re

n
tl
y

h
ig

h
re

s
o
u
rc

e
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

p
ro

v
id

e
s

p
o
o
r

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

U
s
in

g
th

e
A

n
a
ly

s
is

N
O

T
E

S

It
is

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 

th
a
t 

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

h
a
s

a
g
o
o
d

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
o
f 

th
e

in
te

r-
re

la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip

b
e
tw

e
e
n

o
u
r

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

a
n
d

o
u
r

c
o
s
ts

,
a
n
d
 t

h
a
t

w
e

u
s
e
 t

h
is

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

to
m

a
k
e

s
o
u
n
d

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

a
n
d

p
o
li
c
y

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
.

T
o

d
e
li
v
e
r 

th
e

V
F

M
S

tr
a
te

g
y
,

it
is

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 

th
a
t 

th
e
re

is
c
le

a
r

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

o
n

o
u
r

c
o
s
ts

a
n
d

h
o
w

 t
h
e
s
e

c
o
m

p
a
re

 t
o

o
th

e
rs

a
n
d
 t

o
 t

h
e

q
u
a
li
ty

o
f

o
u
r

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

a
n
d

o
v
e
r 

ti
m

e
. 

 I
t 

is
a
ls

o
im

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

to
a
c
h
ie

v
e

a
n
d

im
p
ro

v
e

v
a
lu

e
fo

r
m

o
n
e
y
,

a
n
d
 t

h
a
t

s
u
c
h

a
n

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

is
e
m

b
e
d
d
e
d

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il
’s

c
u
lt
u
re

.
M

e
m

b
e
rs

,
s
e
n
io

r
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

a
n
d

s
e
rv

ic
e

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

n
e
e
d
 t

o
m

a
n
a
g
e

c
o
s
ts

a
lo

n
g
s
id

e
q
u
a
li
ty

o
f

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

a
n
d

re
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
 t

o
lo

c
a
l
n
e
e
d
s
.

F
u
rt

h
e
m

o
re

,
o
u
r

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
,

a
n
d
 t

h
e

c
o
s
ts

o
f

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t

h
e

le
v
e
l
o
f

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t

h
a
t

w
e

s
e
e
k
,

m
u
s
t

b
e

li
n
k
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il
's

o
v
e
ra

ll
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
,

c
o
n
ta

in
e
d

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

P
la

n
.

In
o
rd

e
r 

to
b
e
tt

e
r

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d

o
u
r

c
o
s
ts

a
n
d

h
o
w

 t
h
e
y

re
la

te
 t

o
o
th

e
r

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s

a
n
d
 t

o
o
u
r

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 

th
is

V
F

M
A

n
a
ly

s
is

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
. 

 I
t 

is

e
m

p
h
a
s
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

m
o
d
e
l
n
e
e
d
s

m
u
c
h

re
fi
n
e
m

e
n
t

a
n
d

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

o
v
e
r 

th
e

n
e
x
t 

tw
e
lv

e
m

o
n
th

s
-

b
u
t 

th
e

in
te

n
ti
o
n

is
 t

o
c
re

a
te

a
v
a
lu

a
b
le

 t
o
o
l 
to

in
fo

rm

fu
rt

h
e
r

a
n
a
ly

s
is

a
n
d

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
,

o
n

a
n

a
n
n
u
a
l
b
a
s
is

,
w

it
h

re
g
a
rd

 t
o
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
:

T
h
e

A
n
a
ly

s
is

is
s
e
p
a
ra

te
d

in
to

o
u
r

n
in

e
C

o
u
n
c
il

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
a
t

h
a
v
e

B
V

P
Is

.
M

o
s
t

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

a
re

 t
h
e
n

b
ro

k
e
n

d
o
w

n
in

to
d
is

ti
n
c
t

a
re

a
s

o
f

a
c
ti
v
it
y

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

S
e
rv

ic
e
,

fo
r

w
h
ic

h
B

V
P

Is
a
re

a
v
a
il
a
b
le

.
W

h
e
n

lo
o
k
in

g
a
t 

th
e

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

fo
r

e
a
c
h

s
e
rv

ic
e
, 

th
e
re

a
re

 t
h
re

e
d
is

ti
n
c
t

g
ro

u
p
in

g
s

o
f

d
a
ta

,
a
s

fo
ll
o
w

s
:

It
is

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t

fo
r

u
s
e
rs

o
f 

th
e

V
F

M
A

n
a
ly

s
is

 t
o

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 t

h
a
t

it
s

p
u
rp

o
s
e

is
o
n
ly

 t
o

p
ro

v
id

e
a
n

in
it
ia

l
“i

n
d
ic

a
to

r”
o
f 

th
e

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

b
e
tw

e
e
n

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

a
n
d

c
o
s
ts

fo
r

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

to
p
ro

m
p
t

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
,

a
n
d
 t

o
id

e
n
ti
fy

a
re

a
s

w
h
e
re

fu
rt

h
e
r

-
m

o
re

d
e
ta

il
e
d

a
n
d
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
a
n
a
ly

s
is

-
m

a
y

b
e

re
q
u
ir

e
d
. 

 T
h
is

m
a
y
 t

h
e
n

le
a
d
 t

o
a

n
e
e
d

fo
r

s
o
m

e
fo

rm
o
f

c
o
rr

e
c
ti
v
e

a
c
ti
o
n

o
r

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
re

s
o
u
rc

e
a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
. 

 I
t 

w
o
u
ld

b
e

b
o
th

in
a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

a
n
d

im
p
ru

d
e
n
t 

to
 t

a
k
e

a
n
y

a
c
ti
o
n

d
ir

e
c
tl
y

in
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
 t

o
c
o
n
s
id

e
ri

n
g
 t

h
e

in
it
ia

l
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

p
ro

v
id

e
d
.

Page 181



<
>

C
lu

tc
h
e
s

o
f

B
V

P
Is

a
n
d

L
P

Is
re

la
ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e

s
e
rv

ic
e

a
re

a
a
c
ti
v
it
y

<
>

A
s
h
o
rt

c
o
m

m
e
n
ta

ry
o
n

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

a
n
d

c
o
s
t

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

In
d

ic
a
to

rs

O
n
 t

h
e

le
ft

h
a
n
d

s
id

e
o
f 

th
e
 t

a
b
le

s
, 

th
e
re

a
re

fo
u
r

c
o
lu

m
n
s

re
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
:

<
>

  
 T

h
e

B
V

P
I

o
r

L
P

I
n
u
m

b
e
r

(w
it
h

"K
P

I"
d
e
n
o
ti
n
g
 t

h
o
s
e

B
V

P
Is

a
n
d

L
P

Is
 t

h
a
t

a
re

 t
h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il
's

K
e
y

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
)

<
>

  
 T

h
e

2
0
0
5
/6

d
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n

fo
r 

th
e

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

in
d
ic

a
to

r

<
>

D
e
ta

il
s

o
f

o
u
r

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

fo
r 

th
e

m
o
s
t

re
c
e
n
t

fu
ll

y
e
a
r

(2
0
0
5
/6

)

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
,

a
b
o
v
e

w
h
ic

h
2
5
%

o
f 

th
e

c
o
u
n
c
il
s

in
 t

h
e

c
o
u
n
tr

y
h
a
v
e

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
).

C
o

s
t

In
d

ic
a
to

rs

In
 t

h
e

m
id

d
le

o
f 

th
e
 t

a
b
le

s
, 

th
e
re

a
re

5
-7

c
o
lu

m
n
s

re
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
c
o
s
ts

:

<
>

  
 T

h
e

n
a
m

e
o
f 

th
e

c
o
s
t

in
d
ic

a
to

r

<
>

W
h
e
re

b
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

is
a
v
a
il
a
b
le

, 
th

e
n
a
m

e
o
f 

th
e

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t

m
a
n
a
g
e
s
 t

h
e

b
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g

p
ro

c
e
s
s

<
>

D
e
ta

il
s

o
f 

th
e

g
ro

u
p

o
f

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s

fo
r

w
h
ic

h
 t

h
e

b
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

d
a
ta

re
la

te
s

(e
.g

.
a
ll

c
o
u
n
c
il
s

in
 t

h
e

c
o
u
n
tr

y
,

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g

a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s
)

<
>

  
 O

u
r

c
o
s
t,

re
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e

c
o
s
t

in
d
ic

a
to

r.
  

In
m

o
s
t

c
a
s
e
s
, 

th
e

c
o
s
t

is
fo

r 
th

e
m

o
s
t

re
c
e
n
t

fu
ll

y
e
a
r

(2
0
0
5
/6

).
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

w
h
e
re

c
o
s
t

d
a
ta

is
n
o
t

a
v
a
il
a
b
le

fo
r 

th
e

m
o
s
t

re
c
e
n
t

fu
ll

y
e
a
r

(w
h
ic

h
is

m
a
in

ly
d
u
e
 t

o
b
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

e
d

d
a
ta

n
o
t

b
e
in

g
a
v
a
il
a
b
le

),
p
re

v
io

u
s

y
e
a
rs

'
c
o
s
ts

a
re

g
iv

e
n

(w
it
h

a
n
o
te

 t
o

c
o
n
fi
rm

w
h
ic

h
y
e
a
r 

th
e

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

re
la

te
s
 t

o
).

<
>

W
h
e
re

a
v
a
il
a
b
le

, 
th

e
a
v
e
ra

g
e
,

b
o
tt

o
m

q
u
a
rt

il
e

a
n
d
 t

o
p

q
u
a
rt

il
e

c
o
s
ts

fo
r 

th
e

b
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

e
d

g
ro

u
p
.

W
h
e
re

q
u
a
rt

il
e

c
o
s
ts

a
re

n
o
t

a
v
a
il
a
b
le

,

b
u
t

o
th

e
r

u
s
e
fu

l
c
o
s
t

c
o
m

p
a
ri

s
o
n
s

a
re

a
v
a
il
a
b
le

(e
.g

. 
th

e
lo

w
e
s
t

o
r

h
ig

h
e
s
t

c
o
s
t)

, 
th

e
s
e

a
re

g
iv

e
n
,

w
it
h

a
n

e
x
p
la

n
a
ti
o
n
.

W
h
e
re

A
u
d
it

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
c
o
s
t

c
o
m

p
a
ri

s
o
n
s

a
re

a
v
a
il
a
b
le

(f
ro

m
 t

h
e

A
u
d
it

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
's

w
e
b
s
it
e
),

 t
h
e
s
e

h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

u
s
e
d

a
n
d
 t

h
e

ra
n
k
in

g
s

g
iv

e
n
.

  
  

  
 T

h
e

A
u
d
it

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
re

-b
a
s
e
s
 t

h
e
 t

o
ta

l
n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

b
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

g
ro

u
p
in

g
 t

o
a

b
a
s
e

o
f

1
0
0
,

a
n
d
 t

h
e
n

g
iv

e
s
 t

h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il
's

ra
n
k
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

1
0
0

b
a
s
e
. 

 T
h
e

a
u
th

o
ri

ty
w

it
h
 t

h
e

lo
w

e
s
t

c
o
s
t

is
ra

n
k
e
d

a
s

1
s
t

a
n
d
 t

h
e

h
ig

h
e
s
t

is
ra

n
k
e
d

a
s

1
0
0
th

. 
 F

o
r

e
x
a
m

p
le

,
if
 t

h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

h
a
s
 t

h
e

5
0
th

lo
w

e
s
t

c
o
s
t

o
u
t

o
f

2
0
0

lo
c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s
,

it
s

ra
n
k
in

g
is

2
5
th

o
u
t

o
f

1
0
0
.

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 o
n

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

V
C

o
s
t

F
o
r

e
a
c
h

s
e
rv

ic
e

a
re

a
g
ro

u
p
in

g
,

a
c
o
m

m
e
n
ta

ry
is

g
iv

e
n
,

c
o
m

p
a
ri

n
g

it
s

c
lu

tc
h

o
f

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
w

it
h

it
s

c
lu

tc
h

o
f

c
o
s
t

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
. 

 I
t 

a
ls

o
g
iv

e
s

c
la

ri
fi
c
a
ti
o
n

a
b
o
u
t

c
o
s
ts

a
n
d

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
,

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

ry
a
n
y

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
re

la
ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e

v
a
li
d
it
y

o
f 

th
e

c
o
s
t

o
r

b
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

e
d

c
o
s
t

d
a
ta

.

T
h
is

s
e
c
ti
o
n

is
 t

h
e

m
a
in

a
re

a
 t

h
a
t

n
e
e
d
s

re
fi
n
in

g
,

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
a
n
d

m
o
re

a
n
a
ly

s
is

o
v
e
r 

th
e

c
o
m

in
g

y
e
a
r.

It
 i

s
 i

m
p

o
rt

a
n

t
to

 n
o

te
th

a
t

th
e

c
o

s
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 a
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r

ro
w

d
o

e
s
 n

o
t

re
la

te
to

th
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 d

a
ta

 o
n

 t
h

e
s
a
m

e
ro

w
.

T
h

e
c
lu

tc
h

 o
f

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 d

a
ta

fo
r

a
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r

s
e
rv

ic
e

a
re

a
 g

ro
u

p
in

g
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 w

it
h

th
e

a
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
e
d

c
lu

tc
h

 o
f

c
o

s
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

fo
r

th
a
t

s
e
rv

ic
e

a
re

a
 g

ro
u

p
in

g
.

T
o

a
v
o
id

u
s
e
rs

"r
e
a
d
in

g
a
c
ro

s
s
"

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l
ro

w
s
, 

th
e

c
lu

tc
h
e
s

o
f

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

d
a
ta

w
it
h
in

s
e
rv

ic
e

a
re

a
g
ro

u
p
in

g
s

h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

d
is

jo
in

te
d

fr
o
m

 t
h
e

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

c
o
s
t

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
.

F
o
r

e
a
c
h

s
e
rv

ic
e

a
re

a
g
ro

u
p
in

g
,

d
e
ta

il
s

o
f 

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

P
la

n
 T

h
e
m

e
(s

) 
th

a
t

re
la

te
 t

o
 t

h
a
t

g
ro

u
p
in

g
is

p
ro

v
id

e
d

(a
k
e
y

is
p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e

s
ix

C
o
u
n
c
il

P
la

n

T
h
e
m

e
s

a
t 

th
e
 t

o
p

o
f

e
a
c
h

S
e
rv

ic
e

p
a
g
e
).

  
T

o
 t

h
e

le
ft

o
f 

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

P
la

n
 T

h
e
m

e
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
,

d
e
ta

il
s

o
f 

th
e

s
p
e
c
if
ic

C
o
u
n
c
il

P
la

n
A

c
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
a
t

re
la

te
 t

o
 t

h
e

s
e
rv

ic
e

a
re

a
g
ro

u
p
in

g
a
re

p
ro

v
id

e
d
.

L
in

k
to

C
o

u
n

c
il

 O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s

<
>

  
 T

h
e

la
te

s
t

a
v
a
il
a
b
le

 t
o
p

q
u
a
rt

il
e

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

d
a
ta

(2
0
0
4
/5

)
fo

r
a
ll

d
is

tr
ic

t
c
o
u
n
c
il
s

in
 t

h
e

c
o
u
n
tr

y
(T

o
p

q
u
a
rt

il
e

m
e
a
n
s
 t

h
e

le
v
e
l
o
f

<
>

C
lu

tc
h
e
s

o
f

c
o
s
t

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

re
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e

s
e
rv

ic
e

a
re

a
c
ti
v
it
y

Page 182



G
&

 U
G

re
e

n
&

U
n

iq
u

e
H

&
N

H
o

m
e

s
&

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

S
C

A
S

a
fe

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

E
C

E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
P

ro
s

p
e

ri
ty

Io
P

Im
p

ro
v

in
g

 o
u

r
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

F
f 

L
F

it
fo

r 
L

if
e

E
F

D
C

D
C

 T
o

p
E

F
D

C
B

o
tt

o
m

T
o

p

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
Q

u
a

rt
il
e

C
o

s
t

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0

0
5

/6
2

0
0

4
/5

2
0

0
5

/6

K
P

I
-

B
V

6
6
a

9
8
.5

8
%

9
8
.7

4
%

B
V

6
6
b

8
.2

4
%

N
/A

B
V

6
6
c

2
0
.0

0
%

N
/A

B
V

6
6
d

0
.2

1
%

N
/A

H
1
a

£
6
5
,3

5
1

N
/A

H
1
b

1
.5

3
%

N
/A

T
B

A
T

B
A

T
B

A
T

B
A

T
B

A
T

B
A

T
B

A
T

B
A

T
B

A
T

B
A

T
B

A
T

B
A

K
P

I
-

B
V

6
3

6
5

6
7

K
P

I
-

B
V

1
8
4
a

7
.3

1
%

1
7
%

K
P

I
-B

V
1
8
4
b

1
9
.5

0
%

N
/A

H
2
a

9
9
%

N
/A

H
2
b

8
1
%

N
/A

T
B

A
T

B
A

T
B

A
T

B
A

H
2
c

8
6
%

N
/A

T
B

A
T

B
A

T
B

A
T

B
A

H
3
e

9
8
%

N
/A

T
B

A
T

B
A

T
B

A
T

B
A

R
a
n

k
=

1
3
th

o
u

t
o
f

1
0
0

R
a
n

k
=

4
8
th

o
u

t
o
f

1
0
0

H
&

N
 /
 I

o
 P

H
N

 5
C

o
u

n
c

il
P

la
n

A
c

ti
o

n
s

N
o
t

g
iv

e
n

R
a
n

k
=

6
1
s
t

o
u

t
o
f

1
0
0

£
5
8
.0

1

£
1
.9

2
R

a
n

k
=

1
4
th

o
u

t
o
f

1
0
0

R
a
n

k
=

8
7
th

o
u

t
o
f

1
0
0

H
o

u
s

in
g

 G
e

n
e

ra
l
&

H
o

u
s

in
g

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

A
ll

A
u

th
o
ri
ti
e
s

£
3
.8

7

C
o

u
n

c
il

P
la

n
A

c
ti

o
n

s
H

&
N

 /
 I

o
 P

A
u

d
it

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n

V
F

M
T

o
o
l

A
ll

A
u

th
o
ri
ti
e
s

R
e
n

t
c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

is
a
t 

th
e

u
p

p
e
r

q
u

a
rt

ile
.

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
re

is
c
u

rr
e
n

tl
y

n
o

c
o
m

p
a
ra

ti
ve

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

d
a
ta

 f
o
r

o
th

e
r

a
s
p

e
c
ts

o
f

h
o
u

s
in

g
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t,
o
th

e
r

a
re

a
s

o
f

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

a
p

p
e
a
r

g
e
n

e
ra

ll
y

g
o
o
d

- 
th

is
w

ill
b

e
 t

e
s
te

d
b

e
tt

e
r

n
e
xt

y
e
a
r

w
h

e
n

c
o
m

p
a
ra

ti
ve

d
a
ta

is

a
va

ila
b

le
.

G
e
n

e
ra

ll
y
, 

th
e

o
ve

ra
ll

c
o
s
t

o
f

h
o
u

s
in

g
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

is
ve

ry
lo

w
w

h
e
n

c
o
p

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
o
th

e
rs

(w
e
ll

in
 t

o
 t

h
e

b
e
s
t

q
u

a
rt

ile
),

a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e

a
ve

ra
g

e
w

e
e
k
ly

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
c
o
s
t

is
h

ig
h

.
T

h
is

is
a
n

a
s
p

e
c
t

o
n

w
h

ic
h

 f
u

rt
h

e
r

a
n

a
ly

s
is

w
ill

b
e

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

H
o
u

s
e
m

w
a
rk

(s
e
e

b
e
lo

w
).

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
a
ve

ra
g

e
re

n
t 

/ 
d

w
e
ll
in

g
is

a
b

o
ve

a
ve

ra
g

e
,

re
n

t
le

ve
ls

a
re

o
u

ts
id

e
o
f 

th
e

c
o
n

tr
o
l
o
f 

th
e

C
o
u

n
c
il

(G
o
ve

rn
m

e
n

t 
fo

rm
u

la
)

-
T

h
e

m
a
in

re
a
s
o
n

s
 f

o
r

h
ig

h
re

n
t

le
ve

ls
is

a
c
o
m

b
in

a
ti
o
n

o
f

h
ig

h
p

ro
p

e
rt

y

p
ri
c
e
s
,

a
b

o
ve

a
ve

ra
g

e
a
n

n
u

a
l
e
a
rn

in
g

s
a
n

d
a

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

o
f

h
o
u

s
e
s

(c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 f

la
ts

).
H

o
u

s
e
m

a
rk

is
 t

h
e

m
a
in

n
a
ti
o
n

a
l
h

o
u

s
in

g
b

e
n

c
h

m
a
rk

in
g

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n

, 
to

w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e

C
o
u

n
c
il

s
u

b
s
c
ri
b

e
s
.

A
ll
 t

h
e

d
e
ta

ile
d

d
a
ta

 f
o
r

H
o
u

s
e
m

a
rk

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

c
a
lc

u
la

te
d

a
n

d
c
o
ll
a
te

d
.

H
o
w

e
ve

r,
it

c
a
n

n
o
t

b
e

s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 t

o

H
o
u

s
e
m

a
rk

 f
o
r

va
lid

a
ti
o
n

a
n

d
c
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n

u
n

ti
l 
th

e
C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 F

in
a
l

A
c
c
o
u

n
ts

h
a
ve

b
e
e
n

p
ro

d
u

c
e
d

. 
 O

n
c
e
 t

h
e

d
a
ta

c
a
n

b
e

s
u

b
m

it
te

d

a
n

d
 t

h
e

b
e
n

c
h

m
a
rk

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

re
c
e
iv

e
d

(b
y
 t

h
e

e
n

d
o
f

N
o
ve

m
b

e
r

2
0
0
6
) 

fu
rt

h
e
r

d
e
ta

ile
d

c
o
s
t

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

w
ill

b
e

in
s
e
rt

e
d

a
n

d
a
n

a
ly

s
e
d

.

C
o

u
n

c
il

P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

(s
)

A
u

d
it

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n

V
F

M
T

o
o
l

C
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
o

f
A

n
n

u
a
l

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

a
n

d
 C

o
s
ts

H
o

u
s

in
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

C
o

s
t 

In
d

ic
a

to
rs

K
e
y
 t

o
C

o
u

n
c
il

P
la

n
T

h
e
m

e
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 o
n

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
V

C
o

s
t

B
V

P
I
N

o
.

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

G
ro

u
p

2
0

0
5

/6

A
ll

A
u

th
o
ri
ti
e
s

£
5
8

A
ll

d
is

tr
ic

t

c
o
u

n
c
ils

in

E
n

g
la

n
d

A
ll

d
is

tr
ic

t

c
o
u

n
c
ils

in

E
n

g
la

n
d

A
ll

d
is

tr
ic

t

c
o
u

n
c
ils

in

E
n

g
la

n
d

H
N

3
 /
 H

N
 5

C
o

u
n

c
il

P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

(s
)

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs

B
V

P
I
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

C
o

s
t 

In
d

ic
a

to
r

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n

A
v

e
ra

g
e

T
h

e
a
ve

ra
g

e
S

A
P

ra
ti
n

g
o
f

lo
c
a
l

a
u

th
o
ri
ty

o
w

n
e
d

d
w

e
ll
in

g
s

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
C

o
s
t

o
f

M
a
jo

r
&

C
y
c
lic

a
l
R

e
p

a
ir
s

p
e
r

P
ro

p
e
rt

y

T
h

e
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
c
h

a
n

g
e

in
 t

h
e

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n

o
f

n
o
n

-d
e
c
e
n

t
d

w
e
ll
in

g
s

b
e
tw

e
e
n

 t
h

e
s
ta

rt
a
n

d
 t

h
e

e
n

d
o
f 

th
e

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l
y
e
a
r

T
h

e
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

o
f

lo
c
a
l
a
u

th
o
ri
ty

d
w

e
ll
in

g
s

w
h

ic
h

w
e
re

n
o
n

-d
e
c
e
n

t
a
t 

th
e

s
ta

rt
o
f 

th
e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l
y
e
a
r

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
e

R
e
p

a
ir
s

S
p

e
n

d
p

e
r

P
ro

p
e
rt

y

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
C

o
s
t

o
f

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
R

e
p

a
ir
s

P
e
r

P
ro

p
e
rt

y

T
h

e
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o
f

re
p

a
ir
s

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

w
it
h

in
 t

a
rg

e
t 

ti
m

e
:

E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y

A
ll

d
is

tr
ic

t

c
o
u

n
c
ils

in

E
n

g
la

n
d

H
o
u

s
e
m

a
rk

H
o
u

s
e
m

a
rk

H
o
u

s
e
m

a
rk

G
e
n

e
ra

ll
y

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

a
n

c
e

is
ve

ry
g

o
o
d

a
n

d
in

o
r

n
e
a
r 

th
e

u
p

p
e
r

q
u

a
rt

ile
.

R
e
p

a
ir

re
s
p

o
n

s
e

ra
te

s
a
re

in
n

e
e
d

o
f

im
p

ro
ve

m
e
n

t
(w

h
ic

h

h
a
s

o
c
c
u

rr
e
d

in
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t

q
u

a
rt

e
r

o
f

2
0
0
6
/7

,
a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
e
n

a
n

t

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

is
h

ig
h

.

T
h

e
a
ve

ra
g

e
w

e
e
k
ly

m
a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

c
o
s
t

is
a
ve

ra
g

e
,

a
n

d
re

fl
e
c
ts

 t
h

e

in
ve

s
tm

e
n

t
b

e
in

g
m

a
d

e
in

m
a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 t

o
a
c
h

ie
ve

 t
h

e
p

ro
g

re
s
s

o
n

d
e
c
e
n

t
h

o
m

e
s
.

H
o
u

s
e
m

a
rk

is
 t

h
e

m
a
in

n
a
ti
o
n

a
l
h

o
u

s
in

g
b

e
n

c
h

m
a
rk

in
g

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n

, 
to

w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e

C
o
u

n
c
il

s
u

b
s
c
ri
b

e
s
.

A
ll
 t

h
e

d
e
ta

ile
d

d
a
ta

 f
o
r

H
o
u

s
e
m

a
rk

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

c
a
lc

u
la

te
d

a
n

d
c
o
ll
a
te

d
.

H
o
w

e
ve

r,
it

c
a
n

n
o
t

b
e

s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 t

o

H
o
u

s
e
m

a
rk

 f
o
r

va
lid

a
ti
o
n

a
n

d
c
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n

u
n

ti
l 
th

e
C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 F

in
a
l

A
c
c
o
u

n
ts

h
a
ve

b
e
e
n

p
ro

d
u

c
e
d

. 
 O

n
c
e
 t

h
e

d
a
ta

c
a
n

b
e

s
u

b
m

it
te

d

a
n

d
 t

h
e

b
e
n

c
h

m
a
rk

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

re
c
e
iv

e
d

(b
y
 t

h
e

e
n

d
o
f

N
o
ve

m
b

e
r

2
0
0
6
) 

fu
rt

h
e
r

d
e
ta

ile
d

c
o
s
t

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

w
ill

b
e

in
s
e
rt

e
d

a
n

d
a
n

a
ly

s
e
d

.

T
h

e
re

n
t

c
o
ll
e
c
te

d
b

y
 t

h
e

lo
c
a
l
a
u

th
o
ri
ty

a
s

a
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

o
f

re
n

ts
o
w

e
d

o
n

h
o
u

s
in

g
re

ve
n

u
e

a
c
c
o
u

n
t

(H
R

A
)

d
w

e
ll
in

g
s

T
o
ta

l
C

o
re

H
o
u

s
in

g

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
C

o
s
t

P
e
r

P
ro

p
e
rt

y

A
ll

d
is

tr
ic

t

c
o
u

n
c
ils

in

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
h

e
n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f

lo
c
a
l
a
u

th
o
ri
ty

 t
e
n

a
n

ts

w
it
h

m
o
re

 t
h

a
n

s
e
ve

n
w

e
e
k
s

o
f

(g
ro

s
s
)

re
n

t
a
rr

e
a
rs

a
s

a
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o
f 

th
e
 t

o
ta

l

n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

c
o
u

n
c
il 

te
n

a
n

ts

T
h

e
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o
f

lo
c
a
l
a
u

th
o
ri
ty

te
n

a
n

ts
in

a
rr

e
a
rs

w
h

o
h

a
ve

h
a
d

n
o
ti
c
e
s

s
e
e
k
in

g
p

o
s
s
e
s
s
io

n
s
e
rv

e
d

.

A
ll

A
u

th
o
ri
ti
e
s

A
ll

A
u

th
o
ri
ti
e
s

A
u

d
it

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n

V
F

M
T

o
o
l

A
ll

d
is

tr
ic

t

c
o
u

n
c
ils

in

E
n

g
la

n
d

H
o
u

s
e
m

a
rk

H
o
u

s
e
m

a
rk

T
o
ta

l
H

o
u

s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

(£
 /

 H
e
a
d

)

O
th

e
r

H
o
u

s
in

g

(£
 /

 H
e
a
d

)

A
ve

ra
g

e
 W

e
e
k
ly

R
e
n

t
(£

/
D

w
e
ll
in

g
)

A
u

d
it

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n

V
F

M
T

o
o
l

A
u

d
it

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n

V
F

M
T

o
o
l

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
C

o
s
t

o
f

R
e
n

t
C

o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n

&

A
c
c
o
u

n
ti
n

g

L
o
c
a
l
a
u

th
o
ri
ty

re
n

t
c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n

a
n

d

a
rr

e
a
rs

:
re

n
t

a
rr

e
a
rs

o
f

c
u

rr
e
n

t 
te

n
a
n

ts

a
s

a
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

o
f 

th
e

a
u

th
o
ri
ty

’s
re

n
t

ro
ll

T
h

e
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o
f

lo
c
a
l
a
u

th
o
ri
ty

te
n

a
n

ts
e
vi

c
te

d
a
s

a
re

s
u

lt
o
f

re
n

t

a
rr

e
a
rs

A
ve

ra
g

e
 W

e
e
k
ly

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
C

o
s
t

(£
 /

 D
w

e
ll
in

g
)

T
h

e
a
m

o
u

n
t

o
f 

fo
rm

e
r 

te
n

a
n

t
re

n
t

a
rr

e
a
rs

c
o
ll
e
c
te

d
p

e
r

a
n

n
u

m

P
a
y

C
o
s
t

p
e
r

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e

(D
ir
e
c
t

H
o
u

s
in

g

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
S

ta
ff

)

R
e

p
a

ir
s

&
M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

H
o
u

s
e
m

a
rk

A
ve

ra
g

e
 W

e
e
k
ly

M
a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

C
o
s
t

(£
 /

 

D
w

e
ll
in

g
)

T
h

e
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o
f

re
p

a
ir
s

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

w
it
h

in
 t

a
rg

e
t 

ti
m

e
:

U
rg

e
n

t

T
h

e
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o
f

re
p

a
ir
s

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

w
it
h

in
 t

a
rg

e
t 

ti
m

e
:

R
o
u

ti
n

e

T
h

e
le

ve
ls

o
f

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

w
it
h

re
p

a
ir
s
:

G
e
n

e
ra

l
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

o
f

s
e
rv

ic
e

re
c
e
iv

e
d

Page 183



G
&

 U
G

re
e

n
&

U
n

iq
u

e
H

&
N

H
o

m
e

s
&

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

S
C

A
S

a
fe

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

E
C

E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
P

ro
s

p
e

ri
ty

Io
P

Im
p

ro
v

in
g

 o
u

r
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

F
f 

L
F

it
fo

r 
L

if
e

E
F

D
C

D
C

 T
o

p
E

F
D

C
B

o
tt

o
m

T
o

p

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
Q

u
a

rt
il
e

C
o

s
t

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0

0
5

/6
2

0
0

4
/5

2
0

0
5

/6

C
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
o

f
A

n
n

u
a
l

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

a
n

d
 C

o
s
ts

C
o

s
t 

In
d

ic
a

to
rs

K
e
y
 t

o
C

o
u

n
c
il

P
la

n
T

h
e
m

e
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 o
n

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
V

C
o

s
t

B
V

P
I
N

o
.

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

G
ro

u
p

2
0

0
5

/6

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs

B
V

P
I
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

C
o

s
t 

In
d

ic
a

to
r

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n

A
v

e
ra

g
e

K
P

I
-B

V
2
1
2

4
6

d
a
y
s

N
/A

T
B

A
T

B
A

T
B

A
T

B
A

T
B

A
T

B
A

T
B

A
T

B
A

T
B

A
T

B
A

T
B

A
T

B
A

T
B

A
T

B
A

T
B

A
T

B
A

T
B

A
T

B
A

T
B

A
T

B
A

K
P

I
-

B
V

1
8
3
a

0
w

e
e
k
s

1

K
P

I
-B

V
1
8
3
b

1
8
.1

1
w

e
e
k
s

0

B
V

2
0
2

1
N

/A

B
V

2
0
3

+
6
7
.1

6
%

-9
.4

0
%

B
V

2
1
3

4
N

/A

B
V

2
1
4

0
.5

0
%

N
/A

H
1
0
a

1
9
.2

5
N

/A

A
ll

A
u

th
o
ri
ti
e
s

£
4
.6

0

H
&

N
 /
 I

o
 P

C
o

u
n

c
il

P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

(s
)

C
o

u
n

c
il

P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

(s
)

H
o
u

s
e
m

a
rk

R
a
n

k
=

1
6
th

o
u

t
o
f

1
0
0

H
&

N
 /
 I

o
 P

£
2

C
o

u
n

c
il

P
la

n
A

c
ti

o
n

s

H
o
u

s
e
m

a
rk

is
 t

h
e

m
a
in

n
a
ti
o
n

a
l
h

o
u

s
in

g
b

e
n

c
h

m
a
rk

in
g

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n

,

to
w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

C
o
u

n
c
il

s
u

b
s
c
ri
b

e
s
.

A
ll
 t

h
e

d
e
ta

ile
d

d
a
ta

 f
o
r

H
o
u

s
e
m

a
rk

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

c
a
lc

u
la

te
d

a
n

d
c
o
ll
a
te

d
.

H
o
w

e
ve

r,
it

c
a
n

n
o
t

b
e

s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
H

o
u

s
e
m

a
rk

 f
o
r

va
lid

a
ti
o
n

a
n

d
c
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n

u
n

ti
l 
th

e

C
o
u

n
c
il'

s
 F

in
a
l
A

c
c
o
u

n
ts

h
a
ve

b
e
e
n

p
ro

d
u

c
e
d

. 
 O

n
c
e
 t

h
e

d
a
ta

c
a
n

b
e

s
u

b
m

it
te

d
a
n

d
 t

h
e

b
e
n

c
h

m
a
rk

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

re
c
e
iv

e
d

(b
y
 t

h
e

e
n

d
o
f

N
o
ve

m
b

e
r

2
0
0
6
) 

fu
rt

h
e
r

d
e
ta

ile
d

c
o
s
t

in
fo

rn
a
ti
o
n

w
ill

b
e

in
s
e
rt

e
d

a
n

d

a
n

a
ly

s
e
d

.

C
o

u
n

c
il

P
la

n
A

c
ti

o
n

s

H
N

 2

H
N

1
 /
 H

N
 5

H
o

m
e

le
s

s
n

e
s

s

A
ll

d
is

tr
ic

t

c
o
u

n
c
ils

in

E
n

g
la

n
d

A
ll

d
is

tr
ic

t

c
o
u

n
c
ils

in

E
n

g
la

n
d

A
ll

d
is

tr
ic

t

c
o
u

n
c
ils

in

E
n

g
la

n
d

A
ll

d
is

tr
ic

t

c
o
u

n
c
ils

in

E
n

g
la

n
d

A
ll

d
is

tr
ic

t

c
o
u

n
c
ils

in

E
n

g
la

n
d

H
o
u

s
e
m

a
rk

H
o

u
s

in
g

A
ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s

H
o
u

s
e
m

a
rk

T
h

e
a
ve

ra
g

e
 t

im
e
 t

a
k
e
n

 t
o

re
-l

e
t

lo
c
a
l

a
u

th
o
ri
ty

h
o
u

s
in

g
(d

a
y
s
)

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
C

o
s
t

o
f

E
m

p
ty

P
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

P
e
r

E
m

p
ty

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
(*

)

H
o
u

s
e
m

a
rk

H
o
u

s
e
m

a
rk

V
o
id

R
e
n

t
L
o
s
s

p
/a

(*
)

R
e
p

a
ir
s

S
p

e
n

d
p

e
r

V
o
id

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
(*

)

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
C

o
s
t

o
f

L
e
tt

in
g

s
(*

)

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
C

o
s
t

o
f

H
o
u

s
in

g
R

e
g

is
te

r

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o
n

(*
)

T
h

e
n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f

h
o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

s
w

h
o

c
o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s

a
s

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
,

w
h

o
a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

e
d

 t
h

e
lo

c
a
l
h

o
u

s
in

g

a
u

th
o
ri
ty

's
h

o
u

s
in

g
a
d

vi
c
e

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

a
n

d

fo
r

w
h

o
m

h
o
u

s
in

g
a
d

vi
c
e

c
a
s
e
w

o
rk

in
te

rv
e
n

ti
o
n

re
s
o
lv

e
d

 t
h

e
ir

s
it
u

a
ti
o
n

T
h

e
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

o
f

h
o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

s
a
c
c
e
p

te
d

a
s

s
ta

tu
to

ri
ly

h
o
m

e
le

s
s

w
h

o
w

e
re

a
c
c
e
p

te
d

a
s

s
ta

tu
to

ri
ly

h
o
m

e
le

s
s

b
y
 t

h
e

s
a
m

e
a
u

th
o
ri
ty

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

la
s
t 

tw
o

y
e
a
rs

T
h

e
n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f

p
e
o
p

le
s
le

e
p

in
g

ro
u

g
h

o
n

a
s
in

g
le

n
ig

h
t

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

a
re

a
o
f 

th
e

a
u

th
o
ri
ty

C
o
s
t

o
f

H
o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s

(£

/
H

e
a
d

)

T
h

e
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
c
h

a
n

g
e

in
 t

h
e

a
ve

ra
g

e

n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f 

fa
m

ili
e
s

p
la

c
e
d

 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

T
h

e
a
ve

ra
g

e
n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f

h
o
m

e
le

s
s

h
o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

s
in

 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

y
e
a
r

in
B

e
d

&
B

re
a
k
fa

s
t

T
o
ta

l
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

H
o
u

s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

(£
 /

 H
e
a
d

)

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

o
n

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s

is
g

e
n

e
ra

ll
y

g
o
o
d

.
T

h
e
re

is
n

o
u

s
e

o
f

b
e
d

a
n

d
b

re
a
k
fa

s
t 

fo
r 

fa
m

ili
e
s
.

T
h

e
le

n
g

th
o
f

s
ta

y
in

 t
h

e
C

o
u

n
c
il'

s

h
o
s
te

l
is

p
la

n
n

e
d

a
t 

th
e

le
ve

ls
s
h

o
w

n
, 

to
a
vo

id
 t

h
e

e
a
rl

y
u

s
e

o
f 

th
e

C
o
u

n
c
il'

s
o
w

n
s
to

c
k
.

T
h

e
C

o
u

n
c
il

h
a
s

a
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

o
re

d
u

c
e
 t

h
e

n
o
.

o
f 

fa
m

ili
e
s

in
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
a
c
c
o
m

d
o
a
ti
o
n

 t
o

m
e
e
t 

th
e
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

t'
s

ta
rg

e
ts

.

T
h

e
 t

o
ta

l
c
o
s
t

o
f

c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

is
lo

w
-

w
e
ll

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

b
e
s
t

q
u

a
rt

ile
,

a
n

d
 t

h
e

c
o
s
t

o
f

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s

p
e
r

h
e
a
d

is
b

e
lo

w
a
ve

ra
g

e
.

T
h

is
h

a
s

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

o
ve

r 
th

e
p

a
s
t 

th
re

e
y
e
a
rs

,
in

a
p

la
n

n
e
d

w
a
y
,

a
n

d

re
fl
e
c
ts

 t
h

e
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

s
ta

ff
in

g
 f

o
r

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s

p
re

ve
n

ti
o
n

,
w

h
ic

h
h

a
s

p
ro

ve
d

m
o
s
t

s
u

c
c
e
s
s
fu

l.

H
o
u

s
e
m

a
rk

is
 t

h
e

m
a
in

n
a
ti
o
n

a
l
h

o
u

s
in

g
b

e
n

c
h

m
a
rk

in
g

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n

,

to
w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

C
o
u

n
c
il

s
u

b
s
c
ri
b

e
s
.

A
ll
 t

h
e

d
e
ta

ile
d

d
a
ta

 f
o
r

H
o
u

s
e
m

a
rk

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

c
a
lc

u
la

te
d

a
n

d
c
o
ll
a
te

d
.

H
o
w

e
ve

r,
it

c
a
n

n
o
t

b
e

s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
H

o
u

s
e
m

a
rk

 f
o
r

va
lid

a
ti
o
n

a
n

d
c
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n

u
n

ti
l 
th

e

C
o
u

n
c
il'

s
 F

in
a
l
A

c
c
o
u

n
ts

h
a
ve

b
e
e
n

p
ro

d
u

c
e
d

. 
 O

n
c
e
 t

h
e

d
a
ta

c
a
n

b
e

s
u

b
m

it
te

d
a
n

d
 t

h
e

b
e
n

c
h

m
a
rk

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

re
c
e
iv

e
d

(b
y
 t

h
e

e
n

d
o
f

N
o
ve

m
b

e
r

2
0
0
6
) 

fu
rt

h
e
r

d
e
ta

ile
d

c
o
s
t

in
fo

rn
a
ti
o
n

w
ill

b
e

in
s
e
rt

e
d

a
n

d

a
n

a
ly

s
e
d

.

T
h

e
a
ve

ra
g

e
le

n
g

th
o
f

s
ta

y
in

b
e
d

a
n

d

b
re

a
k
fa

s
t

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

o
f

h
o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

s

th
a
t

a
re

u
n

in
te

n
ti
o
n

a
ll
y

h
o
m

e
le

s
s

a
n

d
in

p
ri
o
ri
ty

n
e
e
d

(w
e
e
k
s
)

T
h

e
a
ve

ra
g

e
le

n
g

th
o
f

s
ta

y
in

h
o
s
te

l

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

o
f

h
o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

s
 t

h
a
t

a
re

u
n

in
te

n
ti
o
n

a
ll
y

h
o
m

e
le

s
s

a
n

d
in

p
ri
o
ri
ty

n
e
e
d

(w
e
e
k
s
)

A
u

d
it

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n

V
F

M
T

o
o
l

A
u

d
it

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n

V
F

M
T

o
o
l

A
ll

A
u

th
o
ri
ti
e
s

R
a
n

k
=

4
3
rd

o
u

t
o
f

1
0
0

Page 184



G
&

 U
G

re
e

n
&

U
n

iq
u

e
H

&
N

H
o

m
e

s
&

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

S
C

A
S

a
fe

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

E
C

E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
P

ro
s

p
e

ri
ty

Io
P

Im
p

ro
v

in
g

 o
u

r
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

F
f 

L
F

it
fo

r 
L

if
e

E
F

D
C

D
C

 T
o

p
E

F
D

C
B

o
tt

o
m

T
o

p

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
Q

u
a

rt
il
e

C
o

s
t

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0

0
5

/6
2

0
0

4
/5

2
0

0
5

/6

C
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
o

f
A

n
n

u
a
l

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

a
n

d
 C

o
s
ts

C
o

s
t 

In
d

ic
a

to
rs

K
e
y
 t

o
C

o
u

n
c
il

P
la

n
T

h
e
m

e
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 o
n

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
V

C
o

s
t

B
V

P
I
N

o
.

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

G
ro

u
p

2
0

0
5

/6

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs

B
V

P
I
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

C
o

s
t 

In
d

ic
a

to
r

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n

A
v

e
ra

g
e

H
1
0
b

2
5
.5

N
/A

T
B

A
T

B
A

T
B

A
T

B
A

H
1
0
c

1
7
0

N
/A

T
B

A
T

B
A

T
B

A
T

B
A

T
h

e
a
ve

ra
g

e
n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f

s
in

g
le

h
o
m

e
le

s
s

h
o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

s
in

 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

y
e
a
r

in

H
o
s
te

l
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

A
ll

d
is

tr
ic

t

c
o
u

n
c
ils

in

E
n

g
la

n
d

H
o
u

s
e
m

a
rk

H
o
u

s
e
m

a
rk

C
o
s
t

o
f

H
o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s

P
re

ve
n

ti
o
n

p
e
r

1
0
,0

0
0

p
o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

T
h

e
a
ve

ra
g

e
n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f

h
o
m

e
le

s
s

h
o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

s
in

 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

y
e
a
r

in
o
th

e
r

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
h

o
u

s
in

g

A
ll

d
is

tr
ic

t

c
o
u

n
c
ils

in

E
n

g
la

n
d

C
o
s
t

o
f

H
o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s

p
e
r

1
0
,0

0
0

p
o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

Page 185



Page 186

This page is intentionally left blank



G
 &

 U
G

re
e
n

 &
 U

n
iq

u
e

H
 &

 N
 

H
o

m
e
s
 &

 N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
S

C
A

S
a
fe

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

F
f 

L
F

it
fo

r
L

if
e

E
C

E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

P
ro

s
p

e
ri

ty
Io

P
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
o

u
r

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

E
F

D
C

D
C

T
o

p
E

F
D

C
B

o
tt

o
m

T
o

p

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

C
o

s
t

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
5
/6

2
0
0
4
/5

2
0
0
5
/6

B
V

2
a

L
e

v
e

l 1
N

/A

K
P

I
- 

B
V

2
b

5
3

%
6

3
%

B
V

1
1

a
2

7
%

2
8

.9
3

%

B
V

1
1

b
2

.1
5

%
1

.9
8

%

B
V

1
1

c
8

.5
9

%
N

/A

B
V

1
2

1
0

.6
6

8
.4

8

B
V

1
4

0
.1

8
%

0
.0

0
%

B
V

1
5

0
.1

8
%

0
%

B
V

1
6

a
2

.7
5

%
4

.1
0

%

B
V

1
6

b
1

1
.3

5
%

3
4

.7
7

%

B
V

1
7

a
4

.1
3

%
2

.5
0

%

B
V

1
7

b
5

.1
5

%
1

0
8

.5
0

%

T
h
e

C
o

u
n
c
il'

s
e

x
p
e

n
d
it
u
re

o
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

a
n
d

s
e

rv
ic

e
le

v
e

l t
ra

in
in

g
is

a
v
e

ra
g
e

in
c
o

m
p
a

ri
s
o

n
w

it
h

b
e

n
c
h
m

a
rk

e
d

a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
. 
P

a
y

u
n
d
e

r
2

0
k

is
lo

w
e

r 
th

a
n

a
v
e

ra
g
e

,
a

n
d

p
a

y
a

t
3

0
-4

0
k

is
h
ig

h
e

r 
th

a
n

a
v
e

ra
g
e

.
T

h
is

re
fl
e

c
ts

 t
h
e

e
m

p
h
a

s
is

o
n

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

la
d
v
ic

e
,
a

n
d

o
u
r

p
ro

x
im

it
y
 t
o

L
o

n
d
o

n
.

T
h
e

C
o

u
n
c
il'

s
e

x
p
e

n
d
it
u
re

o
n

a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
a

n
d

h
e

a
d
h
u
n
te

rs
is

z
e

ro
,
c
o

m
p
a

re
d
 t
o

 t
h
e

a
v
e

ra
g
e

fo
r

b
e

n
c
h
m

a
rk

e
d

C
o

u
n
c
ils

..
  
E

x
p
e

n
d
it
u
re

o
n

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t
m

e
d
ia

is
a

v
e

ra
g
e

c
o

m
p
a

re
d
 t
o

 t
h
e

g
ro

u
p
.

T
h
e

in
te

rn
e

t
is

m
o

re
e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

in
o

th
e

r
C

o
u
n
c
ils

,
a

n
d

w
e

fi
n
d
 t
ra

d
e

p
re

s
s

m
o

re
e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

th
a

n
o

th
e

r
m

e
d
ia

.
T

h
e

c
o

s
t
p
e

r
F

T
E

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
o

f
H

R
s
ta

ff
is

m
a

rg
in

a
lly

lo
w

e
r 

th
a

n
 t
h
e

a
v
e

ra
g
e

.
T

h
e

n
u
m

b
e

r
o

f
H

R
s
ta

ff
p
e

r
F

T
E

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

is

m
a

rg
in

a
lly

lo
w

e
r 

th
a

n
in

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
n
g

c
o

u
n
c
ils

  
  
 S

a
la

ry
c
o

s
ts

a
re

s
lig

h
tly

h
ig

h
e

r 
th

a
n

a
v
e

ra
g
e

,
re

fl
e

c
ti
n
g
 t
h
e

p
ri

o
ri

ty
o

f
p
ro

v
id

in
g

h
ig

h
le

v
e

la
d
v
ic

e
,

a
n
d
 t
h
e

c
o

s
ts

a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

w
it
h

o
u
r

p
ro

x
im

it
y
 t
o

L
o

n
d
o

n
.

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

h
a

v
e

b
e

e
n

p
u
t
in

to
H

R
s
ta

ff
 t
ra

in
in

g
 t
o

e
n
s
u
re

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

q
u
a

lif
ic

a
ti
o

n
s

a
re

h
e

ld
b
y

a
ll

s
ta

ff
a

t
H

R
o

ff
ic

e
r

o
r

a
b
o

v
e

.
T

u
rn

o
v
e

r

a
p
p
e

a
rs

 t
o

b
e

lo
w

e
r

a
t 
E

F
D

C
 t
h
a

n
o

th
e

r
C

o
u
n
c
ils

in
 t
h
e

b
e

n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g

g
ro

u
p
.

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
IP

F
A

H
R

b
e

n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g

c
lu

b
D

is
tr

ic
t
C

o
u
n
c
ils

£
3

5
k

£
3

2
k

£
3

1
9

£
3

3
8

C
IP

F
A

H
R

b
e

n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g

c
lu

b
D

is
tr

ic
t
C

o
u
n
c
ils

C
IP

F
A

H
R

b
e

n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g

c
lu

b
D

is
tr

ic
t
C

o
u
n
c
ils

C
IP

F
A

H
R

b
e

n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g

c
lu

b
D

is
tr

ic
t
C

o
u
n
c
ils

C
IP

F
A

H
R

b
e

n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g

c
lu

b
D

is
tr

ic
t
C

o
u
n
c
ils

In
te

rn
e

t
9

%
;

L
c
o

a
l P

re
s
s

4
4

%
;
N

a
t

P
re

s
s

2
2

%
;

T
ra

d
e

2
5

%
;

O
th

e
r

0
%

In
te

rn
e

t
3

%
;

L
o

c
a

l P
re

s
s

4
8

%
;
N

a
t

P
re

s
s
1

9
%

;

T
ra

d
e

p
re

s
s

2
2

%
;
O

th
e

r

1
0

%

£
0

k
£

1
8

,8
5

9
N

/A
N

/A

N
/A

N
/A

1
6

%
;
2

1
%

;

4
8

%
;
1

6
%

3
4

%
;
3

4
%

;

1
9

%
;
1

3
%

N
/A

N
/A

T
h
e

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

o
f 

th
e

e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

a
lly

a
c
ti
v
e

(p
e

rs
o

n
s

a
g
e

d
1

8
-6

5
)

p
o

p
u
la

ti
o

n
fr

o
m

e
th

n
ic

m
in

o
ri

ty
c
o

m
m

u
n
it
ie

s
in

 t
h
e

lo
c
a

la
u
th

o
ri

ty
a

re
a

T
h
e

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

o
f

lo
c
a

la
u
th

o
ri

ty
e

m
p
lo

y
e

e
s

re
ti
ri

n
g

o
n

g
ro

u
n
d
s

o
f

ill
h
e

a
lth

a
s

a
p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

o
f 

th
e

 t
o

ta
lw

o
rk

fo
rc

e

H
R

s
a

la
ry

c
o

s
ts

p
e

r

H
R

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e

T
h
e

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

o
f

lo
c
a

la
u
th

o
ri

ty
e

m
p
lo

y
e

e
s

w
it
h

a
d
is

a
b
ili

ty

T
h
e

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

o
f

e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

a
lly

a
c
ti
v
e

p
o

p
u
la

ti
o

n
in

 t
h
e

lo
c
a

la
u
th

o
ri

ty
a

re
a

w
h
o

h
a

v
e

a

d
is

a
b
ili

ty

U
s
e

o
f

a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
a

n
d

h
e

a
d
h
u
n
te

rs

T
h
e

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

o
f

lo
c
a

la
u
th

o
ri

ty
e

m
p
lo

y
e

e
s

fr
o

m
e

th
n
ic

m
in

o
ri

ty
c
o

m
m

u
n
it
ie

s

T
h
e

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

o
f 

th
e

 t
o

p
5

%
o

f
L

o
c
a

l A
u
th

o
ri

ty

s
ta

ff
w

h
o

a
re

fr
o

m
a

n
e

th
n
ic

m
o

n
o

ri
ty

M
e

d
ia

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s

- 
%

 o
f

s
p
e

n
d

o
n

v
a

ri
o

u
s

m
e

d
ia

T
h
e

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

o
f 

th
e

 t
o

p
p
a

id
5

%
o

f
s
ta

ff
w

h
o

h
a

v
e

a
d
is

a
b
ili

ty
(e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
o

s
e

in
m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

s
c
h
o

o
ls

)

C
IP

F
A

H
R

b
e

n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g

c
lu

b
D

is
tr

ic
t
C

o
u
n
c
ils

9
.2

1
0

.6

T
h
e

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

o
f 

to
p
-p

a
id

5
%

o
f

lo
c
a

l

a
u
th

o
ri

ty
s
ta

ff
w

h
o

a
re

w
o

m
e

n

C
IP

F
A

H
R

b
e

n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g

c
lu

b
D

is
tr

ic
t
C

o
u
n
c
ils

1
%

(c
o

rp
o

ra
te

);

1
.0

0
%

s
e

rv
ic

e

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

1
.0

4
%

;

s
e

rv
ic

e
1

.3
%

T
h
e

le
v
e

lo
f 

th
e

 E
q
u
a

lit
y
 S

ta
n
d
a

rd
fo

r
lo

c
a

l

g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 
to

w
h
ic

h
 t
h
e

 A
u
th

o
ri

ty
c
o

n
fo

rm
s

in

re
s
p
e

c
t
o

f
g
e

n
d
e

r,
ra

c
e

a
n
d

d
is

a
b
ili

ty

T
ra

in
in

g
b
u
d
g
e

t
a

s
a

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

o
f

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
b
u
d
g
e

t

T
h
e

q
u
a

lit
y

o
f

a
n
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

R
a

c
e

 E
q
u
a

lit
y

S
c
h
e

m
e

(R
E

S
)

a
n
d
 t
h
e

im
p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

re
s
u
lti

n
g

fr
o

m
it
s

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o

n
.

H
R

s
ta

ff
p
a

y
u
n
d
e

r

2
0

k
;
2

0
-3

0
k
;
3

0
-4

0
k
;

4
0

k
+

T
h
e

n
u
m

b
e

r
o

f
w

o
rk

in
g

d
a

y
s
/s

h
if
ts

lo
s
t 
to

 t
h
e

lo
c
a

la
u
th

o
ri

ty
d
u
e

 t
o

s
ic

k
n
e

s
s

a
b
s
e

n
c
e

H
R

s
ta

ff
c
o

s
t
p
e

r

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e

T
h
e

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

o
f

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

re
ti
ri

n
g

e
a

rl
y

(e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
ill

-h
e

a
lth

re
ti
re

m
e

n
ts

)
a

s
a

p
e

rc
e

n
tg

e

o
f 

th
e

 t
o

ta
lw

o
rk

fo
rc

e

H
R

s
ta

ff
F

T
E

p
e

r

1
0

0
0

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

C
o

u
n

c
il

P
la

n
T

h
e
m

e
(s

)
Io

P
C

o
u

n
c
il

P
la

n
A

c
ti

o
n

s

B
e
n

c
h

m
a
rk

G
ro

u
p

A
v

e
ra

g
e

2
0
0
5
/6

H
u

m
a

n
R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
IP

5

C
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
o

f
A

n
n

u
a
l

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

a
n

d
 C

o
s
ts

K
e
y
 t

o
C

o
u

n
c
il

P
la

n
T

h
e
m

e
s

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
C

o
s
t 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

o
n

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

V
 C

o
s
t

B
V

P
I 

N
o

.
B

V
P

I 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

C
o

s
t 

In
d

ic
a
to

r
B

e
n

c
h

m
a
rk

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

Page 187



Page 188

This page is intentionally left blank



G
&

 U
G

re
e

n
&

U
n

iq
u

e
H

&
N

H
o

m
e

s
&

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

S
C

A
S

a
fe

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

F
f 

L
F

it
fo

r 
L

if
e

E
C

E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
P

ro
s

p
e

ri
ty

Io
P

Im
p

ro
v

in
g

 o
u

r
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

E
F

D
C

D
C

 T
o

p
E

F
D

C
B

o
tt

o
m

T
o

p

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
Q

u
a

rt
il
e

C
o

s
t

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0

0
5

/0
6

2
0

0
4

/5
2

0
0

5
/6

S
S

4
a

8
6
%

N
/A

S
S

4
b

6
7
%

N
/A

C
IP

F
A

A
ll

D
is

tr
ic

ts
£
3
4
,5

1
0

£
3
4
,3

6
0

£
3
0
,5

0
0

£
3
8
,7

0
0

S
S

4
c

8
5
%

N
/A

C
IP

F
A

A
ll

D
is

tr
ic

ts
£
3
,2

9
7

£
2
,7

0
9

£
2
,0

4
2

£
3
,1

6
9

S
S

4
f

£
2
9
2

N
/A

C
IP

F
A

A
ll

D
is

tr
ic

ts
£
2
9
2

£
2
7
1

£
2
3
8

£
2
9
4

T
h

e
re

w
a
s
 f

u
rt

h
e
r

im
p

ro
ve

m
e
n

t
in

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

in
2
0
0
5
/0

6
,

p
a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
in

re
la

ti
o
n

 t
o

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

w
o
rk

a
n

d
p

ro
d

u
c
ti
ve

 t
im

e
.

T
h

e
U

n
it

a
g

a
in

a
c
h

ie
ve

d
a

a
c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

 f
ig

u
re

o
f

8
6
%

in
2
0
0
5
/0

6
,

a
n

d
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

to

a
c
h

ie
ve

8
5
%

w
a
s
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

a
c
h

ie
ve

d
.

T
h

e
c
o
s
t

in
d

ic
a
to

rs
 f

o
r

a
ll

d
is

tr
ic

ts
in

2
0
0
5
/0

6
(a

ve
ra

g
e

c
o
s
t

p
e
r

a
u

d
it

d
a
y

£
2
7
1
)

s
h

o
u

ld
b

e

vi
e
w

e
d

in
 t

h
e

c
o
n

te
xt

o
f 

th
e

a
ve

ra
g

e
c
o
s
t

o
f

£
2
9
5
 f

o
r

a
'f
a
m

ily
g

ro
u

p
'

o
f

s
im

ila
r

s
iz

e
d

is
tr

ic
ts

in
S

E
E

n
g

la
n

d
,

a
n

d
£
2
9
2
 f

o
r

E
F

D
C

.
T

h
e

c
o
s
t

p
e
r

£
m

 t
u

rn
o
ve

r
is

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t
o
n

 t
h

e
w

a
y

C
IP

F
A

c
a
lc

u
la

te
s
 t

u
rn

o
ve

r,

w
h

ic
h

va
ri
e
d

m
a
rk

e
d

ly
 f

o
r

s
e
ve

ra
l
a
u

th
o
ri
ti
e
s
,

in
c
lu

d
in

g
E

F
D

C
,

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
w

it
h

2
0
0
4
/0

5
.

IP
 4

T
h

e
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o
f

A
u

d
it

P
la

n

p
ro

je
c
ts

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

C
o
s
t

p
e
r

a
u

d
it
o
r

(p
a
y
)

T
h

e
p

ro
d

u
c
ti
ve

 t
im

e
a
s

a

p
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o
f 

to
ta

l 
ti
m

e

O
ve

ra
ll

c
o
s
t

p
e
r

£
m

tu
rn

o
ve

r

T
h

e
o
ve

ra
ll

u
s
e
r

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

le
ve

l
o
f 

th
e

In
te

rn
a
l
A

u
d

it
U

n
it

T
h

e
a
ve

ra
g

e
c
o
s
t

p
e
r

p
ro

d
u

c
ti
ve

a
u

d
it

d
a
y

C
o
s
t

p
e
r

p
ro

d
u

c
ti
ve

a
u

d
it

d
a
y

C
o

u
n

c
il

P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

(s
)

I
o
 P

C
o

u
n

c
il

P
la

n
A

c
ti

o
n

s

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

G
ro

u
p

A
v

e
ra

g
e

2
0

0
5

/6

In
te

rn
a
l

A
u

d
it

C
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
 o

f
A

n
n

u
a

l
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

a
n

d
C

o
s

ts

K
e

y
 t

o
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 P

la
n

 T
h

e
m

e
s

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
C

o
s

t 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 o
n

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
V

C
o

s
t

B
V

P
I
N

o
.

B
V

P
I
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

C
o

s
t 

In
d

ic
a

to
r

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n

Page 189



Page 190

This page is intentionally left blank



G
&

 U
G

re
e
n

&
U

n
iq

u
e

H
&

N
H

o
m

e
s

&
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
S

C
A

 S
a
fe

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

E
C

E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

P
ro

s
p

e
ri

ty
Io

P
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
o

u
r

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

F
f 

L
F

it
fo

r
L

if
e

E
F

D
C

D
C

T
o

p
E

F
D

C
B

o
tt

o
m

T
o

p

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

C
o

s
t

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
5
/6

2
0
0
4
/5

2
0
0
5
/6

K
P

I
-

B
V

1
7

0
a

5
2

4
.4

8
8

1
1

B
V

1
7

0
b

1
1

0
.2

8
4

6
6

K
P

I
-

B
V

1
7

0
c

3
2

9
4

3
1

8
1

N
E

W
L

P
I

N
u

m
b

e
r

re
a

c
h

e
d

b
y

o
u

tr
e

a
c
h

N
e

w
N

/A
S

u
b

s
id

y
c
o

s
t

p
e

r
p

u
p

il
N

/A
N

/A
£

4
.1

8
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

N
E

W
L

P
I

V
is

it
s
 t

o
M

u
s
e

u
m

a
n

d
A

rt
G

a
ll
e

ri
e

s
(b

d
rc

)
1

3
2

1
3

4
6

2
,9

7
2

C
o

s
t

p
e

r
h

o
u

r
(2

0
0

3
/0

4
)

M
u

s
e

u
m

s
in

E
a

s
te

rn

R
e

g
io

n
B

a
s
k
e

t 
6

£
3

5
2

.6
8

(2
0

0
3

/4
)

£
2

0
3

(0
3

/0
4

)

£
3

1
.4

5

(0
3

/0
4

)

£
3

9
6

.8
1

(0
3

/0
4

)

G
e

n
e

ra
te

d
In

c
o

m
e

p
e

r

vi
s
it
o

r
M

u
s
e

u
m

s
in

E
a

s
te

rn

R
e

g
io

n
B

a
s
k
e

t 
6

£
1

.6
5

(0
4

/0
5

)

£
2

.1
7

(0
4

/0
5

)

0

(0
4

/0
5

)

7

(0
4

/0
5

)

C
o

s
t

S
u

b
s
id

y
p

e
r

h
e

a
d

o
f

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
N

/A
N

/A
£

3
.0

7
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

L
1

1
4

N
/A

L
2

1
5

N
/A

L
3

T
h

e
n

u
m

b
e

r
o

f
in

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

o
n

lo
w

in
c
o

m
e

w
h

o
b

e
n

e
fi
te

d
 f

ro
m

s
p

e
c
ia

l

a
c
ti
vi

ty
p

ri
c
e

s

4
2

2
N

/A

L
4

8
1

N
/A

L
5

8
1

N
/A

L
6

3
1

N
/A

C
o

s
t

s
u

b
s
id

y
p

e
r

h
e

a
d

o
f

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
L

e
is

u
re

F
a

c
il
it
ie

s

L
8

1
8

6
N

/A

L
7

1
4

3
N

/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

£
3

1
.4

5

(0
4

/0
5

)

N
/A

G
&

U
 /

F
f
L
 /

 I
o
P

 /
S

C
C

o
u

n
c
il

P
la

n
A

c
ti

o
n

s

£
1

.0
4

N
/A

N
/A

A
ll

a
re

a
s

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
o

n
c
o

s
t

p
e

r
h

e
a

d
o

f
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
.

A
s
 t

h
e

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r
L

P
I's

d
o

n
o

t
le

n
d

 t
h

e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
 t

o
 C

o
s
t

In
d

ic
a

to
rs

.
A

ll
L

P
I's

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

b
e

in
g

re
vi

e
w

e
d

 t
o

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
te

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
.

N
/A

£
5

.7
1

(0
4

/0
5

)

T
h

e
n

u
m

b
e

r
o

f
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s

w
it
h

w
h

o
m

L
e

is
u

re
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
h

a
s

w
o

rk
e

d

in
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 t

o
p

ro
m

o
te

g
o

o
d

h
e

a
lt
h

&
e

n
a

b
le

s
o

c
ia

l
in

c
lu

s
io

n

S
C

2

T
h

e
n

u
m

b
e

r
o

f
P

a
ri

s
h

e
s

in
 t

h
e

E
p

p
in

g

F
o

re
s
t 

D
is

tr
ic

t
in

w
h

ic
h

E
F

D
C

d
ir

e
c
tl
y

p
ro

vi
d

e
s

le
is

u
re

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s

T
h

e
n

u
m

b
e

r
o

f
P

a
ri

s
h

e
s

in
 t

h
e

E
F

D
C

in
w

h
ic

h
E

p
p

in
g

F
o

re
s
t 

D
is

tr
ic

t
in

w
h

ic
h

E
F

D
C

h
a

s
e

n
a

b
le

d
o

th
e

r

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 t

o
p

ro
vi

d
e

o
th

e
r

le
is

u
re

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s

T
h

e
n

u
m

b
e

r
o

f
n

e
w

le
is

u
re

 f
a

c
il
it
ie

s

e
n

a
b

le
d

b
y

E
F

D
C

C
o

s
t

s
u

b
s
id

y
p

e
r 

H
e

a
d

o
f

P
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
s
p

o
rt

s

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t

T
h

e
n

u
m

b
e

r
o

f
n

e
w

le
is

u
re

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
d

ir
e

c
tl
y

in
tr

o
d

u
c
e

d
b

y

E
F

D
C

L
e
is

u
re

G
e
n

e
ra

l
C

o
u

n
c
il

P
la

n
T

h
e
m

e
's

)

T
h

e
n

u
m

b
e

r
o

f
le

is
u

re
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s

e
n

a
b

le
d

b
y

E
F

D
C

N
/A

G
U

3
/ 

IP
5

T
h

e
n

u
m

b
e

r
o

f
vi

s
it
s
 t

o
 /

u
s
a

g
e

s
o

f

lo
c
a

l
a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 f

u
n

d
e

d
o

r
p

a
rt

 f
u

n
d

e
d

m
u

s
e

u
m

s
in

 t
h

e
p

e
r

1
,0

0
0

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n

S
u

b
s
id

y
c
o

s
t

p
e

r
vi

s
it

/u
s
a

g
e

T
h

e
n

u
m

b
e

r
o

f 
th

o
s
e

vi
s
it
s
 t

o
L

A

fu
n

d
e

d
,

o
r

p
a

rt
-f

u
n

d
e

d
m

u
s
e

u
m

s
 t

h
a

t

w
e

re
in

p
e

rs
o

n
,

p
e

r
1

,0
0

0
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n

C
o

u
n

c
il

P
la

n
A

c
ti

o
n

s

£
5

.8
5

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

B
a

c
k
g

ro
u

n
d

p
a

p
e

rs
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
2

0
0

4
-0

5
re

tu
rm

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e

M
u

s
e

u
m

s
in

E
s
s
e

x
B

e
n

c
h

m
a

rk
in

g
g

ro
u

p
.

O
u

r

C
a

te
g

o
ry

is
B

a
s
k
e

t
6

.
T

h
is

is
a

b
i
a

n
n

u
a

l
re

p
o

rt
.

T
h

e

g
ro

u
p

a
re

n
o

w
re

vi
e

w
in

g
c
o

n
te

n
t

a
s
 t

h
e

re
a

re
is

s
u

e
s

w
it
h

d
a

ta
ie

s
o

m
e

a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
h

a
ve

in
c
lu

d
e

d
in

vi
s
it
s

a
ll

u
s
a

g
e

s
a

n
d

o
th

e
rs

o
n

ly
p

e
o

p
le

vi
s
it
s
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 t

h
is

c
a

n

s
k
e

w
 t

h
e

d
a

ta
.

V
e

ry
d

if
fe

re
n

t 
ty

p
e

s
o

f
m

u
s
e

u
m

s
w

it
h

in

th
is

c
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
b

a
s
k
e

t
a

s
it

is
b

a
s
e

d
o

n
s
q

u
a

re

m
e

tr
e

a
g

e
.

B
u

s
in

e
s
s

a
n

d
 D

e
ve

lo
m

e
n

t 
R

e
a

s
e

a
rc

h
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

n
ts

(b
d

rc
)

c
o

m
p

le
te

s
 t

h
e

a
n

n
u

a
l
s
e

rv
e

y
 f

o
r

V
is

it
b

ri
ta

in
a

n
d

th
e

 R
e

g
io

n
a

l
T

o
u

ri
s
t

O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 t

o
e

s
ta

b
li
s
h

 t
re

n
d

s

in
 t

h
e

 t
h

e
a

tt
ra

c
ti
o

n
s

s
e

c
to

r
a

n
d

re
p

o
rt

o
n

in
c
re

a
s
e

a
n

d
d

e
c
re

a
s
e

s
in

vi
s
it
o

r
n

u
m

b
e

rs
.

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
o

th
e

r

s
it
e

s
w

e
a

re
c
o

m
p

a
re

d
w

it
h

c
a

n
b

e
d

if
fe

re
n

t
it

d
o

e
s

g
iv

e
a

n
a

c
c
u

ra
te

 f
ig

u
re

o
f

o
u

r
a

n
d

o
th

e
r

a
tt

ra
c
ti
o

n
s

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

.

T
h

e
n

u
m

b
e

r
o

f
p

u
p

il
s

vi
s
it
in

g

m
u

s
e

u
m

s
a

n
d

g
a

ll
e

ri
e

s
in

o
rg

a
n

is
e

d

s
c
h

o
o

l
g

ro
u

p
s

B
a

s
k
e

t 
6

£
2

7
.8

2

M
u

s
e
u

m
s

C
o

u
n

c
il

P
la

n
T

h
e
m

e
(s

)
G

U
 /

 I
o
P

M
u

s
e

u
m

s
in

E
a

s
te

rn

R
e

g
io

n

S
u

b
s
id

y
c
o

s
t

p
e

r
vi

s
it

in

p
e

rs
o

n
£

1
9

.3
3

(0
4

/0
5

)

N
/A

B
e
n

c
h

m
a
rk

G
ro

u
p

A
v
e
ra

g
e

2
0
0
5
/6

L
e

is
u

re
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

C
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
o

f
A

n
n

u
a
l 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

a
n

d
C

o
s
ts

K
e

y
 t

o
C

o
u

n
c

il
P

la
n

T
h

e
m

e
s

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
C

o
s
t

In
d

ic
a
to

rs

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

o
n

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 V

 C
o

s
t

B
V

P
I
N

o
.

B
V

P
I
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

C
o

s
t

In
d

ic
a
to

r
B

e
n

c
h

m
a
rk

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

T
h

e
n

u
m

b
e

r
o

f
p

a
ti
e

n
ts

re
fe

rr
e

d
b

y
a

m
e

d
ic

a
l
p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
to

a
c
o

u
n

c
il

h
e

a
lt
h

-b
a

s
e

d
a

c
ti
vi

ty
s
c
h

e
m

e
.

C
o

s
t

s
u

b
s
id

y
p

e
r 

H
e

a
d

o
f

P
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
A

rt
s

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
a

n
d

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

A
rt

s
N

/A
N

/A

£
0

.2
4

£
2

.5
0

N
/A

£
2

9
.0

3

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

Page 191



L
9

1
2

,3
8

7
N

/A

L
1

0
7

5
N

/A

L
1

1
3

0
N

/A

L
1

2
9

4
N

/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

£
1

.8
4

C
o

s
t

s
u

b
s
id

y
p

e
r 

H
e

a
d

o
f

P
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
A

c
ti
ve

 f
o

r

L
if
e

N
/A

£
0

.2
4

£
0

.3
2

£
0

.3
0

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
o

s
t

s
u

b
s
id

y
p

e
r 

H
e

a
d

o
f

P
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

C
o

s
t

s
u

b
s
id

y
p

e
r 

H
e

a
d

o
f

P
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 N

e
w

H
i

N
/A

N
/A

C
o

s
t

s
u

b
s
id

y
p

e
r 

H
e

a
d

o
f

P
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
L

if
e

w
a

lk
s

T
h

e
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o

f
le

is
u

re
c
e

n
tr

e

c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
w

h
o

ra
te

d
 t

h
e

s
e

rv
ic

e
a

s

e
xc

e
ll
e

n
t

o
r

g
o

o
d

T
h

e
n

u
m

b
e

r
o

f
0

-1
6

y
e

a
r

o
ld

s

a
tt

e
n

d
in

g
s
w

im
m

in
g

c
o

u
rs

e
s

T
h

e
n

u
m

b
e

r
o

f
e

ve
n

ts
s
ta

g
e

d
a

t 
N

o
rt

h

W
e

a
ld

a
ir

fi
e

ld

T
h

e
n

u
m

b
e

r
o

f
n

e
w

le
is

u
re

a
c
ti
vi

ti
e

s
,

e
s
p

e
c
ia

ll
y
 f

o
r

1
3

-
1

9
y
e

a
r

o
ld

s
,

e
n

a
b

le
d

o
r

d
ir

e
c
tl
y

p
ro

vi
d

e
d

b
y

E
F

D
C

Page 192



G
&

 U
G

re
e

n
&

U
n

iq
u

e
H

&
N

H
o

m
e

s
&

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

S
C

A
S

a
fe

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

F
f 

L
F

it
fo

r 
L

if
e

E
C

E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
P

ro
s

p
e

ri
ty

Io
P

Im
p

ro
v

in
g

 o
u

r
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

E
F

D
C

D
C

 T
o

p
E

F
D

C
B

o
tt

o
m

T
o

p

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
Q

u
a

rt
il
e

C
o

s
t

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0

0
5

/6
2

0
0

4
/5

2
0

0
5

/6

K
P

I
-

B
V

1
0
6

9
8
.6

5
%

9
0
.1

0
%

B
V

1
5
6

7
6
.9

0
%

N
/A

B
V

2
0
0
a

Y
e
s

N
/A

B
V

2
0
0
b

Y
e
s

N
/A

B
V

2
0
0
c

Y
e
s

N
/A

B
V

2
1
9
b

4
%

N
/A

B
V

2
1
9
c

4
%

N
/A

T
h

e
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o
f

c
o
n

s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

a
re

a
s

w
it
h

p
u

b
lis

h
e
d

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
p

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

D
id

 t
h

e
L
o
c
a
l
P

la
n

n
in

g
a
u

th
o
ri
ty

p
u

b
lis

h
a
n

a
n

n
u

a
l
m

o
n

it
o
ri
n

g
re

p
o
rt

b
y

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

o
f 

th
e

la
s
t

y
e
a
r

D
id

 t
h

e
lo

c
a
l
p

la
n

n
in

g
a
u

th
o
ri
ty

s
u

b
m

it

th
e

lo
c
a
l
d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e
n

t
s
c
h

e
m

e
(L

D
S

)

b
y

2
8
th

M
a
rc

h
2
0
0
5

a
n

d
 t

h
e
re

a
ft

e
r

m
a
in

ta
in

a
3

y
e
a
r

ro
ll
in

g
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

C
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
o

f
A

n
n

u
a
l 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

a
n

d
C

o
s
ts

K
e

y
 t

o
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 P

la
n

 T
h

e
m

e
s

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
C

o
s

t 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 o
n

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
V

C
o

s
t

B
V

P
I
N

o
.

B
V

P
I
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

C
o

s
t 

In
d

ic
a

to
r

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n

G
&

U
/E

C
/H

&
N

C
o

u
n

c
il

P
la

n
A

c
ti

o
n

s

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

G
ro

u
p

A
v

e
ra

g
e

2
0

0
5

/6

P
la

n
n

in
g

a
n

d
E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

G
&

U
-1

&
4

 ;
 H

N
1

 ;
 E

P
-

3
 ;
 I
P

3
&

 5
F

o
rw

a
rd

P
la

n
n

in
g

C
o

u
n

c
il

P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

(s
)

T
h

e
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o
f

c
o
n

s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

a
re

a
s

in
 t

h
e

lo
c
a
l
a
u

th
o
ri
ty

a
re

a
w

it
h

a
n

u
p

 t
o

d
a
te

c
h

a
ra

c
te

r
a
p

p
ra

is
a
l

T
h

e
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o
f

n
e
w

h
o
m

e
s

b
u

ilt
o
n

p
re

vi
o
u

s
ly

d
e
ve

lo
p

e
d

la
n

d

T
h

e
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o
f

lo
c
a
l
a
u

th
o
ri
ty

b
u

ild
in

g
s

o
p

e
n

 t
o
 t

h
e

p
u

b
lic

in
w

h
ic

h

a
ll

p
u

b
lic

a
re

a
s

a
re

s
u

it
a
b

le
 f

o
r

a
n

d

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
d

is
a
b

le
d

p
e
o
p

le

H
a
s
 t

h
e

lo
c
a
l
p

la
n

n
in

g
a
u

th
o
ri
ty

m
e
t

th
e

m
ile

s
to

n
e
s

w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e
c
u

rr
e
n

t
lo

c
a
l

d
e
ve

lo
p

m
e
n

t
s
c
h

e
m

e
(L

D
S

)
s
e
ts

o
u

t?

N
o

c
o
s
t

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

a
va

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

F
o
rw

a
rd

P
la

n
n

in
g

a
t 

th
e
 t

im
e

o
f

c
o
m

p
le

ti
n

g
 t

h
is

V
F

M
A

n
a
ly

s
is

W
o
rk

w
ill

b
e

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

d
u

ri
n

g
2
0
0
6
/7

a
n

d
2
0
0
7
/8

 t
o

o
b

ta
in

u
n

it
c
o
s
ts

Page 193



G
&

 U
G

re
e

n
&

U
n

iq
u

e
H

&
N

H
o

m
e

s
&

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

S
C

A
S

a
fe

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

F
f 

L
F

it
fo

r 
L

if
e

E
C

E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
P

ro
s

p
e

ri
ty

Io
P

Im
p

ro
v

in
g

 o
u

r
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

E
F

D
C

D
C

 T
o

p
E

F
D

C
B

o
tt

o
m

T
o

p

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
Q

u
a

rt
il
e

C
o

s
t

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0

0
5

/6
2

0
0

4
/5

2
0

0
5

/6

C
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
o

f
A

n
n

u
a
l 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

a
n

d
C

o
s
ts

K
e

y
 t

o
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 P

la
n

 T
h

e
m

e
s

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
C

o
s

t 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 o
n

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
V

C
o

s
t

B
V

P
I
N

o
.

B
V

P
I
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

C
o

s
t 

In
d

ic
a

to
r

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

G
ro

u
p

A
v

e
ra

g
e

2
0

0
5

/6

P
l

i
d

E
i

D
l

t
K

P
I
-

B
V

1
0
9
a

5
4
%

7
1
.2

5
%

K
P

I
-

B
V

1
0
9
b

5
7
%

7
5
.3

%

K
P

I
-

B
V

1
0
9
c

8
0
%

8
8
%

K
P

I
-

B
V

2
0
4

2
2
%

2
4
%

B
V

2
0
5

8
9
%

8
8
.9

0
%

B
V

2
0
5
a

N
o
t

re
p

o
rt

e
d

N
/A

B
V

2
0
5
b

N
o
t

re
p

o
rt

e
d

N
/A

B
V

2
0
5
b

N
o
t

re
p

o
rt

e
d

N
/A

B
V

2
0
5
c

N
o
t

re
p

o
rt

e
d

N
/A

B
V

2
0
5
d

N
o
t

re
p

o
rt

e
d

N
/A

B
V

2
0
5
e

N
o
t

re
p

o
rt

e
d

N
/A

B
V

2
0
5
f

N
o
t

re
p

o
rt

e
d

N
/A

B
V

2
1
9
a

2
5

N
/A

A
u

d
it

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n

V
F

M
T

o
o
l

A
ll

A
u

th
o
ri
ti
e
s

A
ll

A
u

th
o
ri
ti
e
s

£
1
7
.6

3
R

a
n

k
=

8
6
th

o
u

t
o
f

1
0
0

T
h

e
n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p

p
e
a
l

d
e
c
is

io
n

s
a
ll
o
w

e
d

a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e

a
u

th
o
ri
ty

's
d

e
c
is

io
n

 t
o

re
fu

s
e

o
n

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
 ,

 a
s

a

p
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o
f 

th
e
 t

o
ta

l
n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p

p
e
a
ls

a
g

a
in

s
t

re
fu

s
a
ls

o
f

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s

Q
u

a
lit

y
o
f

s
e
rv

ic
e

c
h

e
c
k
lis

tD
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

C
o

n
tr

o
l

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t

a
d

vi
c
e

T
h

e
a
va

ila
b

ili
ty

o
f

p
re

-a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

a
d

vi
c
e

T
h

e
 t

o
ta

l
n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f

c
o
n

s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

a
re

a
s

in
 t

h
e

lo
c
a
l
a
u

th
o
ri
ty

a
re

a
C

o
s
t

o
f

P
la

n
n

in
g

(£
 /

 H
e
a
d

o
f

P
o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

)

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t

a
d

vi
c
e

o
n

h
is

to
ri
c

b
u

ild
in

g
s
,

e
tc

T
h

e
u

s
e

o
f

m
u

lt
id

is
c
ip

lin
a
ry

 t
e
a
m

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

m
a
jo

r
a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s

C
o
s
t

o
f

P
la

n
n

in
g

(£
 /

 A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

)

T
h

e
c
a
p

a
b

ili
ty

 f
o
r

e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
p

la
n

n
in

g

s
e
rv

ic
e

T
h

e
a
va

ila
b

ili
ty

o
f

g
u

id
a
n

c
e
 t

o

a
p

p
lic

a
n

ts

C
o

u
n

c
il

P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

(s
)

G
&

U
 /

 E
C

 /
 H

&
N

 /
 I
o
P

C
o

u
n

c
il

P
la

n
A

c
ti

o
n

s
G

&
U

-1
&

4
 ;
 H

N
1

 ;
 E

P
-

3
 ;
 I
P

3
&

 5

A
u

d
it

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n

V
F

M
T

o
o
l
+

C
e
n

s
u

s

D
a
ta

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
c
o
s
t

p
e
r

h
e
a
d

o
f

p
o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

is
re

la
ti
ve

ly
h

ig
h

 f
o
r 

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t,
 t

h
is

m
u

s
t

b
e

b
a
la

n
c
e
d

a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e

ve
ry

h
ig

h
le

ve
l
o
f

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
re

c
e
iv

e
d

(2
0
7
1

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
a
n

a
ve

ra
g

e
o
f

1
5
0
9
).

T
h

e

c
o
s
t

p
e
r

a
n

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

in
 t

h
e

D
is

tr
ic

t
w

o
rk

s
o
u

t 
to

£
1
,0

2
9

(c
o
s
t

p
e
r

h
e
a
d

m
u

lt
ip

lie
d

b
y

p
o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

),
c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
a
n

a
ve

ra
g

e
o
f

£
8
2
0
,

h
o
w

e
ve

r 
th

is
c
o
s
t

c
o
ve

rs
a
ll

o
f

p
la

n
n

in
g

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

a
n

d
m

a
y

re
fl
e
c
t

fa
c
to

rs
s
u

c
h

a
s
 t

h
e

E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t
a
n

d
C

o
n

s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

 t
e
a
m

s
w

h
ic

h
a
re

o
ft

e
n

o
f

s
m

a
ll
e
r

s
c
a
le

in
o
th

e
r

a
u

th
o
ri
ti
e
s
,

a
n

d
o
th

e
r

d
is

c
re

ti
o
n

a
ry

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

s
u

c
h

a
s

C
o
u

n
tr

y
C

a
re

.
T

h
e

c
o
s
ts

a
re

a
ls

o

d
is

to
rt

e
d

b
y

c
o
s
ts

o
f 

th
e

n
e
w

IC
T

s
y
s
te

m
,

w
h

ic
h

w
o
rk

o
u

t 
to

ro
u

g
h

ly

a
ro

u
n

d
£
3

p
e
r

h
e
a
d

in
2
0
0
5
/6

,
o
r

a
b

o
u

t
£
1
8
0

o
n

e
a
c
h

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

.

S
ta

ff
c
o
s
ts

a
re

a
ls

o
h

ig
h

e
r

in
 t

h
e

D
is

tr
ic

t 
th

a
n

in
m

a
n

y
o
th

e
rs

d
u

e
 t

o

th
e

e
ff

e
c
t

o
f

L
o
n

d
o
n

w
e
ig

h
ti
n

g
.

It
is

a
ls

o
u

n
c
le

a
r 

fr
o
m

 t
h

e
d

a
ta

a
s
 t

o
w

h
a
t

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

in
c
lu

d
e
d

in
 t

h
e

c
o
s
ts

o
f

a
p

la
n

n
in

g
d

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t,
h

a
ve

re
s
p

o
n

d
e
n

ts
in

c
lu

d
e
d

o
r

e
xc

lu
d

e
d

B
u

ild
in

g
C

o
n

tr
o
l,

c
e
n

tr
a
l
a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o
n

s
ta

ff
a
n

d
o
th

e
r

s
u

c
h

n
o
n

p
la

n
n

in
g

c
o
s
ts

.
E

xp
e
n

d
it
u

re
in

2
0
0
6
/0

7
is

lo
w

e
r

o
n

 t
h

e
N

e
w

IC
T

s
y
s
te

m
,

a
n

d
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

o
n

a
p

p
lic

a
to

n
s

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d

is
a
ls

o
im

p
ro

vi
n

g

a
s

a
re

s
u

lt
o
f

e
xp

e
n

d
it
u

re
in

p
re

vi
o
u

s
y
e
a
rs

.
P

la
n

n
in

g
C

o
s
t

p
e
r

h
e
a
d

h
a
s

d
ro

p
p

e
d

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
2
0
0
0
/2

0
0
1

(£
1
9
.2

2
)

a
n

d
2
0
0
1
/0

2
(£

2
0
.9

1
).

T
h

e
la

rg
e

e
xt

e
n

t
o
f 

th
e
 G

re
e
n

B
e
lt

in
 t

h
e

D
is

tr
ic

t
c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
o
th

e
r

D
is

tr
ic

ts
is

a
ls

o
lik

e
ly

 t
o

h
a
ve

a
n

e
ff

e
c
t

o
n

o
ve

ra
ll

c
o
s
ts

o
f

P
la

n
n

in
g

S
e
rv

ic
e
.

T
h

e
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o
f

m
in

o
r

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d

w
it
h

in
8

w
e
e
k
s

T
h

e
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o
f

'o
th

e
r'

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d

w
it
h

in
8

w
e
e
k
s

T
h

e
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o
f

m
a
jo

r
a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d

w
it
h

in
1
3

w
e
e
k
s

T
h

e
a
va

ila
b

ili
ty

o
f

p
re

-a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

a
d

vi
c
e

£
1
,0

2
9

R
a
n

k
=

7
9
th

o
u

t
o
f

1
0
0

Page 194



G
&

 U
G

re
e

n
&

U
n

iq
u

e
H

&
N

H
o

m
e

s
&

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

S
C

A
S

a
fe

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

E
C

E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
P

ro
s

p
e

ri
ty

Io
P

Im
p

ro
v

in
g

 o
u

r
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

F
f 

L
F

it
fo

r 
L

if
e

E
F

D
C

D
C

 T
o

p
E

F
D

C
B

o
tt

o
m

T
o

p

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
Q

u
a

rt
il
e

C
o

s
t

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0

0
5

/6
2

0
0

4
/5

2
0

0
5

/6

K
P

I
-

B
V

8
9
3
.8

8
%

9
9
.2

0
%

C
o
s
t

p
e
r

In
vo

ic
e

C
IP

F
A

D
is

tr
ic

ts
£
1
.9

8
£
3
.2

2
£
2
.1

6
£
4
.0

8

K
P

I
-

B
V

9
9
8
.0

2
%

9
8
.5

0
%

K
P

I
-

B
V

1
0

9
8
.8

6
%

9
9
.2

0
%

B
V

7
6
a

2
5
3
.8

1
2
9
6
.6

B
V

7
6
b

0
.4

7
N

/A

B
V

7
6
c

4
5
.5

5
9
.3

B
V

7
6
d

2
.6

5
6
.2

5

K
P

I
-

B
V

7
8
a

2
9
.2

8
d

a
y
s

2
8

K
P

I
-

B
V

7
8
b

1
1
.9

4
d

a
y
s

6
.8

K
P

I
-

B
V

7
9
a

9
9
.6

0
%

9
9
%

B
V

7
9
b

(i
)

4
3
.2

3
%

N
/A

IP
1

/
IP

2
/
IP

5

£
9
1
.5

1

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

o
n

N
D

R
/C

o
u

n
c
il

T
a
x

is
g

o
o
d

,
b

u
t

in
b

o
th

c
a
s
e
s

c
o
s
ts

a
re

h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n

a
ve

ra
g

e
.

B
e
c
a
u

s
e

m
o
re

re
s
o
u

rc
e
s

a
re

p
u

t
in

to
 t

h
e

c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n

o
f

N
D

R
/C

o
u

n
c
il

T
a
x,

it
re

s
u

lt
s

in
 t

h
e

a
c
h

ie
ve

m
e
n

t
o
f

h
ig

h

c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n

ra
te

s
.

T
h

e
c
o
s
ts

e
xc

lu
d

e
 t

im
e

s
p

e
n

t
o
n

e
xe

m
p

ti
o
n

s
,

S
o
m

e
a
u

th
o
ri
ti
e
s

in
 t

h
e

g
ro

u
p

h
a
ve

lit
tl
e

o
r

n
o
th

in
g

 f
o
r

c
o
s
ts

s
u

c
h

a
s

P
o
s
ta

g
e
,

T
e
le

p
h

o
n

e
s
a
n

d
P

ri
n

ti
n

g
a
n

d
S

ta
ti
o
n

e
ry

c
le

a
rl

y
 t

h
e
s
e

c
o
s
ts

e
xi

s
t

b
u

t

m
u

s
t

b
e

a
c
c
o
u

n
te

d
 f

o
r

e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

.
S

ta
ff

c
o
s
ts

a
re

h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n

a
ve

ra
g

e
p

o
s
s
ib

ly
d

u
e
 t

o
J
o
b

E
va

lu
a
ti
o
n

a
s

d
w

e
ll
in

g
s

p
e
r 

F
T

E
is

b
e
tt

e
r 

th
a
n

a
ve

ra
g

e
.

T
h

e
q

u
a
rt

ile
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

is
n

o
t

in
c
lu

d
e
d

in
 t

h
e

b
e
n

c
h

m
a
rk

in
g

re
p

o
rt

 ,
 t

h
e
 f

ig
u

re
s

q
u

o
te

d
a
re

 t
h

e
lo

w
e
s
t

a
n

d
 t

h
e

h
ig

h
e
s
t.

L
o
c
a
l
C

o
m

p
a
ri
to

r

G
ro

u
p

£
5
1
.9

7
£
4
8
.9

8
£
3
0
.6

2

C
o

u
n

c
il

P
la

n
A

c
ti

o
n

s

£
1
0
.2

7
£
2
5
.9

1

C
o

u
n

c
il

P
la

n
A

c
ti

o
n

s
IP

1
/
IP

2
/
IP

5

T
h

e
b

e
n

c
h

m
a
rk

in
g

re
tu

rn
w

a
s

la
s
t

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 f
o
r

2
0
0
3
/0

4
.

T
h

e
a
c
tu

a
l

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

c
a
lc

u
la

te
d

o
n

 t
h

e
s
a
m

e
b

a
s
is

a
s

w
a
s

u
s
e
d

in
 t

h
a
t

b
e
n

c
h

m
a
rk

in
g

e
xe

rc
is

e
.

T
h

e
a
ve

ra
g

e
,

b
o
tt

o
m

a
n

d
u

p
p

e
r

q
u

a
rt

ile
a
re

th
e

0
3
/0

4
 f

ig
u

re
s

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

 f
o
r 

tw
o

y
e
a
rs

in
fl
a
ti
o
n

.
A

s
w

it
h

c
 t

a
x

a
n

d

n
d

r
n

o
q

u
a
rt

ile
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

w
a
s

in
 t

h
e

re
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 f

ig
u

re
s

a
re

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

th
e

lo
w

e
s
t

a
n

d
h

ig
h

e
s
t

c
o
s
t 

fi
g

u
re

s
in

c
re

a
s
e
d

 f
o
r 

tw
o

y
e
a
rs

in
fl
a
ti
o
n

.

C
o

u
n

c
il
 T

a
x

&
N

N
D

R
C

o
u

n
c

il
P

la
n

 T
h

e
m

e
(s

)
Io

P
 /
 E

C

T
h

e
a
c
c
u

ra
c
y

o
f

p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
:

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e

o
f

c
a
s
e
s
 f

o
r

w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e
c
a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n

o
f 

th
e

a
m

o
u

n
t

o
f

b
e
n

e
fi
t

d
u

e
w

a
s

c
o
rr

e
c
t

o
n

th
e

b
a
s
is

o
f 

th
e

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

a
va

ila
b

le
 f

o
r

th
e

d
e
c
is

io
n

 f
o
r

a
s
a
m

p
le

o
f

c
a
s
e
s

c
h

e
c
k
e
d

p
o
s
t-

d
e
c
is

io
n

T
h

e
a
c
c
u

ra
c
y

o
f

p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
:

T
h

e

p
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o
f

re
c
o
ve

ra
b

le
o
ve

rp
a
y
m

e
n

ts

(e
xc

lu
d

in
g

C
o
u

n
c
il

T
a
x

B
e
n

e
fi
t)

 t
h

a
t

w
e
re

re
c
o
ve

re
d

in
 t

h
e

y
e
a
r

H
o

u
s

in
g

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

L
o
c
a
l
C

o
m

p
a
ri
to

r

G
ro

u
p

£
1
7
.5

9
£
1
5
.6

8

C
o

u
n

c
il

P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

(s
)

Io
P

T
h

e
s
p

e
e
d

o
f

p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
:

A
ve

ra
g

e
 t

im
e

fo
r

p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
n

e
w

c
la

im
s

T
h

e
s
p

e
e
d

o
f

p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
:

A
ve

ra
g

e
 t

im
e

fo
r

p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
n

o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n

o
f

c
h

a
n

g
e
s

o
f

c
ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

T
h

e
n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f

c
la

im
a
n

ts
vi

s
it
e
d

,
p

e
r

1
0
0
0

c
a
s
e
lo

a
d

T
h

e
n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f 

fr
a
u

d
in

ve
s
ti
g

a
to

rs

e
m

p
lo

y
e
d

,
p

e
r

1
,0

0
0

c
a
s
e
lo

a
d

T
h

e
n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f 

fr
a
u

d
in

ve
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n

s
,

p
e
r

1
,0

0
0

c
a
s
e
lo

a
d

T
h

e
n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f

p
ro

s
e
c
u

ti
o
n

s
a
n

d

s
a
n

c
ti
o
n

s
,

p
e
r

1
,0

0
0

c
a
s
e
lo

a
d

.

T
h

e
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o
f

c
o
u

n
c
il 

ta
x

c
o
ll
e
c
te

d

b
y
 t

h
e

A
u

th
o
ri
ty

in
 t

h
e

y
e
a
r

C
o
s
t

p
e
r

C
h

a
rg

e
a
b

le

D
w

e
ll
in

g
(D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
)

T
h

e
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o
f

n
o
n

-d
o
m

e
s
ti
c

ra
te

s

c
o
ll
e
c
te

d

C
IP

F
A

C
o
s
t

p
e
r

C
h

a
rg

e
a
b

le

D
w

e
ll
in

g
(N

o
n

-

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
)

C
IP

F
A

T
h

e
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o
f

in
vo

ic
e
s
 f

o
r

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l
g

o
o
d

s
a
n

d
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
a
t

w
e
re

p
a
id

b
y
 t

h
e

a
u

th
o
ri
ty

w
it
h

in
3
0

d
a
y
s

o
f

re
c
e
ip

t
o
r

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

a
g

re
e
d

p
a
y
m

e
n

t 
te

rm
s

F
in

a
n

c
e

A
c

c
o

u
n

ta
n

c
y

C
o

u
n

c
il

P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

(s
)

Io
P

C
o

u
n

c
il

P
la

n
A

c
ti

o
n

s

T
h

e
 f

ig
u

re
s

d
o

n
o
t 

ta
k
e

a
c
c
o
u

n
t

o
f 

th
e
 f

a
c
t 

th
a
t

H
o
u

s
in

g
B

e
n

e
fi
t

p
a
y
m

e
n

ts
a
re

le
s
s
 t

im
e

c
o
n

s
u

m
in

g
 t

h
a
n

c
o
m

m
e
rc

a
il

in
vo

ic
e
s
.

T
h

e

s
p

lit
b

e
tw

e
e
n

 t
h

e
 t

w
o

m
a
y

w
e
ll

va
ry

 f
ro

m
a
u

th
o
ri
ty

 t
o

a
u

th
o
ri
ty

.

T
h

e
c
o
s
t

p
e
r

in
vo

ic
e
,

w
h

ils
t

b
e
in

g
in

 t
h

e
b

o
tt

o
m

q
u

a
rt

ile
,

h
a
s

lit
tl
e
 t

o

d
o

w
it
h

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

o
n

B
V

8
.

S
o
m

e
a
u

th
o
ri
ti
e
s

m
a
y

b
e

m
o
re

p
ro

a
c
ti
ve

w
h

e
n

it
c
o
m

e
s
 t

o
c
h

a
s
in

g
in

vo
ic

e
s
 t

h
a
t

a
re

n
e
a
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

3
0

d
a
y

d
e
a
d

lin
e
,

h
o
w

e
ve

r,
re

a
lis

ti
c
a
ll
y

s
ta

ff
in

g
re

s
o
u

rc
e
s

d
o

n
o
t

m
a
k
e

th
is

p
o
s
s
ib

le
.

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

G
ro

u
p

A
v

e
ra

g
e

2
0

0
5

/6

IP
1

/
IP

2
/
IP

5

C
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
 o

f
A

n
n

u
a

l
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

a
n

d
C

o
s

ts

K
e

y
 t

o
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 P

la
n

 T
h

e
m

e
s

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
C

o
s

t 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 o
n

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
V

C
o

s
t

B
V

P
I
N

o
.

B
V

P
I
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

C
o

s
t 

In
d

ic
a

to
r

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n

Page 195



B
V

7
9
(i
i)

2
8
.7

3
%

N
/A

B
V

7
9
b

(i
ii)

7
.0

4
%

N
/A

F
1
3

9
0
.1

2
%

N
/A

L
o
c
a
l
C

o
m

p
a
ri
to

r

G
ro

u
p

£
9
4
.6

2
£
8
0
.0

8
£
9
8
.2

3
£
6
3
.0

4
C

IP
F

A
C

o
s
t

p
e
r

C
la

im

H
B

o
ve

rp
a
y
m

e
n

ts
re

c
o
ve

re
d

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

p
e
ri
o
d

a
s

a
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o
f 

th
e
 t

o
ta

l

a
m

o
u

n
t

o
f

H
B

o
ve

rp
a
y
m

e
n

t
d

e
b

t

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

a
t 

th
e

s
ta

rt
o
f 

th
e

p
e
ri
o
d

p
lu

s
a
m

o
u

n
t

o
f

H
B

o
ve

rp
a
y
m

e
n

ts

id
if
i

d
d

i
h

i
d

T
h

e
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o
f 

te
le

p
h

o
n

e
c
a
ll
s

a
n

s
w

e
re

d
w

it
h

in
1
0

s
e
c
o
n

d
s

H
B

o
ve

rp
a
y
m

e
n

ts
w

ri
tt

e
n

o
ff

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

p
e
ri
o
d

a
s

a
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o
f 

th
e
 t

o
ta

l

a
m

o
u

n
t

o
f

H
B

o
ve

rp
a
y
m

e
n

t
d

e
b

ts

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

a
t 

th
e

s
ta

rt
o
f 

th
e

p
e
ri
o
d

,

p
lu

s
a
m

o
u

n
t

o
f

H
B

o
ve

rp
a
y
m

e
n

ts

id
e
n

ti
fi
e
d

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

p
e
ri
o
d

Page 196



G
&

 U
G

re
e

n
&

U
n

iq
u

e
H

&
N

H
o

m
e

s
&

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

S
C

A
S

a
fe

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

E
C

E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
P

ro
s

p
e

ri
ty

Io
P

Im
p

ro
v

in
g

 o
u

r
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

F
f 

L
F

it
fo

r 
L

if
e

E
F

D
C

D
C

 T
o

p
E

F
D

C
B

o
tt

o
m

T
o

p

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
Q

u
a

rt
il
e

C
o

s
t

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0

0
5

/0
6

2
0

0
4

/0
5

2
0

0
5

/0
6

B
V

2
2
6
a

£
1
3
3
,2

5
0

N
/A

B
V

2
2
6
b

7
7
%

N
/A

B
V

1
2
6

1
6
.6

7
6
.1

8

B
V

1
2
7
a

1
3
.9

2
2
.4

5

B
V

1
2
7
b

1
.4

9
5
.2

2

B
V

1
2
8

1
4
.8

6
6
.8

4

B
V

1
7
4

1
0
5
.0

6
N

/A

B
V

1
7
5

1
0
0
%

N
/A

C
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
 R

e
v
ie

w
o

f
A

n
n

u
a
l

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

K
e
y
 t

o
C

o
u

n
c
il

P
la

n
T

h
e
m

e
s

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
C

o
s

t 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 o
n

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
V

C
o

s
t

In
d

ic
a

to
r

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
C

o
s

t 
In

d
ic

a
to

r
B

e
n

c
h

m
a

rk

O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

G
ro

u
p

A
v

e
ra

g
e

2
0

0
5

/0
6

R
e

s
e

a
rc

h
a

n
d

D
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

S
C

1
-3

H
N

2
/3

 ;
 E

P
4

/5

T
o
ta

l
a
m

o
u

n
t

s
p

e
n

t
b

y
 t

h
e

L
o
c
a
l

A
u

th
o
ri
ty

o
n

A
d

vi
c
e

a
n

d
 G

u
id

a
n

c
e

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

p
ro

vi
d

e
d

b
y

e
xt

e
rn

a
l

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n

s

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l
a
s
s
is

ta
n

c
e

b
y

w
a
y

o
f

g
ra

n
t

a
id

 t
o

V
A

E
F

a
n

d
C

A
B

's

£
1
0
2
,5

0
0
 t

o
C

A
B

's
in

2
0
0
5
/0

6
;

£
3
0
,7

5
0
 t

o
V

A
E

F
in

2
0
0
5
/0

6
. 

F
ig

u
re

s

fo
r

2
0
0
4
/0

5
a
s
 f

o
ll
o
w

s
:

£
1
0
0
,0

0
0

-
C

A
B

's
;

£
1
5
,0

0
0

-
V

A
E

F
. 

O
th

e
r

D
is

tr
ic

t
C

o
u

n
c
il

c
o
s
ts

o
n

V
A

E
F

in
2
0
0
5
/0

6
- 

O
ff

ic
e

A
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

£
1
5
,0

9
0
;

In
te

rn
a
l
T

e
le

p
h

o
n

e
s

-
£
6
,9

8
0
.

(T
o
ta

l
o
n

c
o
s
ts

in
2
0
0
4
/0

5
-

£
2
3
,4

7
0
).

C
o
m

p
u

te
rs

-
C

e
n

tr
a
l
-

£
4
,0

8
0
;

L
e
s
s

R
e
n

ta
l
In

c
o
m

e

£
8
,9

5
0

(£
8
,9

5
0

in
2
0
0
4
/0

5
)

A
s
u

rv
e
y

is

c
u

rr
e
n

tl
y

b
e
in

g
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

o
f 

th
e

C
o
u

n
c
il'

s
"F

a
m

ily
 G

ro
u

p
"

o
f

a
u

th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
c
o
m

p
a
re

 t
h

e
c
o
s
ts

a
n

d
le

ve
ls

o
f 

fu
n

d
in

g
p

ro
vi

d
e
d

T
h

e
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o
f

m
o
n

ie
s

s
p

e
n

t

o
n

a
d

vi
c
e

a
n

d
g

u
id

a
n

c
e

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

p
ro

vi
s
io

n
w

h
ic

h
w

a
s

g
iv

e
n

 t
o

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n

s
h

o
ld

in
g

 t
h

e
C

L
S

Q
u

a
lit

y
M

a
rk

a
t

'G
e
n

e
ra

l
H

e
lp

'

le
ve

l
a
n

d
a
b

o
ve

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

C
o

u
n

c
il

P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

(s
)

H
&

N
 /
 E

C
C

o
u

n
c

il
P

la
n

A
c

ti
o

n
s

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

S
a

fe
ty

C
o

u
n

c
il

P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

(s
)

S
C

C
o

u
n

c
il

P
la

n
A

c
ti

o
n

s

T
h

e
n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c

b
u

rg
la

ri
e
s

p
e
r

y
e
a
r

p
e
r

1
0
0
0

h
o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

s
in

 t
h

e
lo

c
a
l
a
u

th
o
ri
ty

G
ro

s
s

E
F

D
C

A
c
tu

a
l

E
xp

e
n

d
it
u

re

T
h

e
n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f

vi
o
le

n
t

c
ri
m

e
p

e
r

y
e
a
r,

p
e
r

1
,0

0
0

p
o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

in
 t

h
e

L
o
c
a
l
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

a
re

a

L
e
ve

l
o
f 

G
o
ve

rn
m

e
n

t

G
ra

n
t 

fo
r

C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y

S
a
fe

ty
in

D
is

tr
ic

t
(h

e
ld

b
y

E
F

D
C

)

T
h

e
n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f

ro
b

b
e
ri
e
s

p
e
r

y
e
a
r

p
e
r

1
,0

0
0

p
o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

in
 t

h
e

L
o
c
a
l

A
u

th
o
ri
ty

a
re

a

T
h

e
n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f

ve
h

ic
le

c
ri
m

e
s

p
e
r

y
e
a
r,

p
e
r

1
,0

0
0

p
o
p

lu
la

ti
o
n

in
 t

h
e

lo
c
a
l
a
u

th
o
ri
ty

a
re

a

T
h

e
n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f

ra
c
ia

l
in

c
id

e
n

ts

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o
 t

h
e

lo
c
a
l
a
u

th
o
ri
ty

a
n

d

s
u

b
s
e
q

u
e
n

tl
y

re
c
o
rd

e
d

p
e
r

1
0
0
,0

0
0

p
o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

A
u

d
it

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
's

F
a
m

ily
 G

ro
u

p

£
5
4
,7

5
6

A
u

d
it

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
's

F
a
m

ily
 G

ro
u

p

E
F

D
C

S
u

rv
e
y

E
F

D
C

S
u

rv
e
y

A
u

d
it

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
's

F
a
m

ily
 G

ro
u

p

£
1
3
3
,2

5
0

E
F

D
C

S
u

rv
e
y

£
2
3
4
,8

2
9
*

(*
)

o
f

w
h

ic
h

£
6
2
,3

3
0

re
la

te
s
 t

o
p

ro
vi

s
io

n
o
f

P
o
lic

e
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 O
ff

ic
e
rs

.
2
0
0
4
/0

5
 F

ig
u

re
s
:

£
3
9
,0

6
4

-
C

ri
m

e
a
n

d
D

is
o
rd

e
r

R
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

;
£
1
5
5
,7

7
6

-
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

S
a
fe

ty
.

A

s
u

rv
e
y

is
c
u

rr
e
n

tl
y

b
e
in

g
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

o
f 

th
e

C
o
u

n
c
il'

s
"F

a
m

ily
 G

ro
u

p
"

o
f

a
u

th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
c
o
m

p
a
re

 t
h

e
c
o
s
ts

a
n

d
le

ve
ls

o
f 

fu
n

d
in

g
p

ro
vi

d
e
d

.

D
u

e
 t

o
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t
s
ta

ff
c
h

a
n

g
e
s

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

C
o
u

n
c
il'

s
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

S
a
fe

ty
S

e
c
ti
o
n

,
it

h
a
s

n
o
t

b
e
e
n

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

a
d

e
ta

ile
d

c
a
p

tu
re

a
n

d
a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

a
n

a
ly

s
is

o
f

c
o
s
ts

.
H

o
w

e
ve

r,
n

e
w

s
ta

ff
a
re

n
o
w

in
p

la
c
e

a
n

d
a

d
e
ta

ile
d

a
n

a
ly

s
is

o
f

c
o
s
ts

w
ill

b
e

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

o
ve

r

th
e

c
o
m

in
g

y
e
a
r,

a
n

d
in

c
lu

d
e
d

w
it
h

in
n

e
xt

y
e
a
r'
s

V
F

M
A

n
a
ly

s
is

.

T
h

e
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o
f

ra
c
ia

l
in

c
id

e
n

ts

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o
 t

h
e

lo
c
a
l
a
u

th
o
ri
ty

a
n

d

th
a
t

re
s
u

lt
e
d

in
 f

u
rt

h
e
r

a
c
ti
o
n

Page 197



Page 198

This page is intentionally left blank



G
 &

 U
G

re
e
n

 &
 U

n
iq

u
e

H
 &

 N
 

H
o

m
e
s
 &

 N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
S

C
A

S
a
fe

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

F
f 

L
F

it
fo

r
L

if
e

E
C

E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

P
ro

s
p

e
ri

ty
Io

P
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
o

u
r

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

E
F

D
C

D
C

T
o

p
E

F
D

C

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

C
o

s
t

L
o

w
e
s
t

H
ig

h
e
s
t

2
0
0
5
/6

2
0
0
4
/5

2
0
0
4
/5

K
P

I
- 

B
V

8
2

a
(i

)
1

6
.1

0
%

N
/A

K
P

I
- 

B
V

8
2

a
(i

i)
7

9
8

2
.3

3
N

/A

K
P

I
- 

B
V

8
2

b
(i

)
7

.4
0

%
N

/A

K
P

I
- 

B
V

8
2

b
(i

i)
3

6
8

1
.7

3
N

/A

K
P

I
-B

V
8

4
a

4
1

0
.4

4
3

8
0

.8

B
V

8
4

b
-4

.6
%

N
/A

B
V

8
6

£
4

2
.1

9
£

3
5

.6
2

K
P

I
-B

V
9

1
a

8
9

.6
5

%
N

/A

B
V

9
1

b
8

9
.6

5
%

N
/A

W
M

1
1

7
2

.7
2

N
/A

W
M

2
1

.0
4

%
N

/A

W
M

3
4

0
.7

4
N

/A

W
M

4
1

7
4

.0
7

N
/A

W
M

5
1

3
0

.2
N

/A
£

0
.0

0

(L
o

w
e

s
t)

(2
0

0
4

/5
)

£
3

7
.4

8

(H
ig

h
e

s
t)

(2
0

0
4

/5
)

D
u
e

 t
o

o
th

e
r

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n
ts

a
n
d

p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
in

 E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l S
e

rv
ic

e
s

it

h
a

s
n
o

t
y
e

t
b
e

e
n

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 t
o

a
n
a

ly
s
e

 t
h
e

c
o

s
ts

a
n
d

ra
n
k
in

g
s
.

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,

th
e

H
e

a
d

o
f 

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l S
e

rv
ic

e
s

w
ill

b
e

u
n
d
e

rt
a

k
in

g
a

n
a

n
a

ly
s
is

in

d
u
e

c
o

u
rs

e
.

A
u
d
it

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
W

a
s
te

g
ro

u
p

1
6

.9
9

(2
0

0
4

/5
)

1
9

.1
1

(2
0

0
4

/5
)

T
h
e

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

o
f

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s

re
s
id

e
n
t
in

th
e

a
u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

a
re

a
s
e

rv
e

d
b
y

k
e

rb
s
id

e

c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
o

f
re

c
y
c
la

b
le

s

T
h
e

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

o
f

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s

re
s
id

e
n
t
in

th
e

a
u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

a
re

a
s
e

rv
e

d
b
y

k
e

rb
s
id

e

c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
o

f
a

t
le

a
s
t 
tw

o
re

c
y
c
la

b
le

s

M
is

s
e

d
re

fu
s
e

c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
s

p
e

r
1

0
0

,0
0

0

c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
s

M
is

s
e

d
e

x
e

m
p
ti
o

n
c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
s

a
s

a
 %

 o
f

e
x
e

m
p
ti
o

n
s

M
is

s
e

d
g
la

s
s

c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
s

p
e

r
1

0
0

,0
0

0

c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
s

M
is

s
e

d
d
ry

re
c
y
c
la

b
le

c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
s

p
e

r

1
0

0
,0

0
0

c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
s

M
is

s
e

d
g
a

rd
e

n
w

a
s
te

c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
s

p
e

r

1
0

0
,0

0
0

W
a

s
te

c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
£

's

p
e

r
h
e

a
d

(2
0

0
4

/5
)

T
h
e

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

c
h
a

n
g
e

fr
o

m
 t
h
e

p
re

v
io

u
s

fi
n
a

n
c
ia

ly
e

a
r

in
 t
h
e

n
u
m

b
e

r
o

f
k
ilo

g
ra

m
s

o
f

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
w

a
s
te

c
o

lle
c
te

d
p
e

r
h
e

a
d

o
f 

th
e

p
o

p
u
la

ti
o

n

T
h
e

c
o

s
t
o

f
h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
w

a
s
te

c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
p
e

r

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld

T
o

ta
l t

o
n
n
a

g
e

o
f

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
w

a
s
te

a
ri

s
in

g
s

w
h
ic

h
h
a

v
e

b
e

e
n

s
e

n
t
b
y
 t
h
e

 A
u
th

o
ri

ty
fo

r

re
c
y
c
lin

g
.

T
h
e

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

o
f

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
w

a
s
te

s
e

n
t
b
y

th
e

 A
u
th

o
ri

ty
fo

r
c
o

m
p
o

s
ti
n
g

o
r 

tr
e

a
tm

e
n
t
b
y

a
n
a

e
ro

b
ic

d
ig

e
s
ti
o

n

T
h
e

 t
o

n
n
a

g
e

o
f

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
w

a
s
te

s
e

n
t
b
y
 t
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri

ty
fo

r
c
o

m
p
o

s
ti
n
g

o
r 

tr
e

a
tm

e
n
t
b
y

a
n
a

e
ro

b
ic

d
ig

e
s
ti
o

n

T
h
e

n
u
m

b
e

r
o

f
k
ilo

g
ra

m
s

o
f

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld

w
a

s
te

c
o

lle
c
te

d
p
e

r
h
e

a
d

o
f 

th
e

p
o

p
u
la

ti
o

n
.

G
U

2
/I
P

5
/H

N
6

T
h
e

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

o
f

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
w

a
s
te

a
ri

s
in

g
s

w
h
ic

h
h
a

v
e

b
e

e
n

s
e

n
t
b
y
 t
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri

ty
fo

r
re

c
y
c
lin

g
.

W
a
s
te

C
o

u
n

c
il

P
la

n
T

h
e
m

e
(s

)
G

&
U

/
Io

P
/ 

H
&

N
C

o
u

n
c
il

P
la

n
A

c
ti

o
n

s

B
e
n

c
h

m
a
rk

G
ro

u
p

A
v

e
ra

g
e

2
0
0
4
/5

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l
P

ro
te

c
ti

o
n

C
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
o

f
A

n
n

u
a

l
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

a
n

d
C

o
s
ts

K
e
y
 t

o
C

o
u

n
c
il

P
la

n
T

h
e
m

e
s

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
C

o
s
t 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

o
n

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

V
 C

o
s
t

B
V

P
I 

N
o

.
B

V
P

I 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

C
o

s
t 

In
d

ic
a
to

r
B

e
n

c
h

m
a
rk

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

Page 199



K
P

I
- 

B
V

1
9

9
a

1
3

%
N

/A

K
P

I
- 

B
V

1
9

9
b

0
%

N
/A

K
P

I
- 

B
V

1
9

9
c

0
%

N
/A

K
P

I
- 

B
V

1
9

9
d

G
ra

d
e

 4
N

/A

B
V

2
1

8
a

2
4

%
N

/A

B
V

2
1

8
b

7
6

%
N

/A

K
P

I
-B

V
1

6
6

a
8

0
%

9
3

.4
0

%

B
V

2
1

6
a

5
8

2
5

N
/A

B
V

2
1

6
b

0
%

N
/A

B
V

2
1

7
1

0
0

%
N

/A

E
H

1
9

4
%

N
/A

E
H

2
9

2
.8

0
%

N
/A

E
H

3
1

0
0

%
N

/A

E
H

4
8

8
.0

0
%

N
/A

E
H

5
1

0
0

%
N

/A

E
H

6
9

5
.9

0
%

N
/A

E
H

7
9

3
%

N
/A

S
tr

e
e

t
c
le

a
n
in

g
a

n
d

c
le

a
n
lin

e
s
s

£
's

p
e

r

h
e

a
d

(2
0

0
4

/5
)

A
u
d
it

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
W

a
s
te

g
ro

u
p

9
.7

1

(2
0

0
4

/5
)

8
.2

(2
0

0
4

/5
)

0
(2

0
0

4
/5

)
1

8
.4

8

(2
0

0
4

/5
)

T
h
e

n
u
m

b
e

r
o

f
fo

o
d

s
a

fe
ty

in
s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
s

c
a

rr
ie

d
o

u
t
in

a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

w
it
h

F
o

o
d

S
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 A

g
e

n
c
y
 t
a

rg
e

ts

S
tr

e
e
t 

C
le

a
n

s
in

g
C

o
u

n
c
il

P
la

n
T

h
e
m

e
(s

)
G

&
U

/
Io

P
/ 

H
&

N
 /

 E
C

T
h
e

re
s
p
o

n
s
e

ra
te

 t
o

re
q
u
e

s
ts

fo
r

s
e

rv
ic

e

w
it
h
in

re
le

v
a

n
t 
ta

rg
e

t 
ti
m

e
(C

o
n
s
u
m

e
r

P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
)

T
h
e

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

o
f

a
c
c
id

e
n
ts

re
p
o

rt
e

d

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
o

f 
In

ju
ri

e
s
,
D

is
e

a
s
e

s

a
n
d

D
a

n
g
e

ro
u
s

O
c
c
u
ra

n
c
e

s
R

e
g
u
la

ti
o

n
s

1
9

9
5

,
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e

s
ta

tu
to

ry
p
e

ri
o

d
.

T
h
e

re
s
p
o

n
s
e

ra
te

 t
o

re
q
u
e

s
ts

fo
r

s
e

rv
ic

e

w
it
h
in

re
le

v
a

n
t 
ta

rg
e

t 
ti
m

e
(E

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l

P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
)

T
h
e

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

o
f

re
q
u
e

s
ts

fo
r

c
a

re
a

n
d

re
p
a

ir
s
e

rv
ic

e
s

re
s
p
o

n
d
e

d
 t
o

w
it
h
in

re
le

v
a

n
t

ta
rg

e
t 
ti
m

e
s

T
h
e

n
u
m

b
e

r
o

f
‘s

it
e

s
o

f
p
o

te
n
ti
a

lc
o

n
c
e

rn
’

(w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

lo
c
a

la
u
th

o
ri

ty
a

re
a

),
w

it
h

re
s
p
e

c
t

to
la

n
d

c
o

n
ta

m
in

a
ti
o

n

T
h
e

n
u
m

b
e

r
o

f
s
it
e

s
fo

r
w

h
ic

h
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t

d
e

ta
ile

d
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
is

a
v
a

ila
b
le

 t
o

d
e

c
id

e

w
h
e

th
e

r
re

m
e

d
ia

ti
o

n
o

f 
th

e
la

n
d

is

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
,
a

s
a

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

o
f

a
ll

‘s
it
e

o
f

p
o

te
n
ti
a

lc
o

n
c
e

rn
’

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

la
n
d

p
u
b
lic

h
e

a
lth

£
's

p
e

r

h
e

a
d

(2
0

0
4

/5
)

D
u
e

 t
o

o
th

e
r

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n
ts

a
n
d

p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
in

 E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l S
e

rv
ic

e
s

it

h
a

s
n
o

t
y
e

t
b
e

e
n

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 t
o

a
n
a

ly
s
e

 t
h
e

c
o

s
ts

a
n
d

ra
n
k
in

g
s
.

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,

th
e

H
e

a
d

o
f 

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l S
e

rv
ic

e
s

w
ill

b
e

u
n
d
e

rt
a

k
in

g
a

n
a

n
a

ly
s
is

in

d
u
e

c
o

u
rs

e
.

A
u
d
it

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
N

e
a

re
s
t
n
e

ig
h
b
o

u
rs

1
0

.4
3

(2
0

0
4

/5
)

9
.9

3

(2
0

0
4

/5
)

6
.7

9

(2
0

0
4

/5
)

1
3

.0
1

(2
0

0
4

/5
)

T
o

u
n
d
e

rt
a

k
e

a
ll

s
ta

tu
to

ry
in

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
s

o
f

P
a

rt
 B

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s

T
h
e

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

o
f

lic
e

n
c
e

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

d
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e

s
ta

tu
to

ry
p
e

ri
o

d

C
o

u
n

c
il

P
la

n
A

c
ti

o
n

s
G

U
2
 ;
 H

N
 6

 ;
 E

P
 2

D
u
e

 t
o

o
th

e
r

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n
ts

a
n
d

p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
in

 E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l S
e

rv
ic

e
s

it

h
a

s
n
o

t
y
e

t
b
e

e
n

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 t
o

a
n
a

ly
s
e

 t
h
e

c
o

s
ts

a
n
d

ra
n
k
in

g
s
.

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,

th
e

H
e

a
d

o
f 

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l S
e

rv
ic

e
s

w
ill

b
e

u
n
d
e

rt
a

k
in

g
a

n
a

n
a

ly
s
is

in

d
u
e

c
o

u
rs

e
.

C
o

u
n

c
il

P
la

n
A

c
ti

o
n

s
H

N
4
;

F
L
4
;

F
L
5
;

IP
5

T
h
e

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

o
f

n
e

w
re

p
o

rt
s

o
f

a
b
a

n
d
o

n
e

d
v
e

h
ic

le
s

in
v
e

s
ti
g
a

te
d

w
it
h
in

2
4

h
o

u
rs

T
h
e

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

o
f

a
b
a

n
d
o

n
e

d
v
e

h
ic

le
s

re
m

o
v
e

d
w

it
h
in

2
4

h
o

u
rs

fr
o

m
 t
h
e

p
o

in
t
a

t

w
h
ic

h
 t
h
e

 A
u
th

o
ri

ty
is

le
g
a

lly
e

n
ti
tle

d
 t
o

re
m

o
v
e

 t
h
e

v
e

h
ic

le

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

H
e
a
lt

h
C

o
u

n
c
il

P
la

n
T

h
e
m

e
(s

)
G

&
U

/H
&

N
,/
F

fL
/

Io
P

T
h
e

s
c
o

re
a

g
a

in
s
t
a

c
h
e

c
k
lis

t
o

f
b
e

s
t

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

fr
o

m
:
a

) 
E

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

lH
e

a
lth

T
h
e

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

o
f

p
o

llu
ti
o

n
c
o

n
tr

o
l

im
p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

e
x
is

ti
n
g

in
s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
s

c
o

m
p
le

te
d

o
n
 t
im

e

T
h
e

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
o

f
re

le
v
a

n
t
la

n
d

a
n
d

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s

(e
x
p
re

s
s
e

d
a

s
a

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

)
fr

o
m

w
h
ic

h
u
n
a

c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

le
v
e

ls
o

f
g
ra

ff
it
i
a

re

v
is

ib
le

..

T
h
e

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
o

f
re

le
v
a

n
t
la

n
d

a
n
d

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s

(e
x
p
re

s
s
e

d
a

s
a

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

)
fr

o
m

w
h
ic

h
u
n
a

c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

le
v
e

ls
o

f
fl
y
-p

o
s
ti
n
g

a
re

v
is

ib
le

.

T
h
e

y
e

a
r-

o
n
-y

e
a

r
re

d
u
c
ti
o

n
in

 t
o

ta
ln

u
m

b
e

r

o
f

in
c
id

e
n
ts

a
n
d

in
c
re

a
s
e

in
 t
o

ta
ln

u
m

b
e

r
o

f

e
n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 t
a

k
e

n
 t
o

d
e

a
lw

it
h

‘f
ly

-

ti
p
p
in

g
’

T
h
e

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
o

f
re

le
v
a

n
t
la

n
d

a
n
d

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s

(e
x
p
re

s
s
e

d
a

s
a

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

) 
th

a
t

is
a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
a

s
h
a

v
in

g
c
o

m
b
in

e
d

d
e

p
o

s
it
s

o
f

lit
te

r
a

n
d

d
e

tr
it
u
s
 t
h
a

t
fa

ll
b
e

lo
w

a
n

a
c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

le
v
e

l.

Page 200



K
P

I
-C

E
M

1
(b

)
N

e
w

N
/A

K
P

I
-C

E
M

1
(c

)
N

e
w

N
/A

K
P

I
-C

E
M

1
(d

)
N

e
w

N
/A

K
P

I
-C

E
M

1
(e

)
N

e
w

N
/A

K
P

I
-C

E
M

1
(f

)
N

e
w

N
/A

K
P

I
-C

E
M

1
(g

)
N

e
w

N
/A

T
h
e

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

o
f

c
h
a

lle
n
g
e

s
a

llo
w

e
d

a
g
a

in
s
t 
th

e
is

s
u
e

o
f

a
 P

e
n
a

lty
C

h
a

rg
e

N
o

ti
c
e

d
u
ri

n
g
 t
h
e

y
e

a
r.

T
h
e

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

o
f 

P
e

n
a

lty
C

h
a

rg
e

N
o

ti
c
e

s

is
s
u
e

d
d
u
ri

n
g
 t
h
e

y
e

a
r

w
h
e

re
c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
w

a
s

o
b
ta

in
e

d

P
a
rk

in
g

C
o

u
n

c
il

P
la

n
T

h
e
m

e
(s

)

T
h
e

n
u
m

b
e

r
o

f 
P

e
n
a

lty
C

h
a

rg
e

N
o

ti
c
e

s

is
s
u
e

d
d
u
ri

n
g
 t
h
e

y
e

a
r

in
re

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

o
ff

-

s
tr

e
e

t
p
a

rk
in

g

T
h
e

n
u
m

b
e

r
o

f 
P

e
n
a

lty
C

h
a

rg
e

N
o

ti
c
e

s

is
s
u
e

d
d
u
ri

n
g
 t
h
e

y
e

a
r 

th
a

t
w

e
re

s
u
b
je

c
t
o

f

a
n

in
fo

rm
a

lc
h
a

lle
n
g
e

T
h
e

n
u
m

b
e

r
o

f 
P

e
n
a

lty
C

h
a

rg
e

N
o

ti
c
e

s

is
s
u
e

d
d
u
ri

n
g
 t
h
e

y
e

a
r 

th
a

t
w

e
re

s
u
b
je

c
t
o

f
a

fo
rm

a
lc

h
a

lle
n
g
e

 t
o

 t
h
e

H
e

a
d

o
f

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l S
e

rv
ic

e
s

T
h
e

n
u
m

b
e

r
o

f 
P

e
n
a

lty
C

h
a

rg
e

N
o

ti
c
e

s

is
s
u
e

d
d
u
ri

n
g
 t
h
e

y
e

a
r 

th
a

t
w

e
re

s
u
b
je

c
t
o

f
a

fo
rm

a
lc

h
a

lle
n
g
e

 t
o

 t
h
e

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l P
a

rk
in

g

A
d
ju

d
ic

a
ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

S
C

/
Io

P
C

o
u

n
c
il

P
la

n
A

c
ti

o
n

s
S

C
1
/I
P

5

N
o

c
o

s
t
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
a

v
a

ila
b
le

fo
r 

P
a

rk
in

g
a

t 
th

e
 t
im

e
o

f
c
o

m
p
le

ti
n
g
 t
h
is

 V
F

M
 A

n
a

ly
s
is

W
o

rk
w

ill
b
e

u
n
d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
d
u
ri

n
g

2
0

0
6

/7
a

n
d

2
0

0
7

/8
 t
o

o
b
ta

in
u
n
it

c
o

s
ts

Page 201



Page 202

This page is intentionally left blank



G
&

 U
G

re
e

n
&

U
n

iq
u

e
H

&
N

H
o

m
e

s
&

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

S
C

A
S

a
fe

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

F
f 

L
F

it
fo

r 
L

if
e

E
C

E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
P

ro
s

p
e

ri
ty

Io
P

Im
p

ro
v

in
g

 o
u

r
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

E
F

D
C

D
C

 T
o

p
E

F
D

C
B

o
tt

o
m

T
o

p

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
Q

u
a

rt
il
e

C
o

s
t

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0

0
5

/0
6

2
0

0
4

/5
2

0
0

5
/6

IC
T

0
1

N
e
w

N
/A

T
B

A
T

B
A

T
B

A

T
B

A
T

B
A

T
B

A

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

ri
n

g

a
u

th
o
ri
ti
e
s

T
h

e
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o
f

H
e
lp

D
e
s
k

c
a
ll
s

re
s
p

o
n

d
e
d

 t
o

w
it
h

in
 t

a
rg

e
t

T
h

e
re

w
e
re

n
o

B
V

P
Is

o
r

L
P

Is
 f

o
r

IC
T

.
T

h
is

n
e
w

L
P

I
h

a
s

b
e
e
n

c
re

a
te

d
w

it
h

a
vi

e
w

 t
o

n
o
w

s
e
e
k
in

g
c
o
m

p
a
ra

ti
ve

/b
e
n

c
h

m
a
rk

e
d

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

 f
ro

m
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

ri
n

g
a
u

th
o
ri
ti
e
s

a
n

d
S

O
C

IT
M

(S
o
c
ie

ty
o
f

IT

M
a
n

a
g

e
rs

).
T

ru
ly

c
o
m

p
a
ra

ti
ve

c
o
s
ts

a
n

d
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

a
re

s
ti
ll

b
e
in

g

c
o
n

s
id

e
re

d

C
o
s
t

p
e
r

H
e
lp

D
e
s
k

c
a
ll

C
o
s
t

p
e
r

H
e
lp

D
e
s
k

c
a
ll

£
4
2

S
o
c
ie

ty
o
f

IT
M

a
n

a
g

e
rs

M
e
m

b
e
rs

o
f

S
O

C
IT

M

E
F

D
C

S
u

rv
e
y

C
o

u
n

c
il

P
la

n
A

c
ti

o
n

s

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

G
ro

u
p

A
v

e
ra

g
e

2
0

0
5

/6

IC
T

IP
1

/4
/

C
o

u
n

c
il

P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

(s
)

I
o
 P

C
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
o

f
A

n
n

u
a
l

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

a
n

d
 C

o
s
ts

K
e
y
 t

o
C

o
u

n
c
il

P
la

n
T

h
e
m

e
s

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
C

o
s

t 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 o
n

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
V

C
o

s
t

B
V

P
I
N

o
.

B
V

P
I
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

C
o

s
t 

In
d

ic
a

to
r

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n

Page 203



Page 204

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

Report to Finance and Performance  
Management Scrutiny Standing Panel 
 
Date of meeting:  14 November 2006 
 
Subject:  Evaluation of Recruitment and Retention Strategy 
 
Officer contact for further information:  Tony Tidey (Ext 4054) 
 
Committee Secretary:  Adrian Hendry (Ext 4246) 
 
 
Recommendations: 
 
(1) That the Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Standing Panel note 
the progress that has been made with the implementation of the Council’s recruitment 
and retention strategy; 
 
(2) That further publicity be made available to staff on the existence of subsidised 
Leisure Centre membership, health checks, the Banked Holiday Scheme and the Busy 
Bees childcare voucher scheme; 
 
(3) That the provision of health checks to staff at or over the age of 40 be extended 
to all staff in the light of the success of the scheme and the age discrimination 
legislation now in force, and 
 
(4) That the Scrutiny Standing Panel recommends to Cabinet that the current 
initiatives continue but that attention is refocused on the issue of the Council’s 
increasing sickness absence levels, in terms of future HR activity and focus. 
 
Report 
 
1. At its meeting of 12 July 2004 the Cabinet agreed a range of recruitment and 
retention initiatives, as forming the Council’s recruitment and retention strategy.  The 
purpose of this report is to inform the Standing Panel of the progress that has been made 
with the implementation of this strategy, the results of the evaluation that has now taken 
place, and that the Standing Panel recommend to Cabinet accordingly. 
 
Staff Turnover 
 
2. Table 1 below sets out staff turnover for the period 2000-2006. 
 

Year Turnover 
2000/01 11.73% 
2001/02 15.77% 
2002/03 14.96% 
2003/04 12.13% 
2004/05 13.48% 
2005/06 9.3% 

 
From this information it can be noted that turnover has consistently been at the 12-15% 
level, except for the last financial year, which saw a reduction.  The figures have taken 
account of the externalisation of Leisure during that year.  At this stage it is not possible to 
state whether the lower turnover level for 2005/06 is part of a trend or whether turnover will 
increase to its historic levels again.  That said, it should be noted that the Council continues 

Agenda Item 13

Page 205



2 

to have difficulty recruiting staff into key shortage areas such as Legal, Accountancy, 
Performance Management, Engineers, Building Control Surveyors and Planners, along with 
some other posts.  The Council does not have difficulty attracting staff who wish to work in 
an administrative/support capacity and this has been the case for a number of years. 
 
Progress With Specific Initiatives 
 
3. An evaluation of the initiatives agreed by Cabinet is considered below. 
 
 (a) Provision of discounted staff membership for Leisure Centres 
 
 Publicity was made available to staff following the agreement of Cabinet to this 

initiative.  Information is also included in new staff induction packs.  For the period to 
31 December 2005, 39 staff were in ordinary gym membership with the Council’s 
Leisure Centres, 20 staff were in gold level membership, making a total of 59 staff.  
In addition, a further 44 staff (plus 18 children) had general centre membership.  This 
makes a total combined membership of 103 staff, which represents 12.29% of staff 
using this benefit. 

 
 Given the fact that a number of existing staff may have forgotten about the existence 

of this benefit, it is suggested that further publicity is now given to it. 
 
 (b) Council participation in joint recruitment advertising initiatives with 

Essex Authorities 
 
 The Council has participated in three recruitment campaigns with other Essex 

authorities.  A further campaign is planned for early 2007 following which a full 
evaluation will be undertaken.  The purpose of the campaigns has been to raise 
general awareness of Local Government positions across Essex.  This has generally 
focused on professional posts, to which many authorities are struggling to recruit. 

 
The campaigns have focused on station, bus, newspaper and radio advertising and 
have provided the Authority with far wider exposure across the County than would 
have been possible on a stand-alone basis.  Indeed, the relatively small contribution 
(£3,000 per campaign) has made it a very cost effective option. 
 
With each campaign, enquirers were directed to a generic recruitment site which set 
out details of the employment offer available in Local Government in Essex including 
such matters as case histories about people who work in hard to fill areas, details of 
pay and benefits available, and most importantly a link to individual councils’ 
websites.  The last campaign took place from 15 January 2006 for four weeks and 
resulted in 95 visits to the Epping Forest element of the joint website, from which a 
number of people then clicked through to our own recruitment site.  At this point 
enquirers either had the opportunity to apply for specific advertised posts on our 
website or to register for e-mail alerts for jobs that occurred at a later date. 
 
Currently 608 people are registered to receive e-mail alerts of this nature from our 
website.  It is not possible to determine whether the campaigns have directly resulted 
in offers of jobs.  This is because many enquirers will receive job alerts via e-mail 
over a considerable period of time, and may choose to apply at any point.  That said, 
the campaigns have increased the pool of people interested in working for the 
Council, thus fulfilling the objective of raising awareness of employment opportunities 
available, with the expectation that this would translate into job offers at a later date. 

 
 The joint campaign which is scheduled to take place in January 2007 will focus on 

attracting hard to reach groups such as young people.  This is an area that the 

Page 206



3 

Council has difficulty in recruiting to, and which we must address given the ageing 
nature of our workforce. 

 
 After the completion of this campaign the Essex Strategic HR Partnership (of which 

the Council is a member) will carry out a full value for money evaluation. 
 
 (c) Introduction of a banked holiday scheme 
 
 Members asked that a scheme be drawn up whereby staff are allowed to save up 

leave over a number of years in order to provide the opportunity to take an extended 
holiday, for example to visit relatives in Australia.  Cabinet agreed this at its meeting 
of 12 July 2004 and this was publicised to staff.  A survey across the Council has 
indicated that currently one member of staff participates in this scheme.  It is timely to 
re-publicise this to staff. 

 
 (d) Establishment of three trainee positions in priority areas funded from 

the recruitment and retention budget 
 
 This has been the most successful element of the recruitment and retention strategy.  

The Council finds it hard to compete in the open market place for qualified staff given 
our proximity to London.  That said there are many talented support staff who would 
welcome the opportunity to train for a professional qualification and status, both in 
the Council and outside.  Given the interest expressed by services in this scheme the 
Council has in fact established five posts from the corporate recruitment and 
retention budget rather than three.  These are as follows: 

 
• Trainee Building Control Surveyor 
• Trainee Planner 
• Countrycare Trainee 
• Trainee Environmental Health Officer 
• Trainee Business Analyst 

 
 Currently all trainee posts are filled with the exception of one, which will be recruited 

to shortly.  The trainees are undergoing a programme of structured development 
including sponsored study opportunities towards professional qualification status.  
As part of the contract each trainee is required to sign an undertaking to remain with 
the Council for two years after the completion of their training.  This ensures that the 
Council receives a return on its investment. 

 
 In addition to the trainees appointed via the recruitment and retention budget, 

services have also funded a number of trainees from their own established budgets, 
recognising that this was a pragmatic solution to recruitment difficulties.  The posts 
funded from service level budgets are as follows: 

 
• Trainee Planner (two posts in addition to the one funded by the corporate 

budget) 
• Trainee Performance Improvement Officer 
• Apprentice Carpenter (two posts) 
• Trainee Housing Surveyor 
• Trainee Legal Officer 

 
 Although it would be possible to establish more posts of this nature, in many areas 

the scope to do so is limited because of the training and support needs of trainees.  
Whilst they are enthusiastic and willing, their supervision requirements are often 
greater than ‘qualified’ staff, thus placing an additional burden on teams.  The 

Page 207



4 

balance between their enthusiasm and support needs must always be carefully 
weighed up. 

 
 (e) The establishment of four paid work experience placements 
 
 This initiative has not had widespread support.  This is because Services felt that it 

would be better to establish bonafide trainee positions to which they could recruit 
staff immediately, rather than offering work experience placements which may or 
may not result in a permanent placement at a later date.  In the light of this lack of 
support, Management Board agreed that the sum of money set aside for work 
experience placements (£25,000) be allocated to the increased establishment of 
corporately sponsored trainees described above. 

 
 (f) The introduction of free Council health checks to all staff aged over 40 
 
 The budget set aside for this was £11,200 and the workforce consisted of 425 staff 

aged 40 or over at August 2006.  (This represented nearly 58% of the workforce.)  
Of those 425 staff, 142 had a health check, giving a response rate of 33.41%.  This 
was at a cost of £3,124, and was received favourably by staff in the target group. 

 
 Leisure Services has carried out an evaluation of these health checks and the 

following points are noteworthy: 
 

• 9.2% of those tested had heavy or excessive alcohol ratings 
• 16.4% of the group were smokers 
• 62.5% of those tested were considered obese 
• 58.3% of those tested had body mass indexes above normal 
• 11.7% had blood pressure readings higher than normal 
• 36.7% had cholesterol measured ratings which were either borderline 

undesirable or undesirable 
 
 At the end of each individual session the employee was given advice on how to 

develop or maintain a healthy lifestyle.  This information was provided in confidence 
to the employee so it is not possible to evaluate the take-up of any recommendations 
provided. 

 
 Given the introduction of the Age Discrimination Regulations from 1 October 2006, it 

is now highly likely that restricting access to free health checks to a certain age group 
would be deemed unlawful.  It is therefore recommended that the provision of free 
health checks be extended to the whole workforce given the positive feedback from 
staff, and budget availability.  As noted above there was a 34% take-up of free health 
checks from staff aged 40 or over.  If this is extrapolated to the whole workforce, it is 
estimated that this staff benefit could be offered at a cost of £4,862 per year.  As 
Cabinet agreed an original budget for this of £11,200 it would seem sensible to offer 
this benefit to all staff in the Council, as it can be achieved within existing recruitment 
and retention resources. 

 
 (g) The development of a scheme of employer-supported childcare 

payments 
 
 The 2004 budget introduced tax incentives for employer-supported childcare.  These 

take place by means of a ‘salary sacrifice’, whereby an employee gives up an 
element of their salary and it is deemed to be a payment by the employer towards the 
cost of childcare.  It is therefore eligible for tax relief for that individual at their highest 
rate.  HM Revenue and Customs rules dictate that such arrangements are only 
applicable where the employee has entered into a formal childcare arrangement with 

Page 208



5 

a registered childminder, nanny or nursery and cannot be applied to informal 
arrangements such as where children are cared for by relatives. 

 
 The Council has entered into a contract with Busy Bees Childcare for the 

administration of a voucher scheme based on salary sacrifice, and currently five staff 
participate in the scheme.  In some ways it is disappointing that more staff have not 
participated in this scheme.  That said, as noted above much childcare is of an 
informal nature (ie with relatives) and this is not eligible for tax relief.  The provision of 
Busy Bees childcare vouchers is made available to staff through their induction packs 
and it is suggested that further publicity be given to this. 

 
 (h) Participation of the Council in an Essex-wide bid for funding from the 

former Office of the Deputy Prime Minister, for Leadership and Management 
Development 

 
 The Council has had an active role in the establishment of an Essex-wide Leadership 

Centre of Excellence.  Currently Cohort 2 of this programme is running, and on each 
cohort the Council has taken up two places.  Senior managers have benefited from 
this training at a subsidised rate of £1,000-£1,250.  The actual cost of the programme 
is in the region of £5,000 for each delegate, but a significant element of these costs 
has been met by the ODPM grant and external sponsorship. 

 
 It is unlikely that further external funding will be made available for this scheme.  

Therefore officers across Essex are exploring the possibility of delivering the course 
in a more sustainable way which is not dependent on this external funding. 

 
 Whilst the number of staff from this Council participating so far has been small 

(four managers) evaluation of the programme indicates that it has been of benefit to 
the individuals.  Across Essex a cohort of approximately 50 future local government 
leaders has been developed.  The activities on the programme are such that the 
Council could not offer them if it was running an equivalent programme in-house, and 
indeed does not have the manager population to justify the activity. 

 
 (i) The development of shared contractual arrangements for recruitment 

advertising and a range of other HR services 
 
 The Council has joined with a number of other Essex authorities for the procurement 

of recruitment advertising and temporary agency workers for administrative and 
clerical functions.  Given the overall size of the contracts across Essex there have 
been considerable economies of scale, resulting in competitive rates being available 
to this Council which would not have been possible in a Council - level procurement 
exercise.  It has been estimated that the joining of these contracts has saved the 
Council in the region of 20% on its advertising and agency staffing rates (for 
administrative and clerical staff).  In addition the Council as part of the contract is 
provided with high quality regular management information on spend along with 
access to professional advice on the use of various recruitment media where 
appropriate. 

 
 (j) Introduction of the Government’s home computing scheme 
 
 Earlier this year arrangements were being put in place for the implementation of this 

initiative by means of discussions with potential contractors.  However, in the 2006 
budget the Government withdrew the tax incentives for this scheme, and therefore it 
no longer became viable. 

 
 (k) Introduction of a market forces policy 
 

Page 209



6 

 In response to recruitment and retention difficulties in key service areas the Cabinet 
agreed a market forces policy on 10 October 2005.  This policy provides for the 
payment of short term supplementary payments to staff in defined shortage areas as 
a means of recruiting and retaining them.  It is fair to say that this was introduced with 
a degree of concern and caution given the fact that the Council has a Job Evaluation 
Scheme for the ranking of jobs.  There is the potential for a market forces scheme to 
erode differentials in salary bands, leading to ill feeling amongst some staff.  Whilst 
the scheme has been made available, services have not yet taken it up, largely for 
the reasons set out in this report. 

 
Conclusions 
 
4. From the above analysis it can be seen that many of the Council’s recruitment and 
retention initiatives established in 2004 have been relatively successful.  That said, the staff 
turnover level remains relatively high.  Equally recruitment surveys carried out by the Human 
Resources Unit show that services struggle to recruit and retain staff in key areas. 
 
5. The Council’s overall recruitment and retention budget is £237,000.  However, it has 
not been necessary to use all of this resource and the budget is likely to produce a saving of 
£70,000 in 2006/07.  Whilst, for example, it would be possible to utilise some of this resource 
for the establishment of further trainee positions, as noted above such posts require 
significant amounts of support and development and place a drain on existing professional 
staff in the early years.  There is therefore a limit to the capacity of the Council to absorb 
such initiatives. 
 
6. Turnover in the Council is comparable to other public and private sector 
organisations in the Greater London area, and reflects the buoyant labour market in London 
and the South East.  In 2005/06 the Council spent £206,000 in recruitment advertising, and 
advertised 190 positions.  Given the current economic environment it is likely that turnover 
will remain at its current level and that it will be necessary to spend similar amounts on 
recruitment advertising in the future, although the figure above reflects the inclusion of the 
Leisure Centres prior to outsourcing. 
 
7. Officers have given considerable thought to the Council’s current recruitment and 
retention position and have evaluated carefully the initiatives agreed by Cabinet in July 
2004.  It is not recommended that new initiatives are introduced now, but those which have 
had some degree of success (such as health checks, childcare vouchers and trainee 
positions) are continued.  In order to improve efficiency and performance it is recommended 
that other HR priorities are now given greater focus, including the further development of the 
Council’s managing absence arrangements, given the increase in staff absence which has 
taken place over the last year.  With limited resources the HR Unit must prioritise its projects 
to meet organisational need.  The recruitment and retention strategy has received a good 
deal of attention, and it is recommended that HR resources are now focused on increasing 
employee productivity and wellbeing by evaluating the success of the managing absence 
policy and developing ways of improving attendance. 
 
Statement in support of recommended action: 
 
8. The Council has had some success in developing recruitment and retention 
initiatives, but these have had limited effect on staff turnover.  Given the rise in sickness 
absence noted this year, it is sensible to re-focus resources on improving attendance. 
 
Consultation undertaken: 
 
9. With the recognised trades unions. 
 
 

Page 210



7 

 
 
 
Resource implications: 
 
Budget provision:  CSB £237,000 
 
Personnel:  As set out in the report 
Land:  Nil 
 
Community Plan/BVPP reference: 
 
Relevant statutory powers:  N/A 
 
Background papers:  File papers in HR Unit 
 
Environmental/Human Rights Act/Crime and Disorder Act implications:  None at this 
stage 
 
Key Decision reference (if required):  N/A 
 
 
 

G:\C\OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY\14 NOVEMBER 2006 – FINANCE & PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 

Page 211



Page 212

This page is intentionally left blank



Report to The Finance and Performance  
Management Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 
Date of meeting: 14 November 2006 
 
Portfolio:  Finance and Performance Management & Corporate  
 Support Services 
 
Subject:  Local Land Charges - Update 
 
Officer contact for further information:  Colleen O’Boyle (Ext 4475)/Jill Tautz (Ext 2777) 
 
Committee Secretary:   Adrian Hendry  (Ext 4246) 
 
 
 
 

Recommendation; 
 To note the updated report. 
 
Background 
1. At its meeting of 1 June 2006, the Panel received a report on income generated from 

Local Land Charge searches and personal searches, current performance in respect 
of standard searches and actions taken to address the situation.  The Panel required 
a further report on the status of the Local Land Charges budget and the income 
generated from standard searches and personal searches highlighting: 

 
 (a) progress achieved in improving current performance in relation to the 

turnaround for standard searches; 
 
 (b) options for improving the search enquiry services provided by Essex County 

Council and the Head of Environmental Services; and 
 
 (c) the implications for the Local Land Charges budget/workload of any 

reductions in the current search fees. 
 
 
2. Dealing first with the Local Land Charges budget the table below illustrates income 

generated from searches (including standard searches) over the last 5 years. 
 

  2001/02  2002/03  2003/04  2004/05  2005/06  2006/07 
  Estimate 

Total Expenditure  262,962  273,348  338,437  548,471  385,387  406,900 
Total Income  477,614  469,811  506,373  443,507  378,165  384,380 
Net Surplus (Deficit)  214,652  196,463  167,963  (14,964)  (7,222)  (22,000) 

 
 The anticipated improvement in income is as a result of slightly higher numbers of 

searches than the previous year. 
 
2.1 As referred to in the previous report the number of personal searches received over 

the period has increased.  This trend is illustrated in the table below. 

Agenda Item 14

Page 213



 
 2001/02 2002/03 2003/04 2004/05 2005/06 
 
Personal Searches over 
the last five years 

 
    396 

 
    731 

 
     871 

 
     871 

 
   1173 

 
Official Searches over 
the last five years 

 
   4442 

 
  4309 

 
   4022 

 
   3388 

 
   3396 

 
 

2.2 The table below shows the increase in personal searches carried out during the 
current financial year compared to the same period last year. 

 
 APR MAY  JUNE JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR TOTAL
 
Personal Searches 
carried out  2005/06 

 
 76 

 
 79 

 
 85 

 
 133 

 
 94 

 
 92 

 
 111 

 
 112 

 
 79 

 
 103 

 
 93 

 
 116 

 
 1173 

 
Personal Searches 
carried out 2006/07 

 
 113 

 
 153 

 
 155 

 
 136 

 
 145 
 

 
 151 

 
 161 

 
  

 
 1009 
 (so far)

 
 
Current Performance 
 
3. The best value performance indicator previously applicable to this service was 

discontinued in March 2006. 
 
4. It had measured the percentage of standard searches returned within 10 working 

days.  This Council had set a target of 86%.  The performance of the last 5 years is 
set out below. 
 2001/02 2002/03 2003/04 2004/05 2005/06 2006/07 
 
% of standard searches 
returned within 10 working 
days over the last five years 
 

 
 
  78.0% 

 
 
  29.2% 

 
 
  95.3% 

 
 
  60.6% 

 
 
  52.5% 

 
 
  44.1% 
  (so far)  

 
 
5. Although the overall percentage for the year continues to fall short of the target set, 

since the last Panel meeting in June performance has considerably improved as 
shown below. 

 
 

 
 

June 06 July 06 Aug 06 Sept 06 Oct 06 

% of standard searches 
returned within 10 working 
days 

19.5% 23.8% 48.6% 94.75 98.7% 

 
 
6. The reasons for this increased level of performance are attributable both to the Local 

Land Charges staff and the contributing services. 
 

Page 214



7. Within the small Local Land Charges team limited overtime has been worked.  This 
has had an impact in dealing with the backlog but is not sustainable over a long 
period. 

 
 
Turning to the other Services 
 
 
8. (i) Environmental Services 
 
 The response from the Environmental Service staff has been much improved.  This is 

particularly appreciated, as there is still pressure on the same staff to deal with the 
refuse recycling telephone enquiries. 

 
 However the Senior Local Land Charges Officer has liaised closely with her 

colleagues in Environmental Services and they have improved their response rate to 
4 days. 

 
 (ii) Essex County Council 
  

Following the last meeting of this Panel the Head of Legal, Admin and Estates and 
Senior Local Land Charges Officer met with Davina Millership - Acting Area 
Highways Manager and Tracey Griffiths - Technical Officer  

 
 The current performance of the County Council in reply to Highways enquiries has 

improved to 6 days. 
 
 The outcome of the meeting referred to above can be summarised as follows: 
 

(a) Additional resource of one FTE has been allocated to support the Technical 
Officer who previously had sole responsibility for the Highways replies. 

 
(b) An e-mail link, which allows searches to be sent and returned electronically, is 

expected to be operational by the end of the year. This method involves an email 
being generated by the current Local Land Charges computer system with the 
details of the Search address.  The Highways staff will then enter their replies to 
each Search onto the on-line Achieve form software, which will be password, 
protected. 

 
 As the County Council are currently returning searches by recorded delivery post, the 

electronic link should save at least a further 2 days. 
 
 (iii) The County Council are not prepared to enter into a service level agreement 

at present.  The Head of Legal, Admin and Estates did offer at the meeting to draft 
such an agreement to reflect the 5-day guaranteed turnaround time referred to by 
Councillor Bass at his meeting with the Joint Chief Executive (Community) and 
others.  This was not acceptable to County Officers. 

 
9. In summary, standard searches are currently being returned within 6 working days. 
 
10. However, it must be remembered that the return of the search is dependent upon 

each and every aspect of the replies being timely.  A delay in any one area has an 
immediate detrimental impact on the overall performance.  Thus although the 
performance has improved considerably since June, the loss of an experienced 

Page 215



member of staff in the Building Control Section has led to delays in this area and 
concern that while new officers are being appointed/trained, that delays may occur. 

 
11. The Local Land Charges team is spending greater time already checking replies in 

this area in an attempt to mitigate the impact on turnaround times but clearly this has 
an effect on the Section’s workload. 

 
12. Throughout there is a need to increase our speed of reply without impinging upon the 

quality of the search that is sent out. 
 
Budget/Workload Implications if Search Fee is Reduced 
 
13. The only council in Essex currently adopting the approach referred to above is 

Castle Point.  The rationale is that to win back the market share from the personal 
search companies (who charge clients approximately £100 per search) Local 
Authorities could reduce their fees and increase business. 

 
14. However to have a chance of being effective the Council would not only have to 

compete on price but also on turnaround time. 
 
15. Currently even with the improved performance from service areas the search is 

taking 6 days.  Although this is a considerable improvement it is not necessarily 
sustainable and would not work effectively to win back market share. 

 
16. Thus the impact of reducing the fees at present would in all probability simply mean a 

reduction in income. 
 
17. In any event on 25 October the Department of Constitutional Affairs published a 

Consultation Paper relating to the setting of fees for Local Land Charges services in 
England.  From 1 April 2007 all registering authorities (which includes district 
councils) will set their own fees for Local Land Charge services (excluding personal 
search fees). 

 
18. The closing date for this consultation is 4 December 2006.  In the light of this national 

consultation it is not proposed to alter the Council’s charging structure.  The 
consultation document has been placed in the Members’ Room should any member 
wish to read it in detail. 

Page 216


	Agenda
	4 Notes of Previous meeting - 15 August 2006
	5 Terms of Reference / Work Programme
	Work Programme

	6 Quarterly KPI Monitoring Report - 2nd Quarter.
	KPI Appendix 1
	KPI Appendix 2

	7 Comprehensive Performance Assessment - Improvement Plan
	CPA Appendix

	8 Essex Local Area Agreement
	LAA Appendix

	9 Quarterly Financial Monitoring
	Mon report -salaries
	Mon report -leader
	Mon report -commw
	Mon report -f&pm
	Mon report -custser
	Mon report -civil
	Mon report -envirpro
	Mon report planning
	Mon reporthra
	Mon report leis
	Mon report hgf
	cap mon finance

	10 Fees and Charges - 2007/08
	Fees & Charges -appendix 1
	Fees and charges- Appendix 2
	Fees & Charges -appendix 3

	11 Consultation Plan 2006/07
	Appemdix 1
	appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	12 Value for Money Analysis
	Cover 1
	Notes 2
	Housing 3
	HR 4
	Audit 5
	Leisure 6
	Planning 7
	Finance 8
	RDS 9
	Environment 10
	ICT 11

	13 Evaluation of Recruitment and Retention Strategy
	14 Local Land Charges

